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China Everbright International Limited (the “Company”, together with its subsidiaries, collectively the “Group”), a flagship
company in the industrial investment sector of China Everbright Group Ltd. (“China Everbright Group”), is listed on the
Mainboard of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. The Group is a leading player in China’s environmental protection
industry and the first one-stop integrated environmental solution provider in the country. It leverages talent, science and
technology to develop all of its four major business segments, namely environmental energy, environmental water (China
Everbright Water Limited is listed on the Mainboard of the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited), greentech and
envirotech. It also leads a large number of industry-leading, world-class projects, in the areas of waste-to-energy, water
restoration, biomass integrated utilization, hazardous waste treatment, photovoltaic energy, wind power, environmental
protection engineering, technological research and development, environmental protection equipment manufacturing,
plus the planning and construction of environmental protection industrial parks. The Group has a business presence in 14
provinces, regions and municipalities and more than 70 counties and cities, and also in Germany.

Under the leadership of an experienced and dedicated management team and with strong support from China Everbright
Group, the Group will drive the next round of development, further explore the environmental protection market and develop
new environmental protection projects, to position itself as the industry leader in the domestic market and in the global
environmental protection sector in the future.

PEXKBERERRR(ARE ] EFREMBEAREGHE [AEE ) STEXAKERO AR (THEXAEE]DETEER
BZEERR REEMARIMAERARIRLETATF - ARESPERFRITENEELE - EHEAE WX - 27
fIERFFEEIAERGE - REEUAS « BHERSIE - 2EHESE NRRER - RIFKB(PECRKEER AR RHN
BEFZSHERATIRETAR)  RERRIBEMROAEBIRMBOER - BF T —ARITERE - AFREBKE
MIEE - BRAREE  KRFEE AWMEGENA  BERE  LREE  RABRE RETEER - KM% R
REBEE RREXENREINERS - BEBERAIMES - & - MR70ZEHD - RREEEEMS

ERBHENEEESE [ BETEXAARKENZNXE  ARESEDHFE £ PHRRERDIGIL TERERIR
RIER  BOKBTETEHRRREXNIE

Design Concept &=

“Fuelling Growth” is the theme of this annual report. Dedicated, full of power and
emitting unmatched confidence, the runner in the cover is ready to show off his stunning
EROWTI momentum at the starting line. This represents that China Everbright International |

Limited is well poised to become a leader in environmental protection industry under
the guidance of the new development blueprint with its solid foundation, management
excellence and innovative technology. '
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China Construction Bank Corporation
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Financial Highlights

R

2015 2014 Percentage
—E-0F —E—mEF Change
HK$’000 HK$’000 Bt
BET T BT 28
RESULTS ES
Revenue Wz 8,534,531 6,355,120 34%
EBITDA* BRFE - FIE - TER
B SH R & R 3,754,449 2,795,219 34%
Profit attributable to equity A% 58 fE {5 Z 7]
shareholders 2,084,888 1,703,147 22%
Return on shareholders’ equity (%) A& & % EH(%) 12.46 11.49 1 ppt
Basic earnings per share B EAEF)
(HK cents) (&L 46.50 37.99 22%
FINANCIAL POSITION B AR
Total assets BEMWEEE 40,623,072 31,199,794 30%
Total liabilities BERRE 21,202,531 13,356,824 59%
Shareholders’ equity % R A 7 17,196,154 16,263,256 6%
Net asset value per share IR R FE1E TR
attributable to equity BEFEGEEIT)
shareholders (HK$) 3.835 3.627 6%
Gearing ratio (%) BEAGBLE(%) 52 43 9 ppt
Current ratio (%) TRENLL (%) 182 170 12 ppt

# EBITDA is the profit for the year before deduction of interest, taxation,
depreciation and amortisation.

* EBITDARNBRFIE « FiIE  ITEREHATRF) -
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Corporate Milestones tEAEHE

EAT RERBTI

rvisanmentsl Resan:

01/2015

e Secured Chuzhou Nangiao Biomass Power
Generation Project in Anhui Province

e Secured Mianzhu Waste-to-energy and Biomass
Power Generation Projects in
Sichuan Province !

e Everbright Water brought in strategic investors
through issuance of 120,690,957 new shares

e Everbright Environmental Protection Technology
Institute was unveiled in Shenzhen

e Received Best Social Responsibility Brand
Award in the China Charity Festival 2014

.« RERBERNERLDEETED
s MBI RIEREEREMEEETIER i
o JAKHTIT120,600,957BH - 5| A\FIRBIEE |

REE i
o NRRRIMIAIFTB A RY B i
o B2014(FNE) FERKHFERERERRE |

________________________________________________

________________________________________________

02/2015 ’

'« Won the bid for Pingdu Waste-to-energy Project
i in Shandong Province

s MRIUREFELIFEEIEAR

________________________________________________

03/2015

e Secured Sanya Waste-to-energy Project
Phase Il in Hainan Province

e Everbright International Environmental
Protection Charitable Foundation supported

the second consecutive year

e Announced 2014 annual results, with profit from
operations up by 26% YoY
o BUSEME =GR EEREH — 5
e NABBRRAGRASEEF _FAES [HIk—
N B EE B KE
Lo KABBAH T —NFEEFES  CEEF
1 BR1S26%IE R

________________________________________________

i Earth Hour in Hong Kong as the lead sponsor for
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________________________________________________

06/2015

e Secured Xiao County Urban-rural Integration
Projects in Anhui Province

e Secured Laiwu Waste-to-energy Project and
Food Waste Treatment Project in Shandong
Province

e Secured Rugao Biomass Power Generation
Project in Jiangsu Province

e Secured Guanyun Urban-rural Integration
' Projects in Jiangsu Province

04/2015

e Awarded Best Investor Relations Company and
Mr. Chen Xiaoping, the CEO of the Company,
was awarded Asia’s Best CEO at the 5th Asian
Excellence Recognition Awards 2015 by
Corporate Governance Asia

o B(DMEEER)MFFSERMNEBALE2015
[REREEBEAR]  AARITHAEE
BR/ANF AR R [ EMN&KECEO]

e Changzhou Xinbei Waste-to-energy Project
Phase | in Jiangsu Province received RMB108
million subsidies from the National Development
and Reform Commission

e \Won Xintai Waste-to-energy Project in
Shandong Province

. BUSEUEEES—BILER

o BRI L R AR B A A R BT R R
e BUSIHANMEAYEREIRE

Lo BATHERRAB (AR

Lo THRERMEIL R EEER RN EE S
L BIAREA1.08B5T

Lo EURANERREEAS

________________________________________________

A4 Ty SIRAE
E ?lq * @F" China Evertiright Intemational Limited

=l CHRBEFERE
2015 Annt :neral Meeting

________________________________________________

07/2015

e Everbright Water secured a long-term loan
' of USD140 million from International Finance
Corporation

05/2015

results, with revenue up by 87% YoY

e Secured Ju County Waste Water Treatment i i
Project in Rizhao City of Shandong Province E i o WANKKEBRRSBATIRE—S14EETYH

e Zhenjiang Waste-to-energy Project Phase Il in RHER
Jiangsu Province completed construction and o W AIKIEAM20154F L F 24 - AR
BR87%

e Everbright Water announced 2015 interim i

e Convened 2015 annual general meeting of LT mmmmm s mmmmmmmomemmomme e
the Company

s MBIIRAHRER T/KEIEIRR
o THEFITANETIAR —HEMIE
s AT —hERFBEFRE

________________________________________________

1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
|
1
. commenced operation
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
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Corporate Milestones Tt¥ KEHE

09/2015

e \Won Yongzhou Waste-to-energy Project in
Hunan Province
e \Won Ya’an Waste-to-energy Project in Sichuan Province

e Ningbo Waste-to-energy Project Phase Il in '
Zhejiang Province completed construction and E
commenced operation !

e Chosen as a constituent stock of Hang Seng i
Corporate Sustainability Index for the second year

e Secured Zibo Hazardous Solid Waste Landfill i
Project in Shandong Province !

08/2015

' E‘¢%ﬁﬁ%ﬁMﬁﬁ%%EE
o e HEM) A MR B EIE B

* Boluo Waste-to-energy Project in Guangdong | | ¢ wrsrwm i BREIEE — HERISE
Province completed construction and i E _

. s BEEMABEAFERROEREBKNK
commenced operation

o U5 EiE HIBTE
e Secured Ji'nan Waste Water Treatment (Plant 1) BELREEBERRDAR

Expansion Project in Shandong Province

e Wujiang Waste-to-energy Project in Jiangsu
Province received RMB30 million subsidies
from the National Development and Reform
Commission

e Announced 2015 interim results, with profit
attributable to equity shareholders exceeding
HK$1 billion

e Became the first company to disclose operating
waste-to-energy projects’ emission standards
and environmental management information in
China

e Zhenjiang Waste-to-energy Project Phase |l
in Jiangsu Province received RMB10 million
subsidies from the National Development and
Reform Commission

10/2015

e Secured Fengyang Urban-rural Integration

e Secured Hangzhou Chun’an Waste-to-energy Projects in Anhui Province

Project in Zhejiang Province
s ERAEWBENFETIAABZKKRE
o HUSILREERSKERIER (—M)EEIER
o IHERINREEEERENZESHPARE

e Secured Liuhe Urban-rural Integration Projects
in Jiangsu Province

e Secured Sugian Waste-to-energy Project

e Rizhao Waste-to-energy Project in Shandong

3,000& 7T

N —E—RFPHES  SEREERGATER
0BT
FRERNEENIREEELIAE MR ERIRIRE
BIER

IERATI RN TIEE —HEENETESMEIA
R #1,0008 7T

BEIE MM ZR K EEIEE

Province completed construction and
commenced operation

s MELRBEESGHE—E(LIEAR
s MBIEE AWM —EE(LIAR
s MBIHAEBEBINEEIRRE _H
o IURAHARIIFHETIARENIE

i Phase Il in Jiangsu Province i
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11/2015

12/2015

e Weifang Waste-to-energy Project in Shandong
Province completed construction and
commenced operation

e Secured Lankao Waste-to-energy Project in
Henan Province

e Everbright Water completed the acquisition of
Dalian Dongda projects

e Obtained 5A Credit Rating in 2015 Credit Rating
Assessment for companies in the environmental
sanitation sector in Guangdong Province

e Secured Huaiyin Urban-rural Integration Projects
in Jiangsu Province

e Won Nanjing Pukou Reusable Water Project in
Jiangsu Province
e Secured Ju County Waste-to-energy Project in

. e Secured Zoucheng Waste-to-energy Project in
Shandong Province

Shandong Province
e Secured Beijing Daxing Tiantanghe

Waste Water Treatment Upgrading and
Expansion Project

e \Won Ji’'nan Xike Waste Water Treatment Project
(Plant 4) Phase Il in Shandong Province

e Changzhou Xinbei Waste-to-energy Project in
Jiangsu Province completed construction
and commenced operation

e Named the Listed Company with Best Brand Value
in the China Securities Golden Bauhinia Awards

e Received the Listed Enterprise Excellence

Awards by Capital Weekly Magazine e Qverall achievements in waste incineration

certified by experts to have reached international
advanced level

o WURABHRIRHEIRRZRIUE

s BEIHE KR —FE(LIRA

o PIRIERE RO /KEAIEA

o BUSIIREFWEIFEEIRR

s PIRIUREEMAES/KEERA (TR =5

e Awarded the Best of Asia and the Outstanding
Companies on Corporate Governance at the
Corporate Governance Asia Annual Recognition
Awards 2015 by Corporate Governance Asia

s MBS AEEMENREEIAR

° HAKIBTRUBREREHRR

o B2015FEEREARATELELAGERER

* RFILREERNREBIRA o STEHEAFEMIILPHEEE BRIGE

o BUSIERAEERXEN5/KEIRIA B IR HOEM o EIRRIER A RIBBERETIEDEES S E
#EER i

s BHEESCEAE-SARMEELTAR

o BERAMBSHEGDN FTHhERE

o B(TMBEEAMABE2015F ER BTN &
ERRGEERRE QAR

________________________________________________
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Chairman’s Statement =E&E

Carry forward the spirit of

CHINA EVERBRIGHT

Strive to establish a renowned
ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION brand

BREXKRES FARKERE

CHAIRMAN E/&
Tang Shuangning FE#2

In 2015, amid a turbulent global economy, China continued to adapt to the ‘New Normal’ and the ‘Green
Development’ sector was buoyed by a series of positive advancements. As the leading enterprise in the
environmental protection industry in China, the Group stayed responsive to market trends and sustained robust
growth in its businesses. At the same time, it took on various social responsibilities to show the contribution of
the Group to both the economy and society has increased.

During the year under review, the Group was selected as a constituent stock of the Hang Seng Corporate
Sustainability Index for the second consecutive year, and was also included as a constituent stock of the
following major indices: MSCI China Index, Hang Seng China-Affiliated Corporations Index and Hang Seng
Mainland 100 Index. In addition, the Group obtained a 5A credit rating for companies in the environmental
sanitation sector and ranked in the Leading Chinese Enterprises in the Construction of Urban Veinous Industrial
Parks, as well as maintaining its top position in the Top Ten Influential Solid Waste Treatment Enterprise in China.
Through more than a decade of hard work and dedication, the Group has earned widespread recognition and
support, successfully establishing itself as the industry leader.

During the year under review, the Group secured 34 new environmental protection projects and acquired
Dalian Dongda Water Co., Ltd (“Dalian Dongda”), setting record highs for both the total number of projects
and the amount of investment. The Group further consolidated its presence in existing markets and extended
its business footprint to new territories through mergers and acquisitions and internal development. During
the year, the Group successfully expanded to a number of new markets in Sichuan, Shaanxi, Beijing, Inner
Mongolia and Liaoning, etc. To date, the Group has established a business presence in 14 provinces, regions
and municipalities and more than 70 counties and cities in China and also in Germany, with 169 environmental
protection projects and a total investment exceeding RMB39.1 billion.

—T-0F EREEEDBTER - PELESBEE

[#TEE]  [MRERRIEZHE - FATERRITENEE
X AEEENEY  BRER BEET HoWGHELE

&)
MR BELRTT

CEFEERN  AEEEEE _FEM [BERBEEROFEH KM - 7L IMSCIEARFTBEER] - [BEFE
hEMEER] R [BEEPEAMI00ERIEEERENRDMK < I AEERFRNEFRETELEAGRAER
ERERTHENEXEEZRBECEHRTET RIS  BMPREETETAZENCEEE - BHHFZEY
AEERBERAEE  MRITEBE -

EEFENRN  AEEFIE4ERFRIELE RBBREREKEERAR ([ KRERE]) HERSHREBHEIEELH
B BBEHEBERAREE  AEERERGMM  BOFEBHLT  AEFEEER TN - BEAE bR AR REE
EHMEG B2 ALEEEBEEEN14EE - & - MR70ZEE™T  RIBEEREMS - BESERRKREEB 1691
WIS & ARE31ETT °
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During the year under review, the Company further explored its operation and management, which allowed
it to achieve continuous growth in operating profit. Profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
amounted to HK$2,084,888,000, representing a growth of approximately 22% over last year (2014:
HK$1,703,147,000).

Given the satisfactory operating results and healthy financial position of the Group, and taking into account its
long-term sustainable development, the board of directors of the Company (the “Board”) has proposed to pay
equity shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”) a final dividend of HK12.0 cents per share. Together
with the interim dividend of HKB.5 cents per share in 2015, the total dividends for the year amounted to HK18.5
cents per share (2014: HK11.0 cents per share).

Building on our established success and with high aspirations, the Group will continue to operate in alignment
with China’s aim of “innovation, coordination, green development, opening-up and sharing” development. With
a foothold in Hong Kong and its roots in China, the Group will uphold the spirit of modern entrepreneurship and
adopt a global vision for its business development.

I would like to express my sincere gratitude to the Group’s management and staff for their remarkable
achievements in 2015, and extend my heartfelt gratitude for the consistent support of the Shareholders, fellow
Board members, mainland China and Hong Kong citizens, and staff from all departments.

Together, we share a common vision for global peace, harmony and the prosperity of China. Through our
continuing pursuit of excellence, the Group will strive to help build a better world.

CEEFEN  NRFE—SEREBEEMEIEE N @ KLEWREEIRA - XA R BRI EE(FZFER2,084,888,0007T
BEFEEL22%(—ZF—MNF : #H#1,703,147,0007T) °

%E%%Eﬁ%m%«%%ﬁ&wﬁ%ﬂ MEEIAREBNREAFERRE  ARFESEe([EFg ) BRAQFTRE
(PR )RR EERA2.080 - ER —_Z—AFHHREEFR6.5E - 2FEREAFRI1S5ENM(ZZT—PUF :
BFHE11.0584L) -

BERK  THESE  AREERS (AR H# - S R AZF WERERES - URRALERZBE  LBE
B AREARE - BRER

AANEAEEEEENZ2BRACE_T - AFRSNKRAREFRHE  HARRSURR  EFEKE - RLEE
BERAL ~ BEFFIH TR BAR OGS -

FRMARTHERAF - BRER  ARENEREFER  ABEZFREXRT |

"T’ANG SHUANGNING
F‘ﬁi% T3

Chairman

B

Hong Kong 29 February 2016
BE —ET-RFE_AZ+AhAH
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Chief Executive Officer’s Report TR RE

BUSINESS REVIEW AND PROSPECTS & [olgatdfE £

Operating Results && #£4&

2015 has been a tumultuous year for the global economy. While the recovery of the US economy is still adjusting
and gaining a solid footing, European and Japanese economies are still under structural reform, yet to achieve
the expected results, and emerging markets saw an extreme divergence in economic performance. Having
entered into a ‘New Normal’ under a new round of economic reform, the macro economy of China shifted
from rapid growth to a normal state of stable growth, yet China’s Gross Domestic Product growth remains in
the leading position among major world economies. As China accelerates into comprehensive reform, pushing
toward a new growth model focusing on green, low-carbon and sustainable development under the ‘New
Normal’, China’s green economy and environmental protection industry are set to embrace an unprecedented
opportunity for long-term growth.

2015 was the last year of China’s 12th Five-year Plan and a year with an “explosion” of environmental protection
policies. The Central Government introduced a number of policies to support the environmental protection
industry, attaching the utmost importance to air, water and soil pollution control and the construction of
ecological civilization. The newly revised Environmental Protection Law of the People’s Republic of China, the
Opinions on Promoting the Third-party Treatment of Environmental Pollution, the Implementation Opinions on
Promoting Public Private Partnership in the Water Pollution Prevention and Control Area, the Action Plan for
Prevention and Treatment of Water Pollution, the Law on the Prevention and Control of Atmospheric Pollution,
the Opinions on Accelerating the Ecological Civilization Construction and the Overall Plan for the Reform of
Ecological Civilization System have been released in succession. This has accelerated the need to construct a
comprehensive ecological civilization system generating large amounts of investment and growth potential for
the environmental restoration market.

“T-hF EREERBARE  XEKEARNDELASE  BEEARZIRE  BONNBAARQBEEBERELRED
BHER MARERQERRRA GRS  ARTHESE - PEREF —GEERENHELET  ZELERBENS
RIERBAVRERNEFES  BRNLEABZEREDACER I ZLERRRIAY - BEERMRMA 2@
WEHEE  ENELEFTETHDIREERBRERVDFAERRN  STENRELERRREXFTREEER
VZERTHE -

“E-REEFE -« AIHEMKEZF - BERERBERN [BEIF  BFUAZHEBRANIFHRERER - &
R K BIRSRIDAMEELERXAERER/ETZE - MEFIN(FEARRHEREREZ)  (BIRETTRE
RE)TRE =T REAER) (BRI TRIEE BT EEAREERAEIE L)  CKOTRIETTE AT
&) (KRTRIDEZE) (R INAR L LREXTERNER)  (LEXHEPNFARTR)FEELE - MRET
A tENERYALERR  RREAEMSHRTERNREMERER -
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2015 was full of challenges. Faced with increased and fierce market competition, the Group adhered to the
development strategy of “Producing Quality Projects and Building a Quality Brand” and continued to build
new demonstration projects creating bright spots for growth. With a strong sense of social responsibility
and determination to protect the environment, the Group is dedicated to the strategy of “Leveraging Talent,
Science and Technology to Expand from Coastal Areas to Inland Cities, from Cities to Rural Areas, and from
Domestic to Overseas Markets with High Standards” to advance the growth of all of its business segments,
achieving outstanding results for the year. During the year under review, the Group achieved rewarding results,
including the extension of its market footprint and industry product and service chain; continuing to build on
its outstanding competitive advantage with its regional management approach, significantly strengthening and
perfecting its internal management and its talent development and retention strategy.

In order to improve synergy, efficiency and the collaborative strength of various projects to keep the pace up with
the Group’s expansion in scale and creation of new business segments; during the year under review, the Group
developed a new model of regional centralized management, establishing a total of six regional management
centers in Suzhou, Nanjing, Changzhou, Jinan, Central Anhui and Northern Anhui. In addition, the Group also
created a new management structure which not only optimizes the regional centralized management, but also
strengthens the core competitive advantages of the four main business segments, including environmental
energy, environmental water, greentech, and envirotech, solidifying them as the engines of growth and
development.

“E-RFRAMKEN—F BHAZBOMERFIRE  ARERE [Z2Rn0 - 8lmiE IR REE - T HE
FEVREIR B AMITEH R - U ENE SR ERMERERNNZFER - BREIUAT - B A[SIE - Rl FEEL
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The Group applied a centralized management strategy for market expansion and successfully expanded into
new fields, bringing its development to new heights. The Group has a business presence in 14 provinces and
municipalities and more than 70 counties and cities in China and also in Germany. Both the number of new
projects and the total investment hit record highs. During the year under review, the Group obtained 34 new
environmental protection projects and acquired Dalian Dongda, commanding a total investment of over RMB10
billion. The newly signed projects included 14 environmental energy projects, 5 environmental water projects and
15 greentech projects.

Following the listing on the Mainboard of Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited, the Group’s non-
wholly owned subsidiary, China Everbright Water Limited (“Everbright Water”), introduced two globally renowned
investment institutions as strategic investors during the year under review: International Finance Corporation
(“IFC”), a subsidiary of the World Bank, and Dalvey Asset Holding Ltd, a wholly-owned subsidiary of RRJ Capital
Master Fund II, L.P., which was established by RRJ Capital. Everbright Water also obtained a long-term loan of
USD140 million from IFC. In addition to optimizing the shareholding structure of Everbright Water, these moves
represented a key step towards being better equipped to embrace the huge market potential. In addition, during
the year under review, Everbright Water completed the acquisition of Dalian Dongda, boosting the total designed
capacity of its waste water treatment business by over 35%. This laid a solid foundation for Everbright Water to
become one of the top players in China’s water industry and further strengthened the Group’s leading position
in the environmental protection industry.

AEBEMSHRNTERDEBASNRE - BERERFOBRENFTOSE  EHRERBE2E148REED - 70%
EZFHALRFEEEDS - BEREFNEENHEER P RAREFHRELT S - REBFER - AEBEFIE T34ER
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15E% BIRIRIAR °
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During the year under review, the Group established greentech segment to replace the previous alternative
energy segment. In order to provide larger space for the development of the greentech business, the Group
made an application to The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“HKEX”) to seek approval for the possible
spin-off and separate listing of the greentech business in September 2015, and received a written approval from
the HKEx in November 2015. The move is steadily progressing and the spin-off listing of the greentech business
will propel the segment into another phase of development.

The Group has always been committed to pursuing excellence in its operation philosophy, corporate
governance, technology innovation and internal risk management and control. During the year under review,
the Group’s strong sense of social responsibility and outstanding management approach have been widely
acknowledged by both society and the capital market. The Group was honored with a number of accolades
including the Best Investor Relations Company; Outstanding Company in Corporate Governance; Asia’s Best
CEO; Listed Company with Best Brand Value and Outstanding Enterprise awards in 2015. The Group was
ranked the first place again in the Top Ten Influential Solid Waste Treatment Enterprises in China and was named
the Leading Enterprise in the Construction of Urban Veinous Industrial Park in China and one of the China’s
Leading Waste-to-energy Enterprises. In addition, The Group was included as a constituent stock of the Hang
Seng Corporate Sustainability Index for the second consecutive year and continued to be a constituent stock
of the MSCI China Index, the Hang Seng China-Affiliated Corporations Index and the Hang Seng Mainland 100
Index. These honors demonstrate the Group’s excellent achievements in business results, corporate governance
and management which earned wide recognition by society and the investment community.
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Over the years, the Group has adhered to the core value of “An Enterprise is not only a Creator of Wealth,
but also the Safeguard of Environmental and Social Responsibility”. While continuing to achieve remarkable
operating results, the Group has also actively carried out its social responsibilities. The Group’s environmental
protection projects not only contributed to urban environmental restoration but have also become local publicity
and environmental protection education bases. The Group’s Everbright International Environmental Protection
Charitable Foundation gave its full support to Earth Hour Hong Kong. It was a major environmental protection
event, organized by WWF-HK for the second consecutive year, promoting environmental protection, energy
conservation and nurturing public awareness of environmental protection through seminars, workshops and
student ambassador scheme. During the year under review, the Group continued to work with the Chinese
Society for Environmental Sciences and the Chinese Ecological Civilization Research and Promotion Association
in order to promote education about environmental protection in China. In addition, the Group established a
committee to promote the establishment of a standardized system for ecological civilization in the waste-to-
energy industry with an objective to drive the compilation of various national, industrial and corporate standards.

The Group effectively improved the overall effectiveness and profit of the projects through its innovative and
continuous reforms in both project construction and operation management. During the year under review, the
Group’s overall subsidies granted by the governments amounted to RMB227 million, including a subsidy of
RMB108 million obtained by Jiangsu Changzhou Xinbei Waste-to-energy Project (“Changzhou Xinbei Project”)
Phase | under the “2015 Central Budgetary Investment Plan”. Wujiang Waste-to-energy Project (“Wujiang
Project”) and Zhenjiang Waste-to-energy Project (“Zhenjiang Project”) Phase Il also have obtained a subsidy of
RMB30 million and RMB10 million respectively under the same scheme. Additionally, during the year, 2 waste-
to-energy projects and 10 waste water treatment projects and reusable water projects have been approved to
increase their waste processing fees and waste water treatment fees, showing that the Group’s high-quality
projects and operation have been recognized by both the central and local governments at all levels in addition
to clients. The Group also continued to receive tax benefits in China. During the year under review, it received a
value-added tax refund and income tax refund of RMB167,065,000 and RMB2,532,000 respectively.
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During the year under review, in order to maintain sustainable development and meet funding requirements, the
Group actively explored various funding channels to enhance its financial strength, and also adjusted its foreign
currency exposure in light of the Renminbi’s depreciation. In 2015, the Group signed loan agreements with a
number of domestic and overseas commercial banks in order to be well-prepared for project development. As
at 31 December 2015, the Group had cash on hand at a record high of HK$6,673,412,000, and maintained a
reasonable gearing level and healthy financial position. The Group achieved a steady growth in its business and
further improved its competitive strength.

In 2015, the Group’s construction projects continued to progress smoothly, resulting in substantial growth
in construction service revenue. As for operating projects, the Group is committed to reducing costs and
broadening income sources as well as optimizing its overall operating efficiency, driving the continued
growth of its overall operating efficiency. During the year under review, the Group’s consolidated revenue
amounted to HK$8,534,531,000, an increase of 34% over HK$6,355,120,000 in 2014. Profits from operations
were HK$3,576,466,000, an increase of 33% over HK$2,680,443,000 in 2014. The EBITDA amounted
to HK$3,754,449,000, an increase of 34% over HK$2,795,219,000 in 2014. Profit attributable to equity
shareholders of the Group for the year of 2015 was HK$2,084,888,000, 22% more than HK$1,703,147,000 of
2014. Basic earnings per share of 2015 were HK46.50 cents, an increase of HK8.51 cents as compared to the
HK37.99 cents in 2014.

The Group remains dedicated to enhancing value for its shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”).
To reward the Shareholders for their support and taking into account the Group’s need to achieve long-term
sustainable development, the board of directors of the Company (the “Board”) has proposed to pay a final
dividend of HK12.0 cents per share to the Shareholders. The total dividends for the year are to be HK18.5 cents
per share (2014: HK11.0 cents per share).
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Environmental Protection Business JR{R %%

As at 31 December 2015, the Group has secured 169 environmental protection projects with a total investment
of approximately RMB39.064 billion, of which RMB17.70 billion are for the projects that were completed
construction and RMB7.74 billion are for the projects that were under construction; the balance of RMB11.685
billion are earmarked for projects in the preparatory stage.

During the year under review, the environmental protection business generated a total revenue of
HK$8,393,427,000 of which HK$4,915,849,000, HK$2,184,906,000 and HK$1,292,672,000 accounted
for construction services, operation services and finance income respectively. Year to year, revenue from
construction services, operation services and finance income were increased by 36%, 24% and 35%
respectively. The proportions of the revenue are as follows: construction service revenue 59%, operation service
revenue 26% and finance income 15%.
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JC ©

CEFEN  RREKNOZ ABKS,303,427,0007T @+ EFEERSNZE AE4,915,849,0007T @ BERKEKEA
7B #2,184,906,0007T @ WA BB 1,292,672,0007T ° EiERBUE - BERBFRERTHERE  DRIRLEFE
HIN36% * 24% M35% ° FWEMLLES  RERFEKEIE59% @ EL RS WERI1H26% KB AME15% °




Annual Report 2015 1 9
—T-AEF®H

Major financial data from the environmental protection business in 2015 is summarised in the table below:

“E-hFRREB T ETBEELT ¢

2015 2014 (restated)
“8-5§ “§-1% (24)
Environmental  Environmental Environmental  Environmental
Energy Water Greentech Energy Water Greentech
Projects Projects Projects Total Projects Projects Projects Total
BREFER  RRABEE  RERRER ait  BREREE  RRIBER  BERRER ait

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK§'000 HK§'000 HK§'000 HK§ 000
BRTT BRTT BRI BRI eLia D BRI BRI BRI

Revenue Iz
- Construction senvices ~ — Ri&HRE 3,715,228 591,890 608,731 4,915,849 2810,542 112,079 704,83 3627 456
-Operation senices ~~ — B4R 880,281 755,365 549,260 2,184,906 762,399 627,960 374,362 1,764,721
- Finance income ~BBRA 804,863 467,895 19,914 1,202,672 628,721 310,715 15,077 954513
5,400,372 1,815,150 1,177,005 8,303,427 401,662 1,080,754 1,094,074 6,346,690

ERITDA s HE -

ER

gaani 2,608,398 795,955 457,546 3,861,899 2,033,257 570800 378430 0,982,487

The Group dedicates equal importance to generating both economic and social benefits, committing itself to
the task of environmental protection and fulfilling its responsibilities to create new standards in all of its energy
conservation and emission reduction indicators. During the year under review, the Group processed 6,928,000
tonnes of household waste and 52,000 tonnes of hazardous waste, 520,000 tonnes of agricultural waste and
generated 2,738,301,000 kWh of green electricity. This output can support the annual electricity consumption
for 2,282,000 households, it is equivalent to saving 1,095,000 tonnes of standard coal and can reduce carbon
dioxide (CO,) emissions by 2,922,000 tonnes. Meanwhile, the Group treated 899,163,000 m?® of waste water,
1,353,000 m? of leachate from waste-to-energy plants and reduced COD emissions by 300,000 tonnes. Since
the Group'’s first environmental protection project commenced in 2005, it has processed 28,161,000 tonnes
of household waste, 353,000 tonnes of hazardous waste, 1,722,000 tonnes of agricultural waste, it generated
9,899,090,000 kWh of green electricity, fulfilling the annual electricity consumption for 8,249,000 households,
saving the equivalent of 3,959,000 tonnes of standard coal, reducing CO, emissions by 11,595,000 tonnes and
preventing 1,286,882,000 trees from being cut down. The Group has treated 4,663,549,000 m® of waste water,
5,165,000 m?® of leachate from waste-to-energy plants and reduced COD emissions by 1,735,000 tonnes.
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5 - A1{8,249,000fAK EE— S {F A - HE R ETATZE3,959,00018 - 354 —abhr e 1,595,000 K il A 4 BAS AR
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As at 31 December 2015, the Group had 46 waste-to-energy projects, 2 methane-to-energy projects,
1 sludge treatment and disposal project, 2 food waste treatment projects, with a total investment of
approximately RMB20.427 billion. These facilities are designed with an annual household waste processing
capacity of approximately 13,797,000 tonnes, which can generate an annual on-grid electricity of
approximately 4,145,459,000 kWh. The annual sludge treatment capacity is approximately 18,000 tonnes,
while the annual food waste treatment capacity is approximately 73,000 tonnes.

Environmental energy continues to be the core of the Group’s business development. In 2015, the Group
secured 12 waste-to-energy projects and 2 food waste treatment projects. These projects commanded a
total investment of approximately RMB3.853 billion, with an increase in designed daily household waste
processing capacity of 6,450 tonnes, boosting the total daily waste processing capacity to 37,800 tonnes.
This enabled the Group to keep a commanding market share in the sector. New projects included Hainan
Sanya Waste-to-energy Project (“Sanya Project”) Phase Il, Sichuan Suining Waste-to-energy Project
(“Suining Project”), Sichuan Ya’'an Waste-to-energy Project (“Ya’an Project”), Shandong Pingdu Waste-to-
energy Project (“Pingdu Project”), Shandong Laiwu Waste-to-energy Project (“Laiwu Project”), Shandong
Laiwu Food Waste Treatment Project, Shandong Xintai Waste-to-energy Project (“Xintai Project”), Shandong
Ju County Waste-to-energy Project (“Ju County Project”), Shandong Zoucheng Waste-to-energy Project
(“Zoucheng Project”), Zhejiang Hangzhou Chun’an Waste-to-energy Project (“Chun’an Project”), Hunan
Yongzhou Waste-to-energy Project (“Yongzhou Project”), Jiangsu Sugian Waste-to-energy Project (“Sugian
Project”) Phase Il, Sugian Food Waste Treatment Project, and Henan Lankao Waste-to-energy Project
(“Lankao Project”). During the year under review, the Group has expanded into food waste treatment
projects. The integration of these projects with waste-to-energy solutions represents a new industry
approach to urban solid waste problems.

During the year under review, 6 of the Group’s waste-to-energy projects completed construction and
commenced operation, including Zhenjiang Project Phase Il, Changzhou Xinbei Project, Guangdong Boluo
Waste-to-energy Project (“Boluo Project”), Zhejiang Ningbo Waste-to-energy Project (“Ningbo Project”) Phase I,
Shandong Rizhao Waste-to-energy Project (“Rizhao Project”), and Weifang Waste-to-energy Project (“Weifang
Project”). The Group had 9 projects which commenced construction during the year, including Wujiang Project,
Nanjing Waste-to-energy Project (“Nanjing Project”) Phase Il, Pei County Waste-to-energy Project (“Pei County
Project”), Hunan Yiyang Waste-to-energy Project (“Yiyang Project”), Pingdu Project, Shandong Tengzhou Waste-
to-energy Project (“Tengzhou Project”), Zhejiang Hangzhou Waste-to-energy Project (“Hangzhou Project”), Sanya
Project Phase Il and Laiwu Food Waste Treatment Project. Projects in the preparatory stage are also progressing
as scheduled. The Group is committed to improving operational efficiency by increasing electricity generated per
tonne of waste and by lowering the volume of electricity consumed by factories. It has achieved positive revenue
growth from operation services. In addition, Hainan Sanya Sludge Treatment and Disposal Project completed
construction and commenced operation during the year.
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The Group is dedicated to continually innovating its business models. In addition to the traditional business
revenue generating models of investment, construction, operation and management, the Group has continued
to actively explore various business models such as PPP and the entrusted operation model during the year.
Based on its operational experiences from managing its own projects, the Group has demonstrated expertise
in fixing problems caused by a lack of experience either from the investment side or the construction side.
By taking over the projects with an entrusted operation mode, the Group ensures safe production and stable
operations, meeting compliance and discharge standards. The entrusted operation mode is based on a model
of investment and built by local governments or investors. Upon completion, the project is then handed over to
the Group for the ongoing management and operation. The Group generates profit from entrusted operation
service fee. During the year, the Group has signed the Guangdong Dongguan Machong Waste-to-energy
Project for entrusted operation management, which is currently under construction.

The progress made during market expansion was driven by the stability of existing projects in operation which
not only comply with discharge standards, but were also regarded as pioneers in industry and construction
techniques standards. The Group continues to shoulder the responsibility for setting industry standards.
With the successful application of grate furnace, gas emission purification and the third generation leachate
treatment technologies, newly completed waste-to-energy projects have achieved significant results in
operation standards and efficiency. During the year under review, the Group took the lead in disclosing
environmental assessment information and emission standards of its operating waste-to-energy projects,
voluntarily accepting supervision by the public, all of which have garnered widespread recognition.

The construction and operation of all of the Group’s environmental protection projects meet the highest
industry standards. Gas emissions of all waste-to-energy projects fully complied with the EU2000 Standard
and the leachate treatment met the National Grade 1 Emission Standard. In the year under review, the
Group’s Jinan, Suzhou, Pizhou and Ningbo waste-to-energy projects attained the status of “Provincial
Industrial Tourism Demonstration Site”, while the Sanya Waste-to-energy Project earned the “Provincial
Enterprise with Sustainable Economic Model” distinction. In addition, a comprehensive assessment of
the Group’s waste-to-energy techniques by experts from the Chinese Society for Environmental Sciences
certified that the Group has reached international advanced standards in technology research and
development, equipment manufacturing, construction engineering, and operation management, forming a
distinctive model that covers the entire waste-to-energy industry chain.
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During the year under review, the Group’s environmental energy projects processed a total 6,928,000 tonnes
of household waste, and generated a total 1,883,199,000 kWh of on-grid electricity, an increase of 29%
and 36% respectively as compared with 2014. The environmental energy business contributed an EBITDA
of HK$2,608,398,000, an increase of 28% over 2014. The increase in profit was mainly attributable to the
recognition of construction service revenue and construction cost savings during the year, as well as the
increase in the operation service revenue which was boosted by continuing increases in the total processing
volume of operating projects.

REBEFEAN  RREFESEE A LEEA)EN:6,928,000F - 2 FHE =4 £1,883,199,000F EL&F © 7 7l
B YFIEMN29% Kk36% © IRRELFREBERBRFAE - B8 - WEREHA AT & LB %2 608,398,0007T -
BT —POFIEM8% - BFIZHN - FERRTFAHEHSEERBNE AR TEKAREL - MEBEEEEMNR
BIEERE L RBATESRBKE -

Major operating and financial data from the environmental energy business in 2015 is summarised in the
table below:

—HFEERREREHZ T RZELEPHEERNT

2015 2014
(restated)
—E-AF —E-mEF
(E%)
Waste-to-energy projects Wik EIEHE

Waste processing volume (tonnes) bR RIS = (W) 6,928,000 5,365,000
On-grid electricity (MWh) LEEECKREE) 1,883,199 1,389,768

EBITDA (HK$’000) BFS B TER
AT AR BT T) 2,608,398 2,033,257

. Environmental Protection Industrial Parks & * BREXE

Under the principle of “Implementing Projects with One Success Followed by Another”, the Group works
closely with relevant local government authorities to design and build environmental protection industrial
parks, making full use of local resources within the park, sharing infrastructure and optimizing available
land resources. The goal of this exercise is to achieve efficient recycling of solid waste and to enhance
energy conservation and emission reduction efficiency, making it easier for the governments and enterprises
to implement a centralized management system and ultimately achieve Nil Discharge. The parks will be
established as modern environmental protection industrial parks and educational hubs for environmental
protection.

As at 31 December 2015, the Group had 9 environmental protection industrial parks in Suzhou, Changzhou,
Sugian, Zhenjiang New District, Yixing, Lianyungang Xuwei New District, Nanjing of Jiangsu Province,
Weifang of Shandong Province and Ganzhou of Jiangxi Province.

AEBBGESMBFREAERIINERRFERE 2R BHZRURFRAE - REIUIA—E - #HE—
1IJE@JT§9‘J By ﬂFHIIZWéfﬁ HZEMWRM x,iﬁiiﬁj ERECEMERARERIA RSB EMERMIIX

BB REENERE E—%Efﬁﬁnffﬁmﬁu TEREZRRRRCRREXBANRRYE THE
i‘@O

BE-Z-AFt_A=1—H0 FAEEXFERREXE B IHEHFMNT  EMNH  BEDH  #IHE -
HEM  EERRITHE  BRAD  WREEDS AR TEEEMNT -
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[I. ENVIRONMENTAL WATER = -+ IR{RIKF
As at 31 December 2015, Everbright Water, of which the Group owns 74.4%, has 60 waste water treatment
projects, 5 reusable water projects and 2 waste water source heat pump projects, commanding a total
investment of approximately RMB8.588 billion. The projects are designed to have an annual waste water
treatment capacity of approximately 1,397,950,000 m?, providing a total annual reusable water volume of
29,634,000 m?®, and offering heating and cooling services to an area of 312,000 m? via waste water source
heat pump projects.

Since completing the reverse takeover at the end of 2014, Everbright Water’s new focus became implementing
integration and obtaining steady growth in market share. During the year under review, the Group continued
to develop new environmental water projects, secured 4 waste water treatment projects and 1 reusable water
project, including Shandong Ju County Waste Water Treatment Project, Jinan Waste Water Treatment (Plant 1)
Expansion Project (“Jinan Plant 1 Expansion Project”), Jinan Xike Waste Water Treatment Project (Plant 4)
Phase I, Beijing Daxing Tiantanghe Waste Water Treatment Upgrading and Expansion Project (“Daxing
Tiantanghe Project Phase Il and Upgrade”) and Nanjing Pukou Reusable Water Project. The new projects
increased the Group’s daily waste water treatment capacity by 200,000 m® and daily reusable water treatment
capacity by 20,000 m?®. In addition, the Group was actively identifying acquisition targets. During the year, the
Group completed the acquisition of Dalian Dongda, which has a total of 17 waste water treatment projects,
representing an additional contracted daily waste water treatment capacity of 1,125,000 m?, and with an
operating daily treatment capacity of 945,000 m3. The acquisition also allowed Everbright Water to extend its
presence in Liaoning Province and Inner Mongolia Autonomous Region.

BHE-_Z—HF+=-_A=+—8" $E.%ﬁﬁk*ﬁﬂ4%%v’ﬁk*ﬁmﬂﬁﬁ%fE* BIEA - 5@F
KEIFAER F2{ESKRRARIER - BREHAREESS.88(87T » sz BB F 5/KERIEE41,397,950,00037 5 K »
F Ik E29,634,00037 75 K KI5 KRETE Eaz%mzmmﬁﬁxﬁﬁﬁfﬁﬁﬁéﬁﬁo

HARKEA —E—NFETKRAWER  R_ZET—RAF2NHEANLES  mHERESKETEE - QEEE
N AEE-—FTHEEZRB FEERRNIER - HEG4E ﬁmﬁﬁEEEWM$m@%EE BEILEREEE %
VEKERIBIEE  BERSKEEER (—F)EREE ([EF—MIERER ) BEEARSKEREEE (M) =58
ﬁ?ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁﬂﬁ*@ﬁﬁﬁﬁ%&%ﬂ%@ﬁaUﬁﬂiﬁﬂ:%&ﬁ%hu&ﬁﬁﬁu¢mﬁﬁﬁa
g AE/KEIEE200,00037 FK R BHRKEEE20,0007 5K « B—FEERAET S LERKEENFHEEE -
¢WEW%%X@$LW1EmF@EE AL L REEL,125,0003 5K - EREBEERHISKEREE
945,000/ 5K - ¥BHEFEREEEELARASTHERE °
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During the year under review, projects completed construction included the expansion and upgrade of
Shandong Binzhou Boxing Waste Water Treatment Project Phase I, Phase Il and upgrade of Jiangsu
Yangzhou Jiangdu Development Zone Waste Water Treatment Project, Henan Sanmenxia Waste Water
Treatment Project Phase |, Phase Il and upgrade of Nanjing Pukou Waste Water Treatment Project and
Shandong Zibo Reusable Water Project Phase Il. Projects in progress included Phase Il and upgrade of
Jiangsu Suzhou Wuzhong Chengnan Waste Water Treatment Project, Jinan Plant 1 Expansion Project,
Phase Il and upgrade of Daxing Tiantanghe Project and Liaoning Dalian Liangjiadian Waste Water Treatment
Project.

In addition to achieving operational excellence and meeting discharge standards, the Group has reduced
operating costs by cutting electricity consumption, closely monitoring changes in water quality and making
adjustments accordingly, as well as adopting a centralized procurement process. During the year under
review, the Group’s environmental water projects treated 899,163,000 m?® of waste water, increase by 54%
from 2014. Environmental Water projects contributed an EBITDA of HK$795,955,000, an increase of 39%
from 2014, with the majority of the profit increase driven by revenue increases from construction services for
project upgrades, growth in operation services and the treatment capacity of water, as well as from upward
price adjustment during the year.

RTIEAIE @ WREBMNEESKEEIER —HRE MRS  IHA BN IMAERSKERER MR
R MR =PIBCS/KERIEIRE — 8 - AU )SKEEER G MILREEERKEAERE — MR EE
FEARKTT - £R2EBHE  IHEHMIBHESKEERE MRS BR - BERZER - KEXE
A _HRREREERERNERRETKEREE NERRGBIHESR -

AEEEERRTELLERHMNER L - BRHEER  BUIBEKKEZCHABRIE ST RESHE
FREEEKA - DBEFER @ RIRKBEIAR & HEEIE)57K899,163,0003L 7K » B~ T —MFIEIN54% ° TRIRIK
BERERAE - BE - TERBEHANANEG HHB795,0955,0007T © M_T—MMFIEMNI9% « B EFAEERNEF
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Major operating and financial data from the environmental water business in 2015 is summarised in the table
below:

—E-REERRABEBZ I BELRMBEANNT

2015 2014
—®-1F —2-mF
Environmental Water Projects RIRKIEIEE
Waste water treatment volume (m?) KRB E (S A K) 899,163,000 584,792,000
EBITDA (HK$’000) BRFE - FiIE - FTER

#wEp BN CEETIT) 795,955 570,800
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As at 31 December 2015, the Group had a total of 46 greentech projects, including 23 biomass integrated
utilization projects, 13 hazardous waste treatment projects, 8 photovoltaic energy projects and 2 wind power
projects, with a total investment of approximately RMB9.640 billion. The total designed annual processing
capacity of agricultural waste was approximately 3,970,000 tonnes; annual processing capacity of
household waste was approximately 1,278,000 tonnes; annual processing capacity of hazardous waste was
approximately 293,000 tonnes; annual on-grid electricity generation was approximately 3,117,686,000 kWh
and the annual heating supply was approximately 1,371,000 tonnes.

As the Central Government continues to make extensive efforts in dealing with air pollution, the Group’s
biomass integrated utilization business has moved onto a fast track development phase. By building on
the experience gained from current projects, the Group actively explored new development models and
successfully established four biomass business models, including the urban-rural integration model, the
biomass direct combustion power generation model, the biomass cogeneration/centralized heating model
and the biomass molding fuel model. The systematic processing of agricultural waste effectively solved the
air pollution problem caused by the burning and littering of straws. The new models also convert waste
to energy, generating mutual benefits for local farmers, boosting economic development and reducing
environment pollution.

During the year under review, the Group secured 14 biomass integrated utilization projects, including 12
urban-rural integration projects and 2 biomass direct combustion power generation projects, with a total
investment of approximately RMB3.69 billion, as well as 1 hazardous waste treatment project with a total
investment of approximately RMB170 million. The increased annual agricultural waste and straw processing
capacity was approximately 2,070,000 tonnes, the increased annual household waste processing capacity
was approximately 949,000 tonnes and the increased annual hazardous waste processing capacity was
approximately 20,000 tonnes.

HEZZT—AF+-A=+—8 AEEHEBG46ELRIRREE @ BRE228EEMELFEFIAER - 13EEEE
BIER - 8ENXKREEEE M2ERNEEER  BERENHARKEICL0EL BRFAHRELAFHREREREREMY
3,970,000MF + F JR IR A E B 491,278,000MF + F R IR /EEE#)293,000MF + F FAE£493,117,686,000F FL &
FHEEX)1,371,0000 °

EENBFRANBAARSRANERT AEENEYEGANAERRE L TRROREE - AREHERERE
HEARNER L BERRINBERER  IRNRRERB -8  ENEE - REBHE ShHEH - KR
MEHEERER - BBRRCEEEMNER - AR EREMEMNTEREROARSR  ASEER
T EZHERIMNAR RELEBEERMNERFESAHEE -
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The Group is the pioneer in developing urban-rural integration projects that combine household waste-
to-energy projects and agricultural biomass integrated utilization projects, creating a brand new solution
for environmental restoration in small towns and counties. Urban-rural integration projects combine the
processing models of household waste and agricultural straw by constructing the waste incineration and
biomass power generation projects in the same place and district. Through sharing the same gas and water
systems, transportation tracks and management, this model leverages the Group’s regional network and
resources, thus achieving greater economic benefits for all. The urban-rural integration model is also one
of the key business developments of the Group. As at 31 December 2015, the Group secured 16 urban-
rural integration projects. The completion of these projects is expected to deliver a new source of growth
for the Group. In terms of project construction, during the year under review, the Group had 9 greentech
projects under construction, including Anhui Huaiyuan Biomass Integrated Utilization Project, Dingyuan
Biomass Integrated Utilization Project, Jiangsu Xuyi Biomass Integrated Utilization Project, Sucheng
Biomass Integrated Utilization Project, Anhui Dangshan Waste-to-energy Project, Zibo Integrated Hazardous
Solid Waste Treatment Project Phase |, Guanyun Hazardous Solid Waste Landfill Project Phase |, Binhai
Hazardous Solid Waste Landfill Project and Jiangsu Xinyin Hazardous Waste Treatment Project. All projects
under construction are progressing well and are expected to be completed in 2016 and 2017.

During the year under review, the Group’s greentech projects in operation included 2 biomass integrated
utilization projects, 8 photovoltaic energy projects, 2 hazardous waste treatment projects and 2 wind power
projects. The greentech projects provided a total on-grid electricity of 511,852,000 kWh, an increase of 69%
from last year. The greentech business contributed an EBITDA of HK$457,546,000, an increase of 21%
from last year. The increase in profit was mainly from the increase in operation service revenue driven by the
growth in the processing volume of the biomass and hazardous waste treatment projects which offset the
decrease in construction service revenue.

AEBEBRANRAHE LWL —RBEES  SLENRESTRENEMENEGANMAER - RER/NEKEA
MIRFOAEITRLEN - B — BT ERERBEAALPNEMTBRENEANBESES - ER— By - F—ER
BN EREEREREVERERGER AR —EERER  FA—ERKRSE  FA—FElk R-—#eEE &
BRANAESEEZRENGENERARL  EHERESNLENE - MBI bEBASE LA EHE
ENBRER— BE_T-AF+-_A=+t—H AKEARZT16EMML—8BILIEE  BEE—KJAEE
MZEFLEK  BREEGRMNERY BEERITH  REFEAN  FAEERHBIEKECREREBERZRT &
BLHABREEVEREGRERE  TREAVEGAREHEE  IHETHEVEFRARIEER  BRAVER
BRIEREE RREBUSORRERR HBeESRAKRIERE — B ESEEEERE —H  BefEERER
BUARTI#HEFTEEREERR - SREERIBLERIRMHELES T B HEER _F—R"FR-_F—*
FREMIE -
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Major operating and financial data of the greentech business in 2015 is summarised in the table below:

“E-IERERAREBIIRELHEYBKHIENT

2015 2014
(restated)
—E—FHE —E-NF
(BW)
Greentech projects RERRER
On-grid electricity (MWh) FRESCKER) 511,852 302,377
Agricultural waste and straw REBRRYREREES ()
processing volume (tonne) 520,000 359,000
Industrial and hazardous waste TENEERIES ()
processing volume (tonne) 52,000 57,000
EBITDA (HK$’000) BRFIS - BIE - TER

B EF BT L) 457,546 378,430
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By establishing a standardized engineering management system and process, making the most of its
management experience and improving its core competencies, the Group is able to provide high quality
construction engineering services and enhances the efficiency of the construction and operation of various
projects. During the year under review, the Group had 37 projects under construction, with 15 projects
completing and commencing operation, commanding a total investment of RMB3.550 billion. In addition, there
were 22 projects under construction, commanding a total investment of approximately RMB7.740 billion, and 43
projects in the preparatory stage, commanding a total investment of RMB11.485 billion. The number of projects
and contracts reached record highs for the corresponding periods over the years.

During the year under review, 6 waste-to-energy projects completed construction and commenced operation,
including Boluo Project, Zhenjiang Project Phase Il, Ningbo Project Phase Il, Rizhao Project Phase |, Weifang
Project Phase | and Changzhou Xinbei Project. There were 8 waste-to-energy projects that commenced
construction during the year, including Wujiang Project, Yiyang Project, Hangzhou Project, Sanya Project
Phase Il, Nanjing Project Phase Il, Pingdu Project, Pei County Project Phase | and Tengzhou Project Phase I.

Despite taking on projects large in quantity and wide in regional footprint, the Group’s construction engineering
team overcame every difficulty by adopting a regional approach in standardizing the management of engineering
technology which has since proved highly effective. The construction and commencement of operation of these
projects not only established demonstration models for other projects but also laid the foundations for strong
growth within the Group. With the completion and commencement of operation of the Boluo Project, the Group
marked its first entry into environmental protection in Guangdong Province. Meanwhile, the completion and
commencement of operation of the Changfangshan and Zhaojiashan wind power projects also brought the
Group with a precious experience in wind power project construction.

As at 31 December 2015, the Group had a total of 22 environmental protection projects under construction,
including 8 waste-to-energy projects, 1 food waste treatment project, 4 hazardous waste treatment projects, 5
biomass integrated utilization projects and 4 water restoration projects. The Group is committed to the principle
of “First Class Quality, High Standards, Advanced Technology, and Outstanding Efficiency” with regards to all
project construction. In addition, it strives to create benchmark projects across the country.

AEEBRBEYIRERRELCRE  LFETELR ABREORE  LARLBEFEN  HTE-ROIEEZRRE -
PHEASEEERELNGEANGE - MEFERN > AEEAEZEBI7HE > HPEKENRB15E  FRERE
ARM35.5087T - EEMNTIRIAR22MH - FRAKRENARKET740ET  SERHEBISE  FREREHARE
114.85(87  TREENSHNTAEFRH & -
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The Group, which has always adhered to the philosophy of “Planning based on Scientific Theory, Meticulous
Organization, Bold Innovation and Practice”, has consistently improved its investment in R&D, enabling it to
remain at the forefront of development in technology trends. The Group has established a set of R&D systems
to ensure robust development and has introduced advanced technology from domestic and abroad in order to
constantly improve its capability in technology R&D and relevant standards.

During the year under review, Everbright Environmental Protection Technology Institute was officially opened
in Shenzhen. The institute, being wholly invested in and operated by the Group, is a scientific research
institution consisting of three major research divisions: incineration technology, water environment technology
and engineering design, as well as two research teams specializing in integrated environmental services and
information and control technology. The institute conducts extensive and in-depth research into the solid waste
treatment technology of household waste, industrial hazardous waste, sludge and food waste, control software
technology, biomass utilization technology, synergetic treatment of urban and rural waste in small- and medium-
sized cities, waste water treatment in urban cities and environmental restoration technology. This is an integral
part of the Group’s development strategy on moving “From Cities to Rural Areas, from Coastal Areas to Inland
Cities, from Domestic to Overseas markets” in order to provide different users with tailor-made unit processing
technology and a full portfolio of engineering technology and integrated solutions.

During the year under review, the Group’s self-developed 750-tonne/day grate furnace was installed in
the Wujiang Project. The licensed Martin-furnaces have been successfully used in projects, with two sets
operating smoothly at the Changzhou Xinbei Project, producing good results. In addition to independent R&D
efforts, the Group also successfully imported advanced international technology such as the hazardous waste
countercurrent rotary kiln technology from the Belgian company BIC, as well as the water-cooling grate furnace
technology from Swiss company Stiefel; therefore further improving the Group’s technological development
capabilities with supplementary and complementary technologies. The water-cooling grate furnace technology
can apply to both biomass direct combustion power generation and waste-to-energy projects. Given its
advantages in reducing thermal wear and pressure, it substantially improved the Group’s efficiency and reliability,
compared with a traditional air cooling system.

During the year under review, the Group was granted with 31 patents, of which 7 were invention patents and
24 were utility invention patents, and 3 were software copyright licenses. In addition, the Group received
approximately RMB5.5 million in technology subsidies and achievement grants from central and local
governments. The Group will continue to strengthen its efforts in advancing R&D, fueling the Group’s capability,
market expansion and sustainability.
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION EQUIPMENT MANUFACTURING IR{R# fFRliE

In 2015, the Group’s environmental protection equipment manufacturing business experienced steady growth.
Currently, the Group’s production of environmental protection equipment is located in Changzhou City of
Jiangsu Province (“Changzhou Equipment Manufacturing Project”), mainly manufacturing incinerators, leachate
treatment systems, gas emission purification equipment and other major equipment used at the Group’s waste-
to-energy projects. In addition, the Group is developing the business of equipment sales to external parties.
With the completion of construction and commencement of operation of Changzhou Equipment Manufacturing
Project Phase Il, the Group’s manufacturing capability increased significantly. It will meet the growing internal
demand from project expansion within the Group and create new opportunities for external sales.

During the year under review, in accordance with the pace of the Group’s project construction, Changzhou
Equipment Manufacturing Project completed the production and commissioning of 13 sets of incinerators, 8
sets of gas purification systems and production of 7 sets of leachate treatment systems. Changzhou Equipment
Manufacturing Project obtained a number of supporting grants totaling RMB11.28 million.

In external equipment sales, leveraging on its outstanding performance quality and technological strength, the
Group markets the “Made by Everbright” series through various channels and platforms such as trade exhibitions
and conferences, direct sales and strategic collaboration. In 2015, the external sales of waste incinerators, gas
purification system and leachate treatment equipment, set a new record again with a total contract value of
approximately RMB240 million. In the overseas market, the Group further expanded into Ethiopia and the U.K.,
providing leachate and gas treatment systems for new clients.

In addition, the Group has been improving the standard of its professional after-sales services team, establishing
a client services response system in order to handle client requests more efficiently. During the year under
review, the Group signed approximately 70 contracts for after-sales services and spare parts sales, successfully
growing the after-sales service market.
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2015 was the final year of China’s 12th Five-year Plan and also the year for the Group to charge ahead with
its mission. Over the past year, with the launch of a series of environmental protection related policies in
China, boosting the development of the environmental protection industry, the Group thrived in an industrial
environment filled with huge opportunities. While strengthening the strategic deployment of its business units,
the Group also improved its management and operational capabilities. In the ever-changing market environment,
the Group remains committed to the guiding principle that “An Enterprise is not only a Creator of Wealth, but
also the Safeguard of Environmental and Social Responsibility”. In the meantime, the Group continues to invest,
build and operate a number of high-quality environmental protection projects, as well as continuously seeking
innovation. As a result, the Group has consolidated its position as a leading integrated solution provider for the
environmental protection market in China, as well as abroad.

2016 marks the first year of China’s 13th Five-year Plan. A number of issues, such as the imbalance of rural
and urban development, an increasing shortage of resources and ecological degradation that has not seen any
improvement, will pose challenges as well as immense opportunities in the next five years. On the environmental
protection front, in the context of China’s ‘New Normal’ economy, the Ministry of Environmental Protection of
China has made its mandate clear in the 13th Five-Year Plan of National Environmental Protection - that the
environmental management needs new ideas and plans to improve the overall quality of air, water and soil in the
country. In addition, the Ministry of Environmental Protection will adopt stricter guidelines in monitoring relevant
emissions and discharges. As a result of the stricter regulations and encouragement in innovation from the
government, China’s environmental protection industry will be continually motivated to improve its standards.
As the country pays more attention to and invests more in environmental protection causes, the Group will take
the lead among environmental protection enterprises, conducting strategic business planning with a long-term
view, leveraging on the strength of all of its business units, making full use of its potential and advantages within
its departments, following market trends closely to identify development opportunities, and seeking innovative
business models, ensuring the Group maintains a healthy growth.
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In 2016, each business segment will aim to seize every opportunity and improve its core competitiveness. It
will adhere to the fundamentals of “Steadiness, Growth and Integrity” in order to create further growth. On
“Steadiness”, the Group will analyze policies with diligence, setting realistic targets; act on opportunity in a timely
manner and ensure that internal risk control measures are firmly in place. In recent years, China has launched a
series of environmental protection-related laws and regulations promising opportunities of all kinds. To achieve
the right kind of growth, the Group must follow the strict principles of “No random expansion, No business
without clear benefits, and No price cutting competition” — (the “Three No” principle) for all project developments.
The Group will ensure the business develops at an appropriate pace with quality, achieving improvements in both
business scale and efficiency. On “Growth”, the Group subscribes to the philosophy of “Making steady progress
continuously is the only way to succeed and stability is the premise with progress as the goal”. The Group
understands that dichotomy of growth brings success and regression leads to failure. On “Integrity”, the Group
believes that any company must work hard and build its business on firm ground in order to yield a rich harvest.

Fueled by a series of the national favourable policies, the waste-to-energy sector has been in a rapid growth
phase in China. The Group has seen strong growth momentum in its waste-to-energy business, which has been
the focus of its business development. The number and quality of the waste-to-energy projects that are invested,
built and operated by the Group have increased and improved steadily. In addition, with problems of excessive
urban waste and waste treatment challenges in the rural areas becoming more acute and urgent, the 13th Five-
year Plan has emphasized repeatedly the goal of achieving “Regional Synergy and Urban-rural Integration”,
outlining a broad prospect and several opportunities for the Group’s urban-rural integration services. On its
water business unit, since integrating its environmental water business, the Group has experienced significant
improvement in its water business in terms of quality, scale and diversification. The overall water business
continues to grow steadily, and with the official launch of the Water Pollution Prevention and Control Action
Plan, Everbright Water will welcome more business opportunities. Moreover, the Group will proactively leverage
on its technology innovation, operation and management, to create steady growth in its other business units,
in particular biomass energy integrated utilization, environmental protection industrial parks and environmental
protection equipment manufacturing. The Group will continue to explore innovative business models that meet
market demand, integrate business units to achieve synergy, maximize overall operating efficiency, and improve
its brand influence and its industry leadership position, all leading to the increase of its market share domestically
and abroad.

“T-RF ARESEBREBIERE - ERED  ENTENRABINEOET N UIR] -E] [EIR
EAXEH  #HPHH—WER - —H 2] BEBR - BENIEELER  HEREENHRLER - RERRESE
BER - AFR > BR-RIRFEER  BRAEEELS  A5ERESFEHVILENERE - HEHEREEE
[T EBEERE  ThREXS  TREERFI=TIRE  BRNEREIENEEHBIALE  RENUERATEER - &
R - Bk - —AE ] B [RbhSE] - [RIZAR  TEIRER - EWMSKEASH - NERR - T8
Az ZH B EACENER BAWEEN  B%Hk T lESENRE -

BENRBEEFETRDEXNREZRER - FPRFLaN —RINFNRTEEROBRER - (FRAAKREERE
REBZ —ORPEENRBERDBTR - RE  ERENNELTNEFETRENRENEERIRETT - teiHd -
ERB T RRE WA R RN SRR RFEEGRAFRR - M [ +=« AREZREA [BFREEBRE - M8 1%
REFZ  TAARENWAE - BCHEEASHERNERAASMEE  KETH  AREBHEEBSRRKEE
LA - EHHIKE - REMZ TR E DA KIERT ﬁé‘&%%ﬁ&%@%ﬁﬁﬁﬁ AR BEE KHRINERE
i %ﬁﬁﬁ”{ﬁﬁ%%@ﬁﬁﬁ%?ﬁ%%% o BIN REEMEBBFEEXMAEF - ELEEFHTENES - HHEBELEY
HREREENA  BRREXE  KEAEREXBRANBRER  URFABRRIEEMSFTROAFEHEN - X5
BB S MG RRE - AR RENBEN G MRmENFENNTRRERNL - SKEBBEREEARBRTS
FDER -



40 China Everbright International Limited
HEERBEFRBER AR

Chief Executive Officer’s Report 1T IR R IR &

Both the Central Government’s 13th Five-year Plan and the National Environmental Protection’s 13th Five-
year Plan place an important emphasis on green development, ecological management and the construction
of ecological civilization, creating unprecedented opportunities for enterprises in the environmental protection
industry. Led by these policies and supported by China Everbright Group Ltd. (“China Everbright Group”), its
controlling company, the Group will continue to adhere to its core business value, closely follow policy trends,
remain in tune with market pulses, commit to improving risk management and control, and continue to explore
domestic and overseas markets, ensuring steady growth in all of its business units. While creating value for its
Shareholders, the Group will also actively carry out its corporate social responsibility in addition to acting as
the lead amongst environmental protection enterprises in China, contributing to the environmental protection
industry and environmental protection business in China. In the meantime, by following the “One Belt One Road”
strategy set by the country, the Group will grow from serving domestic markets to abroad, setting a path for
future growth and assuming greater responsibility for the benefit of the global ecological environment.
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Financial Position B ik %

As at 31 December 2015, the Group’s total assets amounted to HK$40,623,072,000 with net assets amounting
to HK$19,420,541,000. Net asset value per share attributable to equity shareholders of the Group was
HK$3.835 per share, representing an increase of 6% as compared to HK$3.627 per share as at the end of 2014,
As at 31 December 2015, gearing ratio (total liabilities over total assets) of the Group was 52%, an increase of
9 percentage points as compared to that of 43% as at the end of 2014.
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Financial Resources Bf i &R

The Group adopts a prudent approach to cash and financial management to ensure proper risk control and
low cost funds. It finances its operations primarily with internally generated cash flow and loan facilities from
banks. As at 31 December 2015, the Group had cash and bank balances of HK$6,673,412,000, representing
an increase of HK$1,523,263,000 as compared to HK$5,150,149,000 at the end of 2014. Currently, most of the
Group’s cash, representing 98%, is denominated in Hong Kong dollars and Renminbi.
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Borrowing & &%

The Group is dedicated to improving banking facilities to reserve funds to support its environmental
protection business development. As at 31 December 2015, the Group had outstanding borrowings of
HK$15,820,666,000, representing an increase of HK$6,684,155,000 as compared to HK$9,136,511,000 at
the end of 2014. The borrowings as at 31 December 2015 included secured interest-bearing borrowings of
HK$9,036,122,000 and unsecured interest-bearing borrowings of HK$6,784,544,000. The borrowings are
mainly denominated in Renminbi, representing about 57% of the total, and the remaining is denominated in
US and Hong Kong dollars. Most of the borrowings are at floating rates. As at 31 December 2015, the Group
had banking facilities of HK$22,082,027,000, of which HK$6,261,361,000 have not been utilized. The banking
facilities are of 1 to 10 years terms.
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Foreign Exchange Risks /ME & &

The Group’s assets, borrowings and major transactions are mainly denominated in Renminbi. The Group mainly
settles business expenses in mainland China with Hong Kong dollar remittance and income in Renminbi. It has
not used any financial instruments to hedge against bank borrowings in Renminbi, which are used mainly to meet
capital requirements of its business in China. The Group manages foreign currency risk by closely monitoring the
proportion of its non-Renminbi borrowings.
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Pledge of Assets & E i #

Certain banking facilities at the Group were secured by revenue and receivables in connection with the Group’s
service concession arrangements, bank deposits, mortgages on fixed assets and equity interests of certain
subsidiaries of the Company. As at 31 December 2015, the aggregate net book value of assets and equity
interests in subsidiaries pledged amounted to approximately HK$20,487,905,000.
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Commitments &#E
As at 31 December 2015, the Group had purchase commitments of HK$2,728,184,000 outstanding in
connection to construction contracts.
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Contingent Liabilities {5 & &

As at 31 December 2015, the Company issued financial guarantees to 7 subsidiaries. The Board does not
consider it probable that a claim will be made against the Company under the guarantees. The maximum liability
of the Company as at 31 December 2015 for the provision of the guarantees related to the facilities drawn down
by the subsidiaries was HK$1,502,068,000.
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Internal Management R EE

Strengthening management and risk control have always been an important part of the business operation. The
Group subscribes to the management principle of “People-oriented, Pragmatism, Creativity and Systematic
Management” with due diligence and is committed to building a comprehensive risk management culture.
With the efforts of the Risk Management Advisory Committee, the Engineering and Technology Management
Committee and the Budget Approval Management Committee, the Group has created strict regulations on
investment in, the construction of, and operation of environmental protection projects. In order to further improve
risk and environmental management, the Group has commissioned external professional consulting firms to
establish new management systems specifically for risk and environment, safety, health and social (‘ESHS”). By
being environmentally and socially responsible, the Group will continue on its path to achieving excellence and
innovative goals.
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During the year under review, the Group held management committee meetings on a monthly basis to review
all projects under construction and operation. The Group’s internal audit department has performed audits,
ensuring the strict compliance of various systems to improve internal management. While continuing to refine
its rules and regulations internally, the Group will also actively participate in the creating and editing of the
latest editions of emission standards for the environmental protection industry in China, including gas emission
standards, leachate treatment standards, ash treatment standards and incineration residue treatment standards.
By adhering to the relevant standards, the Group and ultimately the entire industry will be able to upgrade
its operation and management standards. With the aim of improving synergy among multiple environmental
protection projects in the same region, the Group also launched regional management to integrate various
resources and boost its management efficiency. Based on the Changzhou demonstration site launched last year,
the Group set up additional new regional management centers in Suzhou, Nanjing, Jinan, Central Anhui and
Northern Anhui, which will improve external and internal communication and integration across different projects
within the districts, improving overall management efficiency.

Committed to maintaining safe and stable operations in compliance with discharge standards, and with the goal
of ensuring no major safety and environmental accidents, the Group has rolled out intercompany initiatives to
compete in four areas: saving expenses, increasing income and efficiency, reducing energy consumption and
lowering costs, ultimately improving the comprehensive auxiliary power consumption rate of waste-to-energy
projects, leading to an improvement in efficiency across all projects.
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Principal Risks and Uncertainties T EREBR R FEEH

Through the establishment of risk management system during the year, the Group has identified the key risks to
its development in environmental protection business, including talent management, environmental and social
responsibility, competition, new business investment and development, technology and innovation, change of
environmental protection policies and business models, etc.
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Talent management risk mainly means, because of the Group’s rapid business development and huge demand
for talents while at the same time facing severe competition over environmental protection specialists from the
industry, leading to the risk of failure in recruiting, retaining and developing sufficient talents for continuous
business development. In order to cope with this, the Group had undergone thorough review and analysis over
its remuneration system, and enhanced the remuneration structure so as to ensure that staff remuneration
can align reasonably with market standard and maintain its competitiveness. Recruitment channels had been
broadened and the talent pool of senior management had been strengthened, so as to further enhance the
promotion opportunities and career path of employees. Systematic staff training has been further enhanced to
increase the overall effectiveness of training and the dissemination of corporate cultures and values.

Environmental and social responsibility risk mainly refers to the risk of negative impacts over the construction
and operation of projects, as a result of the insufficiency in understanding and support from general public and
media over environmental protection business. In view of the relevant risks, the Group had pioneered to formally
disclose the environmental emission standards and environmental management data of all waste-to-energy
projects for supervision by the general public. Moreover, through the organization of various environmental
protection promotion activities, general public’s understandings over both environmental protection business
and the technical operation of the projects had been strengthened, so as to remove general public’s queries and
promote the Group’s enthusiasm over the execution of environmental and social responsibility.

Competition risk refers to the risk of the Group’s capability in business development and the returns from
investment projects being affected, as a result of the severe competition from competitors throughout the
industry. Same as before, the Group had insisted on high quality construction and operation of its environmental
protection projects in order to cope with severe competitions, and the number of new construction projects had
been kept increasing stably throughout the years. The Group continued to enhance the project design and the
technical operation workflow during the year, and enhanced the efficiency of project construction and operation,
reduced costs, and maximized the return on investment of the projects through the combination of external
introduction of new technology and internal research and development in improving the efficacy of equipment.
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New business investment and development risk mainly refer to the risk of failure in developing new business
types and locations which affect the Group’s profitability. Technology and innovation risk mainly refers to the risk
of failure in satisfying business development needs through research and development and the introduction of
new technology, which affect the Group’s profitability. The Group fully understands the importance of continuous
development in new business types, locations, together with technological innovation, over the business
development of the Group. The management has formulated concrete business development and technological
innovation targets every year and has fully incorporated them under annual key tasks of the Group. Moreover,
in order to achieve the development strategy of “Expanding from Domestic to Overseas Markets”, the Group
strengthened its establishment of international business team during the year, through increasing efforts in the
recruitment and training of international business talents, to enhance the capability in international business
development as a whole.

Change of environmental protection policy and business model risks mean the risks of failure in responding
timely and effectively to changes over environmental protection policies and business models respectively, which
bring negative impact to the Group’s business. The Group has, from time to time, highly concerned with those
changes in external factors such as environmental protection policies and business models, and the relevant
impacts to the Group’s business development. Regular follow-ups and discussions have been organized for
those relevant employees to implement the mitigation actions, enhance the internal control and arrange suitable
trainings, so as to timely and effectively respond to the external changes and mitigate the risks involved.
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Environmental and Social Management RIEHEHEEE

The Group established an environmental and social management system (“ESMS”) following Asian Development
Bank (“ADB”)’s Safeguard Policy Statement 2009 and other internationally recognized practices, which defines
concrete procedures to ensure the environmental and social impacts of our activities are within the statutory
limits. In order to strike for excellent management standard, in 2015 the Group kicked off the development of
an even more comprehensive ESHS management system, which is led by the newly established Environmental
Management Team chaired by our Chief Executive Officer. The new ESHS is expected to improve our
performance on environmental compliance, occupational safety, employee welfare and community development.
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The operating and environmental performance of our projects strictly adheres to relevant standards and the
requirements of their respective Environmental Impact Assessment (“EIA”) Report. The key regulations and
standards that are highly relevant to our business include the Environmental Protection Law of the People’s
Republic of China, Production Safety Law of the People’s Republic of China, Labor Law of the People’s Republic
of China; Standard for Pollution Control on the Municipal Solid Waste Incineration (GB18485-2014) and Directive
2010/75/EU and its relevant Annexes/Amendments (for environmental energy projects), Emission Standard of
Air Pollutants for Thermal Power Plants (GB13223-2011) (for biomass power generation projects of greentech),
as well as Discharge Standard of Pollutant for Municipal Wastewater Treatment Plant (GB18918-2002)
(for environmental water projects). No breach of these regulations and relevant environmental protection
standards that has significant impact to the Group was recorded in 2015.

Conforming to the national environmental management strategy in improving air quality and conserving natural
resources, the Group continuously monitors our emission data and resources usage, and publishes key
performance indexes on our website, LED display screens outside our plants, and our annual sustainability
reports. For our specific environmental performance this year, please refer to pages 52 to 54 — Environmental
Performance, or our Sustainability Report 2015 to be published by May 2016.

Our key stakeholders include employees, governments, investors and shareholders, investment analysts,
business partners and suppliers, local communities, media and non-government organizations (“NGOs”).
These stakeholders are identified according to the principles of responsibility, influence, proximity, dependency
and representation, as per the guidance of Global Reporting Initiative (“GRI”) on stakeholder engagement. To
maintain close relationship with our stakeholders, the Group has developed a stakeholder participation plan
for all our project companies to follow, which integrates the needs and concerns of our stakeholders into every
aspect of our business. The Group also regularly conducts a series of engagement activities tailored for different
stakeholder groups. These include but not limited to annual or extraordinary general meetings, site visits,
symposiums and forums, monthly magazines and bi-weekly newsletters, tender meetings and WeChat. More
details about our stakeholder engagement process could be found in our Sustainability Report 2015.
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Human Resources A H &R

The Group strongly values its human resources, putting great emphasis on staff training. It believes helping its
employees to realize their full potential is crucial to its long term growth. The Group continues to improve its
human resources through internal training as well as local, overseas, and on-campus recruitment. During the
year under review, the Group held training sessions on safety and financial management to enhance the overall
quality of its staff. To facilitate the integration of new staff, it held the 12th and 13th round of execution training
for more than 500 participants. It also sent 36 managers and senior technical staff to participate in a CEO Course
(the 5th session). To ensure staff development remains in line with the Group’s sustainable development, it
completed a competitive selection of middle management and managerial support personnel for its mainland
China headquarters, and further improved its management talent development program, which helps motivate
staff to achieve greater success in their careers. In addition, the Group announced and implemented several new
employee guidelines, aiming to encourage staff to support the development of new initiatives and projects, all of
which will contribute to the overall development of talent within the Group.

As of 31 December 2015, the Group had approximately 4,300 employees in Hong Kong and mainland
China. Employees within the Group are remunerated according to their qualifications, experience, job nature,
performance and with reference to market conditions. Apart from a discretionary performance bonus, the Group
also provides other benefits such as medical insurance and MPF schemes to employees in Hong Kong.
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Change of Auditors % 5 4% 2{

According to the relevant regulations issued by the Ministry of Finance of the PRC regarding the audit work on
financial statements of state-owned enterprises, there are restrictions in respect of the years of audit services
that an accounting firm can continuously provide to a state-owned enterprise. The Company is an indirect
subsidiary of China Everbright Group which is a state-owned enterprise. Since the number of years that the
Company has continuously engaged its existing auditors, KPMG, has exceeded the prescribed time limit, KPMG
will retire as the auditors of the Company with effect from the conclusion of the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company (the “Forthcoming AGM”) and accordingly, will not seek for re-appointment. Special
notice has been given by a Shareholder which is an indirect subsidiary of China Everbright Group, pursuant to
Sections 400(1) and 578 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the laws of Hong Kong), of
the intention to propose the following resolution as an ordinary resolution at the Forthcoming AGM:
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“THAT Ernst & Young be appointed as the auditors of the Company in place of the retiring auditors, KPMG, to
hold office until the conclusion of the next annual general meeting of the Company at a remuneration to be fixed
by the board of directors of the Company.”

The Board has resolved, with the endorsement of the Audit Committee of the Company, to recommend the
appointment of Ernst & Young as the new auditors of the Company following the above-mentioned retirement of
KPMG and such proposed appointment is subject to the approval of the Shareholders at the Forthcoming AGM.

The Company has received a confirmation letter from KPMG confirming that there are no matters connected
with its retirement that should be brought to attention of the Shareholders. The Board has confirmed that there
are no matters in respect of the proposed change of auditors that need to be brought to the attention of the
Shareholders.

[BERELKGIMEBAERERERBMEFHSIMEBARARR ZLEE - THMEEARR TREBRAFK
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OTHER INFORMATION H fth & ¥}

Loan Facilities with Covenants Relating to Specific Performance of the Controlling Shareholder
HEBRERRRABTHEEENFRENER

On 11 January 2012, China Everbright Environmental Energy Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, was granted a 5-year term loan facility of USD100 million from ADB. Under the said facility, it will be
an event of default if China Everbright Holdings Company Limited ceases to be the single largest shareholder of
the Company holding at least 35% of the issued share capital of the Company. Upon the occurrence of the said
event, (i) the said facility, and (ii) a term loan facility of USD100 million granted by ADB on 3 September 2009
for a term of up to 3 September 2019 (together with the said facility, the “ADB Facilities”), and (iii) all accrued
interest and any other amounts accrued under the ADB Facilities may become immediately due and payable and/
or payable on demand.

As at 31 December 2015, the circumstances giving rise to the obligations under Rule 13.18 of the Listing Rules
continued to exist.
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Final Dividend RHi % &

The Board has proposed to pay a final dividend of HK12.0 cents per share (2014: HK6.0 cents per share) to
the Shareholders whose names appear on the register of members of the Company on Monday, 30 May 20186.
Subject to approval by the Shareholders of the final dividend at the Forthcoming AGM of the Company, dividend
cheques will be dispatched to the Shareholders on or around Thursday, 23 June 2016.
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Closure of Register of Members E1-:8F H A

The register of members will be closed from Thursday, 12 May 2016 to Tuesday, 17 May 2016, both days
inclusive, on which no transfer of shares will be effected. In order to qualify for attendance of the annual general
meeting, all transfer forms accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s
share registrar, Tricor Tengis Limited (“Tricor Tengis”) at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East,
Hong Kong by no later than 4:30 p.m. on Wednesday, 11 May 2016.

The register of members will also be closed from Thursday, 26 May 2016 to Monday, 30 May 2016, both days
inclusive, on which no transfer of shares will be effected. In order to qualify for the proposed final dividend,
all transfer forms accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s share
registrar, Tricor Tengis at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong by no later than
4:30 p.m. on Wednesday, 25 May 2016.
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Purchase, Sale or Redemption of the Company’s Listed Securities EEs{BR A A7 2 LHHEH
There was no purchase, sale or redemption of the listed securities of the Company by the Company or any of its
subsidiaries during the year.

REER  ARBSEETAMBRARAMERR - HEXBEEMNARF Z LHE?

CHEN XIAOPING

B /ZIN-F-

Chief Executive Officer

TR AEE

Hong Kong, 29 February 2016
BB ZE-—R"F-A=TNhA
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Love the Earth, Love the Planet we live in
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It has been 12 years since the Group entered into the environmental protection business back in 2003. As
there are more stringent requirements in national policies, higher environmental standards demanded by the
public and increased competition in the waste-to-energy industry, the Group has always maintained its core
value that “An enterprise is not only the Creator of Wealth but also the Safeguard of Environmental and Social
Responsibility”. Through technological and operational advancement, the projects are achieving the stringent
emission standards and environmental performance. The Group has pioneered in all business segments
including Environmental Energy, Environmental Water, Greentech and Envirotech.

Upholding the philosophy of “Integrity, Efficiency, Pragmatism and Innovation”, the Group continuously looks for
ways to improve its management practices. The Group established an environmental and social management
system (“ESMS”) following Asian Development Bank (ADB)’s Safeguard Policy Statement 2009 and other
internationally recognized practices, which defines concrete procedures to ensure the environmental and social
impacts of our activities are within the statutory limits. In order to strike for excellent management standard, in
2015 the Group kicked off the development of an even more comprehensive environmental, safety, health and
social (“ESHS”) management system, which is led by the newly established Environmental Management Team
chaired by our Chief Executive Officer. The new ESHS is expected to improve our performance on environmental
compliance, occupational safety, employee welfare and community development.

We believe that maintaining a meaningful relationship with our stakeholders is essential to the success of
environmental protection business. Throughout the project life cycle, we invite relevant parties including our
investors, shareholders, employees, governments, local communities, business partners, suppliers, media and
investment analysts on a regular basis to express their views on issues that are relevant to our operational and
environmental performance. We have developed a stakeholder participation plan for all project companies, and
we evaluate the effectiveness of our stakeholder engagement activities on a continuous process during project
proposal stage, environmental impact assessment stage, concept stage, detailed assessment stage, project
construction stage and project operation stage, and identify the priority issues that are relevant to the sustainable
development of our projects.

This is a brief sustainability report in the annual report. The full version of sustainability report, in both Chinese
and English versions, will be available for public download at www.ebchinaintl.com by May 2016.
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As an environmental protection enterprise, we are committed to using advanced technologies and following
industry standards to increase resources utilization and enhance environmental performance. As a result, a
declining trend has been continuously recorded for the volumes of particular matter (PM), Sulphur Dioxide (SO,)
and Nitrogen Oxides (NO,) per kWh of green electricity generated from our projects for the past three years. The
air emission performance of our waste-to-energy and biomass power generation plants in the past three years is
presented below.
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All our energy generating projects adhere to stringent national and international pollution control requirements:
the waste-to-energy projects meet the Standard for Pollution Control on the Municipal Solid Waste Incineration
(GB18485-2014) and relevant emissions requirements as stipulated in the European Industrial Emissions
Directive (2010/75/EU); where the biomass power generation projects meet the Emission Standard of Air
Pollutants for Thermal Power Plants (GB13223-2011). We have also introduced the concept of “Blue Incineration
2.0”7, which aims to tighten the flue gas emission standards, improve the resources utilization efficiencies and
increase the operational transparency of our businesses. In 2015, the Group has included an information
disclosure page on the website of the Company to report the emission standards and provide environmental
management information of our operating plants for the supervision of the public and the media, so as to
facilitate the understanding of general public on our waste-to-energy projects.

We emphasize the importance of resources recycling following the waste treatment hierarchy of “Reusing
before Incinerating, Incinerating before Landfilling and Landfilling only when the material cannot be Reused or
Incinerated”. We adopt a synergistic approach in the environmental friendly treatment of medical waste and food
waste. Majority of the bottom ash generated from waste-to-energy projects was reprocessed for brick making.
Meanwhile, all fly ash and bottom ash generated from the biomass power generation projects were reprocessed
for brick making or for other applications. All leachate generated from our waste-to-energy projects was treated
on-site by our self-developed leachate treatment system and reused accordingly to achieve Zero Discharge.

All waste water generated during the operation is treated by on-site waste water treatment facilities complying
with the stringent national waste water discharge standards — Integrated Wastewater Discharge Standard
(GB 8978-1996), as well as the requirements described in the approved Environmental Impact Assessment
(EIA) report. We continue to try our best to conserve and recycle water resources to ensure that the recycled
waste water can meet the Reuse of Urban Recycling Water — Water Quality Standard for Industrial Uses
(GB/T19923-2005) and the Reuse of Urban Recycling Water — Water Quality Standard for Landscape Uses
(GB/T 18921-2002) or other water reuse standards. In 2015, we used 15,578,687 m? of recycled water for
our operations, equivalent to over 88% of our total water consumption, which is 6% higher than our record in
previous year.
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As for our Environmental Water business, great emphasis is laid upon proper treatment of sludge arising from the
waste water treatment plants. We treat our sludge in accordance with International Finance Corporation (IFC)’s
General Environmental, Health and Safety Guidelines and other applicable laws and regulations. In 2015, more
than 67% of the total sludge generated from our projects was recycled. For sludge which eventually needs to be
disposed of at the landfill, we will reduce its water content and volume by dewatering process onsite before to
alleviate landfill burden and lower associated environmental impacts.
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Ensuring occupational health and safety is not only important to our corporate culture, but also a commitment
from the Group to each and every one of our employees. Besides implementing the occupational health and
safety management system with internationally recognized OHSAS 18001 (GB/T28001-2001) certification,
we have also improved the existing risk management system during the year to prevent any accidents from
happening in the future.

Through developing a set of clear safety production guidelines, providing adequate tools and personal protective
equipment on site and conducting regular safety inspections at our plants, the Group has incorporated safety
management awareness in every stage of our operation. We also introduce our safety culture and policies to our
contractors and partners as part of the terms in the agreement.

To ensure our employees are aware of the safety production guidelines, we offer regular health and safety
trainings, and held special seminars, lectures and competitions annually in the Production Safety Month. All
project companies have formed a safety management team, which includes the general manager and other
management officers, to supervise and manage all health and safety issues arising from various stages of
the project. The team is also responsible for organizing emergency drills and exercises to increase the safety
awareness of the employees as well as prepare themselves for crisis.
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As the city’s green guards, we are happy to serve as the council members to various environmental protection
associations in China, including the Chinese Society for Environmental Sciences, the Chinese Ecological
Civilization Research and Promotion Association and the China Association of Urban Environmental Sanitation,
and take part in the activities organized by these associations to further enhance our connection with the
community. In 2015, the Group has again co-organized the “National Environmental Protection Science
Popularization Creativity Context” with the Chinese Society for Environmental Sciences. The competition
collected more than 2,000 pieces of art works including animations, cartoons and mini films for public display
on the technology train run by the Ministry of Science and Technology, which were warmly applauded by the
community. Our project companies also participated in various events such as National Science Popularization
Day, World Water Day and World Environment Day throughout the year to promote advanced environmental
protection technologies and to raise public awareness on environmental protection.

In order for the public to understand more about the uniqueness of the waste-to-energy industry and
to encourage ecological civilization in the society, we actively utilize our existing resources to promote
environmental education by opening our project companies regularly for international groups, government
officials, investors, media, students and local residents to visit our plants. We believe this kind of activities can
enhance transparency and improve the interaction with our stakeholders, and cultivate the interest of young
generations in pursuing green career. In 2015, there were 47,822 headcounts of visitors to our environmental
protection projects.
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Everbright International Environmental Protection Charitable Foundation Company Limited was founded
in August 2013, which is mainly responsible for managing the Everbright International Environmental
Protection Charitable Foundation in Hong Kong, sponsoring and coordinating all charitable projects related
to environmental protection, environmental education, energy conservation, ecological preservation and
community caring, etc.

In 2015, Everbright International Environmental Protection Charitable Foundation was again the lead sponsor
for Earth Hour in Hong Kong, which was a signature event organized by the World Wide Fund for Nature (WWF)
to encourage government departments, companies, organizations, schools and individuals to turn off non-
essential lights in their buildings, offices, and facilities for an hour from 8:30 to 9:30 p.m. on 28 March 2015, as
a symbol for their commitment to the planet. The theme of Earth Hour 2015 is “One Hour for One Bright Future”,
and it called for people to change their lifestyles and give up the unnecessary luxuries to help sustain the earth.
Through different community engagement activities, we hope to demonstrate to the public how different energy
saving and recycling concepts can be integrated into their daily lives, and what they can do to reduce carbon
footprint and combat climate change.
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In addition, Everbright International Environmental Protection Charitable Foundation was the title sponsor for
Yan Oi Tong Green City Exploration Tour 2015 — Singapore. Held between 10 and 13 August 2015, the event
aimed at providing 23 environmental protection student ambassadors with a chance to visit Singapore, which
is known as the “Greenest Asian City”, and learn from university professors and conservation specialists about
the different aspects that can contribute to a green city, including water resources management, energy saving,
urban greening, biodiversity and construction waste recycling, so as to investigate the feasibility of bringing
these initiatives to Hong Kong. After the study tour, the foundation also sponsored the outstanding student
ambassadors to visit the Group’s Nanjing Waste-to-energy Project to further study the waste incineration
process and environmental protection measures adopted in China. The event helped the student ambassadors
understand our excellent operation and commitment to environmental and social responsibilities.

In mainland China, the Everbright Environmental Protection Charitable Foundation continues to provide material
and psychological support to sanitation workers in Suzhou who are experiencing financial difficulties or critical
illness. During the year, the accumulated number of people being benefited from the foundation has reached
361, accounting for over RMB1.393 million of consolation and relief fund. Besides, the Group has encouraged
our employees to be the acting teachers at the Everbright International True Love School located in Dangshan.
In January 2015, the Group won the Best CSR Brand Award at the 4th China Charity Festival, recognizing our
charity and environmental protection work for the community.
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The Group strives to maintain a high standard of corporate governance as it believes good corporate governance
practices are increasingly important for maintaining and promoting the confidence of the Shareholders.
They are crucial for the development of the Group’s business and protection of the Shareholders’ interests.
The Group upholds the management principle of “People-oriented, Pragmatism, Creativity and Systematic
Management”, and through a set of rules and regulations, has continuously strengthened internal controls and
risk management. Furthermore, by full and timely public disclosure of information, the Group has maintained
transparency and accountability which also enhanced its corporate values. The Board meets regularly and
has currently six Board committees, namely Audit Committee, Risk Management Committee, Nomination
Committee, Remuneration Committee, Disclosure Committee and Management Committee. For project
risk management, the Group has set up a Risk Management Advisory Committee to monitor and assess
risks regularly, boost related management standards and evaluate investment projects. Regarding project
technological risk management, the Group has in place an Engineering and Technology Management Committee
which is responsible for assessing the technologies used in different investment projects. For project financial
control, the Group insists on stringent budget management, and has set up a Budget Approval Management
Committee that focuses on monitoring construction budgets. In addition, the Group has also set up an Internal
Audit Department to perform internal audits to bolster the Group’s management standards.

The Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the HKEx (the “Listing Rules”) has been duly adopted by the Board as the code on corporate
governance practices of the Company.

The Company has complied with the CG Code for the year ended 31 December 2015, except that the Chairman
of the Board was unable to attend the annual general meeting of the Company held on 27 May 2015 (“2015
AGM”) due to other business engagements. This constitutes a deviation from the code provision E.1.2 of the CG
Code which requires the Chairman of the Board to attend the annual general meeting.
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS &<
Composition and function A KB =
The Board currently comprises 6 executive directors and 4 independent non-executive directors.

The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) during the financial year and up to the date of the report are set
out on page 91 of the annual report and currently are follows:

EEeRMAURTEE OB IFRITESAEMNX -

RAMBRFEALBEAREZANEETENE((EF)CHIINFRAFOIE MEBNETSKEWT

Name of Directors Title BEEMA Bz

Executive Directors HITEF

Mr. Tang Shuangning Chairman BEELE FE

Mr. Liu Jun Vice-chairman 2 BEA BIEE

Mr. Chen Xiaoping Chief Executive Officer RN A TR BE

Mr. Wang Tianyi General Manager TRERE Baeis

Mr. Wong Kam Chung, Raymond Chief Financial Officer Ep) btas 54 Es

Mr. Cai Shuguang Deputy General Manager EREYL S Bl 48 4% 18

Independent Non-executive Directors B IHNITEE

Mr. Fan Yan Hok, Philip Independent Non-executive — SE{-EBSL 4 BYIFHITESR
Director

Mr. Mar Selwyn Independent Non-executive B4R % 4 BUEMITES
Director

Mr. Li Kwok Sing, Aubrey Independent Non-executive — ZE £ %4 BUERITES
Director

Mr. Zhai Haitao Independent Non-executive — Z/&E5%4 BYIEHITES

Director
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Directors have given sufficient time and attention to the Group’s affairs. The Directors have disclosed to the
Company annually the number and the nature of offices held in public companies or organizations and other
significant commitments. The Board believes that the balance between executive Directors and independent
non-executive Directors is reasonable and adequate to provide sufficient balances that protect the interests of
the Shareholders and the Group.

Non-executive Directors provide the Group with diversified experience and professionalism. Their advices
and views as well as participation in the Board and committee meetings bring independent view, advice and
judgment on issues relating to the strategy and development, business operation and performance, risk control,
conflict of interest etc, to ensure the Shareholders’ interests are taken into consideration.

In accordance with the Articles of Association of the Company, subject to the manner of retirement by rotation of
Directors as from time to time prescribed under the Listing Rules and notwithstanding any contractual or other
terms on which any Director may be appointed or engaged, at each annual general meeting, one-third of the
Directors for the time being (or if their number is not a multiple of three, the number nearest to but not less than
one-third) shall retire from office by rotation, provided that every Director (including those appointed for a specific
term) shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years.

The position of the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer are held by separate individuals, with a view
to maintain an effective segregation of duties between the management of the Board and the day-to-day
management of the Group’s business and operation.

The Board meets regularly throughout the year. Under the lead of the Chairman, the Board is responsible
for approving and supervising the overall strategies and policies of the Group, approving annual budget and
business plans, assessing the Group’s performance and supervising the work of the management. All Directors
have access to board papers and related materials, and are provided with adequate information in a timely
manner. The Directors may, if necessary, seek legal or other independent professional advice at the expense of
the Company.

EEHERHSHRENUREAEENES - EETFARATRELNARA 7 SABIE B O E RIET -
MREMEARENRY - EEERARTEERBYENTESAL 2 LA EREY - LxHEEHEER - 1
1R R B T A 35

FNTEZRAEETRZTNERRFIEND - HRENREELER  UKERHE2HEEGREEEE
% RAKBENRBLRER  XHELRRE AREFNLMNaEREFFEL - BHBIER - ZENAE L/{EE
RECR 2 R EEERE

RIBARBNEIZAE - Lﬁfiﬁ%ﬁﬁlJTﬁ%ﬁTfZ%$$ﬁﬁ BAR - ARBEERTAREEFNEEHITL TERNS
) IEE&HM HEZEGER RERARRBFASL =02 HEFEF(XEERBWF=2 B8 MASEKAEZHA -
HETF EA_’\Z*)/,\%@i R EBUER(ERAAREEEHE)LAZELB=FEE—KX -

TRETBAEHZBBATRAALEL  FEFSEFLEEXBLELZAFEEGAARED
EXZeNFEANTHRE EIFERET  EZSRENERERAKENERRE MBEK  HWEFERE LXK

3 HEEEXRE UREEEEENTIF 2REFHARSHEZTIXMHREREN  ASRHERHTNE
o BEENBERT  EFAANGEDEIRREMBUNEXER  FRERAARRFN -
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In respect of regular Board meetings and audit committee meetings, the agenda is sent out to the Directors at
least 14 days before the meeting and the accompanying papers are sent at least 3 days before the meeting for
information.

As an integral part of good corporate governance, the Board has established the following committees with
specific written terms of reference which deal clearly with the respective committee’s authority and duties:

EHNEFTSSRNERNZECCHRA R ARSI THRAINE  MEBEEEXZEe@RNFEREAR
REBNRIZADETEENZEGREURER -

REREHERNGRELR EFERUTUTHNZES  YEmMIASZES - ARBESRE  FENASEZES
ZHRENBE

The Audit Committee, currently comprising all 4 independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Mar
Selwyn (Chairman), Mr. Fan Yan Hok, Philip, Mr. Li Kwok Sing, Aubrey and Mr. Zhai Haitao, is primarily
responsible for reviewing the accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group, as well as
discussing and reviewing the internal control and financial reporting matters of the Group, etc. The terms of
reference of the Audit Committee are disclosed on the website of the Company.

During the year under review, the Audit Committee reviewed with the management and KPMG, the
Company’s auditors, including but not limited to the accounting principles and practices adopted by
the Group, significant audit matters such as significant accounting estimates and judgmental areas, and
discussed the Group’s internal control and financial reporting matters, including review of the annual results
for the year ended 31 December 2014 and the interim results for the six months ended 30 June 2015.

BECZESRBEREZBNUBYIFATES  BRESAELLEEEERE)  BCBELE FREREXAENBERE
K HXIZBECRBHNAKEMRAZEHRAINRED - & )SMMTI*J*BE*T LM BRBEEE - BER
REZEESNBEBECDHIINARFNMIA

REBEFERN  BEXZEECBERERAA ﬁﬁ%ﬁ(ﬁﬁi%%}i’“rEfﬁ%%‘(Fﬁ%Erﬂ\1%1EITKEEAZJSEI}5H%%WZ§
HEARED  EEEGEEMEBOSHEH RANAL  TRERAEEGNBEL R BRESED (2
EHARRABE _T—NF+ _A=T—BULFERENBE_T-RHF A= +EI¢/\TIHZEPHE%Z$) ETTRS

A
Amg ©

On 1 January 2016, the Company established the Risk Management Committee which currently comprises
Mr. Fan Yan Hok, Philip (Chairman), an independent non-executive Director, Mr. Mar Selwyn, an independent
non-executive Director, Mr. Wong Kam Chung, Raymond, the Chief Financial Officer, Mr. Cai Shuguang,
an executive Director, and Ms. Xu Nailing, the financial controller of Everbright Environmental Protection
(China) Limited (a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company). Its main duties are to provide oversight of the
Company’s risk management programs, and to review the effectiveness of management’s processes for
identifying, assessing, mitigating and monitoring enterprise-wide risks. The terms of reference of the Risk
Management Committee have been established in writing.

RREREEE8eN T "F—A B BRABUFFATESTESCLHEALEEEIE) BIUFNTEES
MESLAE  MBRERBRAE  ATEFERBAEERNARR(FE)ARABD(ARBNEEN B AR MBS
BERDILLHAK  HXZREAEEAFRNAREEREFMASELEEBIZEERMR - & - &7
EEREFONARE - AREEZESREEANRERE -
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The Nomination Committee currently comprises Mr. Zhai Haitao (Chairman), an independent non-executive
Director, Mr. Chen Xiaoping, the Chief Executive Officer, and 3 other independent non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. Fan Yan Hok, Philip, Mr. Mar Selwyn and Mr. Li Kwok Sing, Aubrey. Its primary responsibilities
include making recommendations to the Board on appointment of Directors and assessing the qualifications
and competencies of the candidates, so as to ensure that all nominations are fair and transparent. The terms
of reference of the Nomination Committee are disclosed on the website of the Company.

During the year under review, the Nomination Committee reviewed the structure, size and composition
(including the skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board, assessed the independence of the
independent non-executive Directors, and discussed and made recommendation to the Board on the re-
election of the retiring Directors at the forthcoming 2016 annual general meeting of the Company as well as
the establishment of the Risk Management Committee and the cancellation of the Executive Committee etc.

REZBERMBIUNFATESREREE(BEEER) THARRRNFELE  URSIN=UBIIFXTES
BEBELE FSRAERLEMTHEEALANK EIEREERNESENETNZERIER  FHEREANE
BB AHERAARBEBAENAENAE - BRREZEGNRESECHIINARRHFEEA -

REEFE  REZESCRAARFDEFTENRE - ABLEXK(BREXE  NBNERIE) @ SFEEIIEHR
TEENE LY  URTRIMESEERNBRT 2 T "FREBFAGLMARAESCEERK LA
REEZBENIVENTEEZRESEH -

The Remuneration Committee currently comprises Mr. Li Kwok Sing, Aubrey (Chairman), an independent
non-executive Director, Mr. Liu Jun, the Vice-chairman of the Board, and 3 other independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Fan Yan Hok, Philip, Mr. Mar Selwyn and Mr. Zhai Haitao. The terms of reference of
the Remuneration Committee, which are disclosed on the website of the Company, set out the duties of the
Remuneration Committee, including determining, with delegated responsibilities, the remuneration packages
of the individual executive Directors and senior management.

During the year under review, the Remuneration Committee reviewed the remuneration policy of the
executive Directors and senior management, assessed performance of executive Directors, and approved
the remuneration packages of the Directors and senior management.

The remuneration of all the Directors is set out in note 8 to the financial statements.

TR ESRRmBEFATESFRERLE(BEEER) EFQR TR IABAEUARSIN=MUBLFRATES
SECBELE  BRELERBEBAEMANK  FRFHNZESNRELKECHIINARRNMUA - ZBERE
FIFHEZEGNRERREEBREL  EEERATEERSMNEEASHFHMEE -

REEFE  FHNZESCEZARANTEZTREREEABNTFMEEK FRATESRRENEEERS
REEABHFHINETE -

BEZNHITER A F R HHRERMESA
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The Disclosure Committee currently comprises Mr. Chen Xiaoping (Chairman), the Chief Executive Officer,
Mr. Wang Tianyi, the General Manager, Mr. Wong Kam Chung, Raymond, the Chief Financial Officer and
the Company Secretary. The Board has delegated the day-to-day execution of its continuous disclosure
obligations to the Disclosure Committee to ensure the compliance of the Company with its disclosure
obligations. The terms of reference of the Disclosure Committee have been established in writing.

BEREZESRBHITBARRNFAEEEER) AEEIXRERE WHEEAEERRTERRRAWEENX -
B RERR R E SR ERERBEEAN BRI IEURRARAFETREER REZEERAEEN
BrEsE -

The Management Committee comprises Mr. Chen Xiaoping (Chairman), the Chief Executive Officer, Mr.
Wang Tianyi, the General Manager, Mr. Wong Kam Chung, Raymond, the Chief Financial Officer, Mr. Cai
Shuguang, an executive Director as well as Mr. Hu Yanguo, Mr. Qian Xiaodong and Mr. An Xuesong. The
Management Committee is responsible for the management of daily business operations, formulating and
implementing annual work tasks and medium-term development plans for the Group, etc. The Management
Committee is the decision-making body for day-to-day business activities and makes collective decisions on
major matters relating to the Group’s daily business operations, management and personnel matters, etc.
The terms of reference of the Management Committee have been established in writing.

ERLZEENKEERITRASR/ N FEE(EEER)  AKEIRERLE  MHAEE
BEXEA  UMRAERLEL  BBRRAELENLZSNELE - ERZE8SREHEERRLE
SEFEIFEERTHERRE  RAKEAEXRBEIHRRPL HRBAELE
TREBRE - EHZBEREEENRERE -

=R E  MITESHE
2 AEFELEBA
2 AFEEERFHEE

Ht

I I

Remark 3 :  The Executive Committee was cancelled with effect from 1 January 2016. During the year under review, the Executive
Committee did not convene any meetings.

RZZB-R"E-A-AERTESZESCRIVE - REEFER  ATEFZERRFAMEH -

The Board directs and approves the overall strategies of the Group. It is the ultimate decision making body of the
Company except for matters requiring the Shareholders’ approval in accordance with the Articles of Association
of the Company, the Listing Rules and other applicable laws and regulations.

The Board has delegated day-to-day business of the Group to the management. All committees established
under the Board have their specific terms of reference clearly defining their powers and responsibilities.

EESHERMEARENEREER - BKBREARFNERZMA - EWRREMERED KERAERRI AN S
HIN EFERARBIHRLIREEE -

ESEREEEEEEARENEERR EFE NRNZESAEFEMNRERE - AEATMMNBEOMET
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The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance duties as set out below:

1. to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on corporate governance and make
recommendations;

2. to review and monitor the training and continuous professional development of Directors and senior management;

3. to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements;

4. to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance manual (if any) applicable to
employees and Directors; and

5. to review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report
under Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules.

The Board had performed the above duties during year under review.

EXQEERITMACEE RNBE

1. BIERBEARBNEEERBERER - WRHER

2. BIREREELSREEABNBIIRBFESELER

3. M RERARAEETEEREERETANBERTHR

4. HE  RAREREERZFFNRTEILARFMIE) : &

5. WHARAEST ETARMEETEAEESTANBERLRECEEERRE) NEKE -

REEFEAN  EFSD BT LABE -

The Company has formulated the board diversity policy aiming at setting out the approach on diversity of the
Board of the Company.

The Board recognizes the importance of having a diverse Board in enhancing the Board’s effectiveness and
corporate governance. A diverse Board includes and makes good use of differences in the skills, industry
knowledge and experience, education, background and other qualities of the Directors and does not
discriminate on the ground of race, age, gender or religious belief. These differences are taken into account in
determining the optimum composition of the Board and when possible should be balanced appropriately.
RRRGFINEZGHEZTICHE BNRAARAIZEEEHRENZ LI LA °

EFEgHR ATt EFSH N RS ETEUALEEANEEL - ZNEZTSRRERAEFHTARK

B TERABNER  HE  BSSNEMEKE  MASELRERNER - Fik - UHIRRHOESR - EAEKEEES
HeReZEZFRE  UFRAERGSEENTE -
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The Nomination Committee of the Company has responsibility for identifying and nominating for approval by
the Board, candidates for appointment to the Board. It takes responsibility in assessing the appropriate mix of
experience, expertise, skills and diversity required on the Board and assessing the extent to which the required
skills are represented on the Board and overseeing the Board succession.

The Nomination Committee is also responsible for reviewing and reporting to the Board in relation to Board
diversity.

Board appointments will be based on merits of the candidates and other objective criteria, having due regard for
the benefits of diversity on the Board.

Selection of candidates to join the Board will be, in part, dependent on the pool of candidates with the necessary
knowledge, experience, skills, educational background and other qualities. The final decision will be based on
merits and contributions the chosen candidates will bring to the Board.

The Board considers that Board diversity is a vital asset to the business.

At present, the Nomination Committee has not set any measurable objectives to implement the Board diversity
policy. However, it will consider and review the Board diversity policy, and set any measurable objectives from
time to time.

ARARAZECRAVEIRERETREATES SN E  ARESEMFMNEERAAMTREFTHREANER -
BEEASE  RENEZCMBTNE T ERER  UREBEFTSMMHEIT -

REZECRAREECRNEFEREAMEFENENZLILER
EENEnBREBEEREANERLEMTRREFL  ROZEXFARENETERNE S TENETRE -

REAMAZEZSR  @RBIREAMBOMD - L5 - KEE-
REANEBHNKESEFTSIFLNER -

e

BEERLEMERERER - ZREMARAEBSEURAR

EZeRREFENENZ T HRAFECER - HBEENEE °

BRl REZESHANERESEREZ TEBERMTEEMAAIFERR - A BRZEERETEZE MR
EEEMEZTEBRRUNTEEMAGERR -
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Each newly appointed Director receives an induction package covering the statutory and regulatory obligation
of a director of a listed company. The Company continuously updates Directors with the latest developments
and changes to the Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory requirements and provides training to develop
and refresh the Directors’ knowledge and skills. During the year under review, the Company provided Directors
with monthly updates on the performance, position and prospects of the Company. The Company also provides
Directors with monthly analysis report on the Company’s stock price performance and monthly journal of the
Company.

Directors are encouraged to participate in continuing professional development to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills. The Company has prepared a training record in order to assist the Directors to record the
training that they have undertaken.

A seminar was organised for Directors in December 2015 in relation to the ESHS (Environment, Safety, Health
and Social) management system and development strategy and prospect. Individual Director had also attended
seminars and/or conferences or forums relevant to his profession and duties as Directors.

BRFZENETRESABE) ARERLETRARNEFEXRIMREERELZ2EETNEN - ARARKERNESR
HERLTRAMEMEREERE R BRMN - WIRHIFINBEREEHNEETOMBMZE - REEFER -
ARBAEEFRBEEBARAERR  HRALMENEAEHEN - ARANTAESTEARBEHEARAREREND
ks - ARBA AT -

ARAEBHEFL2NHEEXERR  UERYFTHEFTOHMMNKE - ARRIEHEEIIRE - UinBEFLEME

E a8l -

ARFAR—_F-AFT_AREFENARRE L2 RBENLSETEEBRAREREEER DHEHR
PIERE2MTEREZXMNESRBNEIRER L EHLHE

8

o {H
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Below is a summary of the training the Directors had received during the year under review:
REBEFERN  EFMEINFIHENT

Type of trainings

Name of Directors EENR b=l pkid)
Mr. Tang Shuangning REE LA C
Mr. Liu Jun 2 ®mEHE ACD
Mr. Chen Xiaoping BR/NF S AB,C
Mr. Wang Tianyi FRELE A,C
Mr. Wong Kam Chung, Raymond mipFR S E A,B,C
Mr. Cai Shuguang ZBEH A A,C
Mr. Fan Yan Hok, Philip BLBLE AC
Mr. Mar Selwyn BIREEE A,C,D
Mr. Li Kwok Sing, Aubrey TEELE A,CD

Mr. Zhai Haitao BeEreE A,C,D
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued) =& (4£)
Training for Directors (continued) EEZ 3 (42)
A: attending seminars/conferences/forums

B: giving talks at seminars/conferences

C: reading newspapers, journals and updates relating to the economy, environmental protection business or
director’s duties and responsibilities etc

D: attending site visit arranged by the Company

C: MERBKE RRAXBABZREFTZHE  TWREMEHR

48

D: 2EANTLTHMNIRISER
Remuneration of Directors and Senior Management EE£ K 5 H & 1E [E &

The remuneration of the members of the senior management by band for the year ended 31 December 2015 is set
out below:

BE_Z-AF+_A=+T—"HLFESREBEZHHMENNT :

Remuneration bands (HK$) Number of persons A £k AR GB¥ D)

$1,500,001 to $2,000,000
$2,000,001 to $2,500,000
$2,500,001 to $3,000,000
$3,000,001 to $3,500,000

1,500,001t 22,000,000t
2,000,0017C%£2,500,0007T
2,500,0017C%3,000,0007T
3,000,0017C%£3,500,0007T

—_ N = =

Further particulars regarding Directors’ remuneration and the five highest paid employees as required to be
disclosed pursuant to Appendix 16 to the Listing Rules are set out in notes 8 and 9 to the financial statements,
respectively.

RELETHRAMBICEAREETMEARDEESHRERBEZE-TFHE - HHBRMHERRM TR -
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NUMBER OF BOARD MEETINGS AND COMMITTEE MEETINGS AND ATTENDANCE
RATE OF DIRECTORS £ hZE@ @A RN EFNLE R

The following shows the number of regular Board meetings and committee meetings held during the year under
review as well as the attendance rate of the Directors.

Attendance rate HERE

Board of Audit Nomination Remuneration Disclosure  Management
Name of Directors Directors Committee Committee Committee Committee Committee
BEMA Exg Ek%ZE8g® REZEe® FWEEe REZEg EHEZE9
Mr. Tang Shuangning 4/4 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
FEELE i i TiEm TiEm NiE
Mr. Liu Jun 4/4 N/A N/A 2/2 N/A N/A
2 BEAE TiEA T RiEm NiE
Mr. Chen Xiaoping 4/4 N/A 2/2 N/A 2/2 12/12
BRI A& TEA i@
Mr. Wang Tianyi 4/4 N/A N/A N/A 0/2 12/12
IRELE T T RiEA
Mr. Wong Kam Chung,
Raymond 4/4 N/A N/A N/A 2/2 12/12
BRELE TEm TER TER
Mr. Cai Shuguang 4/4 N/A N/A N/A N/A 12/12
gk ESE TiEA T T TEH
Mr. Fan Yan Hok, Philip 4/4 3/3 1/2 2/2 N/A N/A
BIEBEE TEH TEA
Mr. Mar Selwyn 4/4 3/3 2/2 2/2 N/A N/A
BAEREE NiE R NiE
Mr. Li Kwok Sing, Aubrey 4/4 3/3 2/2 2/2 N/A N/A
FHRELE T A
Mr. Zhai Haitao 4/4 3/3 2/2 2/2 N/A N/A

BEREE TER TER
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The roles of the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer should be separate. The Chairman’s responsibility is
to manage the Board and the Chief Executive Officer’s responsibility is to manage the Company’s business. The
division of responsibilities between the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer is clearly established.

The main duties of the Chairman include providing leadership for and overseeing the functioning of the Board;
formulating overall strategies and policies of the Company; ensuring that all Directors are properly briefed on
issues arising at Board meetings and giving each Director an opportunity to express his view at Board meetings;
ensuring that Directors receive adequate information, which must be complete and reliable, in a timely manner;
ensuring that the Board works effectively and discharges its responsibilities; ensuring that all key and appropriate
issues are discussed by the Board in a timely manner; drawing up and approving the agenda for each Board
meeting taking into account, where appropriate, any matters proposed by the other Directors for inclusion in
the agenda; taking responsibility for ensuring that good corporate governance practices and procedures are
established; encouraging all Directors to make a full and active contribution to the Board'’s affairs and taking
the lead to ensure that the Board acts in the best interests of the Company; ensuring that appropriate steps are
taken to provide effective communication with Shareholders and that views of Shareholders are communicated
to the Board as a whole; and facilitating the effective contribution of Directors and ensuring constructive relations
between executive Directors and non-executive Directors.

The duties of the Chief Executive Officer include taking responsibility for the Group’s operation and management;
implementing decisions and plans approved by the Board; making day-to-day operational and managerial
decisions; and coordinating overall business operations.

TRETRASNBUEERE, - TFEEEFENREETRAREEARREBNBERABHMOERE

ITENIEREERBALEZSLERESZSYR  FIEARAEBRBERER  MRESSLMAESTHEENE
EMNERALGERESHEESFELREASANKE  BREFELFEIIZINEN -  MEBEMTLATHA
S HREFSEMEE ABRTEEEMT  BRALKKMMBEEENEESRET IR ETAMESRESES
EEE EEEBAT  EBETEAREMESREZNABZENETAFER  AETHEFRARANERFNERE
AEMEEN  ZRMAESENRAEESER  XUSFR BREFESTENEARAKEND  BEAKIUE
ETRARBERRARBE  URERBRBRAATEZIBRAESTS  MELEFTUESZTSHFLANER - LERHR
TEFEFNTEFT ZEEIFERIENRE -

AREANBEREEEARENEENEE  STESSNRBRIE  (FLEEEENAMAE  RIpHLERE
HEE -
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The current 4 independent non-executive Directors hold office for a term until 31 December 2017. They are
subject to retirement by rotation and re-election in accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association.

In accordance with the independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules, the Board is of the
view that all independent non-executive Directors are independent (except that for Mr. Fan Yan Hok, Philip under
Rule 3.13(7), he had been a non-executive Director prior to his re-designation as an independent non-executive
Director) and the Company has received an annual confirmation of independence from each of the independent
non-executive Directors pursuant to the Listing Rules.

Independent non-executive Directors are identified as such in all corporate communications containing names of
the Directors. An updated list of the Directors identifying the independent non-executive Directors and the roles
and functions of the Directors is maintained on the website of the Company.

AROBYFRTEENEHEEZE " T—tF T -_A=1T—H1L - BELAETARANERAUBREBERENR
B EEZIRE o

Zl

RIFEMARANEI GBS EFSRRERBUIPTEFAR/RBLAL(RRE LTRAFEI.13(7)
- SECHBEERERBIABIUIFATESANRERTESSI)  MEBRZBIFATESERELHRAUBERAR
ARHAMEBIENFERAE

ARBPEMBREESHEZNRRRAT  CHENRBBILIFRTESZSN - ARAZEFEFTLECHRARAN
LA B FRTEESORIIREETAC LB -

The Group has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code”) set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct for securities transactions by the
Directors. Having made specific enquiries to the Directors, all Directors confirmed that they had complied with
the required standard of dealings as set out in the Model Code during the year ended 31 December 2015.

AEBERA ETRRAME T AAECETERTAESFETESRINRETIND(BRETH DIERSEFTETARBRRR
HEEMES - RAMBEFFELBTEHR  ARRMAEFHRRERBE_FT—AF+-_A=1T—HLFER
—HETIRETRIAENRE

The Company Secretary is a full time employee of the Company and reports to the Chairman of the Board and
the Chief Executive Officer. She is responsible for advising the Board on governance matters. For the year under
review, the Company Secretary has obtained the practitioner’'s endorsement certificate for 2015/16 issued by
The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries and confirmed she had taken no less than 15 hours of relevant
professional training.

NREMER/ALFEZRER  YRAEFTSTFEMTRARER REANEAFERNESTSREES NOEAFE -
AEAMECHSHBEBRANERASREHMN2015/16FENNRMETEREREERIAIR+ANRKOHEBEER

=1
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During the year under review, there was no change in the Company’s constitutional documents.

REEFE  ARANAKERTEZS -

It is the auditors’ responsibility to form an independent opinion, based on their audit, on the Company’s financial
statements and to report their opinions solely to the Company, as a body, in accordance with section 405 of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the “Companies Ordinance”), and
for no other purpose. They do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of the independent auditor’s report.

The external auditors of the Company for the year under review were KPMG. Apart from the provision of annual
audit services, KPMG also carried out interim review of the Group’s results and provided other services in
compliance with the requirements under the Listing Rules and the Occupational Retirement Schemes Ordinance.

REE BERBERSERZTENER  HUBBRRELBULER - YRBEBEIENA T Q7K A
AR ) FBA05 MR TE - BARAHER —EEBIELRSE - BRI 2 ZMS TR RIEEMA S @ REEH T 508
YRZBENRENAR - HEMEBATEESIAESE -

REBFEAR  NEEZINEZBMASEFTRETMEHA - BREFRHEEZRGEI  TEHARENFTHEEL
ARER BIR AR £ 16 BB 3R CR AR 5T &R D1 a9 78 2 T B2 R B A AR TS -

For the year ended 31 December 2015, KPMG, the external auditors, received the following remuneration from
the Group in connection with the provision of audit and non-audit services to the Group:

BE_T-AF+-A=+t—"HLEFEAR  INEZBEETHSAMEEMARMEZLRIFEZRSG T A5 B M UER
NHIENE

2015
—T—hF
HK$’000
PEEE T
Financial statements audit services and W MREZRBE &
interim review services RSB B AR TS 7,827
Other services H o AR 7%
— assurance services in connection with the requirement — 1RSS5 R IRET E& 1
under the Occupational Retirement Schemes Ordinance AR TOZERSE 6
— due diligence, tax advisory and —ERALT  BHEHAR
other services HMR% 1,587
— consultancy services in connection with — BB LB e B TR B R Y
the establishment of the risk management system B8 AR TS 1,089

10,509
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According to the relevant regulations issued by the Ministry of Finance of the PRC regarding the audit work on
financial statements of state-owned enterprises, there are restrictions in respect of the years of audit services
that an accounting firm can continuously provide to a state-owned enterprise. The Company is an indirect
subsidiary of China Everbright Group Ltd. which is a state-owned enterprise. Since the number of years that
the Company has continuously engaged KPMG has exceeded the prescribed time limit, KPMG will retire as
the auditors of the Company with effect from the conclusion of the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company (the “Forthcoming AGM”) and accordingly, will not seek for re-appointment.

The Board has resolved, with the endorsement of the Audit Committee of the Company, to recommend the
appointment of Ernst & Young as the new auditors of the Company following the above-mentioned retirement of
KPMG and such proposed appointment is subject to the approval of the Shareholders at the Forthcoming AGM.

The Company has received a confirmation letter from KPMG confirming that there are no matters connected
with its retirement that should be brought to attention of the Shareholders. The Board has confirmed that there
are no matters in respect of the proposed change of auditors that need to be brought to the attention of the
Shareholders.

RIBPEARAXMEHBAAR T REEFEREEF TENBBRE BT HSHMEBMEERER —KPRE
EUBEREBAEZBNFERBEFARS] - ARRATEAAREERN AR (RARA/—RTFRER) ZEEMBRR - &
RARFEEZIEFTHEAMEEAINFHNCKBAREFR - EFHSHEBMERIRERSNRFZEE -
BARAEERRAFAS ([EERRBFAEG DERRER  MTAESRERE -

RARFBRZECRE  EXTQREEFEEFHITMERMRERTELKEFMEBLAARR R EZE
fb - MR EAGFRRREERRBFASIAERT AIFEE -

ARRERESZFHEMEBANBER L BEYHRELRTIAMNEEARERRET -EFTECHER - AESH
AEREERBAMNEEARZRREL

The Board has full responsibility for the Group’s internal control system, which includes the establishment of a
defined management structure with specified limits of authority. The system is designed to help the achievement
of business objectives of the Group, safeguard assets against unauthorized use or disposition, ensure the
maintenance of proper accounting records for the provision of reliable financial information for internal use or
for publication and ensure compliance with relevant legislation and regulation. The internal control system is
designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss.

EXesRBEARENARNEZRS  BRFAFTEERELAENERIGDASEERXFEREE  REEENUD
AEEEERRNE - BRGFA LRSS REAERAENMBEER A BERS BN ER - WERETARED &
RA - ERARAAE(BEAFEYH)REFTSHRNEARERRLERX -
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INTERNAL CONTROL (continued) NEBESTE (4)

e

The key procedures that the Board established to provide effective internal controls are as follows:

REHBAERNANER  EESRLT TIZERR

Organisational Structure 8 &% %
An appropriate organisational structure is in place with defined operating policies and procedures as well as
responsibility and lines of authority.

AEBECHF A ENABMERE  BRNEBNELERRIEF BAENER -

Authority and Control #[E [ BE 5
The executive Directors and senior management are delegated with respective levels of authorities to carry
out the corporate strategies and policies and the related matters formulated by the Board.

HWTEEREREEABEEABERNATESTSHTNLERE  BRMBBER -

Budgetary Control and Financial Reporting 78 & 1% 4| & Bt 7% 3R & # 51

The Group implements budget management, and financial budget is executed upon approval by the Board.
Relevant procedures have been established to assess, review and approve major capital and recurrent
expenditures, and regular review and comparison between operating results and the budget are made.

The Group has established appropriate internal control procedures to ensure the keeping of complete
and accurate accounting and management records on a timely basis. Examination and review are carried
out regularly to ensure that the financial statements are properly prepared in conformity with the generally
accepted accounting principles, the Group’s accounting policies and the applicable laws and regulations.

AEEETEERE  MEREAETERZRIT - AKRECTLHERERFAFE R MR ETENER T
NGB - WEHRA B BE L ERETEE o

AEEEREENARMEERRF - EE%IE TREEERTHREAREEREN - EMETRILES - BERM
BHREROBENT A —RABANSHER GRTEE - ANBERRERIIOER °
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The Group has its Internal Audit Department, which has regularly conducted internal audits to review whether
the internal control procedures are implemented appropriately.

The Board has conducted a review of the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control system. This review
covered all material controls, including financial, operational and compliance controls and risk management
functions, and also considered the adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience of staff of the
Company’s accounting and financial reporting functions, and their training programmes and budget. Any
internal control weaknesses detected by the Internal Audit Department of the Company will be reported to
the Audit Committee members and the management of the Company. Accordingly, the management will
take remedial actions and the Internal Audit Department will subsequently follow up and review whether the
remedial actions in place are adequate. The Company has established a whistleblowing policy and system
for employees of the Company to raise concerns about possible improprieties in financial reporting, internal
control or other matters.

AEBREANMETE - UEMETARBERZUARTNTEERFRTNENT °

EXeCRIARENMEZRFRNARE - ZFRAEREMAEENSE - FHRMBEE  BEEE &8
ERkERERNE  UEBARAESTAMBERBETANER BTEERERELT RN URBTHME
ENRIIRIELFRBEERTRE - WERREMNARRANFEZNSH - AREABEANARANEREZES
ZENEEEER -Fit  EREEYSREEROUEERIOABEAHERRENECABULEERRSEE
B o dbsh  ARBHIE T BRBELRS  BEEARPHRMEER AEEXEMT @A EENTEETAR
RHEE -

The establishment of risk management system is one of the major tasks of the Group in this year, and the
Group has set up its Risk Management Department during the year which is specifically responsible for the
establishment and maintenance of a comprehensive risk management system. Through the implementation of
systematic risk management framework and policy, the Group can persistently and thoroughly identify, assess
and mitigate the key risks faced by the Group. In addition, the department is also responsible for the risk analysis
of new investment projects, so as to ensure that the risks of new investment projects can be properly controlled
and the expected benefits and returns can be achieved.

EREERAERTEEAREAFENEN TIF2— AEERFAEARYTRREERN  ERATERNHEE
2HEREERER  BEFERSMCHNRAREERBLGE  ASE2EE  FHERERAEEMEYENERRE
B o BRitZ SN B FIEAEHHMRERBNERS T TIE - BRSHIERBRRAES - WEEEEBHRENRES -
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In order to ensure the professionalism and applicability in the establishment of risk management system, the
Group has employed an external professional team as system establishment consultant. During the year, with
the combination of both top-down and bottom-up risk assessment approaches, through the organization of risk
interviews and workshops with top management and senior executives, and through on-site risk assessment of
some representative environmental protection projects, the key risks faced by the Group have been identified
and the relevant risk mitigation actions and responsibilities have been preliminarily assigned.

Following the establishment of Risk Management Committee under the Board, the committee acts on the
Board’s behalf to persistently monitor the effectiveness of the risk management system and the daily risk
management functions of the Group. The Group will, subject to the work plan and risk reporting requirements
advised by the Risk Management Committee, coordinate all departments to persistently enhance the risk
management system, to continuously identify and assess potential new key risks, and to formulate the risk
reporting mechanism at different levels. At the same time, the Group will periodically organize risk management
trainings, in order to strengthen the employees’ understanding over risk prevention, to promote the culture of risk
management, to enhance the Group’s overall standard of risk management, and to provide a good foundation
for the sustainable growth of the Group.

RTEREAREECREZERNEXELNERNE  ARERKEF T SEXEFEREREREM - FREAKLEM
TREETm ENERFGETE  BEEARERERE - 8EABRETRRIALTIEY  MEARKKERREBETR
SRRANE  CEAREAKRERKGAESNERRRE - WYL HE T HEEANRRERERLAET BREE
) o

BEEEFE TRAREEZBENEANY  ZZBeAREFTEREEEASERREEBANAREL A ERER
ERTHENNTER AEESRRARERZEE TENTEERLERERZ R - HRLTRE  HETSZAR
EEER  FESNLFHEIEEARRY 0 WK ERARERES - RE - NEEKERAMEREZE - =
EETITWRARMEED SHAREEXE  ZEEAXFARRERKT  SAKENARERRETRIFOER -
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The Directors confirm that they are responsible for the preparation of the Group’s financial statements.
The Finance Management Department of the Company is taken charge by the Chief Financial Officer. With the
assistance of the Finance Management Department, the Directors ensure that the Group’s financial statements

have been properly prepared in accordance with relevant regulations and applicable accounting principles.

A statement by KPMG, the auditors of the Company, about their reporting responsibilities on the financial
statements of the Group is included in the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 98 to 99.

ESERBRREAREM BRI AEZBEREL -

ARRMPMHEENOYBREAREE -EVBEESTNBE T  EFRRAKENBRENERTAEHEAR
Mz 'Rt ER -
ARBZHMEFSHEAMEBAMARENBREMEZRRETERIENFISEEFIOA LB I ZHA KRS
A o

The Company recognizes the importance of good communications with the Shareholders and the investment
community and also recognizes the value of providing current and relevant information to Shareholders and the
investors. The Board has established a Shareholders’ communication policy setting out the principles of the
Company in relation to the Shareholders’ communication, with the objective of ensuring the Shareholders and
investors are provided with ready, equal and timely access to current and relevant information about the Group.

The Company maintains on-going dialogue with Shareholders to communicate with them and encourage their
participation through annual general meetings or other general meetings.

Notices of Shareholders’ meetings which contain agenda, proposed resolutions and postal voting form, are sent
to the registered Shareholders by post.

All registered Shareholders are entitled to attend annual and extraordinary general meetings, provided that their
shares have been recorded in the Register of Shareholders.

ARRARERRERREERFRIFBBNEZN  tRBIABRRBREZERHEMNLEFEANEE - E5S
ETBRERBABE  JHARRBABRREMACRA - §ERRBRRERKRESE - EREHEK - HE EROARE R
FTAERA AR o

ARAGREEBRRAFASGREMRRASEBRR - ERGABIYZBREL2ERRAS -
BRBRRABESARBBRAGES  AGRSHEHRE RENWABRLRBERZERS

EAECHEROBELERREFAE MERFHIAE - ERFHRMDVACBELRRREMA
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Annual and interim reports offer comprehensive operational and financial performance information to
Shareholders and the annual general meeting of the Company provides a forum for Shareholders to exchange
views directly with the Board, which together help enhance and facilitate communication with Shareholders.
Shareholders who are unable to attend a general meeting may complete and return to the Company’s Share
Registrar the proxy form enclosed with notice of meeting to give proxy to their representatives, another
Shareholder or chairman of the meeting.

FERTPHBREREREHEL LM BEERANFRERARARAFANRREFASG AR RRERHEAETENEEER
BERNKE  EHRINENEEBRIRAER - REHFERRAGHRRIAZBEHNASBENRRZERR

YU REARBRMDBIRE  NWEEREZRRAS - BRRIAGEFER/BENRE

Pursuant to section 566 of the Companies Ordinance, the members of the Company representing at least 5% of
the total voting rights of all the members having a right to vote at general meetings may request the Directors to
call a general meeting. The request must state the general nature of business to be dealt with at the meeting and
may include the text of a resolution that may properly be moved and is intended to be moved at the meeting. The
request may consist of several documents in like form and may be sent to the Company in hard copy form or in
electronic form and must be authenticated by the person(s) making it.

If the Directors do not within 21 days from the date of the deposit of the request proceed duly to convene a
general meeting for a day not more than 28 days after the date on which the notice convening a general meeting
is given, the members concerned or any of them representing more than one-half of the total voting rights of all
of them, may themselves convene a general meeting, provided that the general meeting so convened shall not
be held after the expiration of 3 months from such date.

The general meeting convened by such members shall be convened in the same manner, as nearly as possible,
as that in which general meetings are to be convened by the Directors.

RIFARHEPIFES661F - EARRNBERAE LRENEEBRREARZEEEZ LSRN ARFRR - IBREFTAFKRR
A - FAERELRIAHRE FRENFTENARLE  AAEEHNE TEEHRABNG LHRNRER
e BREXRZNRSZNHHADIOXN - YAEBBEATAXEFHEARAARREL - BSBELHEEHERY
AT e

MEREZEREFMBAMET —+—RA REEBRABRRREBAEHHARR -+ ARALHFAR —RBREX
g AZEFRALEREBRA—FULBRRENGRA - JEBTERRRAS - BN ARNBRRAE TN EHE
EaEEsk B EER =@ A EmR 8T -

HAEMRRAFANBRRAS  ARUENRIESAMARRRENTAEMH -
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Pursuant to section 615 of the Companies Ordinance, the members of the Company may request the Company
to give, to members of the Company entitled to receive notice of the annual general meeting, notice of a
resolution that may properly be moved and is intended to be moved at that meeting. The request may be sent
to the Company in hard copy form or in electronic form and must identify the resolution of which notice is to
be given, be authenticated by the person or persons making it and be received by the Company not later than
6 weeks before the annual general meeting to which the requests relates; or if later, the time at which notice is
given of that meeting.

The Company will give notice of a resolution if it has received the requests from (a) members representing at least
2.5% of the total voting rights of all the members who have a right to vote on the resolution to which the request
relate; or (b) at least 50 members who have a relevant right to vote on the resolution to which the request relate.

RIFQBVGRPIE615MF - RARRRAIBRARBRARYEDMRBFASBESNRRELRBARABS - MARRS
ERRBERAFAE LEAESRIHNE LIE - ERERENEBREATAREFHARARRERL - YAFHH
BPELBEMUUAESR BN AKAREERKOALIERE  URARRLEATERABBRIBAFAGRITHHAIN
B2 (BRR)FEHERBEFASBENSHXEFHELE -

RRABEREETIALTELENERER  BERARRBE  @QEARLEARZERENTBRREKREEED
2.5%ME ; (D) EVS0RMERBEAARBEEREENRRE
As regards the procedures for proposing a person for election as a Director, please refer to the procedures made

available under the Corporate Governance section of the Company’s website at www.ebchinaintl.com.

BERBENALREERNIZRF - F2H AR FHEEwww.ebchinaint.comA k¥ BRI D HIIZF °
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2015 ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING —ZE—AFREHAF K=

At the 2015 AGM, a separate resolution was proposed by the Chairman in respect of each separate issue,
including re-election of each retiring Director. All resolutions were duly passed by Shareholders by way of
poll at the meeting. The Chairman of the Board was unable to attend the 2015 AGM due to other business
engagements. Certain Directors and members of committees attended the meeting to answer questions of
Shareholders. The Company announced the results of the poll in the manner prescribed under the Listing Rules.
No other general meeting was held during 2015. The attendance record of the Directors at the general meeting
is set out below:

R-ZF-—AFBRRAFAE  TFEHRERBUNEREHREBIAZER  ETFEREEZREES - MARBRE
BRERRZEHLAREXRATNBE EFSTFREMAKRELE T AFRREFASG - BNEFKEZES
MK EHEEEQERRORER - ARFARELTRABENTAIARERRER - R AFFERNLREE
TTEMBRAE - EFEHERRERRGZLEHNT :

General meeting attended/held

Directors = HEREGRE, 2ERE R
Executive Directors HiTEF

Mr. Tang Shuangning e 0/1
Mr. Liu Jun EI 5 1/1
Mr. Chen Xiaoping BR/N A 1/1
Mr. Wang Tianyi FRERE 1/1
Mr. Wong Kam Chung, Raymond mipSAS 1/1
Mr. Cai Shuguang BB A 1/1
Independent non-executive Directors TR ITER

Mr. Fan Yan Hok, Philip SBERSAE 1/1
Mr. Mar Selwyn BHEEEE 1/1
Mr. Li Kwok Sing, Aubrey TEESLE 1/1

Mr. Zhai Haitao BeEkeE 11
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The Company recognizes the importance of efficient and effective communications with the investor community.
Briefings and meetings with institutional investors and analysts are conducted regularly to provide them with
up-to-date and comprehensive information about the Group’s development. Besides, the Company facilitates
the initiation and coverage of the Company published by research analysts of well-received investment banks
which are instrumental in providing investors with independent and professional evaluations of the Company.
Moreover, the Group participates in different international forums and overseas non-deal roadshows to elaborate
on the Group’s business development plans to global investors. Furthermore, the Company arranges site visits
for investors and media to our key projects in China. Last but not least, the Company has established a function
dedicated to investor relations and engaged an external public relations company to take care of investor
relations matters. The Company also maintains a website (www.ebchinaintl.com) which renders Shareholders,
investors and the general public direct access to the information of the Group on a timely basis.

In order to enable Shareholders to exercise their rights in an informed manner, and to allow them to engage
actively with the Company, a Shareholders communication policy of the Company has been established.
Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns to the Company via the Company’s website
at www.ebchinaintl.com. Shareholders may also make enquiries with the Board at the general meetings of the
Company.

ARPBPEFREREREENSMLARNER - ARAETHERBEREEMOMERTHRE R EE - ARFRH
BRAEEEZRORHFERE o 1IN AR BBAENRERITORAESTAASARRREONTRE - BB NRIE
HIREEBBEARANBILRFEFMG - i ARELFETRNBERRENEINNERZEE - MERREEB L
AEBENEHERTE - B BHEEEBEHRER  RREEFNEBRSIASEUATENE TEHER - ARF
EREHEEREEWENIGE  UREFBIBLEQARNBEREEMENEE - AR A ZA¥E (www.ebchinaintl.com) &
AABERR - WEERARAAREARFEANRE -

BTERREMNBENBER TITEELREAERN  WEMMEGIHEART - ARRFI T REBRMBUR - BEAIET
TR AR B AN A B A8 Hwww. ebchinaintl.com A A8 A B 3 2% b M9 ) & s A1 H P8 D AT RE » IR IR AJ FE AR R R BR 3R oK
erREFESREENR -
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DIRECTORS £%=

Executive Directors #1{TE S

TANG SHUANGNING - CHAIRMAN

aged 61, is the Chairman of the Company. Mr. Tang is the representative of the 12th National People’s Congress
and the Vice-chairman of the Agriculture and Rural Affairs Committee of the 12th National People’s Congress.
He is also the Chairman of China Everbright Group Ltd., China Everbright Holdings Company Limited and China
Everbright Bank Company Limited. Mr. Tang is also the Director of Everbright Securities Company Limited,
Sun Life Everbright Life Insurance Company Limited and the Chairman of China Everbright Limited. He also
serves as the Vice Chairman of China Society for Finance and Banking and the Consultant of China Society
for Investment. Prior to joining the China Everbright Group, he was the Vice Chairman of the China Banking
Regulatory Commission, the Director-General of the Banking Supervision Department |, the Director-General
of the Currency, Gold and Silver Bureau and the Director-General of the Credit Management Division of the
People’s Bank of China. He holds a Master’s Degree in Economics from China Northeast University of Finance
& Economics. Mr. Tang has extensive knowledge and experience in banking and finance management. Mr. Tang
joined the Board in July 2007.

EEE(LE)

RBFE6Im ARBAERF - BEERF T _EEZBEARKRARERER 2EARKRRAGREEENZEGRIAEZR
B o BIRTEAREERNAR  FEEAREEEGRAFARPEAXRRITRODBRARNESERK - I BEETR
RRBHFBRNDAERRARERKAASRBERARES - URFBEXRIZERERAFER - BRETFHHEGE
SREAPEKESSER - REMATERAAEER  EETERTEEBEEZEQEITF  PREARRITRITE
E-ARk ERSRBARLEEEEAARERE - FHAPERILMERBLEFESBELEM - BEERRITR
CREBTHAAIFFERZOANILTOEENER - BFAEN_STLFLANMAESS -

LIU JUN - VICE-CHAIRMAN

aged 44, is the Vice-chairman of the Company. Mr. Liu is the Deputy General Manager of China Everbright
Group Ltd., the Vice-chairman of China Everbright Holdings Company Limited. He is also the Deputy Chairman
of China Everbright Limited. He is the Chairman of China Everbright Industry Group Limited. Mr. Liu is a
standing member of the Twelfth Committee of the All-China Youth Federation, the Vice President of the Fifth
Committee of the Youth Federation of the Central Government, the Vice President of the Second Committee
of All-China Financial Youth Federation, the Vice Chairman of the Thirteenth Committee of The Hong Kong
Chinese Enterprises Association and the Chairman of the Second Financial Derivatives Professional Committee
of National Association of Financial Market Institutional Investors. He holds a Master’s Degree in Business
Administration from Northeastern State University of Oklahoma U.S.A. and a Doctorate’s Degree in Business
Administration from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University. He holds the title of Senior Economist. He was
formerly the Executive Vice President of China Everbright Bank Company Limited and the Chairman of Sun Life
Everbright Life Insurance Company Limited. He joined the Board in August 2014.

FNE(FEE)

BFA4pr > ARFELTE - BIRAERPEAASERN AFELLE  PHRAAASEARAFEESRK - PRI AR
BRERARBEELTEAAEX(RB)EREFARESER - JEARRET _EPEXESFHASELZ  F1
ETREZHEATFHACEEIR 2ESRARTFUCEFT _ERECRIER FTZEEFLTELEHERS
- URFPBRRTEHMERZ2BMEE _ReRITEMEXZEEIMAEERE - RRHAXBERRUASERIEMIARNET
BEREXETEMMNEBRIASIRERERBELEM YAASREBEMEBE - REETEALRNRITROHAR
RAEITTE ARKAASRBRERAFESER - BIXER T OFN\ANAZEZE -
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Executive Directors (Continued) $I{TEE(#)

CHEN XIAOPING — CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

aged 62, is the Chief Executive Officer of the Company. Mr. Chen is also a Deputy President of Chinese
Ecological Civilization Research and Promotion Association and a Standing Director of China Environmental
Culture Promotion Association. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Chen had been a department head in the Bureau
of Investigation & Supervision of The People’s Bank of China, the Assistant Governor of China Everbright
Bank Company Limited and the President of the Bank’s Guangzhou Branch. He had been a non-executive
director and the chairman of China Everbright Water Limited, the Company’s subsidiary listed in Singapore.
He graduated from the Department of Finance of the Southwest University in Finance and Economics, the
PRC, finished the MBA class of the Research Institute of Business Management of Sichuan University, the
PRC and holds a Master’s Degree with a major in Money & Banking from the Department of Finance and Trade
of the China Research Institute of Social Science. He holds the title of Senior Economist and Certified Public
Accountant in the PRC. He had been engaged as a researcher at the China International Economic Development
Research Centre. He has rich experience and extensive knowledge in banking, capital market and management.
Mr. Chen joined the Board in August 2001.

BN (TTEAREL)

RFE62p%  ARBITHARE - RAEETATEARXAAEERTESINSRMPERBELRESERIES - MNA
AEER  RALEERTEARBRIEREERREMPENARITITRDEREMBETOTITR - REEFEL
RKBERRB(ARBRHFINF ETAOMNBATNIFRATESTRESTE - REXRTEABMERZEHE - T
ARBTHERMARAMBAR R EM L FETBELENEM KM EAERRITEXEE L E2ME - BB AL EMBE
FAMEEAER  RIABER/TPEERCEEZRARXPOMEE - WRIRT BEATSRECEERTAEFEER
BREZHE  REER _ZET—F\ANMAESFS -

WANG TIANYI — GENERAL MANAGER

aged 53, is the General Manager of the Company. Mr. Wang is an executive director and the chairman of China
Everbright Water Limited, the Company’s subsidiary listed in Singapore. Prior to joining the Group, he was the
President of Shandong Academy of Science. He was formerly the Deputy Mayor of Jinan City of Shandong
Province. He had been the Vice President, Dean and Professor of Economic Management Faculty of Yantai
University of Shandong Province. He is currently also a part-time professor and doctoral tutor of Shandong
University. He is also a member of HKTDC Mainland Business Advisory Committee. He holds a Doctorate’s
degree in Economics, a Master’s degree in Management and a Bachelor’s degree in Electronics from Tsinghua
University. He had pursued advanced studies at Harvard University and University of California in the United
States. Mr. Wang joined the Board in February 2010.

TR (M)

WELIRR * ARNFHRKIE - TRARTENAKBERDB(ARRNH MK EHHMBRABWRTEEFHREEK -
EMAREERR > BRALURERMERRE - WACELUREEETETR - YEEUREERABERE - BEER
BEREHE - BT RABHRBHENEL LG URBEBERANHBELAZESSE - WA EAEL
HREEL  EEBRINREFEELE - WIAGEXBERHBABMIVNABERRE - TRER-_FT-FTF_AMNA
Exg-
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Executive Directors (Continued) $I1TEE (&)

WONG KAM CHUNG, RAYMOND - CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

aged 52, is the Chief Financial Officer of the Company. Mr. Wong holds a Master of Business Administration
Degree, a Master of Management Degree in Information Technology Management from Macquarie University,
Australia, and a Bachelor of Arts with Honours Degree in Accountancy from the City University of Hong Kong. He
is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, a member of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of England and Wales, a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants
of United Kingdom and a member of the Chartered Professional Accountants of Canada. He has extensive
experience in accounting, finance and auditing areas. Mr. Wong joined the Board in December 2002.

=m iR (I HARE)

REL2R - ARAVBHEE - BEERARMERBRBTIEHERELTM  RSBETA(TBEMRRER) UK
BEWTABREHBREXELE - RABTEBEHMNAGEE  RERFHIHANAEEE KERKTFARSTNAE
§§§§)SUJD%K%E?E}%@%EWT&@@E cRABEEZEM  MBELZBER BAER_TT_F+_AMNMA
- i

CAlI SHUGUANG - DEPUTY GENERAL MANAGER

aged 60, is the Deputy General Manager of the Company. He is also the Vice-chairman of Everbright
Environmental Protection (China) Limited. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Cai was formerly Deputy General
Manager of Shenzhen Kingway Brewery Limited. He graduated from the Department of Computer Science
from Shanghai Fudan University and holds a Master of Business Administration Degree from the University of
Ballarat in Australia. He holds the title of senior engineer. Mr. Cai has rich experience and extensive knowledge
in corporate management and project planning. Mr. Cai joined the Board in August 2010.
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Independent Non-Executive Directors Bk TEE

FAN YAN HOK, PHILIP

aged 66, is Independent Non-executive Director of the Company. He is also an independent non-executive
director of the following Hong Kong listed public companies, namely Hysan Development Company Limited,
First Pacific Company Limited, China Aircraft Leasing Group Holdings Limited and Guolian Securities Co., Ltd.
Mr. Fan is also an independent director of Goodman Group, an Australian listed company and a member of
the Asian Advisory Committee of AustralianSuper, a pension fund established in Australia. He was formerly an
independent director of Zhuhai Zhongfu Enterprise Co., Ltd., a Shenzhen listed company and Suntech Power
Holdings Co., Ltd. (under official liquidation) until June 2013 and December 2013 respectively. He was also
formerly an independent non-executive director of HKC (Holdings) Limited, a Hong Kong listed company until
December 2014. Mr. Fan holds a Bachelor’s Degree in Industrial Engineering, a Master’s Degree in Operations
Research from Stanford University and a Master’s Degree in Management Science from Massachusetts
Institute of Technology. Before joining the Group in 1997, he was an executive director of CITIC Pacific Limited
in charge of industrial projects in China. Mr. Fan joined the Board in November 1997 and was re-designated
as the Non-executive Director and Independent Non-executive Director of the Company in January 2010 and
December 2012 respectively.
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Independent Non-Executive Directors (Continued) B k8 TEE (&)

MAR SELWYN

aged 80, is Independent Non-executive Director of the Company. Mr. Mar graduated from the London School
of Economics, University of London. He is a fellow member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of United
Kingdom and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He is a director of Nexia Charles Mar Fan
Limited. He is also an independent non-executive director and chairman of the audit committee of Minmetals
Land Limited and Man Yue International Holdings Limited. He was formerly an independent non-executive
director of China Kingstone Mining Holdings Limited until December 2015. He was the President of Hong Kong
Society of Accountants (now known as Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants) in 1991. Mr. Mar is
an Honorary Fellow of the Lingnan University. He joined the Board in September 2004.
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LI KWOK SING, AUBREY

aged 66, is Independent Non-executive Director of the Company. He is the Chairman of IAM Holdings (Hong
Kong) Limited, a Hong Kong based investment firm, and has over 40 years’ experience in merchant banking and
commercial banking. He is also a non-executive director of The Bank of East Asia, Limited and an independent
non-executive director of Café de Coral Holdings Limited, Kunlun Energy Company Limited, Kowloon
Development Company Limited, Pokfulam Development Company Limited and Tai Ping Carpets International
Limited. Mr. Li has a Master of Business Administration from Columbia University and a Bachelor of Science in
Civil Engineering from Brown University. He joined the Board in November 1998.
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ZHAI HAITAO

aged 47, is Independent Non-executive Director of the Company. He is the President and Partner of Primavera
Capital Group. He is also an independent director of China Everbright Water Limited, the Company’s subsidiary
listed in Singapore. He was formerly Managing Director of Goldman Sachs Asia LLC and Chief Representative of
Goldman Sachs Beijing Office. Prior to joining Goldman Sachs, Mr. Zhai worked at the International Department
of the People’s Bank of China in Beijing, and was Deputy Representative of the People’s Bank of China
Representative Office for the Americas based in New York. He holds a Master’s Degree in International Relations
from Columbia University, a Master of Business Administration Degree from New York University and a Bachelor
of Arts Degree in Economics from Peking University. He has extensive experience and knowledge in banking,
capital market and management. Mr. Zhai joined the Board in January 2011.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT &2 &2 A B

HU YANGUO

aged 49, is the Deputy General Manager of the Company. He is also the General Manager of Everbright
Environmental Protection (China) Ltd. Prior to joining the Group, he was formerly the lecturer of mathematics
of Northeast Forestry University, the General Manger of Accounting Department of Guangzhou Branch of the
China Everbright Bank and the Deputy General Manager of Sunshiny Group. He graduated from the Department
of Infrastructure of Northeast Forestry University and holds a Master of Agricultural Degree from Economic
Management Faculty of the Northeast Forestry University. Mr. Hu holds the title of Certified Public Accountant
in the PRC. He has comprehensive experience in accounting and settlement, administration management and
construction management. Mr. Hu joined the Group in April 2006.
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CHEN TAO

aged 52, is the Deputy General Manager of the Company. He is also the General Manager of Everbright
Environmental Protection Technological Development (Beijing) Ltd. and Everbright Environmental Protection
Technology Institute (Shenzhen) Ltd. Prior to joining the Group, he was formerly the lecturer and laboratory
supervisor of automation of Sichuan Light Chemistry Institute (presently known as East China University of
Science and Technology), the manager of Automation Department and the Assistant to General Manager of
Shenzhen Catic Intelligent System Co., Ltd. He graduated from the Department of Chemical Instrument and
Industrial Automation of East China Chemistry Institute (presently known as East China University of Science and
Technology) and holds a Master of Automation Degree from East China University of Science and Technology.
Mr. Chen holds the title of Certified Senior Engineer. He has comprehensive experience and knowledge in
construction management, technology development and administration management. Mr. Chen joined the
Group in April 2005.
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QIAN XIAODONG

aged 43, is the Deputy General Manager of the Company. He is also the Chief Executive Officer of China
Everbright Greentech Limited. He holds a Bachelor Degree in Heat Energy Engineering from Dalian University of
Technology and a Master of Environment Engineering Degree from Southeast University. He has comprehensive
experience and knowledge in market development of environmental protection industry, national environmental
policies and industrial trend. Mr. Qian joined the Group in July 2003.
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AN XUESONG

aged 45, is the Deputy General Manager of the Company. Mr. An is also the Executive Director and Chief
Executive Officer of China Everbright Water Limited, the Company’s subsidiary listed in Singapore. He holds
a Master of Business Administration Degree from Jinan University. Mr. An holds the title of Certified Public
Accountant in the PRC and International Internal Auditor. He has comprehensive experience in investment
management, financial management and risk management. Mr. An joined the Group in May 2002.
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POON YUEN LING

aged 48, is the Company Secretary of the Company. She is an associate member of The Hong Kong Institute
of Chartered Secretaries and The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators. She joined the Group in
April 1994, with over 20 years of experience in company secretarial affairs.
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Report of the Directors
EEERE

The directors have pleasure in submitting their annual report
together with the audited financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2015.

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS

China Everbright International Limited (the “Company”) is a
company incorporated and domiciled in Hong Kong and has its
registered office and principal place of business at Room 2703,
27th Floor, Far East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong
Kong.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The principal activities and other particulars of the subsidiaries
are set out in note 14 to the financial statements.

The analysis of the principal activities and geographical
locations of the operations of the Company and its subsidiaries
(the “Group”) during the financial year are set out in note 3 to
the financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group during the year and a
discussion on the Group’s future business development are
provided in the Chairman’s Statement and Chief Executive
Officer’s Report on pages 10 to 49 of this Annual Report. In
particular, description of principal risks and uncertainties faced
by the Group can be found in the section headed “Principal
Risks and Uncertainties” in the Chief Executive Officer’s Report
on pages 43 to 45. An analysis of the Group’s performance
during the year using key performance indicators by each
business segment can be found in pages 18 to 37 of the
Chief Executive Officer’s Report. In addition, discussions
on the Group’s environmental policies, relationships with
its key stakeholders and compliance with relevant laws and
regulations which have a significant impact on the Group are
provided in the section headed “Environmental and Social
Management” in the Chief Executive Officer’'s Report on pages
45 to 47.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The information in respect of the major customers and
suppliers of the Group respectively during the financial year is
as follows:
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FERXFRHER
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T

Percentage of
the Group’s total
HAREE NV EE 2 BN

Turnover Purchases
= X2 RAEER
The largest customer AP 11%
Five largest customers in aggregate hREPER 37%
The largest supplier BAUER 5%
Five largest suppliers in aggregate hARHEEEE 15%

At no time during the year have the directors, their associates
or any shareholder of the Company (which to the knowledge
of the directors owns more than 5% of the number of issued
shares of the Company) had any interest in these major
customers and suppliers.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

On 14 May 2015, the Company has entered into the Deposit
Services Framework Agreement with China Everbright Group
Ltd. (“China Everbright Group”). Pursuant to the Deposit
Services Framework Agreement and Loan Services Framework
Agreement, China Everbright Group will, through its associate,
China Everbright Bank Company Limited (“CE Bank”), provide
deposit, loan and related services to the Group.

(@) Pursuant to the Deposit Services Framework Agreement,
China Everbright Group shall procure CE Bank to provide
to the Group deposit services (including current and fixed
term deposit) in accordance with rules and regulations
prescribed by the People's Bank of China (“PBOC”) and/
or other relevant rules and regulations within or outside the
People’s Republic of China (“PRC”). The deposit services
to be provided by China Everbright Group shall be on
normal commercial terms and no less favourable than
the terms available to the Group from independent third
parties.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the maximum
daily closing balance of the Group’s deposits (including
interests accrued thereon) placed in CE Bank amounted to
HK$943,441,000. This amount was below the Annual Cap
of HK$1,200,000,000 for the year ended 31 December
2015 which was proposed in the announcement made by
the Company on 14 May 2015.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

(co
(b)

The

ntinued)

The Loan Services Framework Agreement shall be on a
non-exclusive basis and the Company is at liberty to obtain
loan services from other third parties. Pursuant to the
Loan Services Framework Agreement, China Everbright
Group shall procure CE Bank to provide to the Group loans
(including revolving credit facility and fixed term loan) in
accordance with rules and regulations prescribed by the
PBOC and/or other relevant rules and regulations within
or outside the PRC. The loans services to be provided by
China Everbright Group shall be on normal commercial
terms and no less favourable than the terms available to
the Group from independent third parties.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the maximum
daily closing balance of the Group’s loans (excluding loans
which do not require security over the assets of the Group)
provided by CE Bank amounted to HK$180,604,000. This
amount was below the Annual Cap of HK$1,200,000,000
for the year ended 31 December 2015 which was
proposed in the announcement made by the Company on
14 May 2015.

independent non-executive directors of the Company have

reviewed these connected transactions and confirmed that
such transactions were:

The

entered into in the ordinary and usual course of business of
the Group;

conducted either on normal commercial terms or, if
there are not sufficient comparable transactions to judge
whether they are on normal commercial terms, on terms no
less favourable to the Group than terms available to or from
independent third parties; and

in accordance with the relevant agreements governing
them on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

Company’s auditor was engaged to report to the Group’s

continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong
Kong Standard on Assurance Engagement 3000 “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical
Financial Information” and with reference to Practice Note
740 “Auditor’s Letter of Continuing Connected Transactions
under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The auditor

has

issued an unqualified letter containing their findings

and conclusions in respect of the continuing connected
transactions as disclosed by the Group in the annual report
in accordance with Rule 14A.38 of the Rules Governing the

List

ing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong

Limited (the “Listing Rules”).
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The profit of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2015
and the state of the Company’s and the Group’s affairs as at
that date are set out in the financial statements on pages 100
to 237.

RECOMMENDED DIVIDEND

An interim dividend of HK6.5 cents per share (2014: HK5.0
cents per share) was paid on 30 September 2015. The
directors now recommend the payment of a final dividend
of HK12.0 cents per share (2014: HK6.0 cents per share) in
respect of the year ended 31 December 2015.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS
Charitable donations made by the Group during the year
amounted to HK$2,153,000 (2014: HK$1,470,000).

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company
during the year are set out in note 27(c) to the financial
statements.

There were no purchases, sales or redemptions of the
Company’s listed securities by the Company or any of its
subsidiaries during the year.

DIRECTORS

The directors during the financial year were:

Executive directors

Tang Shuangning, Chairman

Liu Jun, Vice-chairman

Chen Xiaoping, Chief Executive Officer

Wang Tianyi, General Manager

Wong Kam Chung, Raymond, Chief Financial Officer
Cai Shuguang, Deputy General Manager

Independent non-executive directors
Fan Yan Hok, Philip

Mar Selwyn

Li Kwok Sing, Aubrey

Zhai Haitao
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DIRECTORS (continued)

In accordance with articles 77, 78 and 79 of the Company’s
Articles of Association, Mr. Chen Xiaoping, Mr. Fan Yan Hok,
Philip, Mr. Mar Selwyn and Mr. Li Kwok Sing, Aubrey will retire
from the board at the forthcoming annual general meeting and,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

The independent non-executive directors are appointed for a
specific term, subject to re-election. The current 4 independent
non-executive directors of the Company hold office for a term
until 31 December 2017. They are all subject to retirement
by rotation in accordance with the Company’s Articles of
Association as indicated above.

DIRECTORS OF SUBSIDIARIES

To the best knowledge of the Board and based on the
information available, other than certain directors and senior
management named in the section headed “Directors and
Senior Management” as set out on pages 82 to 87 of this
Annual Report, the persons who have served on the boards of
the subsidiaries of the Company either during the year ended
31 December 2015 or up to the date of this report included
Mr. Chang Song, Mr. Chen Dawei, Mr. Chen Dazhi, Ms. Cheng
Fong Yee, Fonda, Mr. Cheng Gang, Mr. Cui Debin, Mr. Cui
Yuan, Mr. Gao Jining, Ms. Huang Aihua, Mr. Jia Shijun, Mr.
Jiao Hai, Mr. Jin Renjie, Mr. Lee Kheng Joo, Mr. Li Guoging,
Mr. Li Shihua, Mr. Lim Yu Neng, Paul, Mr. Lin An Tai, Mr.
Lin Zheying, Mr. Lo Kam Fan, Ms. Lo Kong, Mr. Luo Junling,
Mr. Mao Li Ching, Mr. Nie Jiansheng, Mr. Qiu Bo, Mr. Shao
Qichao, Mr. Shi Zhigiang, Mr. Tao Junjie, Mr. Tao Mingiang,
Mr. Wang Wei, Mr. Wang Weidong, Mr. Wang Weidong, Mr.
Wang Yungang, Mr. Yan Bin, Ms. Yang Rufen, Mr. Yang
Shigiao, Mr. Yang Zhigiang, Mr. Yau Wing Yiu, Mr. Ye Lu, Mr.
Yeung Chi Ming, Mr. Yu Yiping, Mr. Zang Hailong, Mr. Zhang
Xiaoning, Mr. Zhang Xiaoquan, Ms. Zhang Yan, Mr. Zhang
Yunyue, Mr. Zhu Haifeng and Mr. Zhu Jie.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has an unexpired service contract which is not
determinable by the Company or any of its subsidiaries within
one year without payment of compensation, other than normal
statutory obligations.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

The directors and chief executive of the Company who held
office at 31 December 2015 had the following interests in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company,
its holding companies, subsidiaries and other associated
corporations (within the meaning of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (“SFQ”)) at that date as recorded in the register of
directors’ and chief executive’s interests and short positions
required to be kept under section 352 of the SFO:

Long position in shares of the Company
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Wi kiRt m KX R

AR IR E S R I B 52 R E AT
FEZEEREETRABERERARB LM
WEHBER R-F—AF+-A=t+—HERE
ZAAREEREETRABRZALAAR -
HiZERAR MEBARREHEAR(EER
BHRAEGE) 25 ARG RES R
PiH T

RARRIBD 22

Number of
Nature of interest shares Percentage
Name of director EEMNA EmtE 28 Bkt
(ordinary shares)
(EimmR)
Chen Xiaoping B /N Personal f& A 9,000,000 0.20%
Wong Kam Chung, Raymond =ip5 Personal & A 2,000,000 0.04%
Fan Yan Hok, Philip B Personal & A 8,140,000 0.18%
Li Kwok Sing, Aubrey TEE Personal f& A 1,000,000 0.02%

Apart from the foregoing, none of the directors and chief
executive of the Company or any of their spouses or children
under eighteen years of age has interests or short positions in
the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company,
or any of its holding companies, subsidiaries or other
associated corporations, as recorded in the register required to
be kept under section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified
to the Company pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies.

DIRECTOR’S RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the year was the Company or any of its
subsidiaries, holding companies or fellow subsidiaries, a party
to any arrangements (other than a share option scheme of a
listed subsidiary of the Company referred to below) to enable
the directors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of
shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate.

B EXFriE SN - BRARRRIBE S LB ED
FE2GMEATHFECECMARMCEHET
ARBBEZFRTIETRABRRS 2 EAESE
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER

PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS
IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

The Company has been notified of the following interests in the
Company’s issued shares at 31 December 2015 amounting to

5% or more of the ordinary shares in issue:

TERRREAM A THERD MAEBRN
PR 2 s SRR
RAREENR_T—HF+ZA E+ BB AR
RNABE BT i D BT E @AR5 %k A
EZBREET :
Long position
in ordinary
shares held
and percentage
of total
issued shares
ieca-gclvd
Capacity Nature of interest {8 RIEZ2HE
a1 EmitE BIRHBAL

Central Huijin Investment Limited mRESKREERETLA(ES]) Interest of controlled Corporate interest ~ 1,855,951,910
(“Huijin”) (BEE()R() corporation ARER Approximately
(notes (1) and (2)) ZIE DRI 41.39%

4941.39%

China Everbright Group (note (2)) RERE Interest of controlled Corporate interest ~ 1,855,951,910

(H2) corporation NAlER Approximately
KRR AR 41.39%
#741.39%

RRJ Capital Master Fund II, L.P. RRJ Capital Master Interest of controlled Corporate interest 318,360,000

(“RRJ Capital”) (note (3)) Fund I, L.P. _ corporation NIl 5 Approximately
(TRRJ Capital]) SR AR AR 7.10%
(PEE(3)) 07.10%

Notes: B aE

(1) Huijin is indirectly wholly-owned by the State Council of the People’s

Republic of China and holds 55.67% equity interest of China

Everbright Group.

(2) China Everbright Group holds 100% of the issued shares of China  (2)

Everbright Holdings Co. Ltd. (“CE Hong Kong”). CE Hong Kong
holds (1) 100% of the issued shares of Datten Investments Limited
(“Datten”) which in turn holds 55% of the issued shares of Guildford

Limited (“Guildford”); (2) 100% of the issued shares of Everbright

Investment & Management Limited (“EIM”); and (3) 45% of the issued

shares of Guildford, respectively. Out of the 1,855,951,910 ordinary
shares, 1,758,215,910 ordinary shares are held by Guildford. The

remaining 97,736,000 ordinary shares are held by EIM. Accordingly,
China Everbright Group and Huijin are deemed to be interested in

1,758,215,910 ordinary shares held by Guildford and 97,736,000

ordinary shares held by EIM.

(8) The corporate interest of RRJ Capital was attributable on account  (3)

through its wholly-owned subsidiary, Dalvey Asset Holding Limited.

According to the register kept under section 336 of the SFO, as at
31 December 2015, RRJ Capital and its associates had interests
of 318,360,000 ordinary shares (approximately 7.85% of the issued
shares of the Company before the Company allotted 430,000,000
ordinary shares to CE Hong Kong on 20 December 2013 pursuant

to a placing and subscription agreement dated 10 December 2013.

Details of the placing and subscription agreement were set out in the

Company’s announcement on 11 December 2013).

EeHPEARENBERLERMEL2ERS @ WA
AR K E55.67 %A% AE

FEAAREEFEFBRAREEERARA((ERE
7 1)100% B BTN - X AREB S BIFE (1) Datten
Investments Limited ([Datten]) 100%2 3 17A% 1D -
il Datten Bl #f & Guildford Limited ([ Guildford |)
55%EBTRG  QAARBEEEBRAA (K
ANIEEEE|)100% E E /71D ¢ & (3) Guildford
45% B BT o #£1,855,951,910 % T @Ak = -
H A1,758,215,910 f% & i A% FA Guildford 5 A : H
#297,736,000k L BAR AR S RIREEBIFH o
It BB RS E & E S AR AEGuildford FT3E B
21,758,215, 910 LM R K RIREEEAMFTE 2
97,736,000k HiBAR P HEA fEam ©

RRJ Capitalz A Al B BE T2 EHE R A
Dalvey Asset Holding Limited# £ ° & AR &R &
BHLHEKRAEIBMFEE ZELMAT - RZZE
7£¢+ HA=4+—8 ' RRJ Capital & 2 A+
£318,360,000 R B ((EARFR=ZE—=F+=
A-tBEREEHA-_Z—=6+_A+AZEER
T8 177 55 1R 't K & S AL 3 430,000,000 A% 38 A% AT 2
RNARIEBETRNDLT7.85% - BB ERRABEHE
g\;@#ﬁgT#,E—fiJr:ﬂwL—ElPJ%éZ@
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS
IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES
(continued)

Apart from the foregoing, the Company had not been notified
of any other interests by prescribed notices which had been
recorded in the register kept under section 336 of the SFO as
at 31 December 2015.

SHARE OPTIONS AND WARRANTS ISSUED

BY CHINA EVERBRIGHT WATER LIMITED,

A LISTED SUBSIDIARY OF THE COMPANY
Share options

The Company completed a reverse takeover of HanKore
Environment Tech Group Limited (“HanKore”) on 12 December
2014 (the “Completion Date”). On 15 November 2013,
HanKore (now known as China Everbright Water Limited
(“CEWL")) granted 365,086,178 share options pursuant to its
share option scheme to certain key management personnel
and employees. The exercise period for the share options
granted is from 16 November 2014 to 15 November 2023.
These share options have been fully exercised as at 31
December 2014. No share options were granted during the
years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014.

Warrants

As at 1 January 2015, the outstanding balance of the warrants
of CEWL was 263,462. During the year ended 31 December
2015, 62,030 warrants were exercised on 24 April 2015. The
remaining 201,432 warrants were not exercised and were
expired on 27 April 2015.

As at 31 December 2015, no other warrants to take up
unissued shares of CEWL were granted and no shares were
issued by virtue of the exercise of warrants to take up unissued
shares of CEWL.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the directors of the
Company as at the date of this annual report, the Company
has maintained the prescribed public float under the Listing
Rules.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY

The Company’s Articles of Association provides that every
Director shall be indemnified out of the funds of the Company
against all liabilities incurred by him in relation to the Company
in defending any proceedings, whether civil or criminal, in
which judgement is given in his favour, or in which he is
acquitted. In addition, liability insurance for Directors and
senior management of the Company is maintained by the
Company with appropriate coverage for certain legal actions
against the Directors and senior management.
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save as disclosed in the above paragraphs headed “Share
options and warrants issued by China Everbright Water
Limited, a listed subsidiary of the Company”, no equity-linked
agreements were entered into during the year and subsisted at
the end of the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

No transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance
to which the Company, or any of its holding companies,
subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party, and in which a
director of the Company had a material interest, subsisted at
the end of the year or at any time during the year.

COMPETING INTEREST

As at the date of this annual report, as far as the directors are
aware, none of the directors or their respective associates had
any interests in a business which competes or may compete,
either directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group or
any other conflicts of interests with the Group.

BANK LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS
Particulars of bank loans and other borrowings of the Group
as at 31 December 2015 are set out in note 24 to the financial
statements.

FIVE YEAR SUMMARY
A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on pages 238
and 239 of the annual report.

PROPERTIES

Particulars of the major properties of the Group are shown on
page 240 of the annual report.

RETIREMENT SCHEMES

The Company provides retirement benefits to all local
eligible employees in Hong Kong under an approved defined
contribution provident fund (the “ORSO Scheme”). The ORSO
Scheme is administered by trustees, the majority of which are
independent, with its assets held separately from those of the
Company. The ORSO Scheme is funded by contributions from
employees and employers at 5% each based on the monthly
salaries of employees. Forfeited contribution may be used to
reduce the existing level of contribution by the Company.
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RETIREMENT SCHEMES (continued)

As from 1 December 2000, the Group also operates a
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”)
under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for employees employed under the jurisdiction of
the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance and not previously
covered by the ORSO Scheme. The MPF Scheme is a defined
contribution retirement scheme administered by independent
trustees. Under the Group’s MPF Scheme, the employer and
its employees are each required to make contributions to the
scheme at 10% and 5% of the employees’ relevant income,
respectively. Employee can choose to contribute with a cap
of monthly relevant income of HK$30,000 (HK$25,000 prior to
June 2014). Contributions to the plan vest immediately.

The employees of the subsidiaries in the PRC are members of
the retirement schemes operated by the local authorities. The
subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain percentage of
their payroll to these schemes to fund the benefits. The only
obligation of the Group with respect to these schemes is the
required contributions under the schemes.

The Group’s total contributions to these schemes charged to
the consolidated income statement during the year ended 31
December 2015 amounted to HK$69,294,000.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

In accordance with the independence guidelines set out in
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules, the Board is of the view that
all independent non-executive directors are independent
and satisfy the requirements under Rule 3.13 (except that
for Mr. Fan Yan Hok, Philip under Rule 3.13(7), he had
been a non-executive director prior to his re-designation as
the independent non-executive director of the Company)
and the Company has received an annual confirmation of
independence from each of the independent non-executive
directors of the Company pursuant to the Listing Rules.

AUDITORS
KPMG will retire at the forthcoming annual general meeting and
will not seek for re-appointment.

The Board has resolved to recommend the appointment of
Ernst & Young as the new auditors of the Company following
the retirement of KPMG and such proposed appointment is
subject to the approval of the shareholders of the Company at
the forthcoming annual general meeting.

By order of the board

Tang Shuangning
Chairman

Hong Kong, 29 February 2016
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Independent Auditor’s Report
R G

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO
THE MEMBERS OF CHINA EVERBRIGHT
INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
China Everbright International Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together the “Group”) set out on pages 100 to
237, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2015, the consolidated income
statement, the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and
the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit. This
report is made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with
section 405 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY (continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation of the consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made
by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation
of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2015 and of the Group’s financial performance and
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

29 February 2016
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Consolidated Income Statement
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) &z —

F—HF T AST—ALFEONERE)

2015 2014
—E-EfF — 4
Note $°000 $'000
B ek Fr Tt
Revenue & 3 8,534,531 6,355,120
Direct costs and operating expenses BEMKANEEER (4,625,701) (3,386,560)
3,908,830 2,968,560
Other revenue H iz 4 344,605 219,163
Other income H A 5 91,431 32,321
Administrative expenses THEHR (768,400) (539,601)
Profit from operations e B 3,576,466 2,680,443
Finance costs Wi%E R 6(a) (451,759) (380,775)
Share of profit/(loss) of an associate BT % al&aF,/ (EBE) 140 (41)
Share of losses of joint ventures it EtEEE (6,046) (594)
Profit before taxation BR 75 Bl & A 6 3,118,801 2,299,033
Income tax FTiS i 7(a) (783,275) (533,990)
Profit for the year KEEFRET 2,335,526 1,765,043
Attributable to: FE(L =R
Equity shareholders of the Company RARRE 2,084,888 1,708,147
Non-controlling interests RV 250,638 61,896
Profit for the year REZ R F| 2,335,526 1,765,043
Earnings per share BB 10
Basic and diluted ERREE 46.50 cents fll  37.99 cents 1Ll

The notes on pages 108 to 237 form part of these FHHRFI108EEFER7E A LSHMERRZ
financial statements. Details of dividends payable to equity —#8{n ° BBFE AR T B EIRT T2 7R
shareholders of the Company attributable to the profit for the — ZRREFBHNHIFE27(0) °

year are set out in note 27(b).



Annual Report 2015
S lhesy 101
Consolldated Statement of Comprehensive Income
= N7
mAEZHERR
For the year ended 31 December 2015 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) & —Z—H4F+ - A =+—R I FEE (EETE)
2015 2014
—E-RF —T-NF
$°000 $'000
Fr Tt
Profit for the year REEZF 2,335,526 1,765,043
Other comprehensive income REEHMBEEA -
for the year:
Items that may be reclassified B es B2
subsequently to profit or loss: BamAX Il HE -
- Exchange differences on translation of —— 2 &I E X & B ®RE
financial statements of subsidiaries, EACENZERE
net of nil tax (EMBREHIE) (929,756) (361,274)
— Changes in fair value of -SEBEHFLANER
available-for-sale securities 22,653 129,260
— Tax effect relating to changes in fair -HEBHFLNEEY
value of available-for-sale securities ARG E (4,135) (19,113)
- Reclassification adjustment for amounts - B FIE8H KR &5
transferred to profit or loss: LEHOBETRE
— Upon disposal of available-for-sale - HEFEEFE
securities (92,711) (32,557)
— Tax effect relating to the disposal - LEFEBSHZ
of available-for-sale securities ARG E 13,907 4,883
777777777777777777777777777777777 (990,042)  (278,801)
Total comprehensive income RFEEEZEBRALEE
for the year 1,345,484 1,486,242
Attributable to: JE(EHB10 -
Equity shareholders of the Company IN/NEI i1 1,199,388 1,450,897
Non-controlling interests FEFE AR A 146,096 35,345
Total comprehensive income RNEEZHEBPALLRE
for the year 1,345,484 1,486,242
The notes on pages 108 to 237 form part of these financial FRF108B £ 52378 Z izt At Fo i HRE

statements.

Z—&bn -
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China Everbright International Limited

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e R R

At 31 December 2015 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) 7 —Z—

hFE+ZA=+—RUABKEE)

2015 2014
—E2-0f —E-EF
Note $°000 $°000 $'000 $°000
BizE Fr Fr T Fr
Non-current assets ERBEE
Investment properties REME 11(a) 166,099 172,938
Other property, plant and H‘rﬂi%% - BB
equipment 1% 11(a) 2,350,265 1,510,878
Interest in leasehold land REEEHEE
held for own use under H’EE Rz
operating leases S+ ks 11(a) 151,047 35,717
2,667,411 1,719,533
Intangible assets B EE 12 3,357,187 2,571,006
Goodwill Fﬁéii 13 1,061,891 834,845
Interest in an associate @‘%% Al 15 239,306 254,339
Interest in joint ventures BEP¥EER 16 209,161 27,289
Other financial assets HHEE 17 24,800 229,012
Other receivables, ﬁ’r&%”ﬁl%ﬁﬁ ke
deposits and prepayments JERFE 18 5,696,894 4,376,789
Gross amounts due from EUREFAHTIIENE
customers for contract work k) 19 15,822,848 12,630,020
Finance lease receivables BATREEWIA 21 19,062 20,411
Deferred tax assets BEFRIEEE 26(b) 36,483 49,455
29,135,043 22,712,699
Current assets MEEE
Inventories & 20 202,314 117,450
Debtors, other receivables, FEUER K « EAb EURIE
deposits and prepayments ReRBMATE 18 3,060,436 1,973,567
Gross amounts due from FH&ZE)E/\ZTI%D ErQL:
customers for contract work k] 19 1,546,505 1,210,723
Tax recoverable EM&@@:EIH 26(a) 4,831 34,684
Finance lease receivables MEMERKZIE 21 531 502
Pledged bank deposits BEHEBRITER 22 555,277 231,943
Deposits with bank BITER 22 164,654 824,110
Cash and cash equivalents B MREEEY 23 5,953,481 4,094,096
11,488,029 8,487,095
Current liabilities mEEaE
Interest-bearing borrowings HEEE 24
- Secured — B 1,947,620 1,348,783
- Unsecured — fE I 1,461,935 1,262,586
3,409,555 2,611,369
Creditors, other payables and ~ JEfFEREN -~ H it FIE
accrued expenses RIEFER 25 2,794,456 2,302,381
Current taxation AHTHIE 26(a) 119,295 67,660
_ 6328306 ¢ 4,981,410
Net current assets REEE TS

5,164,723

3,506,685
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

FaIIRRER

At 31 December 2015 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) R = ZE— R4 += A=+—B (JAB:1E)

2015 2014
—E-RE —ZT—-MF
Note $°00 $°000 $°000 $'000
BT T T T T
Total assets less REERRBERE
current liabilities 34,299,766 26,218,384
Non-current liabilities ERBAE
Interest-bearing borrowings FEEE 24
- Secured —BHEA 7,088,502 4,612,439
- Unsecured —EIRH 5,322,609 1,912,703
12,411,111 6,525,142
Other payables Hi R 25 43,365 15,850
Deferred tax liabilities EREHIEA S 26(0) = 2,424,749 1,834,422
14,879,225 8,375,414
NET ASSETS BEFHE 19,420,541 17,842,970
CAPITAL AND RESERVES M7 K &
Share capital R 27(c) 7,405,414 7,405,414
Reserves & 9,790,740 8,857,842
Total equity attributable 72 &)t & (G i &
to equity shareholders ek
of the Company 17,196,154 16,263,256
Non-controlling interests  JE{R A% 2,224,387 1,579,714
TOTAL EQUITY Ay k]

19,420,541 17,842,970

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on  BHE&R - —NF - A =~ + N B /& RFA %

29 February 2016.

Chen Xiaoping
BR /N
Director

EF

Wang Tianyi
FRE
Director

EF

The notes on pages 108 to 237 form part of these financial N FE108E EF237H 2 Wit AL FH K HE

statements.

Z—8btn o
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HEERBERER AR

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
GEERBER

For the year ended 31 December 2015 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) 8 —Z—RF+ - A=+—H It EE(AEEHE)

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

ARAREER.
Capital Goodwill
redemption arising on
Share Share Special _Teserve  consolidation
oaéjital Erenjjpm reseve  BAEE  ROERE
R RinafE KERIGE B EEspE
Note $000 $000 $000 $000 §000
ik T T T i T
Balance at 1 January 2014 RZZ-IF
—A—Bri&s% 448,371 6,956,973 - 70 (986)
Changes in equity for 2014: “E-MEEREY
Profit for the year KEFRH - - - - -
Other comprehensive income E2ERA - - - _ _
Total comprehensive income 2ERAEE - - - - -
Dividend approved in respect of the EREEEEZIRE
previous year \ 27 (b)) - - - - -
Transition to no-par regime on 3 March 2014 A =F—NE=A=BiEE
ZEEREHE 7)) 6957,043  (6,956973) - (70) -
Transfer to reserve fund BRZRES - - - - -
Capital contributions received by FREAMBRAN
non-wholly owned subsidiaries from FERBRMDAGL
non-controlling shareholders HEH - - - - -
Acquisition of non-controlling interests WEFERER 30 - - - - -
Acquisition of subsidiaries KEmRB AT 29(0) - - - - -
Dividend declared in respect of BERAEEZRE
the current year I £ - - - - -
Balance at 31 December 2014 R-Z-NE
TZA=T-BZER 7,405,414 - - - (986)
Balance at 1 January 2015 RZZ-0F
—A-Bz&#H 7,405,414 - - - (986)
Changes in equity for 2015: “E-REEREY):
Profit for the year KEERT o = = - -
Other comprehensive income E2ERA = o - - -
Total comprehensive income 2ENALE - - - - -
Dividend approved in respect of BHELERCRE
the previous year 27 (b)) - - - - -
Dilution of interest in a subsidiary MELAERESE - - - - -
Transfer to reserve fund BRZREAES - - = = =
Capital contributions received by F2EMBARR
non-wholly owned subsidlaries from FERRRUEAGEZ
non-controlling shareholders HE% - - - - -
Dividend paid to non-controlling shareholders {7 372 MR & = = = - -
Dividend declared n respect of BERAEEZRE
the current year R A1 [ - - - - -
Balance at 31 December 2015 R-F-2%
TZA=T-Rz&H 7,405,414 - - - (986)

The notes on pages 108 to 237 form part of these financial &N F108E B F237 A 2 MisE ALt HEHE
statements. Z 8B o
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Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

ARARREL
Property
revaluation Non-
reserve Exchange Fair value Other Reserve Retained controlling Total
nEsH Reserve reserve reserves Fund rofits Total interests +§%ity
; EXfE OrERGE AR BB RERA aE  rRREs EagE
$'000 $000 $000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

i i i i i i i i i

90,612 956,109 (26,051) - 283,010 4,666,206 13,374,264 404,857 13,779,121

. . - - 1703147 1708147 6189 1765043
- 3% 82473 - - - (50250) (26551  (278,801)

- (334,723) 82,473 - - 1708147 1,450,897 36,345 1,486,242

- - - - - (04186)  (224/180) - (224,189)

- . . - 126460 (126460) - - -

- - - - - 86,127 86,127

- 19,972 - ,181) - - 17791 (131428 (113637)
- - - 1868676 - - 1868676  1,184813 3,053,489
- - - - - (24186)  (224/180) - (224,189)

90,612 641,358 56,422 1,866,495 409,470 5794671 16,263,256 1,679,714 17,842,970
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HEERBERER AR

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
GEEERER

For the year ended 31 December 2015 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) 8 —Z—RF+ - A=+—H It EE(AEEHE)

2015 2014
—E-1fF it S
Note $'000 $000
(b Fr T
Operating activities REED
Profit before taxation BRERIBF 3,118,801 2,299,033
Adjustments for: I
Depreciation e B(c) 90,547 79,481
Amortisation of intangible assets B EESH 6(c) 92,138 34,674
Amortisation of interest in leasehold land held BELEHERERRZ
for own use under operating leases AE iy 6(c) 1,204 1,256
Finance costs BER 6(a) 451,759 380,775
Dividend income REHA 4 (3,319) (10,477)
Interest income FMEWA 4 (51,977) (62,437)
Share of (profit)/loss of an associate B & 2 R
(BH),/ B (140) 41
Share of losses of joint ventures ik atXEiE 6,046 594
Gain on sale of listed securities HE EmEH W 5 (92,711) (32,557)
Net loss on sale of other property, HEEMYE  BER
plant and equipment FEFEE 5 1,280 236
Effect of foreign exchange rates changes EXZFHo 8B (147,484) (26,036)
Changes in working capital: EEELEE
Increase in inventories FEE (89,572) (36,466)
Increase in debtors, other receivables, FEMER SR~ E AU TRIE -
deposits and prepayments Be RN HKIEEM (1,735,295) (915,072)
Increase in gross amounts due from EWEFAKHIIEFE
customers for contract work k)i (3,315,959) (2,127,256)
Increase in creditors, other payables and JERBRT - EtEATIEK
accrued expenses FEZHE I 301,440 402,581
Cash used in operations REmBACRE (1,373,242) (11,630)
Interest received BUHE 51,977 62,437
People’s Republic of China (‘PRC”) BERFEARLNE
income tax paid (THE ) FriEH (217,210) (173,341)
Net cash used in operating activities KL EBHMBFELFE (1,538,475) (122,534)
Investing activities REZH
Payment for purchase of other property, EEHMYE BER
plant and equipment BAAe N (660,729) (216,220)
Payment for additions of intangible assets BREEVEE TR (421,260) (869,846)
Increase in non-current portion of prepayments  $&N38 {4 2B FEENEAER () (131,268) (243,997)
Payment for capital contributions to joint ventures [ TEA& &M Y HIE (185,844) (27,877)
Payment for subscription of an investment fund ~ REREES 2 HE = (15,503)
Net cash (paid for)/acquired from acquisition of W BT B A E2 (FTf),/
subsidiaries IS e 38 29(e) (2,163,337) 262,690
Proceeds from sale of listed securities HE EHESMEHIR 223,186 91,091
Proceeds from sale of other property, HEEMYE -« BEK
plant and equipment RIEBETEIA 4,700 535
Dividend received B E 3,319 10,477
Repayment from finance lease receivables BERERKGIRER 491 491
Repayment from loan receivable EWERER = 49,860
Decrease in deposits with bank RITEFR D 655,177 519,483

Net cash used in investing activities BEESMBE RS RE (2,675,565) (438,816)
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
FEHRERER

For the year ended 31 December 2015 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) & —Z—H4F+ - A =+—R I FEE (EETE)

2015 2014
—E-FHE —“E—NF
Note $°000 $000
BisE Fr T
Financing activities %ﬁ%{iﬁﬂ
Proceeds from new bank loans MBERTESERIE 10,598,754 3,208,668
Repayment of bank loans and notes payable EBEIRIT %ﬂfﬁ‘ﬁmﬁ%ﬁ (3,806,215) (2,021,772)
Capital contributions received by ¥z 5%%
non-wholly owned subsidiaries from 22 Hxﬂxﬁﬂﬁzﬂyﬁﬁ
non-controlling shareholders B 137,756 86,127
Payment for acquisition of non-controlling WEEFE R 2 2
interest = (113,637)
Proceeds from issuance of shares by FEENBRR
a non-wholly owned subsidiary to [RISER R AR R AT
non-controlling shareholders W7 {5 508 659,763 -
Increase in pledged bank deposits BRI EFIEM (332,632) (47,489)
Interest paid ERFE (457,818) (380,775)
Dividend paid to non-controlling shareholders EH?H@%H&?HQE (4,968) -
Dividend paid to equity shareholders of BERARARRERE
the Company (560,464) (448,372)
Settlement of cross currency swap REQWRZ N EKIEEH (30,644) -
Net cash generated from REEHMEL RS FHE
financing activities 6,203,532 282,750
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and  H&RHEEEY
cash equivalents #wm/ O ) Fa 1,989,492 (278,600)
Cash and cash equivalents at R—R—BzRek
1 January ReEED 4,094,096 4,425,734
Effect of foreign exchange EREH F2
rates changes (130,107) (53,038)
Cash and cash equivalents at R+=ZA=+—H
31 December ZBRERBEEEY 23 5,953,481 4,094,096

The notes on pages 108 to 237 form part of these financial #NF108E E5F237H Z it AL ST B HRE
statements. 21 o
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RS ABERARAR

Notes to the Financial Statements
B SRR T

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (& 5

RSN - A BAEEETE)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a)

(b)

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), which collective
term includes all applicable individual Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”), accounting principles generally accepted
in Hong Kong and the requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. These financial statements also
comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”). A
summary of the significant accounting policies adopted
by the Group is set out below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised
HKFRSs that are first effective or available for
early adoption for the current accounting period of
the Group and the Company. Note 1(c) provides
information on any changes in accounting policies
resulting from initial application of these developments
to the extent that they are relevant to the Group for the
current and prior accounting periods reflected in these
financial statements.

Basis of preparation of the financial statements
The consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2015 comprise the Company and
its subsidiaries and the Group’s interest in an associate
and joint ventures.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
financial statements is the historical cost basis except
that the following assets and liabilities are stated at
their fair value as explained in the accounting policies
set out below:

— investment property (see note 1(i));

— financial instruments classified as available-for-sale
securities (see note 1(g)); and

— derivative financial instruments (see note 1(h)).

1 E
(a)

(b)

ZEFTHOR
BTEH
HEFBHRREZHREE SRS HE
2B ERCEBMBREER) - &%
RREBEMAERNEBNCEEM R
SEA) (FAEGFHEAD ERE &
BARGHRAURTBRAGHIZHRE
MmamE o I - WEMHHRERITEBR
BEMARZABRAAES LMARA
(TETRAUDFERNEESRE - £F
BATERA 2 T2 BERBREHIIMT -

BB AREMT E T REE
R ZKEBIMEHREER) - BEERIB
ANEE R AR B KA 5T AR R IR A
Al IR - RAHIM RBAE ST
HM > ARVIXER Ll AL E SR
ZHE]I RGBT B R E 2R ) M
BYEHREEE VBB RERILE
BIRSRERT o BEE R SR Y5 ®EM
FF1(C)A °

RS eSS
HE-T-AF+-A=t+—HILEE
2HEAMBRERQEARARAKEA
RAIRASRE B AR RA B0 RS -

AN BRRAER A EELERESL
AL - ETIEERABHUARA
SRR (R T Xt R )BRIN -

— REWME(RMEG)

- DRR

SEEEE Y SRTA(RNE
1(9) + &

— PTAESRIE(RMFEIN)) °



Notes to the Financial Statements
Br SRR =T

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (k& 5

RSN - A SRAERETE)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(b) Basis of preparation of the financial statements

(c)

(continued)

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect
the application of policies and reported amounts of
assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and various other factors that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results
of which form the basis of making the judgements
about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results
may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the
estimate is revised if the revision affects only that
period, or in the period of the revision and future
periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

Judgements made by management in the application
of HKFRSs that have significant effect on the
financial statements and major sources of estimation
uncertainty are discussed in note 2.

Changes in accounting policies

The HKICPA has issued the following amendments
to HKFRSs that are first effective for the current
accounting period of the Group:

— Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012
Cycle

— Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2011-2013
Cycle

The Group has not applied any new standard or
interpretation that is not yet effective for the current
accounting period. Impacts of the adoption of the
amended HKFRSs are discussed below:

1 F
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EEFTRRE)

(b) ABHREBRERE (5F)

(c)

RAENETECBEMBRELER) 25/
BHRAFTEREERBIFELHE - A5t ER
R MZEHE - B RBRREFER
RZERAMMBHRZEE - AF - KA
MAXEHE - ZFHhTRBEARE
BREBTABRLREBERENZERR
ThEaEZERAMEARMESL - M
BRERBKEEEEBEAKERL IR
BHEEREEZREERELHEZ
HE - ERBFHEBRINEETHF -

AEBFRE ARG RAERRREL
FHE - AETZEBNELEESH  AIF
e A 2R E R - WA
EAEHTEEHRAREAE - BB
SEHAFTE BN E A RAKRBARER -

EEERERRACEEMBEHRELER) KT
ERY S B MEABEAZEZHIE
AREHHERRTEEEZETESR
B R EE2 o

B BERZ2E
BEGMAGRMT TIHEEMBR
EEAZBF] - ARAKRENA S H
B B R AR

- BEYBREEN —F—FTFZ—
F— —iF FR 2 F R

- BRUBHEEER —F——FFE—
F—=FAHFREUE

AR ER B3 45 e PR AE R AN & A HIR R
Rz AT RN RE - RAKERTE
B BHRELN 2 EFARIT ¢
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B SRR T

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (& SAERRSN - FTE S EIABEE)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 1
(c) Changes in accounting policies (continued)

EEEFTEUR ()
(c) ERtBE 228 (#&)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle
and 2011-2013 Cycle

These two cycles of annual improvements contain
amendments to nine standards with consequential
amendments to other standards. Among them,
HKAS 24, Related party disclosures has been
amended to expand the definition of a “related party”
to include a management entity that provides key
management personnel services to the reporting
entity, and to require the disclosure of the amounts
incurred for obtaining the key management personnel
services provided by the management entity. These
amendments do not have an impact on the Group’s
related party disclosures as the Group does not
obtain key management personnel services from
management entities.

(d) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The
Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the
entity and has the ability to affect those returns through
its power over the entity. When assessing whether the
Group has power, only substantive rights (held by the
Group and other parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that
control commences until the date that control ceases.
Intra-group balances, transactions and cash flows
and any unrealised profits arising from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in full in preparing the
consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses
resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated
in the same way as unrealised gains but only to the
extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a
subsidiary not attributable directly or indirectly to the
Company, and in respect of which the Group has not
agreed any additional terms with the holders of those
interests which would result in the Group as a whole
having a contractual obligation in respect of those
interests that meets the definition of a financial liability.
For each business combination, the Group can elect
to measure any non-controlling interests either at fair
value or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate
share of the subsidiary’s net identifiable assets.

BB IR R — FE—FFS - F
——FRR - E——F R F—=1F
JEAEZ F R L

WA EEBR FESGERBENEER 2
BE]  UREMAER ZHEEE - K
o BEDEERE 245 [FHBHA LK
FICIER BT EUBTEBMALTIZE
EZEREEEEREETZEEEABRE T
MR ER ERER  WRTAREER
REGEEEBREZFIEZEEAER
BMELEZSHE  HRAEBEWENRE
BERBESTIEEEABRE  WELE
1ERT$ AR B 2 BB A 3% B8 W0 £B AE (7]

ye-
B 2 0 R S B

MEARAAEEEN 2 ER - EAK
BEHREX—BEREHIFPERAR
EENZEEN  URGERENITE
ZEOHRTEE AKENABEZER
RS EHEASEEESHERN
B REZREEEN(EANREREM
ATHEE) -

KRB AR ZRE & 8 EHIFSE B MR
BHARGEMBHRERA - EEEHIE
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HEBREREAREBEARBR RS
FEAZETAARERBNERNERES
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PR KREARRRZRZMELEZK
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B °
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HLAKEER L HZSREELTE
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Notes to the Financial Statements
Br SRR =T

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (k58 =ERESN + FiE SRS E)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 1 FEEEHBER (&)
(d) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests (d) B DR RIEERERSE)

(continued)

Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position within
equity, separately from equity attributable to the
equity shareholders of the Company. Non-controlling
interests in the results of the Group are presented on
the face of the consolidated income statement and
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
as an allocation of the total profit or loss and total
comprehensive income for the year between non-
controlling interests and the equity shareholders of
the Company. Loans from holders of non-controlling
interests and other contractual obligations towards
these holders are presented as financial liabilities in
the consolidated statement of financial position in
accordance with notes 1(q) or (r) depending on the
nature of the liability.

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that
do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as
equity transactions, whereby adjustments are made
to the amounts of controlling and non-controlling
interests within consolidated equity to reflect the
change in relative interests, but no adjustments are
made to goodwill and no gain or loss is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in
that subsidiary, with a resulting gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained in
that former subsidiary at the date when control is lost
is recognised at fair value and this amount is regarded
as the fair value on initial recognition of a financial asset
(see note 1(g)) or, when appropriate, the cost on initial
recognition of an investment in an associate or joint
venture (see note 1(g)).

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
an investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less
any impairment losses (see note 1(m)), unless the
investment is classified as held for sale.

FEBRESSESAMBARAR 2 ER
BEEYF EARAKRRZEGERDH
20 - MFERBEEMEEEXE 2%
S EEFEBRERMEEEEBRER
FOMERA D RIIFE AR 2 AR R
%ZF?E’J@WT@@%E%E&IEH&A“%E
DB o IR EAZEREEAM
BRAZERBAZANELE  R&EEHM
BARFAREH () sk (r) (R T BRI
HEmE)SHBRE -

AREE BTGB A B R Z*:@J(
@K%i% B EHERER 5 &?’:ﬁ%
P2 45 B M SRR Hﬂ%ﬁﬁi%ﬁﬂ% fE
HE - LARRAMEER ZEE  ELE
HREEEHRE - T SEREMRE -

EARBKRENB LR 2 EHIER - 8

SEFLHEEHMBLAR Z2MERA
R MASEBRRBEZRPEIA
B o MAREEBEE BEZAH BT
DARREZ EAES SRR BERA
R MUEESBERERRMBEERE R
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B SRR T

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (& SAERRSN - FTE S EIABEE)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 1 EZ&&TEE (£)

(e) Associates and joint ventures (e) H?%’D\T&A%ﬂéﬁ
An associate is an entity in which the Group or N DSV SE NN T—H«X\%“Tﬁgq
Company has significant influence, but not control BEZBEALE N (EW IS
or joint control, over its management, including THIEEERE) 2 AR - ’7%/,\57@&&
participation in the financial and operating policy ETER ZIRTE ©
decisions.
A joint venture is an arrangement whereby the Group /—\M&\%F‘%—Iﬁf%ﬁ b3l NESE
or Company and other parties contractually agree to N REMETOLTBREBESARED Zi%
share control of the arrangement, and have rights to THZEGIE REZRHEZREER
the net assets of the arrangement. BHRER °
An investment in an associate or a joint venture is REE QR A ECEZRERERER
accounted for in the consolidated financial statements EANREEMEHREAN - ENEHEKRE
under the equity method, unless it is classified as held ERIMEFERERIRIN - REBEER
for sale. Under the equity method, the investment is % BEREFERNABEAR - W5k
initially recorded at cost, adjusted for any excess of AEBEFEWIEE AR R] PR & EFE
the Group’s share of the acquisition-date fair values RWERBH AR BBBEEKSN 2
of the investee’s identifiable net assets over the cost (B)EHAE - BEKRERRBRERAS
of the investment (if any). Thereafter, the investment is Bt E AR EEFERKEERZ
adjusted for the post acquisition change in the Group’s BEHRENBETEBERENEEBBE
share of the investee’s net assets and any impairment HRAE(RMFE1O R M) » RUEE B H
loss relating to the investment (see notes 1(f) and (m)). BEKAEZE  AEEMAGHEER
Any acquisition-date excess over cost, the Group’s AIRAFE 2 WBBBEEEREMRE
share of the post-acquisition, post-tax results of the EERESRGEERRER  MAKE
investees and any impairment losses for the year are FriE iR E ARl 2 B ERE At
recognised in the consolidated income statement, WARIRERE 2 EEmRER ©

whereas the Group’s share of the post-acquisition
post-tax items of the investees’ other comprehensive
income is recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interest EAEES B EBRBRENEEAR
in the associate or the joint venture, the Group’s REE m%Zﬁé B BIASE 2R
interest is reduced to nil and recognition of further HERET - Iﬂ/,\ﬁﬁﬁ“;{]ﬁi\{mfgﬂﬁ M
losses is discontinued except to the extent that the IR B TR Z IR E A R R EEE S
Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations HEBREFIRRZFERE R MEL IR
or made payments on behalf of the investee. For this BIBRSN - BEWET S - AEE 2 #H AR
purpose, the Group’s interest is the carrying amount of BREDSZEMEZHRERAE  ERER
the investment under the equity method together with BRAEBRBE NG REERE R
the Group’s long-term interests that in substance form BRI R AR o

part of the Group’s net investment in the associate or
the joint venture.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (k& 5

RSN - A SRAERETE)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(e) Associates and joint ventures (continued)

(f)

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from
transactions between the Group and its associate
and joint ventures are eliminated to the extent of
the Group’s interest in the investee, except where
unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment
of the asset transferred, in which case they are
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

When the Group ceases to have significant influence
over an associate or joint control over a joint venture,
it is accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest
in that investee, with a resulting gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained in that
former investee at the date when significant influence
or joint control is lost is recognised at fair value and
this amount is regarded as the fair value on initial
recognition of a financial asset (see note 1(g)).

Goodwill
Goodwill represents the excess of:

(i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interest in the acquiree and the fair value of the
Group’s previously held equity interest in the
acquiree; over

(i) the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable
assets and liabilities measured as at the acquisition
date.

When (ii) is greater than (i), then this excess is
recognised immediately in profit or loss as a gain on a
bargain purchase.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment
losses. Goodwill arising on a business combination is
allocated to each cash-generating unit, or groups of
cash-generating units, that is expected to benefit from
the synergies of the combination and is tested annually
for impairment (see note 1(m)).

On disposal of a cash-generating unit during the
year, any attributable amount of purchased goodwill
is included in the calculation of the profit or loss on
disposal.
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EEERTEOR (4)
(9) HfttRAEHRE

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 1
(g) Other investments in equity securities

The Group’s and the Company’s policies for
investments in equity securities, other than
investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures, are as follows:

Investments in equity securities are initially stated at
fair value, which is their transaction price unless it
is determined that the fair value at initial recognition
differs from the transaction price and that fair value is
evidenced by a quoted price in an active market for
an identical asset or liability or based on a valuation
technique that uses only data from observable
markets. Cost includes attributable transaction costs,
except where indicated otherwise below. These
investments are subsequently accounted for as
follows, depending on their classification:

Investments in securities held for trading are classified
as current assets. Any attributable transaction costs
are recognised in profit or loss as incurred. At the end
of each reporting period the fair value is remeasured,
with any resultant gain or loss being recognised in
profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit
or loss does not include any dividends or interest
earned on these investments as these are recognised
in accordance with the policies set out in notes 1(w)(vi)
and (iv).

Investments in securities which do not fall into any of
the above categories are classified as available-for-
sale securities. At the end of each reporting period
the fair value is remeasured, with any resultant gain or
loss being recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated separately in equity in the fair value
reserve. As an exception to this, investments in equity
securities that do not have a quoted price in an active
market for an identical instrument and whose fair value
cannot otherwise be reliably measured are recognised
in the statement of financial position at cost less
impairment losses (see note 1(m)). Dividend income
from equity securities is recognised in profit or loss in
accordance with the policies set out in note 1(w)(vi).
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(9)

(h)

U]

1)

Other investments in equity securities (continued)
When the investments are derecognised or impaired
(see note 1(m)), the cumulative gain or loss recognised
in equity is reclassified to profit or loss. Investments
are recognised/derecognised on the date the Group
commits to purchase/sell the investments.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are recognised initially
at fair value. At the end of each reporting period
the fair value is remeasured. The gain or loss on
remeasurement to fair value is recognised immediately
in profit or loss.

Investment property

Investment properties are land and/or buildings which
are owned or held under a leasehold interest (see
note 1(l)) to earn rental income and/or for capital
appreciation.

Investment properties are stated at fair value. Any
gain or loss arising from a change in fair value or from
the retirement or disposal of an investment property
is recognised in profit or loss. Rental income from
investment properties is accounted for as described in
note 1(w)(v).

Other property, plant and equipment

Other property, plant and equipment are stated at cost
less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses
(see note 1(m)).

The cost of self-constructed items of property, plant
and equipment includes the cost of materials, direct
labour, the initial estimate, where relevant, of the costs
of dismantling and removing the items and restoring
the site on which they are located, and an appropriate
proportion of production overheads and borrowing
costs (see note 1(z2)).
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(j) Other property, plant and equipment (continued)

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal
of an item of property, plant and equipment are
determined as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the item and are
recognised in profit or loss on the date of retirement or
disposal.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items
of property, plant and equipment, less their estimated
residual value, if any, using the straight-line method
over their estimated useful lives as follows:

— Buildings situated on leasehold land are depreciated
over the shorter of the unexpired term of lease and
their estimated useful lives, from 20 to 50 years after
the date of completion.

— Plant and machinery 5 to 25 years

— Leasehold improvements 10 years or over the

remaining term of the
lease, if shorter

— Furniture and fixtures 510 10 years

— Motor vehicles, electronic 3 to 12 years
equipment and others

No depreciation is provided in respect of construction
in progress.

Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the cost of the
item is allocated on a reasonable basis between the
parts and each part is depreciated separately. Both the
useful life of an asset and its residual value, if any, are
reviewed annually.
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(k) Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

U]

The intangible assets are stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation and impairment losses (see
note 1(m)).

Amortisation of intangible assets is charged to profit or
loss on a straight-line basis over the assets’ estimated
useful lives. The following intangible assets are
amortised from the date they are available for use and
their estimated useful lives are as follows:

Environmental energy project
operating rights 20 to 30 years
— Environmental water project
operating rights 20 to 32 years

— Greentech project operating
rights 20 to 30 years

— Patents and trademarks 10 to 20 years

— Computer software 5 years

— Backlog contracts 3 years
Both the period and method of amortisation are
reviewed annually.

Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series
of transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group
determines that the arrangement conveys a right to
use a specific asset or assets for an agreed period of
time in return for a payment or a series of payments.
Such a determination is made based on an evaluation
of the substance of the arrangement and is regardless
of whether the arrangement takes the legal form of a
lease.
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 1
() Leased assets (continued)
(i) Classification of assets leased to the Group

=B & ER ()
n HEEEE)
() AEBEHAEEZTE

Assets that are held by the Group under leases
which transfer to the Group substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership are classified as
being held under finance leases. Leases which do
not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the Group are classified as
operating leases, except that land held for own use
under an operating lease, the fair value of which
cannot be measured separately from the fair value
of a building situated thereon at the inception of
the lease, is accounted for as being held under a
finance lease, unless the building is also clearly
held under an operating lease. For these purposes,
the inception of the lease is the time that the lease
was first entered into by the Group, or taken over
from the previous lessee.

(i) Assets acquired under finance leases

Where the Group acquires the use of assets
under finance leases, the amounts representing
the fair value of the leased asset, or, if lower, the
present value of the minimum lease payments, of
such assets are included in property, plant and
equipment and the corresponding liabilities, net
of finance charges, are recorded as obligations
under finance leases. Depreciation is provided at
rates which write off the cost of the assets over the
term of the relevant lease or, where it is likely that
the Group will obtain ownership of the asset, the
life of the asset, as set out in note 1(j). Impairment
losses are accounted for in accordance with the
accounting policy as set out in note 1(m). Finance
charges implicit in the lease payments are charged
to profit or loss over the period of the leases so
as to produce an approximately constant periodic
rate of charge on the remaining balance of the
obligations for each accounting period.
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
() Leased assets (continued)
(iii) Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets under
operating leases, payments made under the leases
are charged to profit or loss in equal instalments
over the accounting periods covered by the lease
term, except where an alternative basis is more
representative of the pattern of benefits to be
derived from the leased asset. Lease incentives
received are recognised in profit or loss as an
integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
made.

The cost of acquiring land held under an operating
lease is amortised on a straight-line basis over the
period of the lease term except where the property
is classified as an investment property (see note

1(0)).

(m) Impairment of assets

(1)

Impairment of investments in equity securities
and other receivables

Investments in equity securities and other current
and non-current receivables that are stated at cost
or amortised cost or are classified as available-
for-sale securities are reviewed at the end of
each reporting period to determine whether there
is objective evidence of impairment. Objective
evidence of impairment includes observable data
that comes to the attention of the Group about one
or more of the following loss events:

significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

— a breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;

— it becoming probable that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

— significant changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that
have an adverse effect on the debtor; and

— a significant or prolonged decline in the fair
value of an investment in an equity instrument
below its cost.
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(m) Impairment of assets (continued)

(1)

Impairment of investments in equity securities
and other receivables (continued)

If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss is
determined and recognised as follows:

For investment in associates and joint ventures
accounted for under the equity method in
the consolidated financial statements (see
note 1(e)), the impairment loss is measured
by comparing the recoverable amount of
the investment with its carrying amount in
accordance with note 1(mj(ii). The impairment
loss is reversed if there has been a favourable
change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount in accordance with note
1 (m)(ii).

For unquoted equity securities carried at
cost, the impairment loss is measured as the
difference between the carrying amount of the
financial asset and the estimated future cash
flows, discounted at the current market rate
of return for a similar financial asset where the
effect of discounting is material. Impairment
losses for equity securities carried at cost are
not reversed.
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(m) Impairment of assets (continued)
(i) Impairment of investments in equity securities
and other receivables (continued)

For trade and other current receivables and
other financial assets carried at amortised
cost, the impairment loss is measured as
the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows, discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e.
the effective interest rate computed at initial
recognition of these assets), where the effect
of discounting is material. This assessment
is made collectively where these financial
assets share similar risk characteristics, such
as similar past due status, and have not been
individually assessed as impaired. Future cash
flows for financial assets which are assessed
for impairment collectively are based on
historical loss experience for assets with credit
risk characteristics similar to the collective

group.

If in a subsequent period the amount of an
impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be linked objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment loss was recognised, the
impairment loss is reversed through profit or
loss. A reversal of an impairment loss shall not
result in the asset’s carrying amount exceeding
that which would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised in prior
years.
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 1
(m) Impairment of assets (continued)
(i) Impairment of investments in equity securities

and other receivables (continued)

— For available-for-sale securities, the cumulative
loss that has been recognised in the fair
value reserve is reclassified to profit or loss.
The amount of the cumulative loss that is
recognised in profit or loss is the difference
between the acquisition cost (net of any
principal repayment and amortisation) and
current fair value, less any impairment loss on
that asset previously recognised in profit or
loss.

Impairment losses recognised in profit or loss
in respect of available-for-sale equity securities
are not reversed through profit or loss. Any
subsequent increase in the fair value of such
assets is recognised in other comprehensive
income.

Impairment losses are written off against the
corresponding assets directly, except for
impairment losses recognised in respect of
debtors included within debtors, other receivables,
deposits and prepayments, whose recovery is
considered doubtful but not remote. In this case,
the impairment losses for doubtful debts are
recorded using an allowance account. When the
Group is satisfied that recovery is remote, the
amount considered irrecoverable is written off
against debtors directly and any amounts held
in the allowance account relating to that debt
are reversed. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously charged to the allowance account are
reversed against the allowance account. Other
changes in the allowance account and subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off
directly are recognised in profit or loss.

(%)

REEESME ERAAER
BABERZTMNRABEEES
BRERZE - HIEZRAERZ
2 EEAWERA(BEHBRE
MASERREN) BRETAR
ﬁﬁ%Z%ﬁ BERAIDER
HERAMZEERR 2 TR
18 o

ERERRERZFERAF?
FEBEIRY TR EIERR - 2
%%ﬁ?ﬂﬁﬁZEﬂﬁm&E
Hip 2w AR

MIEBBRSEHERNEETERMK
5 ﬁ@@ FEREWRRR - H At fE
WA - e B FIAS Z R
%M'AEETMW@%%Mﬁ
£t M FEFEN - BRI EER
ZREBEBETECHEENEETE
BMEE o EHBRT - RIEERZ#E
%ﬁ%u%ﬁ%%ﬁ 1ief N £ [ e
REW B EEER 2 EEBIRTE
& ARE R TN E s EEEE
BRI TN - MAERGRK
TRBRESRE ENSEE W
BmE e fid 2 ATAt AR ER 2 IR
Hig il - I 5 BE SRR 5B AR
B - B ARz E b &) ) H 1% Y @l
JE AT E M 2 SRR N B s R

=7
s °©



Notes to the Financial Statements
Br SRR =T

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (k& 5

RSN - A SRAERETE)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(m) Impairment of assets (continued)

(1)

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period to
identify indications that the following assets may
be impaired or, except in the case of goodwill, an
impairment loss previously recognised no longer
exists or may have decreased:

— property, plant and equipment (other than
properties carried at revalued amounts);

— pre-paid interests in leasehold land classified
as being held under an operating lease;

— intangible assets;
— goodwill;
— interest in an associate and joint ventures; and

— investments in subsidiaries in the Company’s
statement of financial position.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. In addition,
for goodwill and intangible assets that are not
yet available for use, the recoverable amount is
estimated annually whether or not there is any
indication of impairment.

— Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the
greater of its fair value less costs of disposal
and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. Where an asset does
not generate cash inflows largely independent
of those from other assets, the recoverable
amount is determined for the smallest
group of assets that generates cash inflows
independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit).
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(m) Impairment of assets (continued)
(i) Impairment of other assets (continued)

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or
loss if the carrying amount of an asset, or
the cash-generating unit to which it belongs,
exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment
losses recognised in respect of cash-
generating units are allocated first to reduce
the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated
to the cash-generating unit (or group of units)
and then, to reduce the carrying amount of
the other assets in the unit (or group of units)
on a pro rata basis, except that the carrying
value of an asset will not be reduced below its
individual fair value less costs of disposal (if
measurable) or value in use (if determinable).

Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than goodwill, an
impairment loss is reversed if there has been
a favourable change in the estimates used
to determine the recoverable amount. An
impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not
reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to
the asset’s carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss
been recognised in prior years. Reversals
of impairment losses are credited to profit
or loss in the year in which the reversals are
recognised.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
Br SRR =T

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (k58 =ERESN + FiE SRS E)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(m) Impairment of assets (continued)

(iii) Interim financial reporting and impairment
Under the Listing Rules, the Group is required to
prepare an interim financial report in compliance
with HKAS 34, Interim financial reporting, in
respect of the first six months of the financial
year. At the end of the interim period, the Group
applies the same impairment testing, recognition,
and reversal criteria as it would at the end of the
financial year (see notes 1(m)(i) and (ii)).

Impairment losses recognised in an interim period
in respect of goodwill, available-for-sale equity
securities and unquoted equity securities carried at
cost are not reversed in a subsequent period. This
is the case even if no loss, or a smaller loss, would
have been recognised had the impairment been
assessed only at the end of the financial year to
which the interim period relates. Consequently, if
the fair value of an available-for-sale equity security
increases in the remainder of the annual period,
or in any other period subsequently, the increase
is recognised in other comprehensive income and
not profit or loss.

(n) Inventories

Inventories, mainly comprise construction materials,
biomass fuel, spare parts and consumables used in
the repairs and maintenance of the environmental
energy projects, environmental water projects and
greentech projects, are carried at cost less provision
for obsolescence (if any). Cost is calculated using the
weighted average cost formula. When inventories are
consumed, the carrying amount of those inventories is
recognised as an expense in profit or loss.
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(o)

(p)

Construction contracts

Construction contracts are contracts specifically
negotiated with a customer for the construction of an
asset or a group of assets, where the customer is able
to specify the major structural elements of the design.
The accounting policy for contract revenue is set out
in note 1(w)(i). When the outcome of a construction
contract can be estimated reliably, contract costs are
recognised as an expense by reference to the stage of
completion of the contract at the end of the reporting
period. When it is probable that total contract costs
will exceed total contract revenue, the expected loss
is recognised as an expense immediately. When
the outcome of a construction contract cannot be
estimated reliably, contract costs are recognised as an
expense in the period in which they are incurred.

Construction contracts in progress at the end of the
reporting period are recorded at the net amount of
costs incurred plus recognised profit less recognised
losses and progress billings, and are presented in the
statement of financial position as the “Gross amounts
due from customers for contract work” (as an asset)
or the “Gross amounts due to customers for contract
work” (as a liability), as applicable. Progress billings not
yet paid by the customer are included under “Debtors,
other receivables, deposits and prepayments”.

Debtors, other receivables, deposits and
prepayments

Debtors, other receivables, deposits and prepayments
are initially recognised at fair value and thereafter
stated at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less allowance for impairment of doubtful
debts (see note 1(m)), except where the receivables
are interest-free loans made to related parties without
any fixed repayment terms or the effect of discounting
would be immaterial. In such cases, the receivables
are stated at cost less allowance for impairment of
doubtful debts.
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(g) Interest-bearing borrowings

(r)

(s)

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially
at fair value less attributable transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, interest-bearing
borrowings are stated at amortised cost with any
difference between the amount initially recognised and
redemption value being recognised in profit or loss
over the period of the borrowings, together with any
interest and fees payable, using the effective interest
method.

Creditors, other payables and accrued expenses
Creditors, other payables and accrued expenses are
initially recognised at fair value. Except for financial
guarantee liabilities measured in accordance with note
1(v)(i), creditors, other payables and accrued expenses
are subsequently stated at amortised cost unless the
effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which
case they are stated at cost.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank
and on hand, demand deposits with banks and
other financial institutions, and short-term, highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, having been
within three months of maturity at acquisition. Bank
overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form
an integral part of the Group’s cash management
are also included as a component of cash and cash
equivalents for the purpose of the consolidated cash
flow statement.
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(t) Employee benefits

(i) Short-term employee benefits and contributions

to defined contribution retirement plans
Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution retirement
plans and the cost of non-monetary benefits
are accrued in the year in which the associated
services are rendered by employees. Where
payment or settlement is deferred and the effect
would be material, these amounts are stated at
their present values.

The Company provides retirement benefits to all
local eligible employees in Hong Kong under an
approved defined contribution provident fund
(the “ORSO Scheme”). The ORSO Scheme is
administered by trustees, the majority of which
are independent, with its assets held separately
from those of the Company. The ORSO Scheme
is funded by contributions from employees and
employers at 5% each based on the monthly
salaries of employees. Forfeited contribution may
be used to reduce the existing level of contribution
by the Company.

As from 1 December 2000, the Group also
operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
(the “MPF Scheme”) under the Hong Kong
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance
for employees employed under the jurisdiction of
the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance and not
previously covered by the ORSO Scheme. The
MPF Scheme is a defined contribution retirement
scheme administered by independent trustees.
Under the Group’s MPF Scheme, the employer
and its employees are each required to make
contributions to the scheme at 10% and 5% of
the employees’ relevant income, respectively.
Employee can choose to contribute with a cap
of monthly relevant income of $30,000 ($25,000
prior to June 2014). Contributions to the plan vest
immediately.
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

®

(u)

Employee benefits (continued)

(i) Short-term employee benefits and contributions to
defined contribution retirement plans (continued)
The employees of the subsidiaries in the PRC are
members of the retirement schemes operated by
the local authorities. The subsidiaries are required
to contribute a certain percentage of their payroll
to these schemes to fund the benefits. The only
obligation of the Group with respect to these
schemes is the required contributions under the
schemes.

Termination benefits
Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier
of when the Group can no longer withdraw the
offer of those benefits and when it recognises
restructuring costs involving the payment of
termination benefits.

(1)

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities.
Current tax and movements in deferred tax assets
and liabilities are recognised in profit or loss except
to the extent that they relate to items recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in
which case the relevant amounts of tax are recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the
taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted
or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of
previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being
the differences between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes
and their tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from
unused tax losses and unused tax credits.
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(u) Income tax (continued)

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which the asset can be utilised, are
recognised. Future taxable profits that may support
the recognition of deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences include those that will
arise from the reversal of existing taxable temporary
differences, provided those differences relate to the
same taxation authority and the same taxable entity,
and are expected to reverse either in the same period
as the expected reversal of the deductible temporary
difference or in periods into which a tax loss arising
from the deferred tax asset can be carried back
or forward. The same criteria are adopted when
determining whether existing taxable temporary
differences support the recognition of deferred tax
assets arising from unused tax losses and credits,
that is, those differences are taken into account if they
relate to the same taxation authority and the same
taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in a period,
or periods, in which the tax loss or credit can be
utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax
assets and liabilities are those temporary differences
arising from goodwill not deductible for tax purposes,
the initial recognition of assets or liabilities that affect
neither accounting nor taxable profit (provided they are
not part of a business combination), and temporary
differences relating to investments in subsidiaries to
the extent that, in the case of taxable differences,
the Group controls the timing of the reversal and it
is probable that the differences will not reverse in
the foreseeable future, or in the case of deductible
differences, unless it is probable that they will reverse
in the future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured
based on the expected manner of realisation or
settlement of the carrying amount of the assets and
liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period. Deferred
tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 1 FEEEHBER (&)
(u) Income tax (continued) (u) FRBRL(ZE)

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and is reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available to allow the related tax
benefit to be utilised. Any such reduction is reversed
to the extent that it becomes probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from
each other and are not offset. Current tax assets are
offset against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax
assets against deferred tax liabilities, if the Company
or the Group has the legally enforceable right to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the
following additional conditions are met:

— in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the
Company or the Group intends either to settle on
a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously; or

— in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities,
if they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either:

— the same taxable entity; or

— different taxable entities, which, in each future
period in which significant amounts of deferred
tax liabilities or assets are expected to be
settled or recovered, intend to realise the
current tax assets and settle the current tax
liabilities on a net basis or realise and settle
simultaneously.
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 1 FE&ETBER (£&)
(v) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and (v) CEHZHBER BERIBEE
contingent liabilities

(i) Financial guarantees issued () B BEER

Financial guarantees are contracts that require
the issuer (i.e. the guarantor) to make specified
payments to reimburse the beneficiary of the
guarantee (the “holder”) for a loss the holder incurs
because a specified debtor fails to make payment
when due in accordance with the terms of a debt
instrument.

Where the Group issues a financial guarantee, the
fair value of the guarantee is initially recognised as
deferred income within creditors, other payables
and accrued expenses. The fair value of financial
guarantees issued at the time of issuance is
determined by reference to fees charged in an
arm’s length transaction for similar services, when
such information is obtainable, or is otherwise
estimated by reference to interest rate differentials,
by comparing the actual rates charged by
lenders when the guarantee is made available
with the estimated rates that lenders would have
charged, had the guarantees not been available,
where reliable estimates of such information can
be made. Where consideration is received or
receivable for the issuance of the guarantee, the
consideration is recognised in accordance with
the Group’s policies applicable to that category of
asset. Where no such consideration is received or
receivable, an immediate expense is recognised in
profit or loss on initial recognition of any deferred
income.
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(v) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and
contingent liabilities (continued)

(1)

(1)

Financial guarantees issued (continued)

The amount of the guarantee initially recognised
as deferred income is amortised in profit or loss
over the term of the guarantee as income from
financial guarantees issued. In addition, provisions
are recognised in accordance with note 1(v)(ii) if
and when (i) it becomes probable that the holder
of the guarantee will call upon the Group under
the guarantee, and (ii) the amount of that claim
on the Group is expected to exceed the amount
currently carried in creditors, other payables and
accrued expenses in respect of that guarantee i.e.
the amount initially recognised, less accumulated
amortisation.

Other provisions and contingent liabilities
Provisions are recognised for other liabilities of
uncertain timing or amount when the Group or the
Company has a legal or constructive obligation
arising as a result of a past event, it is probable that
an outflow of economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be
made. Where the time value of money is material,
provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required, or the amount
cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is
disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote. Possible obligations, whose existence
will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future events are
also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (& 5

RSN - A BAEEETE)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(w) Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable. Provided it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Group and the revenue and costs, if applicable, can
be measured reliably, revenue is recognised in profit or
loss as follows:

(1)

(1)

Revenue from construction contracts

When the outcome of a construction contract
can be estimated reliably, contract revenue
and expenses are recognised in profit or loss
in proportion to the stage of completion of the
contract.

The stage of completion is assessed by reference
to surveyors of work performed. When the
outcome of a construction contract cannot be
estimated reliably, contract revenue is recognised
only to the extent of contract costs incurred that
are likely to be recoverable. An expected loss on a
contract is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Revenue from service concession arrangement
Revenue relating to construction services under
a service concession arrangement is recognised
based on the stage of completion of the work
performed, consistent with the Group’s accounting
policy on recognising revenue from construction
contracts (see note 1(w)(i)). Operation or service
revenue is recognised in the period in which
services are provided by the Group. When the
Group provides more than one service in a
service concession arrangement the consideration
received is allocated by reference to the relative fair
values of the services delivered.

1
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RSN - A SRAERETE)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(w) Revenue recognition (continued)
(iii) Revenue from environmental energy project,

environmental water project and greentech
project operation services

Revenue from environmental energy project,
environmental water project and greentech project
operation services are recognised when the related
services are rendered.

(iv) Finance income

(v)

Finance income is recognised as it accrues using
the effective interest method.

Rental income from operating leases

Rental income receivable under operating leases
is recognised in profit or loss in equal instalments
over the periods covered by the lease term, except
where an alternative basis is more representative
of the pattern of benefits to be derived from the
use of leased asset. Lease incentives granted are
recognised in profit or loss as an integral part of the
aggregate net lease payments receivable.

(vi) Dividends

Dividend income from unlisted investments is
recognised when the shareholder’s right to receive
payment is established.

Dividend income from listed investments is
recognised when the share price of the investment
goes ex-dividend.

EEE

Annual Report 2015
—T-hEFR

135

1 F2EFHR#E)
(w) WEFRR(E)

(iii)

(iv)

v)

(vi)

KERIRGEITEE ~ RIRKFEE
RARERRER 2 ELRE Kz
KERRERER - RRKFIERB

MBRERABR ZES
ARG RER

AR 75 e

BIERA
MBWARBERNERABEE
R o

HEHEELZHE WA

RELLHERK CESBARE

‘E\/HHF?V\]L/{ %EEiE?EI § K
CBmER— EERKRER
fﬂi?éFFﬁFEZf‘J Zﬁ‘tﬁwﬁé

Sh o B2 MEEBMRAB KT
RRAET KI8T RS
315 -

R
FEMHRE ZBEWARBERFEL
WO ER 5% SRR 2 RE R R FERR, ©

EHREZ R
BRI -

BRARKE ZIE



136

China Everbright International Limited

RS ABERARAR

Notes to the Financial Statements
B SRR T

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (& 5

RSN - A BAEEETE)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(w) Revenue recognition (continued)

(x)

(v)

(vi) Government grants

Government grants are recognised in the
statement of financial position initially when there
is reasonable assurance that they will be received
and that the Group will comply with the conditions
attaching to them. Grants that compensate the
Group for expenses incurred are recognised as
income in profit or loss on a systematic basis in the
same periods in which the expenses are incurred.
Grants that compensate the Group for the cost of
an asset are recognised initially as deferred income
and amortised to profit or loss on a straight-line
basis over the useful life of the asset.

Repairs and maintenance
Expenditures on major overhaul, repair and
maintenance are charged to profit or loss as incurred.

Translation of foreign currencies

Items included in the financial statements of each of
the Group’s entities are measured using the currency
of the primary economic environment in which the
entity operates (“functional currency”). The financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars, which
is both the Company’s presentation currency and
functional currency.

Foreign currency transactions during the year are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at
the foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of the
reporting period. Exchange gains and losses are
recognised in profit or loss.

1
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (k& 5

RSN - A SRAERETE)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(y)

(2)

Translation of foreign currencies (continued)
Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling
at the transaction dates. Non-monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that are
stated at fair value are translated using the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair value was
measured.

The results of foreign operations are translated
into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates
approximating the foreign exchange rates ruling
at the dates of the transactions. Statement of
financial position items, including goodwill arising on
consolidation of foreign operations acquired on or after
1 January 2005, are translated into Hong Kong dollars
at the closing foreign exchange rates at the end of the
reporting period. The resulting exchange differences
are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated separately in equity in the exchange
reserve. Goodwill arising on consolidation of a foreign
operation acquired before 1 January 2005 is translated
at the foreign exchange rate that applied at the date of
acquisition of the foreign operation.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative
amount of the exchange differences relating to that
foreign operation is reclassified from equity to profit or
loss when the profit or loss on disposal is recognised.

Borrowing costs

Borrowings costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of an asset
which necessarily takes a substantial period of time to
get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as
part of the cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs
are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

1
(v)

(2)
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (& SAERRSN - FTE S EIABEE)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(z) Borrowing costs (continued)

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of
the cost of a qualifying asset commences when
expenditure for the asset is being incurred, borrowing
costs are being incurred and activities that are
necessary to prepare the asset for its intended use or
sale are in progress. Capitalisation of borrowing costs
is suspended or ceases when substantially all the
activities necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for
its intended use or sale are interrupted or complete.

(aa) Related parties
(@) A person, or a close member of that person’s
family, is related to the Group if that person:

() has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel
of the Group or the Group’s parent.

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

() The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to
the others).

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of
a member of a group of which the other entity
is a member).

(i) Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the third
entity.

1
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 1 FZE@&&HIEE (&)

(aa) Related parties (continued) (aa) BAEE A £ (42)
(o) An entity is related to the Group if any of the (o) fHTFE NI EMMGHE - XEER
following conditions applies: (continued) HAREE B @ - ()

(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan (v) ZEERRHENTASEES
for the benefit of employees of either the Group SAEEFGERES 2R S8k
or an entity related to the Group. Biz@AErE -

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a (vi) ZEREX(@)IPAHEA 2 AT
person identified in (a). Hil sk F R o

(vi) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant (vii) R@() T bl EEBEAXN

influence over the entity or is a member of the jJZ/\i kR E (S

g} th*‘ﬁ

m R A ¢
)
?ﬁ‘\’%

key management personnel of the entity (or of RENZEEEERA
a parent of the entity). B o
(viil The entity, or any member of a Group of (viii) MR E kAR E B & A AR
which it is a part, provides key management FEEBABRB 2 EREEFR
personnel services to the Group or to the BEE 2 EMKE AT e
Group’s parent.
Close members of the family of a person are those RALTZEBRREKERTBRAIZEZ
family members who may be expected to influence, or }\j:,\u%‘%‘%?i XS KEKE X%
be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the ATHEHZERBROTZEZREKE °
entity.
(ab) Segment reporting (ab) &=
Operating segments, and the amounts of each %\%B&ﬁﬁfxﬁﬁﬁiﬁﬁ & DEIE
segment item reported in the financial statements, E T DREBERSEERTAEEE
are identified from the financial information provided HEKEEME S RAGHERIEmMEH
regularly to the Group’s most senior executive RETAEEERREEREABZHBE
management for the purposes of allocating resources BmfEE o
to, and assessing the performance of, the Group’s
various lines of business and geographical locations.
Individually material operating segments are not MU mREMS - B EEEES LD
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the BIREEH MO EBESBEBEUKL
segments have similar economic characteristics and BERBAREERERBUE  £E12
are similar in respect of the nature of products and FlEdE  BFREASER - DHEMS
services, the nature of production processes, the type RERBARAZFAREERRENLES
or class of customers, the methods used to distribute FEFECIBIBRIN c WB s WIEBE
the products or provide the services, and the nature of EEEDBHERREA Lt KD

the regulatory environment. Operating segments which B BIRTARE 23R ©
are not individually material may be aggregated if they
share a majority of these criteria.
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2 ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(a) Critical accounting judgements in applying the
Group’s accounting policies
In the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies, management has made the following
accounting judgements:

Service concession arrangements

The Group entered into Build-Operate-Transfer
(“BOT”), Transfer-Operate-Transfer (“TOT”) and Build-
Operate-Own (“BOQ”) arrangements in respect of its
environmental energy projects, environmental water
projects and greentech projects.

The Group concluded that all the BOT and TOT
arrangements and certain BOO arrangements are
service concession arrangements under HK(IFRIC) 12,
because the local government controls and regulates
the services that the Group must provide with the
infrastructure at a pre-determined service charge. In
respect of BOT and TOT arrangements, upon expiry
of concession right agreement, the infrastructure
has to be transferred to the local government at nil
consideration. Infrastructure for BOO arrangements is
used in the service concession arrangements for its
entire or substantial useful life.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (k58 =ERESN + FiE SRS E)

2 ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND ESTIMATES

(continued)

(b) Sources of estimation uncertainty
Notes 11(c), 13 and 28 contain information about the
assumptions and their risk factors relating to valuation
of investment properties, goodwill impairment and
financial instruments. Other key sources of estimation
uncertainty are as follows:

(1)

(1)

Construction contracts

As explained in policy notes 1(o) and 1(w)(i),
revenue and profit recognition on an incompleted
project is dependent on estimating the final
outcome of the construction contract, as
well as the work done to date. Based on the
Group’s recent experience and the nature of the
construction activity undertaken by the Group, the
Group makes estimates of the point at which it
considers the work is sufficiently advanced such
that the costs to complete and revenue can be
reliably estimated. As a result, until this point is
reached, the “Gross amounts due from customers
for contract work” as disclosed in note 19 will
not include profit which the Group may eventually
realise from the work done to date. In addition,
actual outcomes in terms of revenue or costs
may be higher or lower than estimated at the end
of the reporting period, which would affect the
revenue and profit recognised in future years as an
adjustment to the amounts recorded to date.

Impairment losses for bad and doubtful debts
The Group estimates impairment losses for bad
and doubtful debts resulting from the inability of
the customers to make the required payments.
The Group bases the estimates on the ageing
of the receivables, customer credit-worthiness,
and historical write-off experience. If the financial
conditions of customers were to deteriorate, actual
write-offs would be higher than estimated.
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2 ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(continued)
(b) Sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)
(iii) Impairment losses on goodwill

As explained in policy note 1(f), goodwill has to be
allocated to a cash-generating unit or to a group of
cash-generating units that are expected to benefit
from the synergies of the combination for the
purpose of impairment assessment, which requires
significant judgement. The Group determined the
Group of cash-generating units to which goodwill
was allocated reflected the lowest level at which
goodwill was monitored for internal reporting
and was not larger than an operating segment in
accordance with HKAS 36, Impairment of assets.

(iv) Other impairment losses

If circumstances indicate that the carrying values
of investments in subsidiaries, associate, joint
ventures, other property, plant and equipment,
interest in leasehold land held for own use under
operating leases, intangible assets and other
financial assets may not be recoverable, these
assets may be considered impaired, and an
impairment loss may be recognised in accordance
with HKAS 36, Impairment of assets. The carrying
amounts of these assets are reviewed periodically
in order to assess whether the recoverable
amounts have declined below the carrying
amounts. These assets are tested for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that their recorded carrying amounts
may not be recoverable. When such a decline
has occurred, the carrying amount is reduced to
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is
the greater of the fair value less costs of disposal
and the value in use. It is difficult to estimate
precisely fair value because quoted market prices
for the Group’s assets are not readily available. In
determining the value in use, expected cash flows
generated by the asset are discounted to their
present value, which requires significant judgement
relating to revenue and amount of operating costs.
The Group uses all readily available information
in determining an amount that is a reasonable
approximation of recoverable amount, including
estimates based on reasonable and supportable
assumptions and projections of revenue and
amount of operating costs.
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2 ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND ESTIMATES 2
(continued)
(b) Sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

SE B REHE ()

(b) EREEHRAEEM 2GH(F)

(v) Income taxes

Determining income tax provisions involves
judgement on the future tax treatment of certain
transactions. The Group carefully evaluates tax
implications of transactions and tax provisions
are set up accordingly. The tax treatment of
such transactions is reconsidered periodically to
take into account all changes in tax legislations.
Deferred tax assets are recognised for temporary
deductible differences. As those deferred tax
assets can only be recognised to the extent that
it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which the unused tax credits can
be utilised, management’s judgement is required
to assess the probability of future taxable profits.
Management reassess these estimates at the end
of each reporting period. Additional deferred tax
assets are recognised if it becomes probable that
future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax
asset to be recovered.

3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(a) Revenue

The principal activities of the Group are construction,
environmental energy project operation (waste-to-
energy power plants, methane-to-energy power
plants, sludge treatment and disposal project and food
waste treatment projects), environmental water project
operation (waste-water treatment plants, reusable
water treatment plants and waste-water source
heat pump projects), greentech project operation
(biomass integrated utilisation projects, industrial
solid waste and hazardous waste treatment projects,
photovoltaic energy projects and wind power projects),
environmental technology, construction management,
manufacturing and sales of equipment, property
investments and investment holding.
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3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 3 Wk DEME (&)
(continued)
(a) Revenue (continued) (a) W& (&)

Revenue represents the revenue from environmental
energy project, environmental water project and
greentech project construction services, revenue from
environmental energy project, environmental water
project and greentech project operation services,
finance income, rental income and revenue from other
construction services. The amount of each significant
category of revenue recognised during the year is as
follows:

WHBERBRRERER - RRKHK
BHAMERERRER ZEERGKE
RERRERER  RRKFIARB KR

BIRRIAR ZEE RS W -

51 %5 W

A HeWARREEAMTRRE 2K
@ FARERNSHERRSHEAIN

gEmT

2015 2014
—E-hHF —E-HFE
$°000 $’000
T Tt
(restated —
see note 3(b))
(B —
SHFE3(b))
Revenue from environmental energy RIRAEIRTE B 2iE RS
project construction services 3,715,228 2,810,542
Revenue from environmental water IRIR/KFETE B SRS W
project construction services 591,890 112,079
Revenue from greentech project 4@ IRIRTE B B IR s
construction services 608,731 704,835
Revenue from environmental energy IRIRBEIRIE B &< RS e
project operation services 880,281 762,399
Revenue from environmental water IRIR/KFETE B B E RIS W
project operation services 755,365 627,960
Revenue from greentech project 4 EIRIRTE BB A RGN
operation services 549,260 374,362
Finance income B M 1,292,672 954,513
Gross rentals from investment KEYFEH B
properties 6,138 4,825
Revenue from other construction HiTRERSEZIE
services 134,966 3,605
8,534,531 6,355,120
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3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 3
(continued)

(a) Revenue (continued)

Woak Koy BR i (&)

(a) Wz (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group has
transactions with one (2014: one) local government
authority in the PRC which individually exceeded 10%
of the Group’s revenues. The revenue from this PRC
local government authority during the year ended 31
December 2015 amounted to $961,001,000 (2014:
$649,622,000).

The aggregated revenues from environmental
energy project construction and operation services,
environmental water project construction and
operation services, greentech project construction and
operation services and finance income derived from
local government authorities in the PRC amounted to
$8,183,491,000 (2014: $5,797,030,000) for the year
ended 31 December 2015. The revenues are included
in “Environmental energy project construction and
operation”, “Environmental water project construction
and operation” and “Greentech project construction
and operation” segments as disclosed in note 3(b) to
the financial statements. Details of concentrations of
credit risk arising from these customers are set out in
note 28(a).

(b) Segment reporting

The Group manages its business by divisions,
which are organised by business lines. In a manner
consistent with the way in which information is
reported internally to the Group’s most senior
executive management for the purposes of resource
allocation and performance assessment, the Group
has presented the following five reportable segments.
No operating segments have been aggregated to form
the following reportable segments.

(b)

HEZZ A +-A=+—HLHF
B AEBEE—E(ZE—HFE : —@)
FREEMRTEEETRS  BERS
EAREERRBEI0% - HE-_ZT—HE
+ZA=+—HILEFE K ELlPEH
B b R T B 2 U &= 4 961,001,000
— TP : 649,622,0007T) °

HE-_Z—aAE+-_A=+—8BItF
[E - REFHEHETH#EEIRRER
HEZ2ERBERBEKE  BRKEE
BERENELERB KT  HBRKRE
BEEMELRE KD RITEKAR
%4 /5 8,183,491,000 L ( — & — P4 4 :
5,797,030,0007T) ° BB UK z=ET A 3R
REREBZRERES DI - [IRIERK
BEBREREE DR [ ERRE
BRENES DI (FRMBHRERM T
3b) - BZEREFHR2EREER
%2 FEIBE I FE28(a) ©

DEEHE

AEBEZEBEKRBRREI D RZED
BB ANIAE IR - 3R A A EBEL B IR
ERERBFEMALAEESRSEEREZ
BERZ—ETN AREE2HRT T5I
TEBETHREDE - AKREAES HHE
MEENE - NERTIIETHREDE
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3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(continued)
(b) Segment reporting (continued)

Environmental energy project construction
and operation: this segment engages in the
construction and operation of waste-to-energy
power plants, methane-to-energy power plants,
sludge treatment and disposal project and food
waste treatment projects to generate revenue from
construction services, revenue from operation
services as well as finance income.

Environmental water project construction
and operation: this segment engages in the
construction, upgrade and operation of waste-
water treatment plants, reusable water treatment
plants, surface water treatment plant and waste-
water source heat pump projects to generate
revenue from construction services, revenue from
operation services as well as finance income.

Greentech project construction and operation:
this segment engages in the construction and
operation of biomass integrated utilisation
projects, industrial solid waste and hazardous
waste treatment projects, photovoltaic energy
projects and wind power projects to generate
revenue from construction services, revenue from
operation services as well as finance income.

Environmental technology and construction
management: this segment engages in the
conduct of environmental protection technology
research projects, the provision of construction
management services and manufacturing of
environmental protection project equipment to
generate revenue from construction services.

Property investment: this segment engages in
the leasing of office premises to generate rental
income and to gain from the capital appreciation of
the properties’ values in the long term.

(b) 2 EB3RE (&)

%%mﬁﬁﬁkﬁ&LM'%ﬁﬁ
7 B0 iE iR LR IREEMR

BREER /HEEEEJ}?&EIE\E&
BN RERIER - ARINEER
Bl - EEREW R R BERA -

RIRKBIEERERESE  LEK
DEBEBEE  MENEESKE
B FKEAEER - #HRKE
BB MSKREAREL - AR
EIRIS e ~ B R W as R B S
N

HMERREBREREE LXK
DHEBRBEENELCENMELGEN
BB I%I%%BF}%FEE
H CHRBEBRBEREANEE

» ABRER R E AR A M aR E%Hﬁ

i‘kﬂﬁl 5 MBI o

RABMBERIREER : WEBDI
FBETRERBMAZEER  2H
TEEERBAEERREL X
B ABEE TR ARSI RS -

MERE  WEB DX EREE
AEEMN - UEEAESKA » AR
RYEBEZREEANEES BRI
&
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3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(continued)
(b) Segment reporting (continued)

3 W ko EmE (&)

(b) DEFHE(4E)

The Group redefined its business divisions during
the current year to align with its organisational
structure for the purpose of managing its strategic
direction. Accordingly, for the presentation of segment
information, industrial solid waste and hazardous
waste treatment projects, previously included in
“Environmental energy project construction and
operation” segment, have been reclassified to
“Greentech project construction and operation”
segment. The comparative segment information has
been reclassified to conform to the current year’s
presentation.

(i) Segment results, assets and liabilities
For the purposes of assessing segment
performance and allocating resources between
segments, the Group’s senior executive
management monitors the results, assets and
liabilities attributable to each reportable segment
on the following bases:

Segment assets include all tangible assets,
intangible assets, goodwill, interest in an associate
and joint ventures, deferred tax assets and current
assets with the exception of investments in other
financial assets, intercompany receivables and
other corporate assets. Segment liabilities include
current taxation, deferred tax liabilities, creditors,
other payables and accrued expenses attributable
to the activities of the individual segments and
borrowings managed directly by the segments,
with the exception of intercompany payables.

RAFE  AEEREHABER &
MAEETER S WEERKER
BE 7 - Eut - o BERZZ2®mM
5 REIAIRRERABRENRE
LI T RBEEMNEEREREEE
OBz [MERFBAREEREZ D
Mo BEIMILBEHDEHNDE -
IREAFREZ2HH -

]

() PEF#E - BEERAE
LD BRI G R BREERD
Ems  AREZESEERER T
JIREERZEATREDIZE
B BERAE:

DHMEEBRMBENEE - Y
BE BE BEQARRAELRE
o BEHBEEERRDEE -
HEABREREMMBEEEZRE
SEARFRZ BUHIERE M
XEE - DMEEEEESEMERND
WMZEBESRESE 2 ANHHEA
EERIRB(E - BARRRK - HE
NHREBEREFEREBSED BE
EERZEE HEITEREEAR
B AT HUR -
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3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(continued)
(b) Segment reporting (continued)

(i) Segment results, assets and liabilities (continued)
Revenue and expenses are allocated to the
reportable segments with reference to revenue
generated by those segments and the expenses
incurred by those segments or which otherwise
arise from the depreciation or amortisation
of assets attributable to those segments.
However, other than reporting inter-segment
sales of equipment and provision of construction
management services, assistance provided by one
segment to another, including technical know-
how, is not measured.

The measure used for reporting segment profit
is “EBITDA” i.e. “earnings before interest, taxes,
depreciation and amortisation”. To arrive at
EBITDA, the Group’s earnings are further adjusted
for items not specifically attributed to individual
segments, such as directors’ and auditors’
remuneration and other head office or corporate
administration costs.

In addition to receiving segment information
concerning EBITDA, management is provided with
segment information concerning revenue (including
inter-segment sales and revenue from construction
management services), interest expense from
borrowings managed directly by the segments,
depreciation and amortisation and additions to
non-current segment assets used by the segments
in their operations.

3

Yoz

4

D EBERE (#)

(b) D EBEHE (&

(i

DELRE BEREEE)

Wa kRAXTI2ERTRE D BA
ROz ERMEEZRAXKE R
DEZEEMES ZITEEHM
DEEEMOE - A - BR|ED
MECRBEHERRER 2 TIEEE
RN K—DERZ— 2 #BiEH
Z B (BREERMB M) LA
HER -

AR#BEDHBRAFMZEXRRANAE
[EBITDA] - B [BR A & ~ BiIE -
WERBEHMAR] - BTEH
EBITDA @ A"N&E B 2 Z 78 5t AR
SERERSH2EE (flan: EFR
MBS & M 4A N Al ek AT
B AN ) {EE— % -

BRI ABMEBITDAZ » & &E #
S BEERETEREAB TSR
ZoEER: WE(BREEART
MZHEREKRBTRREERS 2
DEEIWE) - ROMEXRERZE
ENEXHREDBELRAER
ZHEMBAMEEZTE BEK
EE o
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REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 38 WEEkDEmME (&)

(continued)

(b) Segment reporting (continued) (b) 2 EBI®RE (&)

(i) Segment results, assets and liabilities (continued) () HEb#E BEREBEE)
Information regarding the Group’s reportable BHE_Z—HFR-_ZT—NF+=
segments as provided to the Group’s most A=+—HIEFE  AEERER
senior executive management for the purposes of DI RS 203 IR LS [ A & E &
resource allocation and assessment of segment SEREEREZATHRSEDIATER
performance for the years ended 31 December N
2015 and 2014 is set out below.

Environmental energy ~ Environmental water Greentech project  Environmental technology
project construction — project construction and construction and construction
and operation operation and operation management
ERUEES RRIBEE BREERER BRIKR Property investment Total
BERES BithEs BiREe TEEE UEE £
2015 14 215 2014 215 014 2015 2014 215 014 2015 14
Z%-1f -“I-0F Z%-BF C5-0F ZR-BEF CT-MF C3-1F “E-MF C%-Bf CR-MF Z8-BE CTME
§1000 $000 $000 §000 $000 §000 $000 $000 $000 $000 §1000 $000
v i i i n i i i in r v r
(restated) [restated]
(E8) (&%)
Revenue from extermal customers — RESNEEPUE 54003712 4201662 1815150 1,050,754 1,177,905 1094274 ~ 134966 3,605 6,138 4825 8534531 6,395,120
Inter-segment revene el - - - - - - 04312 936378 - - 00432 936,373
Reportable seqment revenue BFRE2AHNE 5400872 4201662 1815450 1050754 1477905 1094274 1,039218 939978 6,138 4805 19438843 7291493
Reportable segment profi EFiEL A TR
(EBITDA) (EBITDA) 2,608,308 2033257 795,985 570800 ~ 467,546 378430 514810 616392 5,144 4299 14382513 3,603,178
Intest income from bank deposits T IEMA 0085 12607 3400 1770 - 5905 2377 10”8 364 - - %768 205%
Interest expense ezt 190,114 1783% = 114890  721% = 35855 23637 2648 37918 - - 366,207 312206
Depreciation and amortisation TEREH 10,195 8726 T2 24238 12901 51200 24668  272% - - 11951 111517
Addtions to other property, plant ~ EEEHNE  BER
and equipment, interest in FE FEEERE
leasshold lend held forownuse ~ #{FEEZEELH
under operating leases, intangble %%+ EFEER
assets and non-curentportion of -~ BB 35088
prepayments 3 121,018 14348 © 619,999 249034 12366897 1,138,778 ~ 76672 55261 - - 2184581 1457421
Addiions to non-current porion of -~ EEEfEUFER
offer recgivables and deposts REREUEF
and gross amounts dug from ATk EES
custormers for contract work pE 4,488,836 3430263 2,639,613 2936060 261435 13798 - - - - 1,319,884 6,389,621
Reportable segment assets BPRE/HTEE  18MT21 14230753 13694024 0863862 5,006,350 3263283 1,893505 1207200 « 168691 173,140 39,179,781 28,738,244
Reportable segment liabilities 6,170,657 4554243 6,285,038 3074963 1,912449 963781 1,028,264 1,000338 8,441 8,292 15,404,744 9601617
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3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 3 W=
(continued)

(b) Segment reporting (continued)

Ko Bhi & (&)

(b) 'z}ﬁrﬁiﬁ%(f\)

(i) Reconciliation of reportable segment revenue, BFHRES S W BF - BER
profit, assets and liabilities BEHE
2015 2014
—E-0fF —T-NF
$°000 $'000
Fx Tt
Revenue Wz
Reportable segment revenue AT HmE DM E 9,438,843 7,291,493
Elimination of inter-segment revenue  ##45 ZpRUkzs (904,312) (936,373)
Consolidated revenue ek 8,534,531 6,355,120
Profit Z R
Reportable segment profit BETHmEDEEF 4,382,513 3,603,178
Elimination of inter-segment profits oI EAaRN (598,935) (733,511)
Reportable segment profit derived KEXREBINABEEZ
from the Group’s external customers 7B ¥ #&EH & F 3,783,578 2,869,667
Depreciation and amortisation res i (183,889) (115,411)
Finance costs HM%ER (451,759) (380,775)
Unallocated head office and ROBBRAFI &
corporate income TERA 103,314 43,106
Unallocated head office and AOBBRATIR
corporate expenses PERE (132,443) (117,554)
Consolidated profit before taxation REBRB AT & 3,118,801 2,299,033
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3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 3 WHEEDEHRE (&)
(continued)
(b) Segment reporting (continued) (b) D ERE (&)
(i) Reconciliation of reportable segment revenue, (i) BT#HESEH Wz BF - BER
profit, assets and liabilities (continued) BEZHAR(E)
2015 2014
—E-hF —E-HF
$°000 $°000
T Tt
Assets BE
Reportable segment assets BYREDEEE 39,179,781 28,738,244
Non-current other financial assets IEmBE M IS EE 24,800 229,012
Unallocated head office and AOBLENT &
corporate assets TEEE 1,418,491 2,232,538
Consolidated total assets REBERRE 40,623,072 31,199,794
Liabilities BfE
Reportable segment liabilities ATHREDILEE 15,404,744 9,601,617
Unallocated head office and FOBBEANT R
corporate liabilities tEEE 5,797,787 3,755,207
Consolidated total liabilities e aEes 21,202,531 13,356,824
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3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 3
(continued)
(b) Segment reporting (continued)

(iii) Geographic information

(b) DTS (&)
(iii) Hb & E#Y

The following table sets out information about
the geographical location of (i) the Group’s
revenue from external customers, (ii) the Group’s
investment properties, other property, plant and
equipment, interest in leasehold land held for
own use under operating leases and intangible
assets and (i) the Group’s non-current portion of
other receivables, deposits and prepayments and
non-current portion of gross amounts due from
customers for contract work. The geographical
location of customers is based on the location
at which the services were provided. The
geographical location of the assets is based on
the physical location of the asset, in the case of
investment properties, other property, plant and
equipment and interest in leasehold land held for
own use under operating leases, and the location
of the operation to which they are allocated,
in the case of other receivables, deposits and
prepayments, intangible assets and gross amounts
due from customers for contract work.

TRENBRANAEEREINAE
PzWas  iAKEZREDE
Hibx - BERRE  RELE
HERIFERACHEL WD R E
B E R (i) A & B 2 B b & KK
B Be RENRIEZ IR H
REWEFPEHNTRERIBLE I
BB 2 PREEIR - B PP
BERGREEBIHE D c BEEME
WEEEEBERAELH(ARED
X HtWE - BEERERRE
REHERIFERCHELER
ME) » AR R ZEZ Pt
(AR AR EUYRIA - e RIAN K
BEBREERBREFANIRE
FEBEME)ED -

Investment properties, other
property, plant and equipment

and interest in
leasehold land held for
own use under operating

Non-current portion of
other receivables, deposits
and prepayments and
gross amounts due from

leases and intangible assets customers for contract work

REME - Qe
Revenue from iz - BEREEN &4 RENTER
external customers RECLHEREERZ EUERFAHIEFE
RENREPZM& METHBEZRENEE B 7 FELH
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
“Z-5f -T-Q& ZZ-1f —T-Qf ZZ-1f —T-NF
$'000 $000 $'000 $000 $000 $'000
T T T T T T
Hong Kong BE
(place of domicile) (e L) - - 52,948 56,188 = -
Other parts of the PRC HE i E 8,528,029 6,347,674 = 5922,712 4,176,137 21,519,742 17,006,809
Germany EE 6,502 7,446 48,938 58,214 - -
8534531 6355120 | 6,024,598 4200530 21,519,742 17,006,809
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4 OTHER REVENUE H{th W &=
2015 2014
—E—-AfF —E—F
$°000 $°000
Fo Tt
Interest income FE WA 51,977 62,437
Dividend income % B A 3,319 10,477
Government grants* KT B &~ 49,314 13,692
Value-added tax refund** ERR 206,141 100,224
Others HAth 33,854 32,333
344,605 219,163

>k

Government grants of $49,314,000 (2014: $13,692,000)
was granted during the year ended 31 December 2015 to
subsidise certain environmental energy, environmental water
and greentech projects of the Group in the PRC. There were no
unfulfilled conditions and other contingencies attached to the
receipts of those grants. There is no assurance that the Group
will continue to receive such grant in the future.

The Group was entitled to value-added tax refund of
$206,141,000 (2014: $100,224,000) during the year ended 31
December 2015 in relation to certain environmental energy,
environmental water and greentech project operations of the
Group in the PRC. There were no unfulfilled conditions and other
contingencies attached to the receipts of such tax refund. There
is no assurance that the Group will continue to receive such tax
refund in the future.

ok

REZE_Z-—HAE+_A=+—BLEE &
= 6] & % R IBR T 47 Bh 2 49,314,0007T (= F — 1
£ :13,692,0007T) © B AREE A THER
REER - BIRKIE RAZCIRRER - HEGHAK
MZEMBE 2 RERGH R HMHAEE - B
AT BERBASER A& BBEREEZEHE
@ °

REBEE-T—RAF+_A=+—ALFE  £&
ERETE THPBERRER BRRKBERZE
RRELIEE MZHILEHRT206,141,0007T
(ZZ—M%F : 100,224,0007T) ° HE & A R
ZEREBRD 2 RER GG REMIAFIE -
B AT MR B AN B B 8 i 4 B 3 ey 18
BEBRE
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5 OTHER INCOME 5 EHlgA

2015 2014
—E-RF —E—F
$’°000 $’000
SEo T
Gain on sale of listed securities HE EmEHZ W 92,711 32,557

Net loss on sale of other property, HEEMWE - BE &
plant and equipment Rt FEE (1,280) (236)
91,431 32,321

6 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 6 FREIBIEF
Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting): BREREFEGR,(GTA) :
2015 2014
—E-RF —ET-MF
$°000 $'000
T Tt
(a) Finance costs (a) MBEH
Interest on bank loans and other RITERMEMEER
borrowings s 457,818 380,775
Less: interest expense capitalised into B RERTIREARL
construction in progress* LA B (6,059) -
451,759 380,775
*  The borrowing costs have been capitalised at a rate of O REBEZZE-RE+_A=+—BILHF

5.00% — 5.48% per annum during the year ended 31 E ' BEKSNZEFE5.00%E5.48%
December 2015. HETERME ©
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6 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (continued) 6 BRERIEF(E)
2015 2014
—E-hF —T—MF
$’000 $'000
SEo Tt
(b) Staff costs (b) B TAKA
Contributions to defined contribution TEFR M FGR IRFT B R
retirement plan 69,294 54,859
Salaries, wages and other benefits e TEREMET 678,908 484,106
748,202 538,965
(c) Other items (c) EMIEE
Amortisation By
— interest in leasehold land —RIBKEEHE
held for own use under BIEBERZ
operating leases MHE TS 1,204 1,256
- intangible assets —mEEE 92,138 34,674
Depreciation e 90,547 79,481
Net foreign exchange loss BE N 51 F R 58,945 46,133
Auditors’ remuneration ZEH AN B &
— audit services — B RE 7,827 7,716
— other services — H AR 2,682 5,602
Operating lease charges: KEHEER :
minimum lease payments ®EHEER
— hire of premises —WHEHEE 11,740 10,568
Research and development costs T 5% K A 3% B AN 28,719 19,997
Rentals receivable from investment U EYERS
properties less direct outgoings MR EESH
of $348,000 (2014: Nil) 348,0007T
(ZZ—HF : ) (5,790) (4,825)
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7 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED

INCOME STATEMENT

(a) Taxation in the consolidated income statement

REREmKRLZAER

(a) REBBERATZBER -

represents:
2015 2014
—E-HF —TF
$°000 $’000
T Tt
Current tax — Hong Kong NEATRIE — BB FEH
Profits Tax
Provision for the year KFE = -
Current tax — PRC Income Tax ZHIF{E — R ETER
Provision for the year AN 2 B 270,916 210,399
Under/(over)-provision in respect BEFERETECGBF)
of prior years 2,221 (27,136)
273,137 183,263
Deferred tax BT IR
Origination and reversal of temporary TREREES
| differences Lwe 510,138 350,727
783,275 533,990

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made
in the financial statements for the years ended 31
December 2015 and 2014 as the Group’s operations in
Hong Kong had no assessable income for Hong Kong

Profits Tax purpose.

Taxation for the PRC operations is charged at the
statutory rate of 25% of the assessable profits under
taxation ruling in the PRC. During the year, certain PRC
subsidiaries are subject to tax at 50% of the standard
tax rates or fully exempt from income tax under the

relevant tax rules and regulations.

REAMNEGHME  AREBE-_T—H
FR_E-MFE+_HA=1t—BHLFE
AEBEZEEEHLERRABMA - &
SRR [ 3 X SRR AL A B FS
TEH A

B X% 2 TIRIR BRI BN LA B
TTAERER22%HE - FA - IRIBEAR
BB EREER  ETHEMBRAZA
RIZEH R Z50% M AT IR L ERFH
BIAFAR °
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7 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 7 RERRRZMEHE)
INCOME STATEMENT (continued)

(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and

(b) BERABRRFAE 2RAX HES AT

accounting profit at applicable tax rates: ZHER
2015 2014
—E-I8F —T-mF
$’000 $'000
Fr Fit
Profit before taxation i R & A 3,118,801 2,299,033
Notional tax on profit before taxation, ZRAET B R AR
calculated at the rates applicable AP ST B R BLBR A A1
to profits in the tax jurisdictions BANFTEZ BEVIE
concerned 808,891 583,977
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses A HIE Sz H 2 T T8 52 25 76,565 46,297
Tax effect of non-taxable income ERBUMAZHIBF L (18,610) (16,154)
Tax effect of profits entitled to tax AZHEREMRIBER
concession in the PRC LB HIBERTE (183,833) (162,355)
Tax effect of unused tax losses not KEAMAERERZ
recognised THH%EZME%% 1,645 21,536
Tax effect of withholding tax on TBIRFEREFEMEA
undistributed profits of PRC R IREH 2 BIER ‘.i.“
subsidiaries 101,257 87,825
Under/(over)-provision in respect of BAEFERBETRGBH)
prior years 2,221 (27,136)
Utilisation of prior year tax loss not FABRTFERER
recognised 2 A INES 1R (4,861) -
Actual tax expense EERBES L 783,275 533,990
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8 DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS 8

Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section
383(1) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2

EEH
RIEFE QN FHEHIE383(1) 1E R (A a] (#
BEEERNSER)R0NFE2ANIRTE s EEHF

of the Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits B
of Directors) Regulation are as follows:
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
and benefits scheme 2015
Directors’ inkind  Discretionary  contributions Total
fees  FHe 20 bonuses Rikztal —T—1%F
EZHe REDIR BT X EGk
$000 $000 $000 $'000 $000
T T T T T
Executive directors HITES

Tang Shuangning FEE - 15 - - 15
Liu Jun (note (a)) 2 E(HEa) - 20 - - 20
Chen Xiaoping PR/ - 2,199 6,800 - 8,999
Wang Tianyi ITXE - 1,868 2,100 - 3,968
Wong Kam Chung, Raymond ~ &%588 - 1,422 2,100 525 4,047
Cai Shuguang EIES - 1,302 2,000 32 3,334

Independent BUFHTES

non-executive directors

Fan Yan Hok, Philip Bk 250 55 - = 305
Mar Selwyn 548K 250 55 - - 305
Li Kwok Sing, Aubrey FEE 250 55 - - 305
Zhai Haitao 2= 250 55 - - 305
1,000 7,046 13,000 557 21,603
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8 DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (continued) 8 EEFM (&)
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
and benefits scheme 2014
Directors’ inkind  Discretionary  contributions Total
fees e EE bonuses RINGTE]  —F—-WF
550 REDNR e R ek
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T T T T T
Executive directors HITES

Tang Shuangning EEE - 30 - - 30
Liu Jun (note (a)) 2 E(MEaE) - 15 - - 15
Zang Qiutao (note (b)) EIE (M) - 790 - - 790
Chen Xiaoping B |\ - 2,194 5,800 - 7,994
Wang Tianyi ITXE - 1,599 1,800 - 3,399
Wong Kam Chung, Raymond ~ #1888 - 1,417 1,700 449 3,566
Cai Shuguang 2N - 1,253 1,600 49 2,902

Independent BUFHTES

non-executive directors
Fan Yan Hok, Philip B 250 60 - - 310
Mar Selwyn B4R 250 60 - - 310
Li Kwok Sing, Aubrey FEE 250 60 - - 310
Zhai Haitao BEE 250 60 - - 310
1,000 7,538 10,900 498 19,936
Notes: B 3 -

(@ Mr. Liu Jun was appointed as executive director and Vice- (a) ZIEA4AR-—Z—NENA+_—_BEETAHTES
chairman on 12 August 2014. FREAERF °

(o) Mr. Zang Qiutao resigned as executive director and Vice-  (b) @i EEER-S—MENA+ - HETRTEEH
chairman on 12 August 2014. BEE -
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RSN - A BAEEETE)

9 INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, four
(2014 four) are directors whose emoluments are disclosed
in note 8. The aggregate of the emoluments in respect of

9 =

= B E B A £

EREZReRFMENALF  Ehmi(=
T-NF:WB)R/EF BHENMEFRE
KM EBHEE - BT —REMALT 2B S48

the other individual are as follows: BEFFIBAT
2015 2014
—E-HF —T-lEF
$°000 $'000
Fx Tt
Salaries and other emoluments e MEMmie 1,181 1,117
Discretionary bonuses BB IEAL 1,800 1,500
Retirement scheme contributions RIRET BRI 33 64
3,014 2,681
The emoluments of the individual with the highest EHSEEHMNENA LT ZFHER AT E
emoluments are within the following band: :
2015 2014
—E-hF —T—MF
Number of Number of
individual individual
Emolument band AR Rl N N
$2,500,001 - $3,000,000 2,500,0017T — 3,000,0007T = 1
$3,000,001 - $3,500,000 3,000,0017T - 3,500,0007T 1 -
10 EARNINGS PER SHARE 10 B AT
(a) Basic earnings per share (a) BREXEF
The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on [ B AN 2 F 5% R AN A | AR

(b)

the profit attributable to ordinary equity shareholders
of the Company of $2,084,888,000 (2014:
$1,703,147,000) and the weighted average number of
4,483,712,000 ordinary shares (2014: 4,483,712,000
ordinary shares) in issue during the year.

Diluted earnings per share

The calculation of diluted earnings per share is the
same as the basic earnings per share for the years
ended 31 December 2015 and 2014 as the Company
did not have any dilutive potential ordinary shares
outstanding during the years.

(b)

B & 1k E 72,084,888,0007T ( —Z — 1
F :1,703,147,00070) R FAE BT E
B I A AN S 15 £04,483,712,0000% T 58
f%( —Z= — P4 : 4,483,712,0000% & B
fR)ETE o

BREERR
HRARANRBE_Z—RFR_F
—HE+ A=+ —BIEFELEEM
BERTABCEEEZE 2 EAR &R
tAMEFEASREERNETRE
AREFIER
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11 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES, OTHER 11 EYE - HWE - BEKERE
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND ARSI
LEASEHOLD LAND
(a) Reconciliation of carrying amount (a) BREIEYH R
Interest in
Motor leasehold fand
Leasehold vehicles, held for own
improvements, ~ electronic Use Under
fumitreand ~ equipment operating
fitres — and others leases
Lndand  Pentand  HEWE AE+ Construction Invegtment  REEEETRE
buldngs  machinery X5 ETRER  npoges  Sitd  popetes  REERZ Totl

HRET  BRRRE  GhREE B BELE N RENE EEbiER %
§/000 §000 $000 §000 §000 §000 §000 §1000 §000
i n i T i T i n i/

Cost or valuation:  FiAES b :

At 1 January 2015 WE-1%

-A-f 832,145 588,826 35,563 112411 185,178 1,814,183 172,938 30206 2,026,417
Bchengeadsiments  E % G700 @7 (e (A (%) (0122 (B89 (5 (113616)
Addtions g
-through acquistfon of ~ — AU

subsilaries WEL - - - 380 - 380 - - 380

- others -k 17,666 13,855 21,887 30,113 940400 1,023,921 - 121,861 1,145,762
Disposals HiE - 5 oy (3 - (1308 - - (1308
Transferred from ERAEEIR
construction i progress 198,701 658,455 - - (857,156) - - - -
At31 December 2015 H-E-RE

+ZA=t-H 1013812 1,208,154 55,028 188,018 259162 2,724,169 166,099 155,612 3,045,880

Representing: f%:

Cost it

KfE 1013812 1,208,154 55,028 188,013 250162 2,724,169
Valuation - 2015 [5E - - - - -

166,612 2,879,781

166,099 166,099

1018812 1,208,154 55,028 188018 269,162 2,724,169 166,099 165,612 3,045,880

Accumulated S EREY

depreciation and
amortisation:
At 1 January 2015 NoE-1E

-A-H 110,383 88,231 20,169 84,522 - 303,305 - 3,579 306,884
Bchnge adustments 8 pa) (5310 04 (M) - (2849 - 01§ (13069)
Charge for the year REENE 25,098 33,144 6,936 24,469 - 90,547 - 1,204 91,751
Writien back on disposal ~ HEREME - (759) (309) (6,035) - (7,103) - - (7,103)
At31 December 2015 H-E-1E

+ZA=1-H 133,910 115,306 25,842 98,846 - 373,904 - 4,565 378,469

Net book value: EFYE

At31 December 2015 H-E-RE
-8 879,002 1,092,848 29,186 89,167 250,162 2,350,265 166,099 151,047 2,667,411
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11 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES, OTHER 11 IREWE - At - BEL&RE
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND ANMFEE i (&
LEASEHOLD LAND (continued)
(a) Reconciliation of carrying amount (continued) (a) BREIEHR(Z)
Interest in
Motor leasehold fand
Leasehold vehicles, held for own
improvements, ~ electronic Use Under
furiture and~ equipment operating
fitures  and others leases
lndand  Pantend  HEWE AE> Construction Investment  REAETEE
buldngs  machinery 26 BTRER  npogess  Sublod  popertes  BEEERZ Total
HEET  BRREE  GHERRE o EEIR Pt REDE REnMER gz

000 g0 S0 g0 §000 500 SO0 $000 $000
n r T r I I I r n

Cost or valuation: B fEE -
At1 January 2014 MoE-mE

-A-8 828,513 601,139 29,721 149,850 - 1609229 177442 361% 1,824,866
Echageadustents B3R 9 240 0 BE R0 Wi psd (%0 (52999
Addiions £
- through acquistion of ~ —&BMEE
subsidiaries BT 15,505 6,083 1330 8925 9,650 41,993 - 2,481 AT
- others -E4 6,073 3,603 7,240 A, 177,683 216,220 - - 216,220
Disposal it - S8 3 - B - X

At 31 December 2014 R £
A=1-1 832,145 588,825 35,563 112417 185,173 1814183 172,938 39296 2026417

Representing: f&:

Cost HAfE 832,145 588,826 35,663 172417 185,173 1,814,183

- 3929 1853479
Valuation - 2014 [FE-5-m% - - 172,938 -

172,938

832,145 588,620 3,563 172417 185,178 1,814,183 172,938 30206 2026417

Accumulated S EREH:

depreciation and
amortisation:
At 1 January 2014 RIE-ME
-A-A 86,873 61,048 17,649 68,621 - 235,091 - 2456 287,647
Exchange adjustments B E% (839) 2.719) (638) (1,799) - (5,894) - (133) (6,027)
Charge for the year RERNE 24349 29,001 4798 21,333 - 79481 - 126 80,737
Written back on disposal ~ H\EFAR - - (1,740) (3,633 - (5,373 - - (5,373
At31 December 2014 R-E-ME
tZh=t-H 110383 88231 20,169 84,52 - 303,305 - 3579 306,884

Net book value: BRFE:

A1 December 2014 H-E-ME
=1-A 721,762 500,594 15,394 87955 185,173 1510878 172,938 BT 1719533
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11 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES, OTHER
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND
LEASEHOLD LAND (continued)

(b) Fair value measurement of properties
(i) Fair value hierarchy

FrE S BRNBEE)
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11 WEWE - A% - BE A& E
AREE LM (E)

(b) MEZAABEE
() AR EFELRE

The following table presents the fair value of the
Group’s properties measured at the end of the
reporting period on a recurring basis, categorised
into the three-level fair value hierarchy as defined
in HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement. The level
into which a fair value measurement is classified
is determined with reference to the observability
and significance of the inputs used in the valuation
technique as follows:

— Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using
only Level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted
prices in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities at the measurement date

— Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using
Level 2 inputs i.e. observable inputs which
fail to meet Level 1, and not using significant
unobservable inputs. Unobservable inputs are
inputs for which market data are not available

— Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using

TRINFAEERBESPRIZLE
UEEFEZMERIAE  BEY
ERBRBEMHRELEAE135R
[AAEFEIMREZ=AAARE
BB - RABEFEMBREIR
RIT2RATRERMAAEEZ
AEREENERREMERE

- F-RGHE:ERF-REE
(BIRFFERBHEREEXRE
HRBM IS 2 REAERE)

B2RfE

- F_RMGEE:ERAE -_RHE
(BIRBERT & 58 — AR E Z AT A
BRFI28E  WERTEAT
AERBIAZERMB)FEZ
DRE - THBRGH 28EE
REREN SRR 2 8E

- F=ZAEE: ERATHERGE

significant unobservable inputs ZEEHMBAB I ANRE
Fair value at
31 December Fair value measurements as at
2015 31 December 2015 categorised into
wom_ge  VBBR-T-RET-AZt-RIAREHE
+-A=1+-H Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
LARE F-R EF-H E=Mm
$:000 $:000 $:000 $:000
Fr T r T
Recurring fair value REUMANLERE
measurement
Investment properties: REME:
- Commercial - other parts -BE-PEEME
of the PRC 166,099 - - 166,099
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11 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES, OTHER

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND
LEASEHOLD LAND (continued)

(b) Fair value measurement of properties (continued)

(i) Fair value hierarchy (continued)

11 WEME - A% - BB M&RE
AKRBE ()

(b) MEZAARBENEE)

Fair value at
31 December

(i

AR ERIERF(E)

Fair value measurements as at
31 December 2014 categorised into

2014
N-E-mE THERR -E-NE+-A=+—-Bz 1 EitE
+-A=1+-H Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
LRAE 2—R F_H =1
$'000 $000 $000 $000
T Fr Tr i
Recurring fair value mERNALEHE
measurement
Investment properties: REME:
- Commercial - other parts -BE-TEEMBE
of the PRC 172,938 - - 172,938

During the year ended 31 December 2015, there
were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2
(2014: Nil), or transfers into or out of Level 3 (2014:
Nil). The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers
between levels of fair value hierarchy as at the end
of the reporting period in which they occur.

All of the Group’s investment properties were
revalued as at 31 December 2015. The valuations
were carried out by an independent firm of
surveyors, Shenzhen Zhong Heng Xin Assets
Appraisal Co., Ltd., who have among their staff
members of China Appraisal Society with recent
experience in the location and category of property
being valued. The management has discussion
with the surveyors on the valuation assumptions
and valuation results when the valuation is
performed at each interim and annual reporting
date.

RBE_ZT-—HF+-_A=+—H
EFER E-—RARE_R2HEL
BEMEB(ZFT—WF : £) 5
BEMNEEBARBHE=R(=F
—OF:E)  AEBEZBRERE
BREZHBRSHRERAN
REBAH 2 HANER -

AEEMAREMFEFER-_F—1
F+-_A=+—H#ETEMR - AE
HEVAEMTRIMREEEE
FEERDAET EREIART
BEENGHESR  YHLME
(CRZEIZIRES: R E 3 VIR PR il
EfR GESEATHEFERSH
HRETTHER  EEEH SRS
Bhalmmfh ERE R GEEER -
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11 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES, OTHER

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND

LEASEHOLD LAND (continued)

(b) Fair value measurement of properties (continued)

(ii) Information about Level 3 fair value
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measurements

(i)

Valuation technique

AREE L (&)

(b) MEZARBENEE)

BEE=RAETEZEH

Unobservable input

(G I=Es 0] PRIBRFE 2 8UF
Commercial investment Market comparison approach Premium (discount) on
properties — other parts MG EA quality of the buildings

of the PRC
EAREMFE - RHEMME

The fair value of investment properties located
in other parts of the PRC is determined using
market comparison approach by reference to
recent sales price of comparable properties on
a price per square metre basis, adjusted for a
premium or a discount specific to the quality of the
Group’s buildings compared to the recent sales
and the timing on the comparable transactions.
Higher premium for higher quality buildings and a
favourable adjustment on the timing of comparable
transactions will result in a higher fair value
measurement.

BERETEE 2nE(rE)

Adjustment on timing of
comparable transactions

BT AL B2 SRR 7 0

URPEEMBE ZREDRERZA
AREDEAMBSHEEEE - HE
SERAREBYERE T KER
EEGEZMBEE  BOiAS%
BRFEEZHERE R (RI
HSHERHHBME) AR AT HER
RGZEEELAE - EFTHE
BENBUR ER S MM A HEL 8RR
HZBREBELENARE g
BYHEMRSZIAAERS -
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11 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES, OTHER
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND
LEASEHOLD LAND (continued)

(b) Fair value measurement of properties (continued)
(ii) Information about Level 3 fair value
measurements (continued)

11 WEME - A% - BB M&RE
AKRBE ()

(b) MEZAARBENEE)
(i) BEE=RArEGTE2EF(E)

The movements during the year in the balance FA - FMEBE=ZRMARBETELH
of these Level 3 fair value measurements are as FE)T:
follows:
2015 2014
—E-hF —ZE-HF
$°000 $°000
T Tt
Commercial investment properties  EAEREME
— other parts of the PRC — R E A A iR
At 1 January R—H—H 172,938 177,442
Exchange adjustments PE 5 Fg 2 (6,839) (4,504)
At 31 December B“+=A=+—8 166,009 172,938

Exchange adjustments of investment properties
are recognised in other comprehensive income in
exchange reserve.

No valuation gain or loss is recognised in profit
or loss for the years ended 31 December 2015
and 2014 as there has been no change in the fair
value of the investment properties since previous
valuations.

REMEZELAERELFEBT
ZEM 2 ERARER -

E—HFER_ZT—OF
+—HALFEEYEEER
AEERE REAAKE
AREB E—RGEERKIL

2 ooy
ORI

o
& N
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11 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES, OTHER

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND

LEASEHOLD LAND (continued)

(c) The analysis of net book value of properties is
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11 WEWE - A% - BE A& E
ARFEE (&)

(c) MEREFEEZDMHAMT :

as follows:
2015 2014
—E-EREF —E-HF
$°000 $°000
T Tt
In the PRC =eyE
Hong Kong: =5
- medium-term leases — R HE 45,567 47,604
Other parts of the PRC: MR E bt [
- long leases —RHHEE 5,353 5,862
— medium-term leases —FREEE 1,146,128 876,951
1,197,048 930,417
Representing: R=*
Land and buildings T T 879,902 721,762
Investment properties REYE 166,099 172,938
1,046,001 894,700
Interest in leasehold land held for own  RIEZKSHERZEEH
use under operating leases ZTE TS 151,047 35,717

1,197,048 930,417
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11 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES, OTHER 11 REWE - A% - BB M&E

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND

LEASEHOLD LAND (continued)

(d) Assets leased out under operating leases
The Group leases out properties under operating
leases. The leases typically run for an initial period of
three to ten years, with an option to renew the lease
after that date at which time all terms are renegotiated.
None of the leases includes contingent rentals.

All properties held under operating leases that would
otherwise meet the definition of investment property
are disclosed as investment property.

Total future minimum lease payments under non-
cancellable operating leases are receivable as follows:

ARMEE T (E)

(d) RELEHEEALCEE

AEERELEHELEYE - BEAE
E-RNVFRA=ZZ=1+F LrEEE
B ERABGREEEN®E - bt
HEATBRIAAHEE -

PIERBEEHERAYENTAREY
EEBZMEDRBERREME -

REBETAI#ROEEHEER A RERY
RIEHEEREENT :

2015 2014

—E-0F —T—MF

$’000 $'000

T Tt

Within 1 year —FERr 5,238 8,165
After 1 year but within 5 years —FRERFA 14,711 17,081
After 5 years FaRGEEED 11,448 15,627

31,397 40,873
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12 INTANGIBLE ASSETS 12 BV EE

Environmental ~ Environmental Greentech

energy project  water project project
operating operating operating
rights rights rights  Patents and Computer Backlog
RRAR RiRKB BEBRR  trademarks software contracts Total
EEEEE EEEEE BEERE  ZNLGR EREN  ARMAN %
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

it i i i i i i

COST: ﬁk$1§ :
At 1 January 2015 R-E2-1F-f-H 675,084 905,440 984,069 50,192 1,100 31,896 2,647,781
Reclassification EE g (430,878) - 430,878 - - - -
Exchange adjustments ~ [E} 5% (14,804) (40,803) (64,200) (2,011) (98) (1,277) (123,193)
Additions BE
- through acquistion of ~ —FBMENBAT
subsidiaries - 574,252 - - - - 574,252

- others ~£fh 31,254 12,604 375,986 S 1,416 = 421,260
At 31 December 2015 R-E-1%

TZA=1t-H 260,656 1,451,493 1,726,733 48,181 2,418 30,619 3,520,100
Accumulated ZiHEH

amortisation:

At 1 January 2015 RZE-1F-f-H - 14,025 56,518 5,270 8 884 16,775
Exchange adjustments ~ [EXIE - (1,989) (3,263) (396) @ (348) (6,000)
Charge for the year KEEH - 41,789 32,484 6,113 1,231 10,521 92,138
At 31 December 2015 RZE-1%

TZA=+-8 - 53,825 85,739 10,987 1,305 11,057 162,913

Net book value: BHSE:

At 31 December 2015 RZE-1%
TZA=t-8 260,656 1,397,668 1,640,994 37,194 1,113 19,562 3,357,187




1 70 China Everbright International Limited
HEERBERER AR

Notes to the Financial Statements
B RS R IR M T

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (f& BB ERRIN » FiA S EEABETE)

12 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued) 12 B EE(E)

Environmental ~ Environmental Greentech

energy project  water project project
operating operating operating
rights rights rights  Patents and Computer Backlog
BREE BIRKE BERR  trademarks software contracts Total
EHESE BEEESE  EREEE  EHREER B S ek g
$'000 $000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T T T T T T T
Cost: A
At 1 January 2014 RZZ-NE-A-A 332,226 21,731 786,061 - - - 1,140,018
Reclassification BB - 131,414 (131,414) - - - -
Exchange adjustments ~ E A% (12,157) (8,298) (20,399) (395) 1l (188) (41,444
Additions RBE
- through acquisttion of ~ — A BYIEN B2 A
subsidiaries - 760,001 - 27,683 1,107 32,084 820,875
- others -t 355,015 592 349,821 22,904 - - 728,332
At 31 December 2014 RZE-mF
+ZA=1-H 675,084 905,440 984,069 50,192 1,100 31,896 2,647,781
Accumulated Zit8H:
amortisation:
At 1 January 2014 N-E-ME-f-H - 1672 41893 - - - 43565
Reclassification EEip] - 3,430 (3,430) - - - -
Exchange adjustments ~ EiHE - (218) (1,185) (53) 1) " (1,464)
Charge for the year REEEH - 9,141 19,240 5,323 79 891 34,674
At 31December 2014 RZE-JE
T-A=1-H - 14,025 56,518 5,270 8 884 76,775
Net book value: REE :
At 31 December 2014 RZB-MEF
+ZA=1-H 675,084 891,415 927,551 44,922 1,022 31,012 2,571,006
The amortisation charge for the year is included in “Direct RNEEEHEFAITAGEERR [EEK
costs and operating expenses” in the consolidated income AREEBRIA -

statement.



Annual Report 2015
S lnern /1

Notes to the Financial Statements
B &SRR EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (k58 =ERESN + FiE SRS E)

13 GOODWILL 13 &
The Group
rEH
2015 2014
—E-RF —ET-NF
$°000 $'000
T T
At 1 January Rn—H—H 834,845 20,793
Additions through acquisition of FRWERBATIEE
subsidiaries (note 29) (Ft5E29) 271,822 814,052
Exchange adjustments PE 5 5 (44,776) -
At 31 December Rt+-—A=+—H 1,061,891 834,845
Impairment tests for cash-generating units BEEECRESEEEUZHERAA
containing goodwill
Goodwill is allocated to the Group’s cash-generating REBeBEESRERE NIEKS LD
units (“CGU”) identified according to business segment as MBS HEEREA
follows:
2015 2014
—E-EF —T—MF
$°000 $'000
SEoE T
Environmental energy project construction RIREERIB A EZEN
and operation B 11,255 11,255
Environmental water project construction IRIFKEEE ZiER
and operation B 1,050,636 823,590

1,061,891 834,845
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13 GOODWILL (continued) 18?@Wﬁ)

Goodwill allocated to individual CGU

The goodwill of $11,255,000 and $9,538,000 was
allocated to the individual CGU in “Environmental energy
project construction and operation” and “Environmental
water project construction and operation” respectively. The
recoverable amount of the respective CGU is determined
based on value-in-use calculations. These calculations use
cash flow projections based on financial budgets approved
by management covering a five year period. Discount rates
of 10% to 12% (2014: 10% to 12%) have been used for
the value-in-use calculations. Management determined
the budgets based on service agreements governing the
relevant operations. The discount rates used are pre-tax
and reflect specific risks relating to the relevant segments.
No impairment is considered necessary at 31 December
2014 and 2015.

Goodwill allocated to segment

The goodwill as at 31 December 2015 also comprised
of $266,792,000 (2014: Nil) and $774,306,000 (2014:
$814,052,000) are arising from the acquisition of Dalian
Dongda Water Co., Ltd. (see note 29(a)) and HanKore
Environment Tech Group Limited (see note 29(b))
respectively, which is attributable mainly to the expected
synergies from combining operations of the Group and the
acquiree.

For the purpose of impairment testing, such goodwill
has been allocated to the “Environmental water project
construction and operation” segment.

The recoverable amount of the “Environmental water
project construction and operation” segment was based
on fair value less costs of disposal.

STEREBVESEEEV EHE
7g411,255,0007T } 9,538, OOOEE“%IJ"
T [RIRA /EIEEU_&L D ER R [ 3R
RKGEEREREE | DI 2BIREE
EHEN - BEEREEEEMN 2 AR E &R
BEAEENE - T8 A RBEEED X
EZRAFERBBEZEEREMT - AR
AEFEREEZHEBERAB10%E12% (=%
—PUF 10%E12%) - EEERBEEGH
¥ 2RGhsE ETE@EBEE - FiIfERZ
BEIR R B AL R G BE 2 3045 2 R B 2 BR L AT
QIR - R T—HAER_ZT—NF+_A
=+—H  BFEREMFEE -

THRESTZEHE
RZE—RAE+-_A=+—B2EBE7T8
FE2R B W KB R K AR A R (R &
29(a)) 2.266,792,00070 ( =& — P 4F : £)
FRBWHEERREREEBEER AR (R
Bf5E29(b)) 2 774,306,0007T ( — & — PO 4 :
814,052,0007T) + HEERBEAEE KU
BARAHESZBRHBRM M

RREBARTE  EEREEHIRE IR
RKFIEERBEREE [DHS -

[RRKFEBRENMEZ | DBz KBS
BIRARBEREERNAERS ©
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13 GOODWILL (continued) 13 B8 #E)

Goodwill allocated to segment (continued)

The Group’s testing approach included a comparison of
the market capitalisation of “Environmental water project
construction and operation” segment, which is a group
listed on the Singapore Stock Exchange, with its net
assets. Under this approach, the market capitalisation
is the fair value of the “Environmental water project
construction and operation” segment. Cost of disposal
were assessed as insignificant. The market capitalisation
was categorised as Level 1 fair value measurement.

As a significant portion of the net assets of the
“Environmental water project construction and operation”
segment consisted of financial assets and liabilities which
are accounted for under HKAS 39, the Group also adjusted
the market capitalisation to exclude the fair values of the
financial assets and liabilities as disclosed in note 28(f) for
the purpose of deriving the fair value of the non-financial
assets in the “Environmental water project construction
and operation” segment. The derived fair value was then
compared with the carrying amount of the non-financial
assets (including goodwill) of the “Environmental water
project construction and operation” segment. The Group
considered the derived fair value to be a Level 3 fair value
measurement.

Under both approaches, the estimated recoverable
amount exceeded the carrying amount and the Group
concluded that the goodwill was not impaired at 31
December 2014 and 2015.

None of the goodwill acquired is expected to be deductible
for tax purposes.

TRESHZ2EE(E)

AEEZARATERRES RFKBEB Z
ERELEIDB(RFMERXBA LT ZE
B) 2 EAMELEEEFBRELER - RIZ
WA - BAMERS [ RFEKHEBZER
BE DA Z AAME o BB G R
TRE - BAMEENERF R AAER

=
£ °

R RRKTEIA B 2E MES | DB RAHB
MHEEFRBRMBEERVHAEGR
BEEEEFENEINREAR) - WAEETR
ERREATE KU BEELRMBAR
ZARBE(RKF28(7KE) - BETE R
RKBIEBRENEE | DB BEEL
NAfE - 2% AEABSAAESR[REK
BHBRENEE IDHFMBEE(RER
B)ZREEELR - AEERBFAERE
ZRAREBE=ZBRARBEFE -

Rig Bl MEE - AEHA W E S RBEER
HE BAKEHER_FT-—HFE_F
—OFE+-A=+—HEHBELELRER -
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14 INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES 14 B A AR
The following list contains only the particulars of J«ATE?'J HEASEES  BEHBEEK
subsidiaries which principally affected the results, assets or EXEBEMBRRIER - BREATHN -
liabilities of the Group. The class of shares held is ordinary ﬁﬁ?%ﬂxfﬁi’ﬂ%% & %
unless otherwise stated.
Proportion of ownership interest
BEREERLH
Place of
establishment/ Group's
incorporation and Particulars of issued effective  Held by the Held by a
operation and paid up capital interest Company subsidiary
Name of company Bz SRR ST BEIR  KEEZ BALNE] mHIE  Principal activity
NSES ] RES S HBRBAEH  BEREGZ A REFE  FEEH
China Everbright Water Limited Bermuda  2,608,014,000 shares 74% - 74%  Investment holding
(“CEWL) BRiE of $1 each RERR
FEEAKBEERRE 2,608,014,000/%
(TFAKH]) BREMAT
2R
Everbright Alternative Energy PRC $125,800,000 100% - 100%  Design, construction,
(Dangshan) Co., Ltd.* (note (c)) F 125,800,0007T operation and
FAFER(BIL)ERAR maintenance of
GES) biomass power
generation plant
FErBE EBER
ﬁﬁ%éimg
Everbright Biomass Energy PRC $127,000,000 100% - 100%  Design, construction,
(Hanshan) Ltd.* (note (c)) F 127,000,0007C operation and
FAREMRER(ZW) BB AR maintenance of
(k) biomass power
generation plant
RERBE EBER
ﬁﬁ%éimg
Everbright Biomass Energy PRC RMB75,600,000 100% - 100%  Design, construction,
(Sugian) Limited* (note (c)) F AR75,600,0007 operation and
KAREMEER(BR)BER AR maintenance of
(k) biomass provision of
heat project
RErRBE EER
ﬁﬂ%éimﬁﬁ%
JEH
Everbright Biomass Energy (Xuyi) PRC USD16,500,000 100% - 100%  Design, construction,
Ltd* (note (c)) F 16,500,000% T operation and
FAEMEER (3 BB AR maintenance of
(F#E(c) biomass electricity

and heat cogeneration
project

Bt s BER
BERBENEREY
ERA



Annual Report 2015
—T-hEFR

175

Notes to the Financial Statements
B &SRR EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (k58 =ERESN + FiE SRS E)

14 INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 14 P2 R ()

Proportion of ownership interest

AR
Place of
establishment/ Group’s
incorporation and Particulars of issued effective  Held by the Held by a
operation and paid up capital interest Company subsidiary
Name of company AV A BETR K£EZ AR miiE  Principal activity
NS fekpiik HRBAEY  EREL #A RERE FEEH
Everbright Changzhou Hi-tech PRC USD23,000,000 60% - 60%  Design, construction,
Environmental Energy s 23,000,000 7T operation and
(Changzhou) Co., Ltd.* (note (d)) maintenance of waste-
KRERIRRECE(FM) to-energy power plant
BRAR(HEkd) REBE - BER
BERBEUREER
Everbright Environmental Energy PRC RMB138,986,300 100% - 100%  Design, construction,
(Boluo) Ltd.* (note (d)) 23 AR %138,986,3007T operation and
FABRER(BE)BRAR maintenance of waste-
(GE{)) to-energy power plant
Bt R
BEREAREER
Everbright Environmental Energy PRC RMB137,520,000 100% - 100%  Design, construction,
(Changzhou) Co., Ltd.* (note (d)) i AR#137,520,0007C operation and
FRBREER(EM)BRAR maintenance of waste-
(PFE(d) to-gnergy power plant
DXD+ EL 5@ &
BERBNRESH
Everbright Environmental Energy PRC USD29,300,000 100% - 100%  Design, construction,
(Jiangyin) Ltd.* (note (d)) H 29,300,000% 7T operation and
FRERREROIB)ERRE maintenance of waste-
(GEO) to-energy power plants
it BER
BERBEUREER
Everbright Environmental Energy PRC RMB305,460,000 100% - 100%  Design, construction,
(Jinan) Co., Ltd.* (note (d)) 23 AR#305,460,0007 operation and
FABREER(ER)BRAR maintenance of waste-
(PFE () to-energy power plant
Bt R
BEREUREER
Everbright Environmental Energy PRC RMB550,000,000 100% - 100%  Design, construction,
(Nanjing) Ltd.* (note (d)) F AR#550,000,0007C operation and

HARRRER(FR
(PFH(d)

VERREN

maintenance of waste-

to-energy power plants
DXD+ LL &

,%Eﬂ%%%n%* E
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14 INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

14 B ARIER &)

Proportion of ownership interest

BERERERLH
Place of
establishment/ Group’s
incorporation and Particulars of issued effective  Held by the Held by a
operation and paid up capital interest Company subsidiary
Name of company [ Avg=aii v BEMTR 1£EZ HARE @@  Principal activity
NSES ] REE M HRBAEH  EREL #E RERE  FEEH
Everbright Environmental Energy PRC RMB250,000,000 80% - 80%  Design, construction,
(Ningbo) Co., Ltd.* (note (d)) F AR#250,000,0007T operation and
HRRRER(ZR)ERRT maintenance of waste-
GED) to-energy power plants
Rt BE - EER
BERBUREER
Everbright Environmental Energy PRC $135,300,000 100% - 100%  Design, construction,
(Pizhou) Ltd.* (note (d)) F 135,300,0007T operation and
FABRREER (M) BB AR maintenance of waste-
(PEE () to-energy power plant
dEt B EE
BEREUREER
Everbright Environmental Energy PRC RMB116,500,000 100% - 100%  Design, construction,
(Rizhao) Limited* (note (d)) i AR#116,500,0007C operation and
HARRRER(BR)ERAR maintenance of waste-
(Bt () to-energy power plant
Rt BEEBER
BERBNRESH
Everbright Environmental Energy PRC RMB456,879,000 70% - 70%  Design, construction,
(Hangzhou) Limited. (note (d)) F AR#456,879,0007T operation and
HRRREER M) BRRE maintenance of waste-
(Bt &E(d)) to-energy power plant
it BER
BERBUREER
Everbright Environmental Energy PRC RMB124,053,000 100% - 100%  Design, construction,
(Yiyang) Ltd.* (note (d)) 23 AR #124,053,0007C operation and
KABRER (R BB AR maintenance of waste-
(GE) to-energy power plant
wit o EE
BEREUREER
Everbright Environmental Energy PRC USD11,520,000 100% - 100%  Design, construction,
(Yixing) Ltd.* (note (d)) i 11,520,000 T operation and
HARRRER(EE)ERAR maintenance of waste-
(PFH(d) to-energy power plants

@it i BER
BERESTETH
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14 INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 14 P2 R ()

Proportion of ownership interest

AR
Place of
establishment/ Group’s
incorporation and Particulars of issued effective  Held by the Held by a
operation and paid up capital interest Company subsidiary
Name of company AV A BETR K£EZ AR miiE  Principal activity
NSER fekpiik HRBAEY  EREL #A RERE FEEH
Everbright Environmental Energy PRC $174,000,000 100% - 100%  Design, construction,
(Sanya) Co., Ltd.* (note (d)) H 174,000,0007C operation and
HARRRER(=ZE)ERAR maintenance of waste-
GER)) to-energy power plants
it B EER
BEREUREER
Everbright Environmental Energy PRC $138,430,000 100% - 100%  Design, construction,
(Shouguang) Co., Ltd.* (note (d)) 23 138,430,0007T operation and
FABRER(BH)BBRAR maintenance of waste-
(PFE () to-energy power plant
FEt B EE
BEREAREER
Everbright Environmental Energy PRC USD15,840,000 100% - 100%  Design, construction,
(Sugian) Ltd.” (note (d)) F 15,840,0003 T operation and
KARRER(BE)E maintenance of waste-
(PFH(d) to-gnergy power plants
DXD+ LL 5@ &
BERBNRESH
Everbright Environmental Energy PRC RMB568,000,000 Note (a) - Note (a)  Design, construction,
(Suzhou) Ltd. (‘EB Energy R AR 568,000,0007T Mii7E () Bt () operation and
(Suzhou)")* (note (d)) maintenance of waste-
KRRRER ENBRR to-energy power plants
(TR REER(ERM) D) Wit BE - EER
(F37E(d)) BRERBNREER
Everbright Environmental Energy PRC USD30,990,000 100% - 100%  Design, construction,
(Weifang) Co., Ltd.* (note (d)) 3 30,990,000 T operation and

HARRRER(ET)BERAR
(FirE(0)

maintenance of waste-

to-energy power plant
FEt B EE

BEREUREER
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14 INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Proportion of ownership interest

14 B ARIER &)

BERERERLH
Place of
establishment/ Group’s
incorporation and Particulars of issued effective  Held by the Held by a
operation and paid up capital interest Company subsidiary
Name of company [ Avg=aii v BEMTR 1£EZ HARE @@  Principal activity
NSES ] REE M HRBAEH  EREL #E RERE  FEEH
Everbright Environmental Energy PRC RMB262,000,000 100% - 100%  Design, construction,
(Zhenjiang) Co., Ltd.* (note (d)) F AR262,000,0007T operation and
HARRRERGEL)ERAR maintenance of waste-
GER)) to-energy power plants
it BER
BRERBUREER
Everbright Environmental Energy PRC RMB83,340,000 100% - 100%  Design, construction,
(Dangshan) Ltd.” (note (d)) 23 AR83,340,0007¢ operation and
HRRREER(BIL)BRAR” maintenance of waste-
(GE) to-energy power plant
a2 ER
BEREUREER
Everbright Environmental PRC RMB131,000,000 100% - 100%  Manufacturing of
Technical Equipment e AR#131,000,0007T environmental
(Changzhou) Limited* protection equipment
FABRREMEEEM) SUERREE
BRRE"
Everbright Environmental PRC USD46,000,000 100% 100% - Provision of construction
Protection (China) Limited* F 46,000,000 7T management services
KARBRR(PEDERD A and investment holding
RETRERRER
REZR
Everbright Water (Jiangyin) Limited* PRC RMB180,000,000 70% - 70%  Design, construction,
(notes (c) and (e)) F AR#180,000,0007T operation and

KAKBOIR)ERRES
(FzE(c) K (e))

maintenance of waste-

water treatment plants
Hit B BER

BERBSKEER
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14 INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 14 WEB AR (&)

Proportion of ownership interest

AR
Place of
establishment/ Group’s
incorporation and Particulars of issued effective  Held by the Held by a
operation and paid up capital interest Company subsidiary
Name of company K/ R L BETR  AEEZ BARH mff&E  Principal activity
NS REE S HRBAEY  EREL #A RERE FEEH
Everbright Water (Ji'nan) Limited* PRC USD35,430,000 100% - 100%  Design, construction,
(note (e)) HF 35,430,000% ¢ operation and
KRR (ERE)BRAF maintenance of waste-
(Mi7E(e) water treatment plants
it EER
BBRESKEER
Everbright Water (Jinan Licheng) PRC RMB148,530,000 100% - 100%  Design, construction,
Limited* (note (e)) 23 AR %148,530,0007C operation and
FAKBOBREER) BB AR maintenance of waste-
(F#E(e) water treatment plants
and reusable water
treatment plant
Jit o B EER
BERESKEERX
FUKE AR RIE R
Everbright Water (Xinyi) Limited* PRC $174,590,000 100% - 100%  Design and construction
FRKE G ERAE" H 174,590,0007C of waste-water
treatment plant
and surface water
treatment plant
R RBES KRR
R RKEGIE R
Everbright Water (Zibo) Limited* PRC USD31,158,000 100% - 100%  Design, construction,
23 31,158,000% T operation and

(note (e))
KARRBOEE) BERAF
(F7E(e)

maintenance of waste-
water treatment plants
and reusable water
treatment plants

it i BER
HBRESKEER
RAKE BRI
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14 INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

B S BRNBEE)

14 B ARIER &)

Proportion of ownership interest

BERERERLH
Place of
establishment/ Group’s
incorporation and Particulars of issued effective  Held by the Held by a
operation and paid up capital interest Company subsidiary
Name of company Eavasaiiis BETR F5EZ BARAR mtE  Principal activity
NSES ] REE M BRRAER  BERER #E RERE  FEEH
Everbright Water (Qingdao) Limited PRC USD15,257,000 Note (b) - Note (b)  Construction, operation
(“EB Water Qingdao”)* (note (g)) H 15,257,000% 1T Bt & (o) M)  and maintenance of
KRR (FEE)BRAF waste-water treatment
(TRRKBES D (FHFEE) plants
B EERABRE
KRR
Everbright Wind Power (Ningwu) PRC RMB258,360,000 100% - 100%  Design, construction,
Co., Ltd.* f AR #258,360,0007T operation and
KARE(ER)BERAF maintenance of wind
power projects
Bt g 88
BERBRNEE
R
Suzhou Wujiang Everbright PRC RMB306,925,500 100% - 100%  Design, construction,
Environmental Energy Ltd.* F AR#306,925,5007T operation and

(note (d))
ENRIKEABRIEER
BRAF ()

maintenance of waste-

to-energy power plant
et R BER

BERBEUREER

*  Registered under the laws of the PRC as foreign investment

enterprise.

o Registered under the laws of the PRC as sino-foreign

co-operation joint ventures.

* BREBEHBDEEEMANIERERE -

o RBEHBDEEEMATISIERERE -
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14 INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
The following table lists out the information relating to
a material subsidiary of the Group, CEWL, which has
material non-controlling interest (“NCI”). The summarised
financial information presented below represents the
amounts before any inter-company elimination.

FrE S BRNBEE)

14 B QAR
TRINTAKEEEKRWE QB X AKEZ
BR - RS EANFERES
@)
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(%)

([ ez Rt

TXFRENZzMBERNREZREER
ARIREREHER <S8 -

CEWL
HRIKTE
2015 2014
—E—FF — PO
$°000 $'000
T Tt
NCI percentage FERERA DL 26% 22%
Current assets RBEE 3,314,627 1,708,519
Non-current assets EREEE 9,631,727 7,369,023
Current liabilities TENAE (2,922,282)  (1,405,357)
Non-current liabilities EMEBBE (3,719,646) (2,155,032)
NCI FEIEARHE = (236,077) (225,680)
Total equity attributable to equity shareholders — A% 53 & {5 #E 25 42 58 6,068,349 5,291,473
Carrying amount of NCI FEFE NS M 2 R EE 1,553,497 1,163,624
Revenue W= 1,815,150 1,050,754
Profit for the year FREF 423,668 313,998
Total comprehensive income i\ﬁﬂﬁli\ﬁ' L 86,097 209,793
Profit/(loss) allocated to NCI ST IR S
ZBR/(EE) 99,287 (1,001)*
Cash inflows from operating activities KEEH 2R RA 32,605 316,604
Cash (outflows)/inflows from investing KEEZHZzRE
activities CRE),/ A (2,177,471) 430,125
Cash inflows/(outflows) from financing BREEH RS
activities A Ot 2,954,083 (487,981)
* |t represents the post-acquisition loss allocated to NCI from * HASERTHEREZRN-Z—NF+=_A+=

12 December 2014 (date of acquisition) to 31 December 2014.

BEEEH) =
fBREE

“E-NOFE+-A=+—RZW
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B S BRNBEE)

14 INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Notes:

(@)

Everbright Environmental Energy (Suzhou) Holdings Limited,
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company and the foreign
joint venture partner of EB Energy (Suzhou), is committed to
contribute the full amount of EB Energy (Suzhou)’s registered
capital. Net profit, after payment of an agreed sum of
RMB880,000 annually to the PRC joint venture partner of EB
Energy (Suzhou), is fully attributable to Everbright Environmental
Energy (Suzhou) Holdings Limited.

Everbright Water (Qingdao) Holdings Limited (“EW (Qingdao)
Holdings”, formerly known as EB-VW HK Holding Company
Limited), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company and the
foreign joint venture partner of EB Water Qingdao, is committed
to contribute 60% of EB Water Qingdao’s registered capital. The
remaining 40% registered capital is contributed by the PRC joint
venture partner. EW (Qingdao) Holdings is fully entitled to the
net profit of EB Water Qingdao for the first 14 years of the joint
venture period. From the 15th year of the joint venture period
onwards, the net profit of EB Water Qingdao is to be shared by
EW (Qingdao) Holdings and the PRC joint venture partner on a
98:2 basis.

These subsidiaries of the Group entered into service concession
arrangements with the local government authorities in the
PRC (the “grantors”). Pursuant to the service concession
arrangements, the Group was granted rights to construct,
operate and maintain environmental energy, environmental
water and greentech projects in the PRC for a period of 20 to
30 years. The service fees are based on the extent of services
rendered and are subject to the approvals from the relevant local
government authorities. During the operating period, the Group
will be responsible for maintaining the environmental energy,
environmental water and greentech projects in good condition.

The service concession arrangements do not contain renewal
options. Both the grantor and the Group have the rights to
terminate the agreements in the event of a material breach of the
terms of the agreements.

Operating rights of the environmental energy, environmental
water and greentech projects are recognised as intangible
assets.

14 B A R #Ees (&)
B -

(@)

ANRE 22 EWER BT KGR (BRM) 2985
BEBMHE - HRRRER(FMN)EZERARAR
AFEEAKXR KR (BRMN) 2 EMER - KKk
REN) 2 FRF(EEFEZ A BERBARE
880,000 T X AREIR(BM )P HEERBHE)
2B R RNRRER(EFMN)ZERERDRFE

ARRZ2EMBRRFRAANKEESZITE
BEH-AARKE (BB ERERAA (A
(F&)ZER] - B RBEIHEKBERERE
RA R AFEEANRKEE H60%EMEA -
BT40% AT T EERHLE - XR(FH)E
FReEeHE TNFAI2BEFEARNKREEELZ
FRM - MAFETAFAREME  XAKBEES
ZFBNEEEAN(BE)ERRF A EBHEZ
98:2Z LL IS ©

AEEMHERRRPEEMBAEEETAL
RIS RIGEFRFAR S - REBRIGHFE 2
ZHE AREEREAETEES  EEREERF
BRAER  RRKBERGEREFEERAR - HH
“TE=TF RBBEREREZRBHE @ A
AEERE BT RERER T AEE - RES
A AEBEREESRRER - REKE R
FEIRRIABHWREFRRT

RIS EERLH W EBLARIE - RFARK
SEHERRBRGEREENER 2BER TR
BRI °

BRER - BRAKREEBIRER 2 BE R
RBEMEAE -
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14 INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(d)

These subsidiaries of the Group entered into service concession
arrangements with the grantors. Pursuant to the service
concession arrangements, the Group has to design, construct,
operate and maintain waste-to-energy power plants in the PRC
for a period of 25 to 30 years. The Group has the obligation to
maintain the waste-to-energy power plants in good condition.
The grantors guarantee the Group will receive minimum annual
payments in connection with the arrangements. Upon expiry
of the concession periods, the waste-to-energy power plants
and related facilities will be transferred to the local government
authorities.

The service concession arrangements do not contain renewal
options. The standard rights of the grantors to terminate the
agreements include failure of the Group to construct or operate
the waste-to-energy power plants and in the event of a material
breach of the terms of the agreements. The standard rights of
the Group to terminate the agreements include failure to receive
payments for solid waste treatment service from the grantors and
in the event of a material breach of the terms of the agreements.

Revenue relates to the construction services provided in
constructing the waste-to-energy power plants is recognised as
“Gross amounts due from customers for contract work” in the
financial statements.

These subsidiaries of the Group entered into service concession
arrangements with the grantors. Pursuant to the service
concession arrangements, the Group has to design, construct
and/or upgrade, operate and maintain waste-water treatment
plants in the PRC for a period of 25 to 30 years. The Group has
the obligation to maintain the waste-water treatment plants in
good condition. The grantors guarantee the Group will receive
minimum annual payments in connection with the arrangements.
Upon expiry of the concession periods, the waste-water
treatment plants and the related facilities will be transferred to the
local government authorities.

The service concession arrangements do not contain renewal
options. The standard rights of the grantors to terminate the
agreements include failure of the Group to construct, upgrade
or operate the waste-water treatment plants and in the event of
a material breach of the terms of the agreements. The standard
rights of the Group to terminate the agreements include failure
to receive payments for waste-water treatment service from the
grantors and in the event of a material breach of the terms of the
agreements.

Revenue relates to the construction services provided in
constructing or upgrading the waste-water treatment plants is
recognised as “Gross amounts due from customers for contract
work” in the financial statements.
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14 KB A R HEes (&)
sk (4)

(d)

AR BB R R T AGT LR AEE %
B RIBIRFBEFFFE ST AREAERTHE
it - B ELERAECREUREEH - B
“TRE=TF - ARBBEEEFNREER
IR - BT ALR  BLERRZHMS - &
S B A BFWERERE I - FEALEH
[EmiE - SRR E R MR R R B R AT
HEMA -

RIS EE R P W BBLRIE - BT ATIT
ERERFNRILHAEIBRABE: AREREE
EIEL NP HEMAL G AGREERER -
AEEATERERMNE I BEZBEREE - R
RERETARGEEENREERSEE - ARGE
GHREEXNER -

B 2 i 3R 3 BRI B2 (LR E RS P 15 2 AR R IR
SEMBHRRPERS [BREFPANTRENEA
] -

REEM B QR EE T AR LR IR EEL
P o RIBRBRFFGERRY - ARBEANT
et BERHBGE - EERBERETKE
B AR TRhE=1+F - AEEAEEER
AR RN - BT ALR - REBER
B E - AKER A FFERRKERBHRIA © F
AT 4SS BAE MR - 757K BE TR B S AR B SRt i 4
B EMBFHEME -

RIS EE RPN BBLREE - BT ATIT
EIRERNR L 2 BN EE - REERER
& BUESEE R KEBIER - AR BRI ES
RiER - NREEAITEREEF K =B
B RERR T ARSI SKEERBEE - UKk
RN EERNER °

A s 5 sl i 5 K B B TR T BB (IR E BRSPS 2
HEKRERBRETHERR [BEEFPEHT
RFRME] -
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SEZI - B ERABRETHE)
15 INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE
The following list contains the particulars of an associate,
which is an unlisted corporate entity whose quoted market
price is not available:

15 BHE A A

N2
z
JIEL

Y|

TRIVREBERRZER  BE QR
FEAES - BXWETISHRE -

Proportion of ownership interest

AR
Group’s
Place of effective Held by Held by
Form of establishment interest the Company  a subsidiary
Name of associate business structure and operation rEEY mALNE  mMBAR  Principal activity
N R £BRERA B REE S BRER #A BE  IEXH
Nanjing Jiangnan Veinous Established PRC 51% - 51%  Design, construction,
Industrial Park Development 3% H operation and
Company Limited (“Nanjing maintenance of
Jiangnan”) environmental
ARIEEREEXE protection projects
BRABRDA (Note)
(IMamIil) it @E - ER
BERERRAR
(FizE)
Note: The Group has significant influence, but not control or joint fizx: BEERIEZAA ﬁ{% s ANEE[F A] &

control, over Nanjing Jiangnan’s management, including
participation in the financial and operating policy decisions,
pursuant to the Articles of Association of Nanjing Jiangnan.
Accordingly, Nanjing Jiangnan is classified as an associate
of the Group.

Nanjing Jiangnan is established with local government body
in Nanjing city, the PRC, which enables the Group to further
develop environmental protection projects in Nanjing city.

The above associate is accounted for using the equity
method in the consolidated financial statements.

|l B

°
i

VN2 AQiTE 22 s %‘J)ﬁ??lfﬁ
ZERE “?E/,\/J&mﬁﬁﬂk&
K& - Bt - F‘i,?/lf'ﬂ)}i ‘*EZ%$%I

ZBEAT

B o A

A 5T R AR AR 8] 6 b B R R T E
R ERKY - EBAKEGAER
RiE— S ERIRRIAR o

BRAESZEMBRRAERIEA
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15 INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (continued) 15 Bt & N RIER (&)
Summarised financial information of the associate, NTREEAFICHBFELSE - HER
adjusted for any differences in accounting policies, and FRSHERREZZELFARE - WEHESE
reconciled to the carrying amounts in the consolidated WS MAR AT REELR

financial statements, are disclosed below:

Nanjing Jiangnan

SN
2015 2014
—E-8F —T-lmF
$’000 $'000
Fr Tt
Gross amounts of the associate’s NI NG =S =)
Current assets MBEE 62,516 105,599
Non-current assets 3F5;m@)i§? 321,033 293,810
Current liabilities REEE (624) (769)
Equity s 382,925 398,640
Profit/(loss) for the year FRNEAF(E8) 275 (81)
Other comprehensive income Hib2mEEA (24,276) 1
Total comprehensive income HEIBABE (24,001) (80)
Reconciled to the Group’s interest EAREEAREL AT
in the associate w2 ER
Gross amounts of net assets of the associate Bt A r| & EFEH L E58 382,925 398,640
Group’s effective interest AEEETERER 51% 51%
Group’s share of net assets of the AEBELKES AT 2
associate BEFHE 239,306 254,339
Carrying amount in consolidated ire BRI R R E(E

financial statements 239,306 254,339
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16 INTEREST IN JOINT VENTURES
Details of the Group’s interest in the joint ventures,
which are accounted for using the equity method in the

China Everbright International Limited

consolidated financial statements, are as follows:

B S BRNBEE)

16 A= X En

AEBEzAebEER(ERARDEESRS

P MRARR) BT

Proportion of ownership interest

HHREERLH
Group’s
Place of effective Held by Held by
Form of establishment interest the Company  a subsidiary

Name of joint venture business structure -and operation KEE 7 KRAm mIEBAE  Principal activity

REREARE EBEREA XL g BR R ] BE  FE!

Everbright Jiangdong Established PRC 50% - 50%  Design, construction,
Environmental Energy Bz hE operation and
(Ma’anshan) Company Limited maintenance of
(‘EB Energy (Ma’anshan)”) waste-to-energy

KRIRBRER(FEL) power plant
BRRE ) _fnote@)
([RXER(BRRIL) D) Rt BIE - BEEREE

RENFEER
(B EE()

Everbright SITA Solid Waste Established PRC 50% - 50%  Design, construction,
Treatment (Changzhou) DAY HE operation and
Limited maintenance of
(“EB SITA Solid Waste”) hazardous waste

HATTEEERE (FM)BRAR _ landfill (note (b))
([RAFERERE]) Rt R EER

EEREBRRES
(T35 (o)

Sichuan Everbright Environmental Established PRC 49% - 49%  Investment in waste-to-
Investment Company Limited %A I energy power plant
(“Sichuan EB Investment”) (note (c)) R

MK A IR RIREBRA A BERESH(ME(C)
(TR AERE ]

Everbright Environmental Energy Established PRC 64% - 64%  Design, construction,
(Suining) Co., Ltd. %A I operation and
(“EB Energy Suining”) maintenance of

KARRER(EZE)FRAA waste-to-energy
(MEReREE]) power plant

_(note (d))

Fet o BIE BERER
REIRHER
(PE(d)

Notes: B e

(a) EB Energy (Ma’anshan) was established by the Group with (a) AEEBRSBRLTHEEETBRARASE
Ma’anshan City Development Investment Group Limited in BREEBERARI(MEELE LS —KRE
the PRC, the other investor to this joint venture, to carry out E)RP B R ARRER(FE&IL) - ARE
the Group’s waste-to-energy business in specific areas in BILMEEEETAER 2 RBEEE
Ma’anshan City. 7% o

(b) EB SITA Solid Waste was established by the Group with (o) REERAZEGHERAA(LEEREL
SITA Asia Pacific Limited in the PRC, the other investor to B—REE )RR BRI KR EERE - B
this joint venture, to enhance harmless disposal ability of RASMNMESCEEBEZES ©
hazardous waste of Changzhou City.

(©) Sichuan EB Investment was established by the Group with (c) AEERMN)|EEREEEBFRETAR
Sichuan Energy Investment Limited in the PRC, the other (HEELEZS—IREE)RFREKILM
investor to this joint venture, to invest in waste-to-energy NHARTE » AR B8 2w R EEHE
business in Sichuan Province. %o

(d) EB Energy Suining was established by the Group with (d) AEERM)|EAKRE (LEERE 2R —
Sichuan EB Investment in the PRC, the other investor to TEE)RP BRI N RNEFRZEE - ARE
this Joint Venture, to carry out the Group waste-to-energy BEMETASE 2 IRFEER o
business in Suining City.

All the joint ventures in which the Group participates, are NEBZRENSELEFIELEMEATE

unlisted corporate entities whose quoted market price is W T RIE ©

not available.
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16 INTEREST IN JOINT VENTURES (continued) 16 & bEER(E)
Aggregate information of joint ventures that are not BRTERERZEELEZTBERE
individually material: &
2015 2014
—E-HF —ET-lmF
$’000 $'000
Fr Tt
Aggregate carrying amount of individually iR e B IS R PR (6 B
immaterial joint ventures in the consolidated TBREAZ & E %
financial statements ZEEmEE 209,161 27,289
Aggregate amounts of the Group’s share FEERLZEEERLE
of those joint ventures’ Ty &BEZHEERE
— Loss for the year - FREE (6,046) (594)
— Other comprehensive income —H2mEmkA 2,074 (6)
Total comprehensive income ZHERABEE (3,972) (600)
17 OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS 17 B & E
2015 2014
—E-RF —ET-MF
$°000 $’000
F T
Available-for-sale equity securities: FERANFES :
Listed in Hong Kong (note 28(f)(i)) 2 i (KaE28(f)(i) 5,398 6,601
Listed in other parts of the PRC FREEAMME T
(note 28(f)(i)) (Kt=E28()()) - 203,009
5,398 209,610
Unlisted in other parts of the PRC Hh B E A i R JF TR
(note 28()(i) (HtEE28()i)) 3,899 3,899
Unlisted overseas (note 28(f)(i)) YEINE T (M EE28(1)() 15,503 15,503
19,402 19,402

24,800 229,012
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18 DEBTORS, OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS 18 fEURBEZ: - Hfp el « e &

AND PREPAYMENTS FE I RIE
2015 2014
—E—FE —ZE U4
$’000 $'000
SEoE Tt
Debtors FEYBR SR 1,237,155 617,112
Other receivables, deposits and Hi eI EIE « 2e N
prepayments TEfTFRIE 7,520,175 5,733,244
8,757,330 6,350,356
Less: Non-current portion R, FERVHAER (D
— other receivables, deposits and — H U FRIE
prepayments L& MFERRIE (5,696,894) (4,376,789)
Current portion BIHAER 3,060,436 1,973,567
Included in “Debtors, other receivables, deposits and [FEUWEE X « b EW R IE « 184 RTEN K
prepayments” are debtors with the following ageing B IFEERERERER  ERSRESRZRE
analysis as of the end of the reporting period: DT ¢
2015 2014
—E—FE —ZE U4
$’°000 $’000
SEoE Tt
Current =i 660,592 442 431
Within 1 month past due wHE DR —1E A 122,976 55,687
More than 1 month but within 3 months #EAER B —(E A
past due BAZR={EA 79,238 48,569
More than 3 months but within 6 months mHEEBE=EA
past due BAZRNEAR 124,983 9,004
More than 6 months but within 12 months B EAER S N E A
past due ERZi+ @A 174,260 17,235
More than 12 months past due #EARBB+ @A 75,106 44,186
Amounts past due % B4 58 576,563 174,681

1,237,155 617,112
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18 DEBTORS, OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS 18 fEUBRER: - B ENEIE e &
AND PREPAYMENTS (continued) B 2RE )
The ageing analysis of debtors based on the date of 1R BR 3% B8 EIHHUZH&U\T:E PR B E
invoice (or date of revenue recognition, if earlier) as of the BXE)E JEMAZBETAﬁM;&iHH{zBE%“
end of the reporting period is as follows: T -
2015 2014
—E-hF —T—MF
$°000 $°000
T Tt
Within 1 month TER—EA 486,326 354,707
More than 1 month but within 2 months H:E—1E A
BAZ R E A 122,894 90,407
More than 2 months but within 4 months B 25 N A
BAZ R EE A 159,994 80,909
More than 4 months but within 7 months fREPm{E A
BERZREEA 193,757 29,057
More than 7 months but within 13 months BBatEA
BRZR+=EH 138,160 17,423
More than 13 months BidE+ = A 136,024 44,609
1,237,155 617,112

EUEFHEEAREF =1TE2NTHRE
Hl o REBEEBRRZE - FERTRHE

Debtors are due within 30 to 90 days from the date of
billing. Further details on the Group’s credit policy are set

out in note 28(a). 28(a) °
Included in “Debtors, other receivables, deposits and REBZ [EWERR - EMEWRIE - Ze &
prepayments” of the Group are debtors of $1,237,155,000 TARTFRIE | - BIEEWERF, 237 155,000

(2014: $617,112,000) of which $13,312,000 (2014: TT(ZZF—PF : 617,112,000t ) @ E &
$35,134,000) and $8,628,000 (2014: $10,734,000) are 13,312,00070( =& — M4 : 35,134,0007T)
due from a non-controlling shareholder and a related )328 628,0007C(=Z—H 4 : 10,734,0007T)
company respectively. Debtors represent revenue from 3 7| 75 e AR FE 422 I I BR SR IE I e U A Bt B

environmental energy project, environmental water project KB - BRWERF AR ERRERIER  RIR
and greentech project operation services revenue. There 7M%IEH F#EERREE ZEE RGNS

was no recent history of default in respect of the Group’s
debtors. Since most of the debtors are local government
authorities in the PRC and based on the past experience,
management believes that no impairment allowance is
necessary in respect of the past due balances as there
has not been a significant change in credit quality and
the balances are still considered fully recoverable. The
Group does not hold any collateral over these balances.
No impairment loss was recognised by the Group at 31
December 2015 (2014 Nil).

AEE 2 BWIRR SO B|E QL - AR
REHEBADSTEEWERFEE - RIE
BELS  EEERSBARBHRKE

R FEIR B - Z%%f‘ffé%lﬁtﬂfﬂék
e MARGRKDEESAZERE - K
SETERZFERFTATAERAR - K=
E-RAF+-A=1—RH AEBTERER
HaEEEE(ZT—HF - &) -
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18 DEBTORS, OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS 18 jEUBEZr « Efh el =IE - e &

AND PREPAYMENTS (continued)

“Debtors, other receivables, deposits and prepayments”
include balances totalling $5,946,927,000 (2014:
$4,531,875,000) which bear interest at rates ranging from
5.65% to 7.83% (2014: 5.94% to 7.83%) per annum and
relate to the Group’s service concession agreements,
among which $202,523,000 (2014: $208,021,000)
and $489,322,000 (2014: $505,981,000) are due from
a non-controlling shareholder and a related company
respectively. The amounts are not yet due for payment
and will be settled by revenue to be generated during the
operating periods of the service concession arrangements.
No impairment loss was recognised by the Group at
31 December 2015 (2014: Nil).

Included in other receivables, deposits and prepayments
at 31 December 2015 is an advance made to a local
government authority in relation to a service concession
arrangement amounting to $35,882,000 (2014:
$31,150,000), which is unsecured, interest-bearing at
rates announced by the People’s Bank of China and will be
settled by instalment until 2017.

Included in other receivables, deposits and prepayments
at 31 December 2015 is prepayment of $7,644,000 (2014:
Nil) to a non-controlling shareholder for construction
works.

All of the current portion of the above balances are
expected to be recovered or recognised as expense within
one year.

A FIA(E)

[FEUBRR ~ EfbERRE ~ e AN K
I8 | B #E A $£5,946,927,000 L ( =T — Y
F 1 4,631,875,00070) 2 &tk HIZF R
KRE565%%E7.83%(—F—MFE : 594% %
7.83%)FTEFE - BEAGLBSRAEE 2R
TR SR HE - H202,523,00070(=
T — P04 : 208,021,0007T ) K& 489,322,000
o (=ZZF— P4 : 505,981,000 ) 7 Bl & &
W IEZE R R RIE R BB AR ZIE - B
RAFRIE M AR B BB R WS ARSI R &
BT ZEERRETN - RZF—RF
+=ZA=+—H8  AEBEWEERETMAFEE
EE(ZE—NEF : &) o

E-ZE—RE+-_A=+—HBZHMEWKRK
B Ze RENKIEFR  BE—ZRAEMK
N EIEL R IETRERELHE R
3£35,882,000 T (=& —PH4 : 31,150,000
JC) c BB AEERMN - PR ARIRETT
Pz BEGTE  WHRZZE—tFRIHH

yem
BAK o

E_Z—RE+_RA=+—HZHMEKX
B EBReRBEMNFEY  SER—BIERER
RS AR TR 2FENMNFRIAT,644,0007T
ZE—POF: fE) o

bt ek 2 Fr A BNEER D TR EI Al X — F Al
El e ER AR -
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19 GROSS AMOUNTS DUE FROM CUSTOMERS 19 EWRE A4 T2 TEEEE
FOR CONTRACT WORK
2015 2014
—E—R4F —ZE—pUE
$°000 $°000
SEOE T
Contract costs incurred plus recognised BEEEALKNANE
profits less anticipated losses EWERAN - BIEH
[agi=] 22,944,995 18,009,803
Less: Progress billings R EE A (5,575,642) (4,169,060)
Net contract work BH TR F5 17,369,353 13,840,743
Representing: (A3
Gross amounts due from customers for EWREP&4ITIERIE
contract work BEE
— Non-current — JEBNHA 15,822,848 12,630,020
— Current — BNER 1,546,505 1,210,723
17,369,353 13,840,743
Included in “Gross amounts due from customers for [ENEZRFEFAEANITRRRXBAZE ]| R » 55
contract work” are amounts of $161,293,000 (2014: B 1 FE Uk JE 128 IR IR B R I,E161,293,OOOTE
$186,945,000) and $157,685,000 (2014: $179,561,000) (Z=Z—PE : 186,945,000 ) X FE Ut 78

which are due from a non-controlling shareholder and a

related company respectively.

Bk A A] 5k 18 157,685,000 L ( =& —

179,561,0007%) °

o4
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19 GROSS AMOUNTS DUE FROM CUSTOMERS 19 BIWRF&X TIZEFIBERE (&)

FOR CONTRACT WORK (continued)

“Gross amounts due from customers for contract
work” represent revenue from construction under BOT,
BT (“Build-Transfer”) and certain BOO arrangements
or upgrade services under TOT arrangements and
bear interest at rates ranging from 5.65% to 7.83%
(2014: 5.94% to 7.83%) per annum. Among the
total of $17,369,353,000 (2014: $13,840,743,000),
$13,496,518,000 (2014: $11,121,800,000) relates to BOT,
TOT and BOO arrangements with operation commenced.
The amounts for BOT, TOT and BOO arrangements are
not yet due for payment and will be settled by revenue
to be generated during the operating periods of the
service concession arrangements. The amount for BT
arrangements will be settled according to respective
repayment schedules as stated in the agreements.

20 INVENTORIES

(@) Inventories in the consolidated statement of financial
position comprise:

[EWEFPAEHTREAKBELLE]TIHBOT »
BE-#%(IBT]) RBHBOOZH T
CEERBKRFZHETOTLZH T 2 iE
TRz  HERFEX565%%7.83%
(ZZE— 4 : 5.94% £ 7.83% ) 5t & Fl
B o £ % % 17,369,353,000 Tt ( — &
— O 4 : 13,840,743,000 T ) A - H
F 13,496,518,000 7t ( = T — 1§ &
11,121,800,0007T ) i FE & A B & 2 BOT
KTOTKBOOZHE - EEBOT » TOTRBOO
LZHE T ZHKIBB AR BSAT WS ABRFS
AR B SY T c BTEHET
Z FIEASARE S [F AT BA 60 48 B8 18 50 3R
AT e

20 8

(@) BHAMBINARMAREFERR

2015 2014

—EB-HF —T-mF

$’000 $'000

Fr Tt

Raw materials and operating supplies EME R EE AR 76,909 74,719
Spare parts T a4 125,405 42,731
202,314 117,450

(b) The analysis of amount of inventories recognised as an
expense and included in profit or loss is as follows:

b) EERS/AXLAABERIFESH
DM

2015 2014

—F-RF _—T-AOF

$’000 $'000

T Tt

Carrying amount of inventories consumed B #BEFEEZEEE 541,943 119,892
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21 FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLES

The total minimum lease payments receivable under

21 & A& e W zkE
BEREHERINRERSERAER

finance lease, and their present values are as follows: WEWT :
2015 2014
—F-RF _—FTOF
$’000 $'000
Fr Tt
Within 1 year — R 1,687 1,758
After 1 year but within 5 years —FRERAFA 6,748 7,030
After 5 years hF® 25,306 28,120
Total gross investment 1A E KA %A 33,741 36,908
Unearned finance income RERIABKA (14,148) (15,975)
Present value of future payments receivable  FRRFEUFIE 2R E 19,593 20,933
Amounts due within one year included under EtAGRBEEZ —FNRN
current assets EIHAFRR (531) (522)
19,062 20,411
The present value of future payments receivable is as RIREWERIE ZIREWT -
follows:
2015 2014
—E-1F —TF
$’000 $'000
Fr Tt
Within 1 year —F R 531 522
After 1 year but within 5 years —FRRERFN 2,464 2 421
After 5 years HF# 16,598 17,990
19,062 20,411
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22 PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS AND DEPOSITS 22 BRI TIF R KL IRITIER

WITH BANK
Pledged bank deposits are pledged to secure certain bank EERRTEFREERIERREEE TRT
loans of the Group. B EHG -
Included in “Deposits with bank” of the Group at 31 AEBR-_ZE—RF+_A=+—B2Z IR
December 2015 are deposits of $80,135,000 (2014: TERIDEGEHRRBEE A TRITZHER
$717,358,000) placed with a related party bank (note 80,135,000 T (= Z — M : 717,358,000
31(g)). 7T) (FFEES1(g)) °
23 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 23 M MREeFEEY
2015 2014
“E-AF —E-mEF
$°000 $'000
Fx T
Deposits with banks RITFRK 901,813 1,033,938
Cash at bank and in hand RITHEBRIRS 5,051,668 3,060,158
5,953,481 4,094,096
Included in “Cash and cash equivalents” at the end of the RBEHAKR RS RESEEY | BE TR
reporting period are the following amounts denominated in TH - HIAMBEERE Y e S AN T Skt
a currency other than the functional currency of the entity 15 :
to which they relate:
2015 2014
2 —E—EF
USD’000 USD’000
FEx FET
United States Dollars =TT 12,544 25,448
Included in “Cash and cash equivalents” are the following [IRe RIBEEEY | BT T FHRABEE A
deposits placed with a related party bank: TEHRITZER
2015 2014
—E-RF —ET-MF
$’000 $'000
Fr F7T
Deposits with related party bank (note 31(g)) 1FHUAEEEE A TR1T
2 FER(MEE31(9)) 545,233 226,083
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24 INTEREST-BEARING BORROWINGS

(a)

The analysis of the carrying amount of the interest-
bearing borrowings is as follows:
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AREE

B =
(@) FFEBEZREEATMAT

2015 2014
—F-RF _—FTOF
$°000 $°000
Tx T

Current liabilities RBEaE
Current portion of bank loans IR{TERBNERE 3,409,555 2,330,273
Notes payable ENEE - 281,096
Non-current liabilities FErRBAasE 3,409,555 2,611,369
Non-current portion of bank loans SRITEFIERNEA R 15 12,411,111 6,525,142
15,820,666 9,136,511

All of the non-current interest-bearing borrowings are
carried at amortised cost. None of the non-current
interest-bearing borrowings is expected to be settled
within one year.

PrAEJFERNHIGt BIE R T IRE KA A
fR - REIRTE SEAN I REEEB T ERN

—FREE -

At 31 December 2015, the interest-bearing borrowings b) RZTE—RHE+_-_A=+—8 T8
were repayable as follows: BZERBERWOT :
2015 2014
—E-AF —E—F
$’°000 $’000
Fr Ft
Within 1 year or on demand —FARFRENR 3,409,555 2,611,369
After 1 year but within 2 years —FEERFNR 3,546,894 1,083,106
After 2 years but within 5 years MEBRBRFR 6,694,846 3,534,509
After 5 years hFi% 2,169,371 1,907,527
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, ISATITN 6525142
15,820,666 9,136,511
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24 INTEREST-BEARING BORROWINGS (continued)

RSN -

B S BRNBEE)

AEEEE)

(c) At 31 December 2015, the interest-bearing borrowings
were secured as follows:

€ R-FT—RF+-_A=+—H FRE
EZEMBRT -

2015 2014

—E-hF —ZE-HF

$°000 $°000

Fx T

Bank loans — secured RITER —HHIF 9,036,122 5,961,222

Bank loans — unsecured SRITE R — KT 6,784,544 2,894,193

Notes payable — unsecured e 2T — EER — 281,096
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, 6,784,544 3,175,289

15,820,666 9,136,511

Certain banking facilities of the Group are secured by
certain revenue and receivables in connection with the
Group’s service concession arrangements, bank deposits,
mortgages on investment properties, other property,
plant and equipment and interest in leasehold land
held for own use under operating leases and shares of
certain subsidiaries of the Group. Such banking facilities,
amounting to $12,547,872,000 (2014: $8,332,819,000),
were utilised to the extent of $9,036,122,000 (2014:
$5,961,222,000) at 31 December 2015. Among the
secured banking facilities, $1,812,168,000 (2014
$2,087,404,000) are guaranteed by the Company and
were utilised to the extent of $1,502,068,000 (2014:
$1,311,729,000) at 31 December 2015.

At 31 December 2015, the unsecured banking facilities,
amounting to $9,534,155,000 (2014: $5,382,197,000),
were utilised to the extent of $6,784,544,000 (2014:
$2,894,193,000). Among the unsecured banking facilities
of the Group, $20,000,000 (2014: $83,295,000) are
guaranteed by the Company and were not utilised (2014:
$63,295,000) at 31 December 2015.

ANEBETRITHREARNEBTRE L
LEEZETZ2HE TWRE R EKRKE -
RITER  REVE  HWE - BE
REBEARBELCEHEREERAZ
HELHESZEBREAEEETS T
WEBAR ZBRMHERE R_ZT—AF
+=-—A=+—8 - Lk it12547,872,000
T (=—ZF — /M4 : 8332,819,000 T ) Z
SR17T R E B 8 FH 9,036,122,000 7t ( — =
— P04 : 5,961,222,000 7% ) ° it A K&
IR TR E 0 E & 1,812,168,000 T ( =
T — 04 : 2,087,404,000 7 ) B AN R &
EER N-ZZE—RFEF+_-_A=+—8H
2 8 B 1,502,068,000 7T ( — & — P4 4 :
1,311,729,0007T) ©

R—ZZE—FE+-_A=+—80 &I
HIETHE 22 %A 9534,155,000 7T
— & — [0 : 5382,197,000 ) ' &
&) F 6,784,544,000 ot ( = & — 4 & :
2,894,193,0007L ) o kit 7N & B 4% 3K 37 iR
1TELE - HF20,000,0007C (= F — M4 :
83,295,0007C) A AR AIEER  R=F
—HE+-_A=+—8 VEHHEBERGRE
(ZZ—M4 : 63,295,0007T) °
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24 INTEREST-BEARING BORROWINGS (continued) 24 stBfEE (&)

Banking facilities of $10,068,138,000 (2014:
$6,814,162,000) are subject to the fulfiment of covenants
relating to certain of the Group’s financial ratios. If the
Group were to breach the covenants, the drawn down
facilities would become payable on demand. At 31
December 2015, such facilities were utilised to the extent
of $7,698,778,000 (2014: $4,409,568,000). The Group
regularly monitors its compliance with these covenants.
Further details of the Group’s management of liquidity risk
are set out in note 28(b). As at 31 December 2015, none
of the covenants relating to drawn down facilities had been
breached (2014: Nil).

CEWL, a subsidiary of the Group, established a SGD300
million (equivalent to approximately $1,686,570,000) of
multicurrency medium term note programme (the “MTN”)
in July 2013. As at 31 December 2014, SGD50 million
(equivalent to approximately $281,096,000) of unsecured
fixed rate notes were outstanding under the MTN. The

8 77 B & 10,068,138,000 7Tt ( = & — I
£ :6,814,162,000T) BN AETH S
REEPBEE2RZHE - MAEEEREB
A% BRI CABEAREEREE -
RZE—RAF+_A=+—H8 EH#E@ME
2 # A 7,698,778,000 T ( — T — P4 4 :
4,409,568,0007T) - A EEEHAEREH
RHEZBIERL - BEAEEEERDE S
B 2 —FER R E28(0) c RZF
—RFE+-A=+—08 AEETEEREA
BARRmE 2 RHE(— T —MF @ &) o

RZFE—Z=ZFt A HRKE(EERZHKH
2 N &) ) AKX 3 300,000,000 M0 3% 7T (48 &
M 471,686,570,000 7T ) % 1& ¥ 1& b Hi 2 4%

iE e R-F-mOEF+_A=1t—H &
ZRERTFHREFE T ZERTEER
T B FE 18 /50,000,000 13 7t (18 E A4

281,096,0007T) ° EEFF B RIEIEZFH S
R7 5% FE - WERZZE—RENAE
B e maE -

unsecured fixed rate notes payable were interest-bearing
at 7.5% per annum and fully settled on the maturity date in
August 2015.

Included in “Interest-bearing borrowings” are the following [FFEBEIRETIHRE  HUEEERE 2
amounts denominated in a currency other than the e EM AN Z & ’ﬁ%‘uﬂﬁ :

functional currency of the entity to which they relate:

2015 2014

—E-FF —E—F

uUsSD’000 USD’000

FEx F=ET

United States Dollars e 250,794 157,189

Included in “Interest-bearing borrowings” are the following [FrEEE |BE T A LIRITER

loans from a related party bank:

2015 2014
—E-8F TN
$’°000 $’000
Fr FT
Loans from a related party bank (note 31(g)) RamE A LER1ITE K
(MIEE31(g) 238,373 295,925
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24 INTEREST-BEARING BORROWINGS (continued)

Included in loans from a related party bank are:

0)

(it

(il

bank loans of $57,769,000 (2014: $84,105,000) which
is unsecured, interest-bearing at rates announced
by the People’s Bank of China and will be settled by
instalment until 2018;

bank loans of $167,447,000 (2014: $149,520,000)
which is secured, interest-bearing at rates announced
by the People’s Bank of China and will be settled by
instalment until 2023;

bank loans of $13,157,000 (2014: Nil) which is
secured, interest-bearing at rates announced by
the People’s Bank of China and will be settled by
instalment until 2025; and

bank loans of $62,300,000 at 31 December 2014
which was unsecured, interest-bearing at 6% per
annum and fully settled in 2015.

25 CREDITORS, OTHER PAYABLES AND
ACCRUED EXPENSES

24

25

Esy

=3=4C )

BB ALTRITREZERERE:

(i)

(if)

(iil)

(iv)

#8177 B F57,769,0007T ( — T — PO 4F -
84,105,0007T) + EAEEM « ZHH
ARBITAMZBEEGFTE  WHER =T
—N\FrimHEE

$RITE 167,447,000 ( —ZZF —PU £ -
149,520,0007T) * EABEF - P
ARBITAMZBEEFTE  UHERZZF
—=FRIoHBE

$RITEF13,157,00070 ( Z T — Y 4F -
&) EABER P ARRBITAMHK
ZEEE WA _RAFAISH
BiE R

R-EBE—NE+=-A=+—B2ETEX
62,300,000 © HAEIKWT « HFBX
6%:tE  WER-_Z—HELHES o

FER BRI ~ b N FIR K Bt & F

2015 2014
—E-8F —T—MF
$°000 $’000
Fr Tt
Creditors JEATBR TR 1,618,057 1,349,777
Other payables and accrued expenses B AR BT E R 1,173,993 945,224
Deferred income — government grants BEEWA — BB S 45,771 -
2,837,821 2,295,001
Derivative financial instruments TEemTA
— cross-currency swap — R X EEH - 22,239
— warrants — R R - 991
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, 028,280
2,837,821 2,318,231
Less: Non-current portion B FERNEAERD
— other payables — H A FE 5RIB = (15,850)
— deferred income — government grants —IBEUA
—BSwEe (43,365) -
Current portion BIERER 17 2,794,456 2,302,381
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25 CREDITORS, OTHER PAYABLES AND
ACCRUED EXPENSES (continued)
Included in “Creditors, other payables and accrued
expenses” are creditors with the following ageing analysis

as of the end of the reporting period:
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25 EfIERFR - HAth 5 K&

T ER (&)

[ERRR  BEMENRIERESER |
BREEMER  ARBRERRZER TN
-

2015 2014

—E-HF —ZE-EF

$°000 $°000

T Tt

Due within 1 month or on demand — @A REIHs IR Bk 402,411 141,499
Due after 1 month but within 3 months — = =@ ARNEH 98,253 87,548
Due after 3 months but within 6 months =ZEREARNEIH 45,276 41,471
Due after 6 months 7~E A 12 EI 2B 1,072,117 1,079,259
1,618,057 1,349,777

Creditors totalling $1,507,603,000 (2014: $1,279,360,000)
represent construction payables for the Group’s BT, BOT
and certain BOO arrangements, among which $1,196,000
(2014: $1,246,000) is due to a non-controlling shareholder.
The construction payables are not yet due for payment.

The Group will pay SGD50,000,000 and received an
agreed amount of USD40,176,778 under the cross-
currency swap. The swap was fully settled during the year
ended 31 December 2015.

The warrants at 31 December 2014 represented the
263,462 warrants outstanding in respect of the warrants
issued to convertible bondholders by CEWL in prior years.
Each warrant can be exercised at an exercise price of
SGDO.25 for one ordinary share of CEWL at par value of $1
at anytime until 26 April 2015.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, 62,030
warrants were exercised, which raised proceeds of
$732,000. The remaining 201,432 warrants were not
exercised and were expired on 27 April 2015.

4 #1,507,603,000 7t ( = & — PO F
1,279,360,0007C ) Z EH BR R A E A &£ B
BT  BOTkZMBOOLHE T 22 TI2fE
318 - Ef1,196,0007C (= ZF — PO 4 :
1,246,0007T ) & FE T 1= IRAR 3R 2 /I8 °
BETREENRIBEBRIEBIMT -

BEXIXEEREE  XEEH X
50,000,000 #1 N # ¢ - 37 Y B % 7€ & %8
40,176,778%% 7T °» LMl X XN E¥I= HiE R &
E-T-—RAFE+_A=+—HIEELHEEZE

&

TN+ A=t HzZRREEEH
RITME2263,46210 BAHER - H R AK
BRBEFEZRTTAIRBESKEAZR
BiEE - RBREERBATR _T—RFMN
H =+ 7N BATBER R 1T B 0. 253 I T 1T
ERAERE - SHRBEEATBA—RSK
EE1TT Z S AIKTE @A

RBEE-Z—HE+-_A=1+—HILEE -
62,0300 RIREFEEEITHE - EELFTEHIE
A732,0007T ° 8 T201,4321) R A kg 35 I
RETE  WER—_E—RENA=-++H
fER ©
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26 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

(a) Current taxation in the consolidated statement

of financial position represents:

26 #R B MR SLR PR B PR 1S 7%

(a) FEMBRAKRATHEHBES :

2015 2014
—F-RF —TAF
$’°000 $°000
S Tt
Provision for PRC income tax for the year A4 5 B pT15 L # i 270,916 210,399
Provisional tax paid BT EHH (156,452) (177,423)
114,464 32,976

Represented by: RE
Tax recoverable AT U el F IR (4,831) (34,684)
Tax payable FERTRIR 119,295 67,660
114,464 32,976
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26 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 6 fra MR AR RO (&)
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(continued)
(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised: (b) ERAEEREEERARS !
The components of deferred tax (assets)/liabilities EREGE T BRRRER 2 BELERIE
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial (BE)/BEBHRFNEEMT :
position and the movements during the year are as
follows:
Temporary
differences
on assets
recognised
under
HK(FRIC) 12
BE(ER Far value
(B adjustment
RERE on avaiable- - Undistributed
REQ)RE) for-sale  profits of
Z10%HB7  Revauation  securties  subsicliaries
JEE ofpopeties  BEZEZ  WELA Others Total

JEEER  MEEG OREEE ROERW R0 #E
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
i A R T A A O

At 1 January 2014 R-E-NE-R-H 711,581 20,863 (4,084) 239,309 - 967,669
Exchange adjustments B A% (11,348) (537) (374) (15,158) - (27,417)
Acquisition of subsiclaries WEHEAR 479,758 - - - - 479,758
Charged to reserve M ERmR - - 14,230 - - 14,230
Charged to profit or loss tEaET IR 262,902 - - 87,825 - 350,727
At 31 December 2014 RZZ-EE+-A=1-H 1,442,893 20,326 9,772 311,976 - 1,784,967
At 1 January 2015 RZE-1%-f-H 1,442,893 20,326 9,772 311,976 - 1,784,967
Exchange adjustments AR (70,262) (202) - (21,580) 269 (91,775)
Acquisition of subsidiaries WERBLR 185,105 - - 24,131 (14,528) 194,708
Credited to reserve NG - - (9,772) - - (9,772)
Charged to proft or loss HERERTR 408,881 - - 101,257 - 510,138

At 31 December 2015 RZZ-TF+-A=1-H 1,966,617 20,124 - 415,784 (14,259) 2,388,266
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26 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

26

A MBIORKRI RIS (&)

(continued)
(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised: (b) ERAELBREEREE : (&)
(continued)
2015 2014
—E-0fF —T-NF
$°000 $'000
Fx Tt
Net deferred tax assets recognised in RERE B IR R T RR
the consolidated statement of EERIEE EF R
financial position (36,483) (49,455)
Net deferred tax liabilities recognised in ~ R4R& BN R ER 2
the consolidated statement of EREFIAAE TR
financial position 2,424,749 1,834,422
2,388,266 1,784,967

(c) Deferred tax assets not recognised

In accordance with the accounting policy set out in
note 1(u), the Group has not recognised deferred
tax assets in respect of cumulative tax losses of
$307,754,000 (2014: $544,671,000) as it is not
probable that future taxable profits against which the
losses can be utilised will be available in the relevant
tax jurisdiction and entity.

At 31 December 2015, the Group has not recognised
deferred tax assets in respect of cumulative tax losses,
whose expiry dates are:

(c) RERELEHEEE
B FEI)ME ZSFTEEK @ A&
B Ep R BN B ERRETER
T8 & E 307,754,0007C ( =& — U &
544,671,0007T) * REAEH @A)
FHEREREBERET KA EIREERT
BRMSZBEERSINER -

R-ZE—RE+-A=+—08  ~&£E
WiEm Rt A N IERRETHREBE
B EIHAMT

2015 2014

—g-1F —TNF

$’°000 $’000

Fr T

Within 1 year —FR 7,686 21,566

More than 1 year but within 5 years —FRERERAFRN 47,164 66,157
Do not expire under current tax RIRIR I TS 551

legislation % FE F PR B 252,904 456,948

307,754 544,671
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27 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS

(a) Movements in components of equity

The reconciliation between the opening and closing
balances of each component of the Group’s
consolidated equity is set out in the consolidated

FrE S BRNBEE)

27 BR - R MR

(a) REMD22E
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AEESROES RS

ZHERENGERSEHR - ARAF
EEZBORFNRFRZEDFBEH

statement of changes in equity. Details of changes FnR
in the Company’s individual components of equity
between the beginning and the end of the year are set
out below:
The Company ¥/
Capital
redemption
Share Share Special reserve Retained
capital premium reserve ERER profits Total
fx BHEE  KAEE & REEA g
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T T i i i i
Balance at 1 January 2014 W-ZF-WE-A-Rz&% 483711 6956973 - 70 53038 794145
Changes in equity for 2014:  —E-mE7ExE
Total comprehensive income FERZENAES
for the year - - - - 712,381 712,381
Dividends approved in respect EREZFRRE (FaE2r(b)i)
of the previous year
(note 27(b)(i) - - - - (224,186)  (224,186)
Transition to no-par value RZZ-TLE-A=HEEZ
regime on 3 March 2014 EEFAEE (ME27(0)0)
(note 27(c)(i) 6,957,048 (6,956,979) - (70) - -
Dividend declared in respect BERAFERE (HEE27(0))
of the current year
(note 27(b)(i) - - - - (224,186)  (224,186)
Balance at 31 December ~ R-E-ME+-A=+-H
2014 L 7,405,414 - - - 800,047 8,205,461
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27 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS

(continued)

(a) Movements in components of equity (continued)

27 A - HEERRE (&)

(a) RHERD 2R (&)

The Company (continued) KD\ (&)
Capital
redemption
Share Share Special reserve Retained
capital premium reserve ERER profits Total
A RiPEE KhlGE B RERA a3
$'000 $000 $'000 $'000 $000 $000
T T T T T T
Balance at 1 January 2015 R-E-R4-F-HzEH 7405414 - - - 800,047  8,205461
Changes in equity for 2015:  —E-RE7EREH
Total comprehensive income FEERENALE
for the year - - - - 618,231 618,231
Dividends approved in respect Bk EEER 2 (EE2r(b)i)
of the previous year
(note 27(5)i) - - - - (69023  (269,029)
Dividend declared in respect BERAEERE(FEE270)0)
of the current year
(note 27(o)() - - - - (91441)  (291,441)
Balance at 31 December 2015 R=Z-RFET-A=1-H
B8 7,405,414 - - - 857814 8,263,228
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27 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 27 A - BEMKRE(E)
(continued)
(b) Dividends (b) BRE
(i) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the () FERNT T AL a2 A FERE

Company attributable to the year

2015 2014
—E-8F —E—NF
$’000 $'000
Fr T
Interim dividend declared and paid of B2 &k &2 FHi
6.5 cents per ordinary share (2014: 1% B A e. 510
5.0 cents per ordinary share) —E—YF
BAREB®RS5.000) 291,441 224,186
Final dividend proposed after the RIERREBEZDIRZ
end of the reporting period of 12.0 RERE B R E B
cents per ordinary share (2014: 6.0  12.0fll(=ZZ—py 4 :
cents per ordinary share) BRE @A%e.01L) 538,045 269,023
829,486 493,209
The final dividend proposed after the end of the R EHRRBREZE DK RHARE
reporting period has not been recognised as a WARERSHARERFBEE -
liability at the end of the reporting period.

(i) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the (i) BRE—EHEKFER - WRFAH
Company attributable to the previous financial ST T AR EIRRZ JETALE
year, approved and paid during the year

2015 2014
—EB-HF —T-EF
$’°000 $’000
T Tt
Final dividend in respect of the B E—EFEREE -
previous financial year, approved WA A EN ST 2
and paid during the year, of 6.0 REAN B &R EmAR

cents per ordinary share (2014: 5.0  6.0ll( =& — g4 :
cents per ordinary share) TR F@ARS.010) 269,023 224,186
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27 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS

(continued)
(c) Share capital
(i) Issued share capital

27 B -~ MR (E

(c) B&
() BETRAE

2015 2014
—E-RE M
No. of shares Amount  No. of shares Amount
RE £8 fR&n Ex |
'000 $'000 '000 $'000
T i T i
Ordinary shares, issued @ BETR
and fully paid: R4 T
At 1 January m—A—H 4,483,712 7,405,414 4,483,712 448,371
Transition to no-par value regime R-E—-NE=F=HBEZ
on 3 March 2014 (note) EEFEHE (3T) - - - 6,957,043
At 31 December “+ZRA=1+-H 4,483,712 7,405,414 4,483,712 7,405,414

Note:  The transition to the no-par value regime under

the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance occurred
automatically on 3 March 2014. On that date,
the share premium account and any capital
redemption reserve were subsumed into share
capital in accordance with section 37 of Schedule
11 to the Ordinance. These changes did not impact
on the number of shares in issue or the relative
entitlement of any of the members. Since that date,
all changes in share capital have been made in
accordance with the requirements of Parts 4 and 5
of the Ordinance.

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to
receive dividends as declared from time to time
and are entitled to one vote per share at meetings
of the Company. All ordinary shares rank equally
with regard to the Company’s residual assets.

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves
(i) Special reserve

On 5 January 2004, the Company announced
its intention to put forward a proposal for the
reduction of the Company’s share premium
account by the sum of $2,372,172,824 (i.e.
accumulated losses of the Company as at 30
September 2003) and the application of the same
amount of credit arising from such reduction
towards the elimination of the accumulated losses
of the Company. The reduction of share premium
account, approved by the shareholders at the
extraordinary general meeting held on 2 February
2004, was confirmed by an order made by the High
Court of Hong Kong (the “Court”) on 2 March 2004
and became effective upon registration of the said
order by the Registrar of Companies in Hong Kong
on the same date.

Mk : IRESEQAFMEMIZHEE  ER
—E-NME=A=HEHHRES
FEEMAERE - LB ZIEH
MR11EI7TIHRZHETE Rz AR
DHRERREMEANELDFED
MABRAN - BEEAZEHMELED
BITRR D & B ST R ER 2 48
s - BB BAZHAZ
?gﬁﬁ%ﬁ%%4%&%5%ﬁ
EH o

BB A EERRTEE R
BE  AREARAE LT HER
BRHEE—ZREE - RALAZ
R L
ZHEF o

(d) FEEEEREH
() FFfEE

RZZEZEWNE—HAH ' KXAFAQ
MERIRZE:E - HURAR RS
i BER2,372,172,824 7T (BN AR A 7]
HE-_ZTZ=FNLA=1+HZZ&:
E518) - W HIRIR D B BRTES
2R —ESEERSCERNEHEARD
RIZ RETE1E - IR IEERS
HER-_ZEEME_A _BE72
BEER RS FEREE - TR
—EENE=-f _HEFSESSE
BT (AR DIERBES FUAERER
KARER B BEFE QA EMHEZE
LB ERY -
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27 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(continued)
(d) Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)
(i) Special reserve (continued)

To safeguard the interests of the Company’s
creditors, the Company undertakes to the Court
to create a special reserve upon the reduction
of share premium account on the terms set out
below:

(1) that for so long as there shall remain
outstanding any debt of or claim against the
Company which, if the date on which the
reduction of the share premium account of
the Company (the “Effective Date”) were the
commencement of the winding-up of the
Company, would be admissible to proof in
such winding-up and the person entitled to the
benefit thereof shall not have consented to the
said reduction of share premium account or
agreed otherwise, the Company shall credit to
a special reserve in the books of the Company
(the “Special Reserve”):

— any amount arising by reason of a release
of any provision taken into account in
establishing the accumulated losses of
the Company shown in the statement
of financial position of the management
accounts of the Company for the nine
months ended 30 September 2003; or

— any amount received by the Company
as profit by way of distribution from a
corporation which was a subsidiary or an
associated company of the Company at
the Effective Date (a “subsidiary” or an
“associated company” respectively) which
is made by such subsidiary or associated
company out of profits available for
distribution prior to the Effective Date
or any dividend paid to the Company in
respect of any liquidation of a subsidiary or
an associated company commencing prior
to the Effective Date; and
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27 A - HEERRE ()

(d) EEEERE W (E)
() #FHIE R ()
BTRERQBERAZELS &
N R EBT 4R AR - REDR R G5
i B AR I RR S — B Bl R 4 - 16
mT:

(1) R R B HIR AR D8 B RRAE
ER(EMBEMD(EZARK
NANERHAKB) R EMLNE EMR
RBEBEBIARTHERR > Mk
FEBLAHFR/ARAFEREE
ZRIEMEEER  BLEER
FRRZZBATELTRE
ERHPERB R EREIR - AR
ARAE TS HCARNR B IR
B 2R hlEm ([ RIREEm1 T -

— HEBEEFARRAEZEZ
ZE=FHLA=1+HIEIA
AEERE R 2R T
FrR REt B8 2 (R B & P
EEZERE %

— ARBER-RBWEEF
ERBMDIKZH  BH
DA AR B B R A R A
BAASKEERR (D 5IE
WaIMEAR IR [BER
Al MmEREeBIBAE
YNGR NP
2 A B AT A DR 2 B A
AT AR BB AR R HA
RIERBBERITHZHMER
CIEZ NG GRS A
Bk
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27 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(continued)
(d) Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)
(i) Special reserve (continued)

(2

the Special Reserve:

— shall not be treated as realised profits of
the Company; and

— shall, for so long as the Company shall
remain a limited company, be treated as an
undistributable reserve of the Company for
the purposes of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance or any statutory modification or
re-enactment thereof.

Provided always that:

(1)

the Special Reserve may be applied for the
same purposes as a share premium account
may lawfully be applied;

the amount standing to the credit of the
Special Reserve may be reduced by an amount
equal to any increase, after the Effective Date,
in the share premium account of the Company
which results from an issue of shares (other
than for the purposes of any redemption or
purchase by the Company of its own shares)
for cash or other consideration or by way of
the capitalisation of distributable profits or
reserves, and the Company shall be at liberty
to transfer the amount so reduced to the
general reserves of the Company and the same
shall become available for distribution;

the amount credited to the Special Reserve in
accordance with the foregoing provisions of
this undertaking shall not at any time exceed
$1,762,999,500 (the “Limit”);
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27 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(continued)
(d) Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)
(i) Special reserve (continued)
Provided always that: (continued)

(4)

the Limit may be reduced by the amount of any
increase, after the Effective Date, in the paid-
up share capital or share premium account
of the Company which results from an issue
of shares (other than for the purposes of any
redemption or purchase by the Company of
its own shares) for cash or other consideration
or by way of the capitalisation of distributable
profits or reserves;

the Limit may be reduced upon the liquidation,
disposal or other realisation, after the Effective
Date, of a subsidiary, an associated company
or any of the financial assets or property, plant
and equipment of the Company by the amount
of the provision made in relation to such
subsidiary, associated company or financial
assets or property, plant and equipment as at
30 September 2003 less such amount (if any)
as credited to the Special Reserve as a result
of such liquidation, disposal or realisation; and

in the event that the amount standing to the
credit of the Special Reserve at any time
exceeds the Limit after any reduction of the
Limit pursuant to provisos (4) and/or (5) above,
the Company shall be at liberty to transfer
the amount of any such excess to the general
reserves of the Company and the same shall
become available for distribution.

The Special Reserve of $112,016,000 credited in
2004 was reduced to Nil during the year ended 31
December 2006 due to an increase in the share
premium account of the Company which resulted
from an issue of shares in 2006.

Annual Report 2015
—T-AEFR

209

27 A - HEERRE ()

(d) REMERBN(E)
() 5k (E)
W ()

(4) EEMHEEE - ARTRO(E
AAaEREEARTRMDER
SNBER e EMmRERE B
& AAbA] 79 IR 2 ) 2k 45 1 31 B
KRE) 28 REA I 55 B AR
iz &R BIER B REREE

(6) MAKMBHMEK - B8 HEX
LAE%E‘E%E}%W%/AE - B
RAHA R AUEM B EERD
% BERRER EA_E;:
FAA=THRBERAMNBER
ﬁﬁéﬁjj&ﬁﬁkéﬁi%% V
B R iR iR i 2 A 2 BUR
WER HEXBRFEMESL
ZRHFRBERSBE(NE) 2
2 ATRERDBREIRE K&

(6) feRi% X5 (4) B/ 3K (5) &k HI
ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ&%ﬁi?ﬁ%%%ﬁﬁZ%&ﬂE@
HBBAARMRE AR AR
BREBHZBEARAZ — R
- MARSBEAIHSIKZA -

REBEZE2_ZEEF+_HA=+—H
IEEE - EA_77E¢)\EEZ¢T%J
1‘%1%112016000mx =T Fl
=¥/ TRFETHRMHD
Bz *Tﬁﬂﬁi‘ﬂﬂﬁﬁﬁl



210

China Everbright International Limited

RS ABERARAR

Notes to the Financial Statements
B SRR T

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (& 5

RSN - A BAEEETE)

27 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(continued)
(d) Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)

(1)

(1)

(iii)

Special reserve (continued)

After the Effective Date, shares were issued during
the prior years through placing and exercise
of share options. Pursuant to the proviso (4)
above, the Limit was reduced by the amount
of any increase in the paid-up share capital or
share premium account of the Company which
results from an issue of shares for cash or other
consideration. At 31 December 2015, the Limit
was reduced to Nil and no further amount will be
credited to the Special Reserve.

Gooadwill arising on consolidation

The goodwill arising on consolidation has been
set up and dealt with in accordance with the
transitional arrangements under HKFRS 3 (August
2004), goodwill which had previously been taken
directly to reserves (i.e. goodwill which arose
before 1 January 2001) will not be recognised
in profit or loss on disposal or impairment of
the acquired business, or under any other
circumstances.

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the translation
of the financial statements of foreign operations.
The reserve is dealt with in accordance with the
accounting policy set out in note 1(y).

(iv) Property revaluation reserve

Certain properties previously occupied by
the Group as owner-occupied property were
transferred to investment properties in prior years
and a revaluation surplus was credited to property
revaluation reserve to account for the difference
between the carrying amounts and the fair values
of the properties at the date of change in use,
determined using market comparison approach by
independent firms of surveyors.

The property revaluation reserve of the Group is
not distributable as at 31 December 2015 and
2014.
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27 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(continued)

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)

27 A - HEERRE ()

(d) REMERBN(E)

(v) Fair value reserve

The fair value reserve comprises the cumulative
net change in the fair value of available-for-sale
securities held at the end of the reporting period
and is dealt with in accordance with the accounting
policies in notes 1(g) and (m).

(vi) Other reserves

Other reserves comprise:

— the difference between the consideration paid/
received for the acquisition/dilution of non-
controlling interests and the carrying amount
of non-controlling interests at the transaction
date, less the foreign exchange movements on
translation of those subsidiaries attributable to
the non-controlling interests; and

— the difference between the fair value of
the Group’s equity interest in subsidiaries
transferred to the acquiree for the acquisition
of subsidiaries and the net assets value
attributable to the non-controlling interests in
respect of the subsidiaries transferred to the
acquiree at the transaction date.

(vii) Reserve fund

Statutory reserve — wholly foreign-owned enterprises
Subsidiaries of the Group in the PRC, which
are wholly foreign-owned enterprises, follow
the accounting principles and relevant financial
regulations of the PRC applicable to wholly
foreign-owned enterprises (“PRC GAAP — WFOE”),
in the preparation of its accounting records and
financial statements. Pursuant to the accounting
regulations for business enterprises (1% &5t
[E 812 (2000)255%]), the subsidiaries are required
to appropriate 10% of the profit arrived at in
accordance with PRC GAAP — WFOE for each year
to a statutory reserve. The profit arrived at must
be used initially to set off against any accumulated
losses. The appropriations to statutory reserve,
after offsetting against any accumulated losses,
must be made before the distribution of dividends
to equity owners. The appropriation is required
until the statutory reserve reaches 50% of the
registered capital. This statutory reserve is not
distributable in the form of cash dividends, but may
be used to set off losses or be converted into paid-
in capital.
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27 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(continued)
(e) Distributability of reserves

(f)

At 31 December 2015, the aggregate amount
of reserves available for distribution to equity
shareholders of the Company, as calculated under
the provisions of Part 6 of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, was $857,814,000 (2014: $800,047,000).
After the end of the reporting period the directors
proposed a final dividend of 12.0 cents per ordinary
share (2014: 6.0 cents per ordinary share), amounting
to $538,045,000 (2014: $269,023,000) (note 27(b)(i).
This dividend has not been recognised as a liability at
the end of the reporting period.

Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital
are to maintain a strong credit rating and healthy
capital ratios in order to support its business and
maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and make
adjustments to it, in light of changes in economic
conditions. The Group reviews the capital structure
on a regular basis and considers the cost of capital
and the associated risks. Based on recommendations
of the board of directors, the Group will balance its
overall capital structure through adjusting the amount
of dividends paid to shareholders, new shares issues
or new debt financing. No changes were made in the
objectives, policies or processes during the years
ended 31 December 2015 and 2014.

The Group monitors capital with reference to its debt
position. The Group’s strategy was to maintain the
equity and debt in a balanced position and ensure
there were adequate working capital to service its
debt obligation. The Group’s gearing ratio, being the
Group’s total liabilities over its total assets, as at 31
December 2015 was 52% (2014 43%).

Except for the banking facilities which require the
fulfilment of covenants relating to certain of the
Group’s financial ratios as disclosed in note 24 to the
financial statements, neither the Company nor any
of its subsidiaries are subject to externally imposed
capital requirements.
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28 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency
risks arises in the normal course of the Group’s business.
The Group is also exposed to equity price risk arising from
its equity investments in other entities.

The Group’s exposure to these risks and the financial risk
management policies and practices used by the Group to
manage these risks are described below.

(a) Credit risk
Management has a credit policy in place and the
exposures to credit risks are monitored on an ongoing
basis. Debts are usually due within 30 to 90 days from
the date of billing.

Debtors of the Group represent receivables in respect
of revenue from environmental energy, environmental
water and greentech project operation services which
are settled on a monthly basis. In addition, the Group
has gross amounts due from customers for contract
work and other receivables in respect of the BT, BOT,
TOT and certain BOO arrangements.

At the end of the reporting period, debtors, other
receivables, deposits and prepayments and gross
amounts due from customers for contract work
of the Group amounted to $8,757,330,000 (2014:
$6,350,356,000) and $17,369,353,000 (2014:
$13,840,743,000) respectively, of which $249,495,000
(2014: $1,600,208,000) and $3,214,540,000 (2014:
$2,953,231,000) were due from the largest customer
and the five largest customers in aggregate of the
Group. The maximum exposure to credit risk is
represented by the carrying amount of each financial
asset in the statement of financial position. Since the
parties to BT, BOT, TOT and BOO arrangements are
local government authorities in the PRC, the Group
considers the credit risk is low. The Group does not
hold any collateral over these balances.
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28 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(continued)

(a)

(b)

Credit risk (continued)

The Group does not provide any guarantees which
would expose the Group or the Company to credit
risk. Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the
Group’s exposure to credit risk arising from “Debtors,
other receivables, deposits and prepayments” as well
as “Gross amounts due from customers for contract
work” are set out in notes 18 and 19 respectively.

Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group are
responsible for their own cash management, including
the short term investment of cash surpluses and the
raising of loans to cover expected cash demands,
subject to approval by the parent company’s board
when the borrowings exceed certain predetermined
levels of authority. The Group’s policy is to regularly
monitor its liquidity requirements and its compliance
with lending covenants to ensure that it maintains
sufficient reserves of cash and adequate committed
lines of funding from major financial institutions to meet
its liquidity requirements in the short and longer term.
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28 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(continued)

(b) Liquidity risk (continued)

The following tables show the remaining contractual
maturities at the end of the reporting period of the
Group’s non-derivative financial liabilities, which
are based on contractual undiscounted cash flows
(including interest payments computed using
contractual rates or, if floating, based on rates current
at the end of the reporting period) and the earliest date
the Group can be required to pay.

2015
“E-T1f
Total

contractual More than ~ More than
undiscounted Within fyear  2years
cashflow  1yearor butwithin  but within
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28 BEREEN SR IEAARE(E)

(b) RBEEER(E)

TRINIAEERBRERRZIFITET
AMBABZRBAOBRIER - LN
RIMAMBARERE (BIBREHOFIRY
(ﬁDE%/¥-D VIRBRE HRBITZH KRG
BB RAREBEEAERIA LR

FHEBAEEMIIL -
2014
ZE-PE
Total
contractual Morg than ~ More than
undiscounted Within 1year 2 years

cashflow — fyearor  butwithin  but within

Carrying  FT4&EH ondemand  2years  Syears Morethan  Carying :TAREE ondemand  2yews  Syeas  Morethan
amount  REHE  -FAm  -FR O @EE Syeas  amont  FERE -Ehd FE BER Sy
RERE a8 REX EREA  Bi%R nEk i) &% BEL ERER ERER REh
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $'000 §'000 $000
fn fn fn i T T T T v T T T
Interest-bearing itBfEE
borrowings 15,820,666 17,948,300 3995811 4,018,632 7,442,049 2491,808 9136511 10,703,197 3082888 1398377 4133202 2,138,730
Creditors, other payables &3 EfERFE
and accrued expenses”  REHER 2,792,050 2,792,050 2,792,050 - - = 2318231 2317240 2,301,390 15,850

18,612,716 20,740,350 6,787,861 4,018,632 7,442,049

2,491,808

11464742 13020437 5334218 1414227 4133202 2,138,730

*

The balances excluded deferred income — government
grants.

(c) Interest rate risk

The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from the
Group’s cash and cash equivalents, bank deposits,
bank loans and notes payable. Borrowings issued at
variable rates and at fixed rates expose the Group to
cash flow interest rate risk and fair value interest rate
risk respectively. The Group does not use financial
derivatives to hedge against the interest rate risk.
The Group’s interest rate profile as monitored by
management is set out in (i) below.

(c

~

* BRASRTERECRA-BN#EDE -

A= @b

AEEmEZNERAR  TEETEE
ZHRERBASFEEY  RITER - RT
ERREMNRRE - FBNEREEH
KPR ZERSAEEBD AR B SR
ENERBEAAENERR - A&EH
WERN B BT E T B RS A & &
%o ARBEZNEHRBEREES
N T)



216

China Everbright International Limited

RS ABERARAR

Notes to the Financial Statements
B SRR T

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (& 5

28 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

B

(continued)
(c) Interest rate risk (continued)

(1)

Interest rate profile

B S BRNBEE)

28

The following table details the interest rate profile
of the Group’s net borrowings (being interest-
bearing financial liabilities less bank deposits
and cash and cash equivalents) at the end of the

reporting period.

FrEREELERTERAAEGE)

(c) FIEm (&)
(i) FIEHR
TREJAEERBEHPRZEE
FE (A BB REMERITER
RRERVEFEY) ZFRHMR

2015 2014
“E-1E —T-mF
Effective Effective
interest rate $°000 interest rate $'000
BRAI=% Fr ERF= i
Net fixed rate borrowings/ T &EE/(F2) %% :
(deposits):
Bank loans RITER 4.70% - 6.00% 2,263,042 2.89% - 7.50% 1,267,769
Less: Deposits with bank W RIIER 1.55% - 2.17% (164,654)  0.97% - 4.25% (824,110)
Cashand cash equivalents B4 EHREZEY 1.00% - 2.80% (901,813)  0.45% - 3.05% (1,033,938)
1,196,575 (590,279)
Net variable rate FEREEFE:
borrowings:
Bank loans RITER 1.47% - 5.88% 13,557,624  1.45% - 8.00% 7,868,742
Less: Other receivables, deposits Ji : Eft WA - 4
and prepayments REMFE 4.75% (35,882) 6.00% (31,150)
Pledged bank deposits BERETER 0.27% - 1.35% (555,277)  0.35%  1.35% (031,043
Cash and cash equivalents B4 RBELZEN 0.01% - 1.00% (6,051,668) 0.01% - 1.49% (3,060,158)
777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777 91419 4545401
Total net borrowings BEEFE 9,111,372 3,955,212
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28 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

28 AR EENEMIARAE®E)

(continued)
(c) Interest rate risk (continued) (c) RER(E)
(i) Sensitivity analysis (i) BREE ST

At 31 December 2015, it is estimated that
a general increase/decrease of one percent
in interest rates, with all other variables
held constant, would decrease/increase the
Group’s profit before taxation by approximately
$91,114,000 (2014: $39,552,000).

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the
instantaneous change in the Group’s profit before
taxation that would arise assuming that the
change in interest rates had occurred at the end
of the reporting period and had been applied to
re-measure those financial instruments held by
the Group which expose the Group to fair value
interest rate risk at the end of the reporting period.
In respect of the exposure to cash flow interest
rate risk arising from floating rate non-derivative
instruments held by the Group at the end of the
reporting period, the impact on the Group’s profit
before taxation is estimated as an annualised
impact on interest expense or income of such a
change in interest rates. The analysis is performed
on the same basis for 2014.

(d) Currency risk
(i) Exposure to currency risk

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily
from bank loans, cash and cash equivalents, other
financial assets, receivables and payables that are
denominated in a foreign currency, i.e. a currency
other than the functional currency of the operations
to which they relate. The currencies giving rise to
this risk are primarily Hong Kong dollars, Renminbi,
United States dollars and Singapore dollars.

R—ZTBE—FAE+-_A=+—80 " &
AEEGE WA REE LR T
FIEBDE >  mMAABEEATTER
EHRBETE  AEBEZGRRATEF
15 &% 4 #5049 91,114,000 7T
—Z P4 : 39,552,0007T) °

PRFREDFTIEEAEE ZHRB
RIBFN PR EL 2 BN B &) - Gk
EOMBERNEZEHRHEHRE
rEE  YERREHNAEAEE
P B WA S HI R A & B T b
ARENEEBRZEBTA - HR
HAKRERBEMRAFEZZD
MEFTETEMELEZRE R
XAk HUAKEBRHAENZ
FERERNEEIMELZHNE
S AERGE - BRASMIR =
F—NF oM BREEETT -

(d) EXERE

(i)

AR ZBERER
AEEEHZEEREREZRE N
SN (BNARRE RS < IBE BB AN Z
E¥)FEZRITER B2 ERE
HEY  HUPBEE  EBURFA
REMNFKE - pREERRZE®
TEREE  AR®  ZTRHM
BIT
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28 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 28 MR ERERERMITARAEE)
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(continued)
(d) Currency risk (continued) (d) E¥ R (E)
(i) Exposure to currency risk (continued) () FAARZZEWERELRE(E)

The following table details the Group’s exposure TRFAVNAEBRREHRACTE
at the end of the reporting period to currency REENXBBE(NHAEB 2 DEE
risk arising from recognised assets or liabilities MM BBFHE) MEEA 2 BHKRA
denominated in a currency other than the o BABEER EXRERzERE
functional currency of the entity to which they Thiz ¥R 5 HA R 2 BN BRBE & 5 i 5
relate. For presentation purposes, the amounts BBIR o BINEB 2 IERRIBE
of the exposure are shown in Hong Kong dollars, AEEEZREBRELACER T
translated using the spot rate at the reporting girABK R -

period end date. Differences resulting from the
translation of the financial statements of foreign
operations into the Group’s presentation currency
are excluded.

Exposure to foreign currencies (expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BRRLVEER (A%HE)

As at 31 December
R-A=+-H
2015 14
Z§-55 =
Hong Kong United States ~ Singapore ~ Hong Kong United States ~ Singapore

dollars  Renminbi dollars dollars dollars~ Renminbi dollars dollars
A% \RY ET A \RE i
$000 $000 $000 §000 §000 §000 §000 $000
n r n n i n n S

Cash and cash equivalents BLRBLERY 97,985 651,510 96,135 2,103 114,570 71,713 192,099 103,646
Other financial asses EpiihaE - - 15508 - - - 15508 -
Bank loans rEEN (684,974) - (1,751,623) - (22.29) - (1155979 (281248)
Amounts due from/to) group M/ (A EEATHE

compies el (58) D509 45636 (35609) -0 130 M0 -
Creaitors, other payables and other /B[S - EfERTER

201U eXpenses EipEs R - (%6865  (23%9) - - BB (308%) (991)

(612038 1070061 (1998386) 2708 (17773) 1961920 (6389 (78599
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28 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 28 MR EERERMITAERREE)

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(continued)

(d) Currency risk (continued) (d) E¥REBE(E)
(i) Sensitivity analysis (i) HBE ST
The following table indicates the instantaneous T%EE/T\TE’ FRMERAREARE R
change in the Group’s profit before tax that would EEAVEZEERRERLRE
arise if foreign exchange rates to which the Group & - ﬁﬁﬁﬁfﬁ,ﬁ\ﬁﬂﬂ 2 NE R EER
has significant exposure at the end of the reporting Tx [E R A& B 2 BR BT & FI A
period had changed at that date, assuming all BEEECARED - HEMS - A
other risk variables remained constant. In this Elfﬁj‘”%mﬂﬁ1 i%ﬁ%zﬁ%fﬁ“
respect, it is assumed that the pegged rate RS2 xT/%EEEi%TEZFﬁE’JH
between the Hong Kong dollar and the United EEERKEATE EJELA%E.:HE
States dollar would be materially unaffected by ZEERABEMS r ARBTESE
any changes in movement in value of the United TCENME - BULIE KR E) 2 B EM o
States dollar against other currencies. The impact
of foreign exchange rate fluctuations with respect
to the assets and liabilities denominated in United
States dollars is insignificant as Hong Kong dollars
is pegged to the United States dollars.
As at 31 December
R+=A=1+—H
2015 2014
—E-1E —TmE
Increase/ Effect Increase/ Effect
(decrease) on profit (decrease) on profit
in foreign before tax in foreign before tax
exchange HBRBAT exchange SRR
rates pilA-7 rates Bflzg2
ExL#/ $000  ExtH/ $'000
(T%) T (T%k) i
Hong Kong dollars B 10% (61,204) 10% (17,773)
(10%) 61,204 (10%) 17,773
Renminbi ARE 10% 107,098 10% 196,192
(10%) (107,098) (10%) (196,192)
United States dollars e 10% (110,999) 10% (22,168)
(10%) 110,999 (10%) 22,168
Singapore dollars AT 10% 270 10% (17,859)
(10%) (270) (10%) 17,859

Results of the analysis as presented in the above
table represent an aggregation of the instantaneous
effects on each of the Group entities’ profit
before tax measured in the respective functional
currencies, translated into Hong Kong dollars at
the exchange rate ruling at the end of the reporting
period for presentation purposes.

EREJNNZDMERGHE T AEE
BB ABABENEEEFTE
BumBaNREE  AETE
NBERRCEXNERBEER -

13

=Y
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28 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(continued)

(d) Currency risk (continued)

28 BEREEN SR IARNAE#E)

(d) E¥mE(E)

(i) Sensitivity analysis (continued)

The sensitivity analysis assumes that the change
in foreign exchange rates had been applied to re-
measure those financial instruments held by the
Group which expose the Group to foreign currency
risk at the end of the reporting period, including
inter-company payables and receivables within the
Group which are denominated in a currency other
than the functional currencies of the lender or the
borrower. The analysis excludes differences that
would result from the translation of the financial
statements of foreign operations into the Group’s
presentation currency. The analysis is performed
on the same basis for 2014.

(e) Equity price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price changes arising
from equity investments classified as available-for-
sale equity securities (see note 17). The Group’s listed
investments are listed on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited and Shanghai Stock Exchange.
The Group’s unquoted investments are held for long
term strategic purposes. The management monitors
regularly the performance of the investments against
expectation, together with an assessment of their
relevance to the Group’s long term strategic plans.

At 31 December 2015, it is estimated that an increase/
decrease of 10% (2014: 10%) in that relevant stock
market index (for listed investments) or the price/
earning ratios of comparable listed companies (for
unquoted investments) as applicable, with all other
variables held constant, would have increased/
decreased the Group’s other components of
consolidated equity as follows:

(i) SRR (&)
FREISMIBREXZSHE AR
BN EAKREMKAESAKEER
&¢%X§§%%HkZW%I
B BEEEARFRBUERARK
ERAZEEE NI 2 EEHE
Z e FRIR N EUR IR © /B SN E TS
CEBRRAN AEEE REEE
EEZER  TEFABKRER -
EAIMR_ZT—NFEZH M2
RIEAEHETT o

(e) BAEEER

AR EAZBARE (WRRRFEBA
Er o AAMEIT) ZRAEREEE

cAREz EMRAHERBR G R
%Fﬁﬁﬁﬁ ARk EBBSFRZHM LT ©
AREBZIFLEMREHSRAKE R
mBA  ERETHERSIBERECE a
RETAHIRIR - Y HAMRERS
BAREE RAKETE

N-_ZTE—hFE+_A=+—8 #EXxE
BAET - nEBERMIEHRGERR LW
B )R A AR 2T AEER(GEA
ﬁé#t‘ﬁ&%ﬁ)(‘ﬁfﬂ%%@ﬁﬁ)taﬂ/ﬁa
10%(=—Z—M4F : 10%)  MmrA HA
Tml%ﬁ%?“  AEBEZEAER
ZEHM IS S IEAN/m AR

2015 2014
g-5% ~$-mF

Effect on other Effect on other

components components

of equity of equity

HERZ HiER

Htfpewe At 52

$'000 $:000

Fr T
Change in the relevant HERABRER
equity price risk variable:  TEREZZE( :

Increase 7 10% 2,480 10% 19,856

Decrease T 10% (2,480) 10% (19,856)
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28 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(continued)

(e) Equity price risk (continued)

(f)

The sensitivity analysis indicates the instantaneous
change in the Group’s other components of
consolidated equity that would arise assuming that
the changes in the stock market index or other
relevant risk variables had occurred at the end of the
reporting period and had been applied to re-measure
those financial instruments held by the Group which
expose the Group to equity price risk at the end
of the reporting period. It is also assumed that the
fair values of the Group’s equity investments would
change in accordance with the historical correlation
with the relevant stock market index or the relevant risk
variables, that none of the Group’s available-for-sale
investments would be considered impaired as a result
of the decrease in the relevant stock market index or
other relevant risk variables, and that all other variables
remain constant. The analysis is performed on the
same basis for 2014.

Fair value measurement

(i) Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair
value
Fair value hierarchy
The following table presents the fair value of the
Group’s financial instruments measured at the
end of the reporting period on a recurring basis,
categorised into the three-level fair value hierarchy
as defined in HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement.
The level into which a fair value measurement
is classified is determined with reference to the
observability and significance of the inputs used in
the valuation technique as follows:

— Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using
only Level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted
prices in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities at the measurement date
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28 AR EENEMIARAE®E)

(e) RAEMER(E)

U]

ERBERELTIELARE 2R AR
ZEMEBO AR ES Z BN EE) - HK
B2 R B h 45 B sk K A AR B R B
ERRZEPRNBEHROKLHE - A
ERREMFEAREMFALNES
HREASEmERAERRR 2/
TH i TREARERAREZ
ARESRELEEBRMIESEEER
BAERRZEFENELEBERE
TR AREZFERETERARMN
BB mESEMERRRTERET
BMERAD HIREE - URAEM
TERREFTE - FEIMKR_-F
—FE 2z Z AREEETT -

=114

DR B

() BAAEGEZHBEEERRE

DRBERBEH
TRINTAEERKEMRIZERE
HEEFEZERMTIARARE 4
MEMTARERBEEMBREE
BB [ AL EFAE/FREZ=
BEARERBRR - XA EFEMR
BRZERNTI2RIA T HERMAT
RBEABREENRERIZEM
B

- F—MMEE:ERE -RBEE
(IR ERHEREESBE
FERBMIS 2 REHBERE) 5T

EZRRE
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28 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 28 F 1%

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(continued)
(f) Fair value measurement (continued)
(i) Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair
value (continued)
Fair value hierarchy (continued)
— Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using
Level 2 inputs i.e. observable inputs which
fail to meet Level |, and not using significant
unobservable inputs. Unobservable inputs are
inputs for which market data are not available

— Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using
significant unobservable inputs

Fair value at

B2

EELRERIAERAEME)

(f) 2REFEE)
BRAGBHEZHBEEEREE

(i

31 December Fair value measurements as at
2015 31 December 2015 categorised into
W-2-B2F  THEAR-F-EETA=t-H

(&

DARBERBRA(E

F_MEE: ERE -_RHAE
(BIREERT B % — R E Z A A
BREFI2H8E  WRTERT
ABRBIAZERRB)GFEZ
NAfE - FABRFE 28R
REREHHEE 2 8E

F=MEE: FRTABREE
LEBRBBFEZARE

Fair value at
31 December Fair value measurements as at

2014 31 December 2014 categorised info

RZ-ME THERIRCE-METCR=T-A

TR LANERE i LhnERE
=t-A Level 1 Level 2 Level3  =1-A Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
AR -8 -t 2= DrE -4 ik =1
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
i 1 i 1 n S n S0
Recuring fair value ~ EEBALAEHE
measurements
Assets: 25
Avalablefor-sele equty  FEERAES -
securttis:
- Listed -k 5,398 5,398 - - 209,610 209,610 - -
- Unlisted = Al 19,402 - 3,899 15,503 19,402 - 3,899 15,503
Liabltis: 8E:
Derivative financia fTEgBIA:
instruments:
-Oross-curency swap ~ — XN EMEH - - - - 2,239 - 2,239 -
- Warrants - dkEz - - - - 991 - 991 -
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28 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

28 IAREENREMIARAEE)

(continued)
(f) Fair value measurement (continued) (f) AREFEE)
(i) Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair () BRAREFTEZHBEREERAE

value (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

During the years ended 31 December 2014 and
2015, there were no transfers between Level 1
and Level 2, or transfers into or out of Level 3. The
Group’s policy is to recognise transfers between
levels of fair value hierarchy as at the end of the
reporting period in which they occur.

Valuation techniques and inputs used in
Level 2 fair value measurements

The fair value of available-for-sale equity securities
in Level 2 represent an investment in a property
investment company, with its investment
properties (being significant part of the total
assets) stated at fair value. The fair value of such
investment is determined based on net asset value
of the investee which is approximately the fair
value.

The fair value of cross-currency swaps in Level
2 at 31 December 2014 was estimated by the
discounted cash flow approach, assuming that
the Group entered into an offsetting position in
the swap at the valuation date, such that the fair
value at the valuation date would be the sum
of the present value of the net payoffs from the
original position and the offsetting position on
the scheduled payment dates. The cash flows
associated with the assumed offsetting position
on the scheduled payment dates were estimated
based on the forward exchange rates with
matching maturities at the valuation date. The
net payoffs were discounted to present values at
the risk-free rates with matching maturities and
currencies.

The fair value of warrants in Level 2 at 31
December 2014 was estimated using the Binomial
Valuation model.

(&

DARERBRBI(E)
REE_Z—RFR-_ZFT—EOF+=
A=+—HULEFEAR  F—HLFE=
Wz B EAMERE  NECAEE
EANEHE=H - AEEZHER L
REER L 7 RS BRER AR
BERBRR 2 EHER o

F-RANETERER 2 GERM
k8B
F_RHFERAEFZAAERE
R—FKYERERAZRE %R
AZREME(ERBREEEKRE
MIBRRIAEIER BRAREZAR
RERBHERERR CEEFEE
o BABEEFERAAERE -

RZT—MFE+=-_A=+—H8" &
“RZRREBERZ AAETR
BERMIVEAMGE  BRAKER
[BERHITLHESEZEHA
#ARNEERHzAAERER
RIEEMNK B HRRE R E F ot
HERFEFHEAERZRE - HE
FHERBENKRAHNRERIIR
B K JE T B P ¥R 2 R R EE R pR (B
it FREBEMSCHREREY
& B 2 B R R Wt R BRI R
BE -

R-ZE—NWE+=-_A=+—8 ' &£
TR RBEEZALBEIRER S
B GHEERX T -
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28 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(continued)

(f) Fair value measurement (continued)

(1)

Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair
value (continued)

Information about Level 3 fair value measurement
The fair value of unquoted equity investments is
estimated with reference to the expected future
cash flows of the investments.

The movements during the year in the balance
of these Level 3 fair value measurements are as
follows:

28 BEREEN SR IARNAE#E)

(f) DAREEE)

() BAAEGEZHBEEERRE
(%)
FREE=RAAEFEZER
FLETERAREZ AARBENRSZE
BRARE 2 ARARIIRERMIAET -

hEE=BARENTEZ BRRE
Rz EBMT:

2015 2014

—E—FE —ZE—pU4F

$°000 $’000

T Tt
Unlisted available-for-sale FEFETIFERAES

equity securities

At 1 January m—A—H 15,503 -
Purchase of a limited partnership in BELSE—[AKREESD
an investment fund HN—RBEREEAEK

NG - 15,503

At 31 December R+—-_H=+—H 15,503 15,503

(i) Fair values of financial instruments carried at

(i) FLHARREINRZEBTRZAA

other than fair value

The fair values of cash and cash equivalents,
debtors, bank deposits, current portion of other
receivables, deposits and prepayments and
creditors, other payables and accrued expenses
and interest-bearing borrowings are not materially
different from their carrying amounts because
of the immediate or short term maturity of these
financial instruments. The carrying amounts of
non-current portion of other receivables and
deposits, prepayments, gross amounts due from
customers for contract work and interest-bearing
borrowings approximate their fair values.

The fair values of the above financial assets and
liabilities are determined based on the discounted
cash flow approach. The estimated cash flows are
based on the management’s best estimates and
the discount rate is market-related rate for a similar
instrument at the end of the reporting period.

=]

ReEMREFEY  BUEERENR R
Tl - RMERRIAE - He kB
MHREZRHED - A RE MK
A Hb BRI RER 2R &G
BEESFHAZAABEEREZR
HEYEEXZRE RAS/LEFS
BTAHBARKINEHAIE -
Hh fE U 5K IR i & 2 3F B0 A3 &R
o BNRE - BUREFEHTIRE
RERBENGEEEZREERERK
FZDAERE -

LM B EERMBABZARE
TR RMBVEAFBEETE © Hat
BeRDREBE Z&EMEE
8 MR EARHSHREM
TAZMBHABLE -
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29 ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES
(a) Dalian Dongda Water Co., Ltd. (“Dalian

29 WEEHMIEB A A
(a) REFREABERAT(RERE])

Dongda”)

On 28 August 2015, CEWL and Beijing Everbright
Water Investment Management Co., Ltd (“BEWI”),
a wholly-owned subsidiary of CEWL, entered into
an equity transfer agreement (“the Agreement”) with
Dongda Group Co., Ltd (“Dongda Group”) and Mr. Liu
Yubao (together “the Sellers”), pursuant to which BEWI
agreed to acquire the entire equity interest in Dalian
Dongda and provide new shareholder’s loan to Dalian
Dongda as it retires all outstanding debts due by the
Dalian Dongda Group to one of the Sellers, Dongda
Group, at a total consideration of RMB1,843,978,000
(approximately equivalent to $2,238,866,000).

At the date of acquisition, Dalian Dongda and
certain of its subsidiaries had claims against relevant
PRC government authorities for RMB203,150,000
(approximately equivalent to $246,421,000) under
certain service concession arrangements. Any claim
amounts recovered from the relevant PRC government
authorities within three years from completion of
acquisition of 90% equity interest in Dalian Dongda by
BEWI on 4 November 2015 (“Three-year Period”) will
be payable to Dongda Group. Dalian Dongda and its
subsidiaries will also bear taxes, if any, arising from the
actual receipt of these claims. Having considered all
currently available information, the Directors are of the
view that the recovery of the claims is not probable and
that any tax liability in relation to the receipt of these
claims is remote.

The remaining 10% equity interest (“Remaining
Interest”) will be transferred to BEWI each year in
the Three-year Period based on the proportion of
claims recovered. All of the Remaining Interest will be
transferred to BEWI regardless of how much claims are
recovered at the end of the Three-year Period.

RZE—RFNAZFTNAB » HKRKE
PR A ARKEREEEAR AT ([
RHAARKE ] KRB Z2EHBA
AEFEEEARAR([RELE]) X
BEELE(ABIER DI RiEwEE
e ([Z e ]) o Bt - bR KK
B2 AKERZES IR - WIRERH
REERTRERE - UBEHEERNE
RESEEREF—RBEHCARER
I - BB/ ARM1,843,978,0007T
(FEE N #2,238,866,0007T ) °

REEE  REREREETHEBEAR
ARES TRESTEERLHERE S
R B B B B = A R 208,150,000
7T (HHE R #7246,421,0007T ) ° fE1b R
WARKBR_E—RE+— AMB TR
U BE KB RIZEQ0% R = F ([ =4F
HEDA - #EBPRBA#EKE 2
FABRERREEI NS TFTREESR - KiE
BEREH B QR INEEARERERUE
EREARFEMEEZRE(NE) o &
EEBRAMBZAABERE E2RE
FRA el E B RBEEBREKIE ¢+ i B UE
FHBHRFREMELAREA B ZHEM
TEA -

BRI 10% 2 BHE (T 87 TR ) IR =4
HIR A& FAR IR B R 0E 2 W @ b )
&AL R RKTE - Z2EPAR T RN
= F HAME A5 SR I 5 T AE SO KK
i i e [El 2 D B =R o
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29 ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 20 WEEMIB A=) (&)
(a) Dalian Dongda Water Co., Ltd. (“Dalian (a) RERZFKKEARAR ([ KERE )

Dongda”) (continued) (&)

Pursuant to the Agreement, upon the completion RIRZ e - E T EE REREI0%
of acquisition of the 90% equity interest in Dalian RiEE BRERTERBER=ZFHHENA
Dongda, BEWI is entitled to the share of profits or B b RO KUK - ML R KK ES
loss, assets and liabilities of Dalian Dongda in respect EERBRTHEESDMANEREZ AL -
of the Remaining Interest, even though the Remaining BERBE-

Interest will be transferred to BEWI over the Three-year

Period.

The net assets acquired and the goodwill arising from

WEMEEEFBRRBEE ZHED

the acquisition are as follows: T:

Fair value
on date of
acquisition

U B R
ZRAE
$'000
Tt
Property, plant and equipment W - BERE&E 380
Intangible assets B EE 574,252
Gross amounts due from customers for JEWE A TRAIAMATE N
contract work and other receivables H fh fE U 308 1,558,620
Trade and other receivables JE L BR 3k K2 EL At E W R IE 216,318
Cash and cash equivalents ReERRSEEY 75,529
Interest-bearing borrowings STEEE (161,282)
Trade and other payables JE A<F BR SR K2 L A E <) IR (75,182)
Current taxation ZHARK IR (26,883)
Deferred tax liabilities RIER IR A E (194,708)
Net assets acquired WHEFTISBEEF58 1,967,044
Goodwill recognised EEREE 271,822
Purchase consideration EERE 2,238,866
Cash consideration HERE 2,238,866
Cash acquired WIEFTSEH S (75,529)
Net cash outflow IR FEE 2,163,337




Annual Report 2015
Selngry 221

Notes to the Financial Statements
Br SRR =T

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (k58 =ERESN + FiE SRS E)

29 ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 29 WHEKTEB A B) (&)
(a) Dalian Dongda Water Co., Ltd. (“Dalian (a) RERZEKBERLIB (T KRERZ])

Dongda”) (continued)

From the date of acquisition to 31 December 2015,
Dalian Dongda contributed revenue of $34,264,000
and profit of $7,534,000 to the Group’s net profit
for the year ended 31 December 2015. Had the
acquisition taken place on 1 January 2015, the
consolidated revenue and profit for the year of
the Group would have been $8,774,506,000 and
$2,404,915,000 respectively. In determining these
amounts, management assumed that the fair value
adjustments to the acquired assets and liabilities that
arose on the date of acquisition would have been the
same if the acquisition had occurred on 1 January
2015.

Measurement of fair values

The valuation techniques used for measuring the fair

value of material assets and liabilities acquired are as

follows:

Assets acquired Valuation technique

Property, plant and Fair value less cost
equipment of disposal using
discount cash flow
analysis

Fair value less cost
of disposal using
discount cash flow
analysis

Gross amounts due from Fair value less cost
customers for contract work  of disposal using
and other receivables discount cash flow

analysis

Intangible assets

(&)

REBEE=_FT—AF+=-_A=+—81
FE O AKBHHBEE-_ZT—AF+=
B=+—BHR RERZEFBE KIS
34,264,0007T R B A& B F AR TR A
#17,534,0007C ° WERERXHTIN_F
—hF—A—RHi#T  AEBZFANE
& kAR R A8,774,506,0007T
$%2,404,915,0007T - EEEHEZE S
B EREERIMEEREN_-_"Z—A
F—A—H%4LE WEMBSEERARE
RIWEEBFTEA Z AR ERBEFITE -

A% 3B
SHEMMFBEAAERAEL ALE
P B 2 (s R A T

WA E 1 EF A

YME - BELRE ERRSRAE
o BARE
Rl B B AR

B EE ERRE AR
o RAARE
Rl B AR

EREFPEHNIRE EAREMAR
IR N o BARE
H {th YRR R, B AR
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29 ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
(b) HanKore Environment Tech Group Limited

(“HanKore”, currently known as China
Everbright Water Limited)
On 30 December 2013, the Group entered into
a framework agreement with HanKore, pursuant
to which, the Group transferred its investments in
environmental water segment to HanKore and in return
HanKore agreed to allot and issue shares to the Group.
Upon the completion of the transaction the Group
held more than 50% of the enlarged share capital of
HanKore and HanKore became a subsidiary of the
Group.

On 2 June 2014, the Group entered into a sale
and purchase agreement with HanKore, pursuant
to which, the Group transferred its equity interest
in China Everbright Water Investments Limited
(“CEWIL”), which holds all of the environmental water
projects of the Group, to HanKore and HanKore
issued 1,940,269,305 new shares to the Group and
became a subsidiary of the Group. The transaction
was completed on 12 December 2014. Effectively
the Group transferred 22% equity interest in CEWIL
to the shareholders of HanKore and gained control
over HanKore. The Group holds approximately 78%
equity interest in HanKore after the completion of the
transaction.

The Group incurred transaction costs of $21,445,000
during the year ended 31 December 2014 for this
acquisition. These costs have been expensed
and included in “Administrative Expenses” in the
consolidated income statement.

29 WEEMIB AT (&)
(b) ERBENFEBMERAT (EN ]

BBPEXEAKBERLE)

R—E—=F+-"A=+H8 A~EEH
ERIETIER B o Bt - AKBERE
BHENRIRKIEEF DRI EEET
ER MERBIRERZELRETRD T
AEBUERR - EEBER S TEKE -
REBFHERCEARAHEA50% -
ERIEAmK AAEEMB AR -

R-ZE—MENA-H » AEBBEZER
FIVEEHE o Bt AEEERE
FrEd B RKBEEER QR (K
AKBIZE ] FEAEE A RRK
WIEE)RETER - mIZERAIEET
1,940,269,305% ¥k (0 T AL B - WK
AAEBENKEBAR - RERXRZENRZ
T—NUEF+_A+ZHZX EAEH
HR00% 2 HRKIEILERE T IER 2
fRER%  NEEER EEUSERAIES
#oMRHTENE  ARBREERAD
78% A% HE o

RBEE_ZE—NF+_A=+—HLF
B AEBERRERERIEERFK
7K21,445,0007C ° WLEKAERERE B
mAPSHE GFAITTHRERIA -
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29 ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Qingdao Veolia Water Operating Company
Limited (“Qingdao Veolia”, currently known as
Qingdao Everbright Water Operating Limited)
On 24 July 2014, the Group entered into an agreement
with Veolia Water S.A. (“Veolia”), the controlling
shareholder of the Group’s associate, Qingdao Veolia,
pursuant to which Veolia agreed to sell and the Group
agreed to purchase additional 78% equity interest in
Qingdao Veolia at a consideration of RMB1,800,000
(equivalent to approximately $2,253,000). The Group
holds 99% equity interest in Qingdao Veolia following
the completion of the transaction.

Lianyungang Suzukigumi Hazardous Waste
Treatment Limited (“Suzukigumi”)

On 15 January 2014, the Group, entered into an
agreement with an independent third party to purchase
100% equity interest in Suzukigumi at a consideration
of RMB26,040,000 (equivalent to approximately
$33,302,000). Suzukigumi becomes a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Group and was renamed to Everbright
Environmental (Lianyungang) Hazardous Waste
Treatment Limited following the completion of the
transaction.
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29 WHEKTEB A B) (&)

(c)

(d)

BEERYBKEEEEBRAR(EE
B BBEEXRKBELRR
AF)
R-ZE—ME+A-+MAE » AEEH
Veolia Water S.A. ([ B3]+ 7S5 BB
ERNAESEY I IERARE)FTS
FoBl RUBREHE  mAKE
BEEIINEE S SR HENT78%E -
R BB AR 1,800,000t (& R4
2,253,0007T) ° ER ST E - AEHE
BHES B HEIIW%LHE o

EEARAEAEEYEERRAT
(TEZEBRAMA]
RZZE—WNF—F+HH ' AEEHF
NE=FR M BEEEBERARAE
100% Rz # - KB & A R % 26,040,000
7T (FE R #33,302,0007T ) ° EEH L
NEKBAEEZZ2EMBAR - WK
REGTEKEDBBIHERRIRCGEES)E
EZEYREBRAF °

Net cash (paid for)/acquired from the (e) WEBKMB AR (Fifd), Fri8R & FHE
acquisition of subsidiaries

2015 2014

—F-h2F —T-HWF

$’000 $'000

T Tt

Acquisition of Dalian Dongda (note 29(a)) W B& A& 5 32 (Ff5E29(a)) (2,163,337) -

Acquisition of HanKore (note 29(b)) W EgsZERH(FIFE29(b)) - 288,494
Acquisition of other subsidiaries Ui B = Ath B B N &)

(notes 29(c) and 29(d)) (P 5E29(c) K2 29(d)) - (25,804)

(2,163,337) 262,690
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30 ACQUISITION OF NON-CONTROLLING

31

INTERESTS

On 24 July 2014, the Group entered into an agreement
with Veolia, the non-controlling shareholder of the
EB-VW HK Holding Company Limited (“EB-VW”, the
Group’s 60% owned subsidiary), pursuant to which Veolia
agreed to sell and the Group agreed to purchase the
remaining 40% equity interest in EB-VW at a consideration
of RMB90,200,000 (equivalent to approximately
$113,637,000). EB-VW becomes a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Group and was renamed to Everbright
Water (Qingdao) Holdings Limited following the completion
of the transaction.

The Group recognised:
— adecrease of non-controlling interests of $131,428,000;

— a decrease of other reserves of $2,181,000; and

— anincrease in exchange reserve of $19,972,000.

MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed
elsewhere in these financial statements, the Group entered
into the following material related party transactions.

(@) The Group entered into the following related party
transactions with a related party bank:

30 WiEIEIE IR &=

31

R_Z—NELtA-—+HHE  AEBERT
H(HEREBLHEKRBESZERERAE (X
ABYHES]  NEBBEBO%ER Z
MIB AR ) ZIEERR AR R AT S ek UL
BYKRELE  MAKEREBEEXK
BB BB TA0%HE  RKEBEAARE
90,200,0007T (48 & M 49118,637,0007T ) °
KRB HEEXNAAEBZ2ENEAR
A WRREZEKEBBBAERAKE(FES)
ZRER AR o

AEEFER:

- SEERR#EZIR4131,428,0007T ;

- HuafF#ERA2,181,0007T : K&

- [EXHEHIEI19,972,0007T °
HEEBA T EARS

BT HEVERREMTOMBEEZIRS R
EERIN 0 AEB B EBEB A TET NIEKXR
R5 e

(@) RNEBEE—RE A LRITAILT T5I
A LR S :

2015 2014

—E-hF —ZE-HF

$°000 $°000

T Tt

Dividend income from listed securities FHEAEREWA 956 10,477
Interest expense MBS H 13,528 16,949
Interest income FEBUA 3,490 22,356
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (k58 =ERESN + FiE SRS E)
31 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 31 EHEBA LT Z2EARAR S (£)
(continued)

NIVl

(b) The Group entered into the following related party
transactions with an associate:

(b) A& 68— L
AER5 :

2015 2014
—E—R4E —ZE U
$’000 $'000
Fi Fit
Service expense for operation of EREE SKEERZ
waste-water treatment plants PR 75 7 2 = 31,185

(c) The Group entered into the following related party

(c) AEEEEIEZEMARETL T T 51 BE

transactions with a non-controlling shareholder of the ATRS :
Group:
2015 2014
—E-—RE —ZE-HF
$’000 $'000
T Tt
Revenue from environmental water IRIRKTEIA B 1B IR7%
project operation services Wz 70,271 55,292
Finance income B RS UL A 25,197 26,753

(d) The Group entered into the following related party
transactions with a related company and subsidiaries
of non-controlling shareholders of the Group:

(d) REBEEEAE AR REFZERRRZ
MIBABRIZ T THIBEBALRS ¢

2015 2014
—E-AF —T—MF
$°000 $°000
Fr FIT

Revenue from environmental water IRIRIKTEIE B & AR 7%
project operation services g 52,400 56,161
Finance income R ON 50,687 52,596
Technical service expense T RS & = 818
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31 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(continued)

(e) The Group entered into the following related party

31 HEMALZEAR S (&)

(e) AeE L —RE XK BAFEIZ N

transactions with a fellow subsidiary: A LTRS :
2015 2014
—E-—RHE —E—NF
$’000 $'000
T Tt
Purchase of a limited partnership in BELE—EAREEASH
an investment fund —XEREBEEEINAT - 15,503

(f) The Group paid key management personnel
compensation as follows:

(f) AEBEEXNTEEEEABZRMM
B

2015 2014
—Z2-hF —T—MF
$’000 $'000
Fi Fi

Salaries and other short-term FeRHEMEHES
employee benefits =l 105,451 65,359
Retirement scheme contributions RORETEI R 3,515 3,033
108,966 68,392

Total remuneration is included in “Staff costs” (see
note 6(b)).

(g) During the year ended 31 December 2015, the
Group entered into certain continuing connected
transactions. The Company’s independent non-
executive directors have reviewed these transactions.
Details of which are disclosed under the paragraph
“Continuing connected transactions” in the report of
the directors.

M@t ATEIRAIA(RME
B(b))

(9) REBE-_Z—RFE+-_A=1t—BI*
B AEBEYTEHETHEBERS -
ARNBIZBIYIFHNTESTEEHEBAR
5 ERRGFREEETSMRERFE
BER S | —f N HE -
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32 COMMITMENTS
(a) At 31 December 2015, the Group had outstanding
purchase commitments in connection with the Group’s
construction contracts not provided for in the financial

statements of $2,728,184,000 (2014: $1,844,637,000).

(b) At 31 December 2015, the total future minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases are
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32 &I
(@ R—T—HE+_-_A=1+—H0 ~&£H
WAEH BHREFPEEEEAEEZ
EE K 2 RIBAEIE 52,728,184,000 7T
(—=Z—PO4 : 1,844,637,0007T) °

(b) R—E—FHE+=—_A=+—8 " BET
AERNEEHEREH B EMNORIER

payable as follows: EfREENAT -
2015 2014
—F-RF _—FTOF
$°000 $°000
T Tt
Within 1 year —F R 10,406 2,429
After 1 year but within 5 years —FRERAFA 2,045 2,746
12,451 5175

The Group leases a number of properties under
operating leases. The leases typically run for an initial
period of one to five years. None of these leases
includes contingent rentals.

(c) At 31 December 2015, the Group had outstanding
capital commitment relating to the purchase of a
limited partnership in an investment fund not provided
for in the financial statements of $23,258,000 (2014
$23,270,000).

(d) At 31 December 2015, the Group had outstanding
capital commitment relating to the capital contributions
to joint ventures not provided for in the financial
statements of $288,793,000 (2014: $65,415,000).

(e) At 31 December 2015, the Group had outstanding
capital commitment relating to the capital contribution
to an associate not provided for in the financial
statements of $9,760,000 (2014: $10,167,000).

33 PLEDGE OF ASSETS
Details of assets pledged are set out in note 24. The
aggregate net book value of assets and equity interests in
subsidiaries pledged amounted to $20,487,905,000 as at
31 December 2015 (2014: $13,801,583,000).

AEBRBEKLEHEERZENE - A
MEE— RO RE—ZEZ0%F BX T
BExEEE -

(c) R=E—RHE+=-_A=+—8 ~&£H
WAREFBHRERF  RBEEEE—E
REEESHN—REBREFANRAFTZ
B AN #HE23,258,00070 ( = F — P04
23,270,0007T ) {EH B -

d R=T—RE+=-A=+—8  ~&£H
WARETERERPREECELTEZE
2N A HE 288,793,000 7T ( = T — U 4 ¢
65,415,00070 ) 1 B -

(e) R—ZE—RE+_A=+—H  £A&£H
WAEHBHRERPRBEEREELZ
& N & HE9,760,000 7T ( — = — PO 4F ¢
10,167,0007T ) {E H # & -

33 EEHH
EEBEEFIBHAMF24 - RZZT—RF
+=ZA=+—H8 BEHAEEERNBARK
2 BRH FE 258 520,487,905,0007T0 ( =
T — P4 : 13,801,583,0007T) °
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34 COMPANY-LEVEL STATEMENT OF

34 RRBIZHBEARREK

FINANCIAL POSITION

2015 2014
—E-1f e St
$'000 $'000 $000 $000
Tr Tr T T
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - WENEE 3,167 3,466
Interest in subsidiaries B A m RS 12,109,370 8,680,195
Other financial assets HMBBEE 3,899 3,899
12,116,436 8,687,560
Current assets MEEE
Other receivables, deposits HibEWETE - me R
and prepayments A 76,189 83,761
Deposits with bank BITER - 717,358
Cash and cash equivalents Be MRS EY 571,934 1,105,920
648,123 1,907,039
Current liabilities mEAE
Interest-bearing borrowings FEEE
- Secured —BHEA 75,000 240,000
- Unsecured — I - 499,500
75,000 739,500
Other payables and accrued HEATERETE A
expenses 38,114 50,179
113,114 89679
Net current assets MEEEFH 535,009 1,117,360
Total assets less current BEERTHEE
liabilities 12,651,445 9,804,920
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34 COMPANY-LEVEL STATEMENT OF 34 RNRAIZIHEARNRK (&)
FINANCIAL POSITION (continued)
2015 2014
—E-1F —T-mF
$°000 $°000 $'000 $000
Tr Tr T T
Non-current liabilities FERBEE
Interest-bearing borrowings STEEE
- Secured — B 500,000 75,000
- Unsecured —EIR 3,816,869 1,392,953
4,316,869 1,467,953
Amounts due to subsidiaries ERHBARRIEA 71,348 131,506
4,388,217 1,599,459
NET ASSETS BEEFHE 8,263,228 8,205,461
CAPITAL AND RESERVES AR #E
(note 27(a)) (ff3E27(a))
Share capital B AR 7,405,414 7,405,414
Reserves it 857,814 800,047
TOTAL EQUITY ERERE 8,263,228 8,205,461
Approved and authorised for issue by the board of EEEeR T A"F_A-TNAZERET
directors on 29 February 2016. A EEAT o
Chen Xiaoping Wang Tianyi
BN EPN
Director Director

EZE EZE
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) ([ 54 =R »

35 IMMEDIATE AND ULTIMATE CONTROLLING

PARTY

At 31 December 2015, the directors consider the

B S BRNBEE)

35 AEMBREIERAL
RZE-—RAF+T_A=+—80 EFR

immediate parent and ultimate controlling party of the
Group to be Guildford Limited and China Investment
Corporation, which are incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands and the PRC respectively. Neither of them
produces financial statements available for public use.

36 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,

NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS
ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the
HKICPA has issued a few amendments and new standards
which are not yet effective for the year ended 31 December
2015 and which have not been adopted in these financial
statements. These include the following which may be

AEBZEBESRARRGEREZERALS /DJU
AGuildford Limited R R E AR ET A
A BESRREBER RS kT M
KA o HEHBERRIHARATIAZH
TEERER ©

36 EAMEREBE_T—RF+-H
_+ B IEFE R AREBZERT
TR R 2 Al E

ﬁélﬁt%ﬂﬂ%i&%?'ﬁé‘ﬁﬂﬁ BEGEAE

N BIRER] R R - ZBEFT K%
Q‘JEAEJZ:EE A+ -_A=+—BLHFE
WARER - WEMBERRTERAZEFER
KRl o 7] B BN SR [ AR BE RO B AT B 2

relevant to the Group.

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28, Sale or contribution of
assets between an investor and its
associate or joint venture

Amendments to HKFRS 11,
Accounting for acquisitions of
interests in joint operations

Amendments to HKAS 1,
Disclosure initiative

Amendments to HKAS 16 and
HKAS 38, Clarification of
acceptable methods of depreciation
and amortisation

HKFRS 15, Revenue from
contracts with customers

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments

AlEnT -
Effective for
accounting
periods
beginning
on or after
B LA B sk
Z1&mm 2 &5t
HARR A K
BB TR —E——FF 1 January 2016
—EFER FRHE —E—REFE—
BBV BREENE10R LB BZS 1 January 2016
HRE28E 2 ER] —[IKEE A —E-RF-A—
BERFHdE ETEZEHL
BEHESLTE]

BB IEREERE 115 2185 — 1 January 2016
(WA & E sz i h %] —E-RF—-A—H

BB ENE1GR (] — 1 January 2016

[HEFE)E —T—RF—A—
EB g ENFEI6HE LB BE: 1 January 2016
'EE\'J%S&JT B - BFAES —T—RF—A—

CHTERE %]

BB IGHRE R FE155 —
[EFEE& 74@51

BB RE R FE O — 1 January 2018
[T A —E-N\E—

1 January 2018
—N\&F—H—H
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36 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, 36 EAMEREBE_T—HF T A

NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS
ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015 (continued)
The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
what the impact of these amendments is expected to be in
the period of initial application. So far it has concluded that
the adoption of them is unlikely to have a significant impact
on the Group’s results of operations and financial position,
except for the following.

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 replaces the existing guidance in HKAS 39
Financial instruments: Recognition and measurement.
HKFRS 9 includes revised guidance on the classification
and measurement of financial instruments, a new expected
credit loss model for calculating impairment on financial
assets, and new general hedge accounting requirements.
It also carries forward the guidance on recognition and
derecognition of financial instruments from HKAS 39.

HKFRS 9 is effective for annual reporting periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2018.

HKFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with customers
HKFRS 15 establishes a comprehensive framework for
determining whether, how much and when revenue is
recognised. It replaces existing revenue recognition
guidance, including HKAS 18 Revenue, HKAS 11
Construction contracts and HK(IFRIC) 13 Customer
Loyalty Programmes. It also includes guidance on when
to capitalise costs of obtaining or fulfilling a contract not
otherwise addressed in other standards, and includes
expanded disclosure requirements.

HKFRS 15 is effective for annual reporting periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2018.

The Group does not plan to early adopt the above new
standards or amendments. With respect to HKFRSs 9 and
15, given the Group has not completed its assessment of
their full impact on the Group, their possible impact on the
Group’s results of operations and financial position has not
been quantified.

=t HUEFERREBRZET

TR LR AIRER & (4)

AEBBREFEZFETEE ERERAEY
B AT AR T XAt &
S R BRRER] TS HAKE 2 2EXA

CELCZFE -

KB BR AR ERTE -

BRUMBREEAFR /24T A/

HEMBRELEEIRMAFE S LR
FEZBAEE
5l - BEMBHREENFIRFBEEMTA
BN EZRERES  HEMBEER
BeRBEEEENRLLFN— RIS

E39% 2@ T A - 1

FHRE - ZERIMEERAE LS ER
39 ME Al T AR MBURER S| °

ERMBHRELENEIRN _T—/\F—H

— AR KRR FERE B -

BRUBREERFSS [ FFE K |

BB B S R SR 2 155 S LR E R
Wag > Tk - BOERE Y 2 E RS o 18

AR RAER RS ERIES - BREERS

RRIE18YE [ | - BAR G EAFE 115
[TEE#AIRBE(BRMGERERELZER
) —REBFI3R [ FEL M E ] - HINH
BEMERIKRE 5175 IE A B8] B A5 AU
BITAKNZKAER LIS URE AR

ABEHEHTE

BEEMBRELEIGRN _T—N\F—H

—BRZRAIEc FREREHRAER

ANEEA EET R AT A LAl F AT 2B 518
AN o A BT BRELERFEIR RFE 1557
mE @ ERAEEDRTHEBEIHASE
Br2EF2 204 Bt RE(EEE
A AR EE QL EE RSN AT EBR Z

S/ 488
= °
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Five Year Summary fZHEZ£EHE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A7 # &)

At 31 December

R+=ZA=+—H
2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
“E-1F —-mE —F-=F —E--F %k
$000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T T Fr T T
Assets and liabilities BENAE
Investment properties, other REME  Etp
property, plant and equipment  ¥1%  BE &
and interest in leasehold R ARIBE
land held for own use under e ERE
operating leases ERZHAELH 2,667,411 1,719,533 1,587,319 1,471,047 887,597
Intangible assets BREE 3,357,187 2,571,006 1,096,453 613,564 1,069,730
Goodwill e 1,061,891 834,845 20,793 20,793 46,133
Interest in associates =N 239,306 254,339 254,380 - -
Interest in joint ventures AelhEEn 209,161 27,289 - - -
Other financial assets HMBBEE 24,800 229,012 176,710 196,692 184,284
Other receivables, deposits Hipelss -
and prepayments e RFEMZUR 5,696,894 4,376,789 3,023,616 2,603,369 2,181,165
Gross amounts due from BREFAHTRE
customers for contract work PR 15,822,848 12,630,020 9,035,315 6,889,550 5,963,047
Finance lease receivables BERERKTE 19,062 20,411 21,485 21,384 21,608
Deferred tax assets ERFREE 36,483 49,455 10,966 27,508 12,836
Net current assets REEEFA 5,164,723 3,505,685 4,671,973 1,854,906 973,731
34,299,766 26,218,384 19,899,010 13,698,813 11,340,131
Non-current liabilities FERBAE (14,879,225)  (8,375,414)  (6,119,889)  (5,028,404)  (4,678,567)
NET ASSETS BEFH 19,420,541 17,842,970 13,779,121 8,670,409 6,661,564
Share capital A 7,405,414 7,405,414 448,371 403,841 367,546
Reserves [ 9,790,740 8,857,842 12,925,893 7,945,918 5,822,478
Total equity attributable to equity 7N 7 AR &1
shareholders of the Company EmaLs 17,196,154 16,263,256 13,374,264 8,349,759 6,190,024
Non-controlling interests JEE RS 2,224,387 1,579,714 404,857 320,650 471,540
TOTAL EQUITY gkl 19,420,541 17,842,970 13,779,121 8,670,409 6,661,564
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Five Year Summary fZHEZ£EHE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA #EH5)
For the year ended 31 December
HE+-A=+-ALEE
2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
—E-1f “E-NF —E-=F —T-Cf —2——F
$'000 $000 $000 $000 $'000
T T T T T
Results E3
Continuing operations HELEEH
Revenue Yz 8,534,531 6,355,120 5,319,866 3,409,938 3,486,697
Profit from operations BERF 3,576,466 2,680,443 2,127,232 1,483,202 1,260,280
Finance costs B%ER (451,759) (380,775) (315,579 (312,640) (240,778
Share of profit/(loss) of associates  Fi{fHE % A 7]
BF/ (B8) 140 (41) - - _
Share of loss of joint ventures FEA%LEBR (6,046) (694) - - -
Profit before taxation BB AT B A 3,118,801 2,299,033 1,811,653 1,170,562 1,019,502
Income tax FREH (783,275) (533,990) (447,455) (266,554) (254,713)
Profit from continuing operations B EE2 ¥ 7 B 2,335,526 1,765,043 1,364,198 904,008 764,789
Discontinued operation ZXMM%W
Profit from discontinued operation g B
(et of tax) (&%Wé) - - - 250,096 80,475
Profit for the year KEE B 2,335,526 1,765,043 1,364,198 1,154,104 845,264
Attributable to: e -
Equity shareholders of the RARRE
Company 2,084,888 1,703,147 1,324,667 1,123,269 801,441
Non-controlling interests JEmRES 250,638 61,896 39,531 30,835 43,823
Profit for the year KEFEEH 2,335,526 1,765,043 1,364,198 1,154,104 845,264
Basic earnings per share SREREF| 46.50 centsfll  37.99 centsfll  32.60 centsfll  29.65 centsfll  21.86 centsfll

The consolidated operation results of Greenway and its fEMBHREA * Greenway R EW B R T 254
subsidiaries, which was disposed of by the Group during the &EZ2ZEE27| AR IMEEEK(AEEREZE —
year ended 31 December 2012, are presented as discontinued =Z— %+ = A =+—H I-FE H & Greenway
operation in the financial statements. REWBARF) o
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Major Properties held by the Group A&£BfiFEEEYE

Location

Ho®h

Existing use
BB &

Term of lease

HEFH

Percentage
of interest

FribEzm A DL

Units 2703 and 2704, 27th Floor
Far East Finance Centre

16 Harcourt Road

Hong Kong

BABERBE T
BREEEA L

Tt AT =R ETENOE

25th Floor to 28th Floor

Block A, Oriental Xintiandi Plaza
No. 1003 Shennan Avenue
Futian District, Shenzhen
IR A=

R KB 100355k

R R EISARE25E £ 28

Units 3 and 4, 11th Floor
Qingsong South Lane
Dalian Development Zone
the PRC
TEAERERSILEE
TB=RIEET

Room 1301-1309

Central Business Building

No. 88 Fuhua Road One

Futian District

Shenzhen, Guangdong Province
the PRC

PR EREG R EE R
E%—%ﬂ+ﬂ%$g%%ﬁ§

—=FB—F—=FNE

24th Floor

Tower of Education

Science & Technology Building
Zhuzilin, Futian District
Shenzhen, Guangdong Province
the PRC

BB E R AR

RBHE TR
HERMBRE-_+HE

Block JO7, Zhongguancun Science Park

No. 156 Wenquan Town
Haidian District

Beijing, the PRC

PR BRI

B RE— RN

PN IR REHEEJOT R

Commercial

CES

Commercial

[CES

Residential
F=

Commercial

CES

Commercial

[GES

Commercial

CES

Medium

&

Medium

5

Medium

5

Medium

&

Medium

5

Medium

o 5

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%



An enterprise is not only the Creator of Wealth
but also the Safeguard of Environmental and Social Responsibility
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Everbright International
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FSC™ C017167

www.ebchinaintl.com




	Cover

	Contents
	Corporate Information
	Financial Highlights
	Corporate Milestones
	Chairman’s Statement
	Chief Executive Officer’s Report
	Sustainability Report
	Corporate Governance Report
	Directors and Senior Management
	Report of the Directors
	Independent Auditor’s Report
	Consolidated Income Statement
	Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
	Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
	Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
	Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
	Notes to the Financial Statements
	Five Year Summary
	Major Properties held by the Group
	Back Cover



<<
  /ASCII85EncodePages false
  /AllowTransparency false
  /AutoPositionEPSFiles true
  /AutoRotatePages /All
  /Binding /Left
  /CalGrayProfile (Dot Gain 20%)
  /CalRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CalCMYKProfile (Japan Color 2001 Coated)
  /sRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CannotEmbedFontPolicy /Warning
  /CompatibilityLevel 1.6
  /CompressObjects /Tags
  /CompressPages true
  /ConvertImagesToIndexed true
  /PassThroughJPEGImages true
  /CreateJobTicket false
  /DefaultRenderingIntent /Default
  /DetectBlends true
  /DetectCurves 0.0000
  /ColorConversionStrategy /LeaveColorUnchanged
  /DoThumbnails false
  /EmbedAllFonts true
  /EmbedOpenType false
  /ParseICCProfilesInComments true
  /EmbedJobOptions true
  /DSCReportingLevel 0
  /EmitDSCWarnings false
  /EndPage -1
  /ImageMemory 1048576
  /LockDistillerParams false
  /MaxSubsetPct 100
  /Optimize true
  /OPM 1
  /ParseDSCComments true
  /ParseDSCCommentsForDocInfo true
  /PreserveCopyPage true
  /PreserveDICMYKValues true
  /PreserveEPSInfo true
  /PreserveFlatness false
  /PreserveHalftoneInfo false
  /PreserveOPIComments false
  /PreserveOverprintSettings true
  /StartPage 1
  /SubsetFonts true
  /TransferFunctionInfo /Apply
  /UCRandBGInfo /Preserve
  /UsePrologue false
  /ColorSettingsFile ()
  /AlwaysEmbed [ true
    /CFangSong-Light
    /CGuLi-Bold
    /CGuYin-Bold
    /CHei-UltraBold
    /CHei2-Bold
    /CHei2-Xbold
    /CHei3-Bold
    /CJNgai-Bold
    /CKan-Xbold
    /CNganKai-Bold
    /CO2Yuen-XboldOutline
    /COYuen-Xbold
    /COYuen-XboldOutline
    /CPo-Bold
    /CPo3-Bold
    /CSong3-Medium
    /CSu-Medium
    /CXLi-Medium
    /CXing-Medium
    /CXingKai-Bold
    /CYuen-SemiMedium
    /MBei-Bold
    /MHei-Bold
    /MHei-Light
    /MHei-Medium
    /MHei-Xbold
    /MKai-Medium
    /MKai-SemiBold
    /MLi-Bold
    /MNgai-Bold
    /MSung-Light
    /MSung-Medium
    /MSung-Xbold
    /MYuen-Light
    /MYuen-Medium
    /MYuen-Xbold
  ]
  /NeverEmbed [ true
  ]
  /AntiAliasColorImages false
  /CropColorImages false
  /ColorImageMinResolution 300
  /ColorImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleColorImages true
  /ColorImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /ColorImageResolution 200
  /ColorImageDepth -1
  /ColorImageMinDownsampleDepth 1
  /ColorImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeColorImages true
  /ColorImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterColorImages true
  /ColorImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /ColorACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.40
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /ColorImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasGrayImages false
  /CropGrayImages false
  /GrayImageMinResolution 300
  /GrayImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleGrayImages true
  /GrayImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /GrayImageResolution 200
  /GrayImageDepth -1
  /GrayImageMinDownsampleDepth 2
  /GrayImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeGrayImages true
  /GrayImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterGrayImages true
  /GrayImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /GrayACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.40
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /GrayImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasMonoImages false
  /CropMonoImages false
  /MonoImageMinResolution 1200
  /MonoImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleMonoImages true
  /MonoImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /MonoImageResolution 300
  /MonoImageDepth -1
  /MonoImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeMonoImages true
  /MonoImageFilter /CCITTFaxEncode
  /MonoImageDict <<
    /K -1
  >>
  /AllowPSXObjects false
  /CheckCompliance [
    /None
  ]
  /PDFX1aCheck false
  /PDFX3Check false
  /PDFXCompliantPDFOnly false
  /PDFXNoTrimBoxError true
  /PDFXTrimBoxToMediaBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXSetBleedBoxToMediaBox true
  /PDFXBleedBoxToTrimBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXOutputIntentProfile (Japan Color 2001 Coated)
  /PDFXOutputConditionIdentifier (JC200103)
  /PDFXOutputCondition ()
  /PDFXRegistryName (http://www.color.org)
  /PDFXTrapped /False

  /CreateJDFFile false
  /Description <<

  >>
  /Namespace [
    (Adobe)
    (Common)
    (1.0)
  ]
  /OtherNamespaces [
    <<
      /AsReaderSpreads false
      /CropImagesToFrames true
      /ErrorControl /WarnAndContinue
      /FlattenerIgnoreSpreadOverrides false
      /IncludeGuidesGrids false
      /IncludeNonPrinting false
      /IncludeSlug false
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (InDesign)
        (4.0)
      ]
      /OmitPlacedBitmaps false
      /OmitPlacedEPS false
      /OmitPlacedPDF false
      /SimulateOverprint /Legacy
    >>
    <<
      /AddBleedMarks false
      /AddColorBars false
      /AddCropMarks false
      /AddPageInfo false
      /AddRegMarks false
      /BleedOffset [
        0
        0
        0
        0
      ]
      /ConvertColors /NoConversion
      /DestinationProfileName (Japan Color 2001 Coated)
      /DestinationProfileSelector /UseName
      /Downsample16BitImages true
      /FlattenerPreset <<
        /PresetSelector /MediumResolution
      >>
      /FormElements false
      /GenerateStructure false
      /IncludeBookmarks false
      /IncludeHyperlinks false
      /IncludeInteractive false
      /IncludeLayers false
      /IncludeProfiles true
      /MarksOffset 6.000950
      /MarksWeight 0.250000
      /MultimediaHandling /UseObjectSettings
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (CreativeSuite)
        (2.0)
      ]
      /PDFXOutputIntentProfileSelector /UseName
      /PageMarksFile /RomanDefault
      /PreserveEditing true
      /UntaggedCMYKHandling /LeaveUntagged
      /UntaggedRGBHandling /LeaveUntagged
      /UseDocumentBleed false
    >>
    <<
      /AllowImageBreaks true
      /AllowTableBreaks true
      /ExpandPage false
      /HonorBaseURL true
      /HonorRolloverEffect false
      /IgnoreHTMLPageBreaks false
      /IncludeHeaderFooter false
      /MarginOffset [
        0
        0
        0
        0
      ]
      /MetadataAuthor ()
      /MetadataKeywords ()
      /MetadataSubject ()
      /MetadataTitle ()
      /MetricPageSize [
        0
        0
      ]
      /MetricUnit /inch
      /MobileCompatible 0
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (GoLive)
        (8.0)
      ]
      /OpenZoomToHTMLFontSize false
      /PageOrientation /Portrait
      /RemoveBackground false
      /ShrinkContent true
      /TreatColorsAs /MainMonitorColors
      /UseEmbeddedProfiles false
      /UseHTMLTitleAsMetadata true
    >>
  ]
>> setdistillerparams
<<
  /HWResolution [600 600]
  /PageSize [612.000 792.000]
>> setpagedevice




